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UNITED STATES 

SECURlTIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION 
Washington, D.C. 20S49 

FORMJO-K 

(Mark One) 

Ill ANNUAL REPORT PURSUANT TO SECI'ION 13 OR 1S(d) OP THE SBCURJTIBS BXCHANOBACT OP 1934 

For tlle fiscal year ended Dec;embBr 31. 2016 
or 

□TRANSmON REPORT PURSUANT TO SEcrION 13 OR IS(d) OPTIIB SECURlTlES EXCHANGE Acr OP 1934S

Commtssion file number 000-2§669 
CAN-CAL RESOURCES LTD. 

(Bxact name of registrant as specified in its chartar) 

Nevada 86-0865852 

(State or other jurisdiction of incoq,oration or organization) (LR.S. Bmplo� Identification No.) 

42 Springfield Avenue 
RedDeer, Alberta, Canada T4N0C7 
(Address of prinoipal executive offices) (Zip Code) 

Registrant's telephone number, including mea code {403) 342 6221 

Securities registered pursuant to Section l2(b) of the Exchange Act: None 

Securities registered pursuant to Section 1200 of the Bxcbange Act 
Common Stock, so,001 par value 
Preferred Stock. S0.001 par value. 5% cumulative 

Indicate by check mark if the registrant is a well-lmown seasoned issuer, as defined In llule 40S of the Securities Act. 
□Yes DDNoS

Indicate by check mark if the registrant is not requiled to file reports pUISWmt to Section 13 or IS(d) of the Act. 
Cl Yes Iii No 

Indicate by checkmatk whether the registmnt (1) bas filed all reports iettuired to be filed by Section 13 or lS(d) of the Securities Bxcbange Act of 
1934 dming the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period that tho iegistrant was xequlred to file such reports), and (2) has been subject to 
such filing requirements for tho past 90 days. 

1J Yes Ill No 

Indicate by checkmark if disclosure of delinquent filers pursuant to Item 40S of Regulation S-K (§229.40S of this chapter) is not contained herein, 
and will not be contained, to tho best of registrant's lmowledge, in definitive proxy or information statements inccnporated by refcnmce In Part Ill.of 
this Fonn 10-K or any amendment to this Fonn 10-K. 

□ 

Indicate by check made whether tho registrant has submitted electronically and posted on its cmpmate Web site, if any, every lntemctive Data Pile 
required to be submitted and posted pursuant to R.ule 405 of Regulation S-T (§232.405 of this cbaptor) during this preceding 12 months (or for such 
shorter period that tJm regjstrant was requiled to submit and post such files). 

CYes DDNo 

-Indicate by check mark whether tho registrant is a lmge-accelmated filer, an accelerated mer, a non-accelerated filer, a smallerreportins ccmpany or
an emerging growth company. See the definitions of "latge accelerated filer," 11accelerated filer", "smaller nipcrting company" and "emergingS
growth company" in Rule 12b·2 of tho Exchange Act.S

Large accelerated filer□ Accelerated filer CS
Non-accelerated filer a (Do not check if a smaUer reporting company) Smaller reporting company DDS
Bmerging Growth Company a 
If an emerging growth company, indicate by check mark if theregistrant bas elected not to use the extended transition period fbr complying with
any new or revised ftmmcial accotmtfng staDdards provided pumuant to Section 13(a) of the '&change AcL □ 
Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a shell company (as defined in Rule 121>--2 of the Exchange Act).S



None. 

□ Yes lilNo 

The aggregate market value of voting stock held by non-afliliates of the registrant was approximately $957,340 as of computed by mfen:nco to the 
sale prlce of a share of tho nigistrant's Common Stock on J'une 30, 2017 reported by OTC Bulletin Board (Rof Bloomberg). The voting stock held 
by non.affiliates on that date consisted of39,443,64l shaxes of common stock. 

The number of shares outstanding of each of the registrant's classes of common stock, as of March 8, 2018. was 43,667,060 shares of common 
stock, S0.001 par wlw, held by approximately 180 shareholders. 

Documents Incorporated by Reference 



ITEM I, BUSINl;SS CAND INFORMATION FOR ITBM 2 ON PR.OPERTIES)S

ITBM 7. MANAOEMmfi'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

24 

ITEM 9A CONTROLS AND PROCl;DURffi 
24 

CAN-CAL RESOURCES LTD. 

COMPREIIENSIVEFORMJ�K 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

bu 

PARTI 2 
2 

lTBM IA,RISKPACTQRS 
JTBM tB, UNRBSQLVEQ STAPF COMMENTS 8 
ITBM 2, PROPER.TIES 

3 

8 
ITEM 3. LBQAL PROCBEQJNQS 16 
ITEM 4. MJNli SAfAIY DISCLOSURES 17 

PARTII 18 

JTBMs,MARKB'f fQR REGISTRANTS COMMON BQUJIY, RELAIJ;p STOCKHOLDER MATrERS AND ISSUER. 18 
PURCHASMQF HOUITY SECURITIES 
ITBM 6. SELECTED f(NANCJAL DATA 

ITRM 7A, OUANTJTATIVI; AND OUALITA11VB DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK 

20 

20 

24 
JIRM 8, PINANC[AL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA 
JTBM 9. CHANQBS AND DISAGRBI!MENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON ACCOUNTING AND PINANC)AL DlSCI.OSURE 

JTEM 9B. OTHER lJifORMAT(ON 
25 

26 
27PARTIU 

ITBM IQ DIRECTORS J;XBCUTIYE OPFICBRS AND CORPORATE QOVBRNANCB 27 
JIBM t I. EXBCtmVE COMPENSATION 29 

1T6M 12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OP CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNHRS AND MANAQBMENTAND RELATED 30 

STQCKHOLDBR MA]TBRS 
ITEM 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATBD TRANSACTIONS, AND DIRECTOR INDEPENDBNCE 30 

ITEM 14. PRJNctPAL ACCOUNTANT PBBS AND SBRYICES 31 
PARTIV 32 

1TBM IS. BXHlBITS. f]NANCJAL STATl!MBNT SCHEDULES 32 



EXPLANATORY NOTE 

This Ammal Report on Form 10-K is a compreheosivo annual report which includes audited financial statements as of December 31, 2016, 
201S and 2014, and for the years then ended and unaudited financial statements as of March 31, 2016, Juno 30, 2016. September 30, 2016, March 
31, 2017, Juno 30, 2017 and September 30, 20171 and for the three months ended Mlm:h 31, 2016 and 2017, the three and six months ended June 30, 
2016 and 2017 and the three and nine months ended September 30, 2016 and 2017. Tho Registrant ls filing this comprehensive annual report in Heu 
of separately filing its Annual Report on Form 10-K forthcyeam ended December 31, 2016 and201S, and Its Quarterly Reports onForm 10,.Q for 
the quarters ended March 31, 2016, June 30, 2016, Septemberl0,2016, Match 31,2017, June 30, 2017 and September 30, 2017, whiclueports are 
delinquent as of the date of this filing (collectively, the "Delinquent Reports"). Also Included in this Annual Report on Porm 10-K is all material 
infmmation that would have been maluded in the Delinquent Reports. 

The Registrant was unablo to timely file the Delinquent R.eports when originally due. as a result of finances. Moving forward, through 
payments Il!Ceived via the Amended MSA with Candeo, the Registrant believes that it will be able tc resume the timely tiling of fbture periodic and 
other reports clue pursuant to the mies of Secmlties and Exchange Connnisslon (SEC) and intends to timely file such filings. 

The Registrant believes that all material infonnation which would haw been Included In the Delinquent Reports, had they been sepatately 
filed with the SEC, is included in this compiehensive annual report. Notwithstanding the abovo, tho focus of this Annual Report is the current state 
of the Registrant, rather than on the state of the Registmnt as of the dates the Delinquent Reports were due. 



FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS 

'Ibis document contains 11forwanl-Jooldng statemenrs- within the meaning of the Private Securities Litigation Refonn Act of 1995. All 
statements ether than statements ofohlstorlcal fact are 11f'orwmd-lo0king statementsn for purposes of federal and state securities Jaws. Including, but 
not limited to. any projections of earnings, revenue or other financial ltemsi any statements of the plans, strategies and objections of management for 
future operatfonsi any statements concerning proposed new services or developments; any statements regarding future economic conditions or 
perfannance; any statements or belief: and any statements of assumptions underlying any of the foregoing. 

Forward-looking statements may include the words .. may," "could," "estimate." Mfntend," "coDtlnue." "believe," "expect" or-anticipate" or 
other similar words. These forward-looking statements pn,sent our estimates and assumptions only as of the date of this report. Acccmlfngly, ieadera 
are cautioned not to place undue reliance on forward-looking statements, which speak only as. of tho dates on which they me made. We do not 
undertalm to update forward-looking statements to reflect the impact of cinrumstances or events that arise after the dates they are made. You should, 
however, consult tunher disclosures we make in this Annual Report on Form I 0-K. Quarterly Reports on Poan 10-Q and Current Repcms on Ponn 
8-IC.o

Although we believe that the expectations reflected in any or our fotWBld-tooJdng statements me reasonable, actual results could differ 
materially from those projected or assmned in any of our fotward-looking statements. Our future financial condition and msutts of operations. as 
well as any forward-looking statements, an, subject to change and inherent risks and uncertainties. 1be factors Impacting these risks and 
uncertainties include. but are not Umitecno: 

•o lhe unavailability of ftmds for capital expendituresio
•o inability to efficiently manago om operations;o
•o inability to achieve futme operating results;o
•o inabnity to raise additional financing for working capital;o
•o the inability of management to effectively implement our strategies and business plans;o
•o our ability to recruit and him key employees;o
•o our abijity to diversity our operations;o
•o actions and initiatives taken by both current and potential competiton;o
•o deteriomtion in general or regional economic. market and political conditions;o
•o the fact that om accaunting policies end methods are fundamental to how wo report our financial condidon and results of operations.

and they may require management to make estimates about matters that aro inherendy wcertaln;o
•o adverse state or federal legislation or regulation that fncmses the costs of compliance, or adverse findings by a regulator with respecto

to exisdng operations;o
•o changes in U.S. OAAP or in the, lepl, regulatory and legislative enviromnants in the markets in which we operate; ando
•o the other risks and uncertainties detailed in Ibis report.o

In this Ponn I 0-K references to •'Can-Cal10 
, "'lhe Company", "we.° 1'us." '"our" and similar tenns refer to Can-Cal Resources Ltd.o

AVAn.ABLEJN110RMATION 

Can-Cal files ennua1, quarterly, current and special raporta and other information with tho SBC. Yau can read these SEC filings and reports 
over the Internet at the SBC's website at www.sec.gov or on om website at www.cancalcom. You can also ob1aln copies orthe documents at 
prescribed rates by writing to the Public Reference Section of the SEC at 100 F Street. NB, Washington, DC 20349 an official business days 
between the hours of l 0:00 am and 3:00 pm. Please call the SBC at (800) SEC0330 for further fnfonnation on the operations of the public reference 
facilities. We will provide a copy of our annual report to security holders, including audited financial statements, at no charge upon receipt to of a 
written request to us at Can-Cal Resources Ltd., 42 Springfield Avenue, Red Deer, Alberta, Canada T4N OC7. 

www.cancalcom
www.sec.gov


PARTI 

ITEM l. BUSINESS (AND INJ.i'ORMATION FORITEM 2 ON PROPERTIES). 

Business Development 

Can-Cal Resources Ltd. ("Can-Cal" or the "Company") is a Nevada COiporation incoiporated on March 22, 199S under the name of British 
Pubs USA, Ina. es a wholly owned subsidimy of30SBS6 B.C., Ltd. d/b/a N.W. Electric Carriage Company ("NWBj, a British Columbia, Canada 
company ("NWE"). On April 12, 199S, NWB exchanged shares of British Pubs USA. Inc. for shares ofNWB he!d by its existing shareholders. on a 
share for sbaro basis. NW6 changed its name to Can-Cal Resources Ltd. on July 2, 1996. 

In January 1999, tho Company sold its wholly-owned Canadian subsidiary. Scotmar Industries, Inc., which was engaged in the business of 
buying and salvaging damaged trucks ftom insurance companies for resale of guaranteed truck part components. The subsidiary was sold for a profit 
and the proceeds used to acquire and explore minoral properties, as· the Company detennined that the subsidiary would lose money in the vehicle 
salvage buafnoss unless more capital was obtained at tliat timo specifically for that business. 

Business of Issuer 

The Company is an exploration company. Since 1996, we have examined various mineral properties prospective for precious metals and 
minerals and acquired those deemed promising. We own. lease or have mining interest in two mineral prc,pt,rties in tho southwestern United States 
(Califomia and Am:ona. as follows: Cetbat, Armma; and Pisgah, California. The Company fonnerly bad an interest in a property in Owl Canyon, 
California. and Wildeup1 Arizona but these were abandoned. 

Prior to 2003, the Company perfonned numerous "tn-houso" assays on mineral samples from our properties in the United States. An assay 
Is a test pcrf'onned on a sample of minerals to detemunc, the quantity of one or more element& contained in the sample. The in-house work was 
conducted with our equipment by persons under Can.cat contract who are experienced In perfonning assays. but who wore not independent of us. 
We also sent samples of materials from which we obtained the most promisfng results to outsfde Independent assayers to confinn in-hOUS8 results. 

In 2003, the Company incorporated a wholly owned subsidiary In Mexico. Sierra Madre Resources S.A. de C. V. C"SMR."), to be en
operating endty for mJnfng-related acquisitions and activities in Mexico. In Februmy 2004. SMR. acquired a 100% interest in a gold-silver mineral
concession, in Durango State, Mexico, In July 2004, SMR. applied to the Mexican Govemment for a gold-silver concession. also in Dutango State,
Mexico. These were exploration stage properties, referred to tn previous Company reports as "Arco Project" and "Arco 2 Project11 • In Novembere
2004, SMR applied to Mexico's Director of Mines for three grass f0013, gold-silver exploration concessions located in the State of Chihuahua,
Mexico. These applications were subsequendy cancelled in February 2005 due to incomplete application filings. SMR may reapply for one or more
of these concessions In the future, but has qmently ceased operations in Mexico.e

The Company's current focus has changed from Mexico to the United States with present emphasis en the Pisgah Mountain property 
t'Pfsph Propertyj. 

All the United States pmperties.ma considered "grass roots" because they are not lmown to contain reserves of precious metals or other 
minerals (a reserve Is that portion. of a mineral deposit which could be economically and legally extracted or produced at the dme of the reserve 
detmnlnatton). Nona of these propeities Is in production. 

Can-Cal is cummtly an exploration stago company. An entity remains in the exploration stage until such time as proven or probable 
reserves have been established for its deposits. Upon the location of connnercially mlneable reserves, in the event that we are successful in locating 
commercially mineabte zeserves, the Company plans to prepare for mineral extraction and enter the development stage. To date. the cxplmation 
&luge of the Company•s opemtions consists of contracting with geo!ogi�ts who smnple and assess the mining viability of the Company•s claims. 

2 

https://pmperties.ma


To the extent that financing is available, we intend to explore, develop, and, If producible .and wammted, bring Into production precious 
metals properties for either on our own account or ht conjunction with joint venture partners (In those ins1ances where we acquire less than a I 00% 
fntezest fn a property). However, either due to a combination of a lack of availabh, financing, the number of properties which merit development, 
and/or the scope of the exploration and development work of a particular property being boyond the Company's financial and adminlstradve 
capabilities, the Company may contract out one or mme of its properties to other mining companies. 

Bxecutiveloffices are located at42 SpringfieldAvcnuc,Red Deer, Alberta, Canada T4N OC7 (tel. (403) 342 6221). 

ITEM IA. RISK FACTORS. 

lo the course of conducting our business operations, we are exposed to a wriet.y of risks that are inherent to our industly specifically, and to 
early stage companies and for investments in securities, generally. The following discusses some of the key Inherent risk factors that could affect 
our business and operations, as well as other risk factots which me particularly relevant to us In tho cummt period of significant economic and 
mmket dismptton. Other f'actot3 besides those discussed below or elsewhere in this report also could advenety aff'ect our business and operations. 
and these risk factors should not be considered a complete list of potential risks that may aft"ect us. 

Risk lacton Related io Our Business 

Lossa to Date and General Rl&ks Faee4 6y the Campany. 

We ate an exploration stage company engaged in the acquisition and exploration of precious metals mineral properties. To date, we, have 
no producing properties. As a result, we have had mJnhml somces of operating revenue and we bave historically operated and continue to operate at 
a loss. For the year cmded December 31, 2016, the Company recorded a net loss ofS168,105 and bad un accumulated deficit ofSll,263,792 at that 
date. Our ultimate success will depend on our abltlty to generate profits tom our prapmties. 

We lack material opmting cash flow and rely on external fimdfng sources. If we mo unable to continao to obtain needed capital from 
cu1Side sources, we wi11 be forced to reduce, curtail or cease G1lJ' operations. Furtbennme the. planned exploration and development or the mineral 
properties in which we hold interests depends upon our ability to obtain financing through: 

•l Bank or other debt financing,l
•l Bquit¥ financing, orl
•l Othe.r means.l

As a mineral exploration company, our abWty to commence production and generate profits fa dependent on our ablllty to discover viable 
and economic mineral reserves. Our ability to discover such reserv.es are subject to nmnerous factms, many of which are beyond our COD1rol and me 
not predfcmble. 

Exploration for minerals is speculative in nature, involves many ris1cB and is frequently unsuccessfhL Any mineral explmatfOll program 
entails risks relating to: 

•l The location or economic ore bodies,l
•l Development of appropriate metallurgical processes,l
•l Receipt of necessmy governmental approvals, andl
•l Construction of mining and processing facilities at any site chosen for mining.l

Th11 commercial viablltty of a mineral deposit is dependent on a number of factors including: 

•l The price of various minerals,l
•l Exchange rates,l
•l 1bc particular atm1,utes of the deposit. such as fts size, grado and proxhnlty to fDfi'astructure, financing costs, taxation, royalties, landl

tenure, land use, water use. power � and foreign govenmumt regutadons restricting fmpotdng and expmtiDg minemls andl
environmental protection requirements.l
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All of the mineral properties in which we havo an interest or rigbt are In the exploration stages only and aro without mineral reserves. Wo 
cannot assure that cummt or pmposed exploratfon or dovelopment piograms on properties In which we have an interest will result in·the discovery 
or any mfnmals or mineral reserves or will result in a profllabto commercial mining operation. 

Th, audll ,epo,t on the jlnanclal 81atemenll at Det:IIIIIJa 31, 2016 hllB a "going concern" qutzl/fkadon, whicl, meDM we may not 6e able to 
condnua operations rmlea we ohtaln additional funding and are auccesaful wltl, our rtrateglc plan. 

We have experienced losses since inception. Tbe extended period over which losses have been axperienced is principally attn"butable to the 
fact that a lot of money has been spent cm exploring grass roots mineral properties to determme ff precious metals might be present in economic 
quantities. In order to ftmd fbture activities the Company mast identify and verify the pmenc:e of precious metals in economic quantities. which is 
currently ongoing "In House" in addltlou to independent third party testing. If economic results are identified, the Company then would either seek 
to raise capital ftsel£ to put the Pisgah Proparty and the Cerbat properties into pmduction, or sell this properties to another company, or place the 
properties into a joint venture with another company. 

Attaining these objectives will require capital, which the Company wm have to obtain principally by selling stock or income generation. 
However, we have oummtly have no definitive arrangements In place to raise the necessary capital to continue operations for any extended period of 
time. and have generally relied upon relatively small, and intermittent infusions to sustain operations. 

Q'ws do not obtain addltltmalftnaru:lng, our buslnea wlUfalL 

Our current operating tbnds are less than necessary to complete all intended objectives and therefore we will need to obtain additional 
financing or commencement of income genmation fn order to continue in business. We cumntly do not have any operations. Our only source of 
income at present is fiom two third parties. 

On May l, 1998, tho Company cmtered into a Mining Lease Agreement for the Pisgah Property with Twin Mountain Reck Venture, a 
Callfbnda general partnmhip ('Twin Mountain,"). Tho agreement provides that Twin Mountain will pay minimum annual rental payments of 
$22,500 for the initial tenn and 527,SOO per year for tho additional tenn. Twin Mountain Is also ab1lgated to pay a monthly production royal� for all 
matmial mmoved mnn the premises. 

On Maroh 3, 2014. the Company entcm:d into an emended material supply agn,ement with Candeo Lava Products Inc. for the Pisgah 
Property, pursuant to which Candeo will pay for and acquire 30,000 tons, and then it will pre-purchase a minimum of ten thousand (10,000) tons 
per year at a purchase price or fifteen dollars (S 15.00 USD) per ton for a total payment of St SO.ODD USD per year in each of the first three years of 
tho term. 

We do not cmrently have any additional arrangements for financing and we can provide no assurance to investors that we will be able to 
find such fimmcfng if requited. Obtaining additional financing would be subject to a number of factors, including investor acceptance of our 
business model and general market conditions. These factors may make the timing, amount. terms or conditions of additional financing unawilable 
tous. 

The most likely somce of future funds pn:scntly available to us is through the sale of equity capital in one or more negotiated private sale 
transactions. Any sale or share capital will result m dilution to existing shareholders. 

As an exploration comp� we are s11bjed to the risks of ll,e mineral& business. 

The exploration for minerals is highly speculative and involves risks different fiom end in some instances greater than risks encountered by 
companies In other Industries. Without extensive tecJmlcal and economic feasibility studies. no one can know If any propeny can be mined at a 
protiL Most axploratfon programs do not mutt in tho discovery of mlneralimion that leads to commercially viable mining activities and most 
exploration progmms never recover the funds invested in them. Furthemime. even with promising iescrve reports and rea&1"bility studies, profits 
cannot be assured. We bave not systematically drilled and sampled any of our properties to confinn the presence or any conce.mmtions of pn:cious 
metals, and drilling and sampling results to date have been tnccncluslw. 
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The Britil/1 Colambla Secaritiss Commission /ras rtlJUlred us to o/Jtaln a report /Jy an lndqentlent consullllnt 1Jrtallfle4 antler lhe standanls of 
lheBCSC 

Tho British Colmnbia Securities Commission ("BCSC") previously required the Company to oblafn a report by an Independentconsultant 
qualified under the standards of the BCSC • .Under British Columbia secudties laws, all disclosure of scientific or teclmical information. including 
disclosure of a mineml resource or mineral reserve must be based on Information prepared by or under the supervision of an Independent third party 
who is "qualified'' under the terms or that law. The Company was therefore required under order to supply such verification by a "qualified" third 
party consultant, and its stock was prohibited from trading ln British Columbia until the BCSC accepted such verification. The BCSC also fClluested 
documentation reganllng all subscribers to the Company stock who were at such time residing ln British Columbia. Tbe Company subsequently 
retained a "'qualified" third party consultant who prepmed and filed the necessmy reports with the BCSC. If the BCSC continues with additional 
investigatocy proceedings, it will �uire tho Company to expend additional funds DD legal and acccnmtfng fees. which will have a negative Impact 
on our resources available for exploration and general operating activities. 

There is substantial risk that such testing on the United States properties would show lhnfted concentralions of precious metals, and such 
testing may show a lack of precious metals in the properties. Any positive test mutts wtll only confirm the presence of precious metals in the 
samples, and it cannot be assumed that precious metaJs..bearlng materials exist outside of 1he samples tested. 

Polley dtanges. 

Changes in n:gulatmy or political policy could advcmely affect our exploration and future production activities. Any changes in 
government policy. in the United States or other countries where pt0pertfes are or may bo held, could result in changes to taws affecting ownership 
of assets, land tenure, mining policies, taxation, environmental teglllations, and labor telatlons. 

Bnl'lronmental costs. 

Compliance with environmental regulations could adversely affect our explomtlon and future production activities. There can be no 
assurance that future changes to environmental legislation and related regulations, if any, wi11 not advemely.affect our operations. 

Future reserve atlmates. 

All of the mineral properties in which wa have an interest or right are fn the cxplomtion stages only and are without reserves of any 
minemls. Even if and when we can prove such reserves, reserve estimates may not be accurate. There fa a degree of uncertainty attributable to any 
calculation of resetVes or resources. Until reserves or resources are actually mined and processed, the quantity or reserws or resources must bo 
considered as estimates only. In addition, the quantity of reserves or resources may vary depending on metal prices. Any material change In the 
quantity of reserves, resource grade or stripping ratio may affect the economic viability ofom properties. In addition. them can be no assumnce that 
mineral recoveries in small-scalo labanuozy tests will be duplicated in large tests under on.site conditions or during production. 

11,e pom/Jlllty of aglo6aljinancial eris& may Blgnijicantly impact our buslnesa andjlnanclal andJtlonjor thefareseea/J/sfutare. 

Tho ctedit crisis and related turmoil in the global financial system may adversely hnpact om business and our financial ccndidon, and we 
may face challenges if conditions in tho financial madcets do not improve. Our ability to access tha capita! mmkets may be restricted at a time when 
we would like, or need, to raise financing, which could have a material negative impact on our flexi1nlity to teact to changing economic and 
business conditions. Tho economic situation could have a material negative impact on our lendem or customers. causing them to fall to meet their 
obligations to us. We will need additional capital and financing to fund our fiscal 2014 operadng forecast. There fs no assurance that additional 
capital or financing will be available to us on tenns tbat arc acceptablo to us or at all. 

s 
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Risks Related to Oor Securities 

Beeauae our common 8tOCk ts deemed a law-priced "Penny" stock, an lnvatmmt in our comnu,n stock should be considered hlg/1 risk and 
sulJJect ta marketa/JIIIIJ' restrlcllom. 

Since cur common stock is a penny stock. es defined in Rule 3a51-1 under the Securities Bxchange Act, it will bo more difficult for 
investors to liquidate their investment even if and when a market develops for the common stock. Until the trading price of the common stock rises 
above SS.00 per share, if ever, trading in the common stoak is subject to the penny stock rules of the Securities Exchange Act specified in rules 
15g-1 through lSg-10. Those rules require brokmdeaters, before effecting transactions in any penny stock. to 

•s Deliver to the customer, and obtain a written receipt for, a disclosure document;s
•s Disclose,certain price infonnatlon about the stock;s
•s Disclose tho amount of ccmpeusatlan received by the broker-dealer or any associated person of the brokenlealer;s
•s Send montbly statements to ouatomers wlth market and prico information about the penny stoclc; ands
•s In some circumstances, approve the purchaser's account under certain standards and deliver written statements to the customer withs

information specified In the roles.s

Consequently, the penny steck rules may restrict the ability or willingness of broker-dealers to sell the common stock and may affect the 
ability of holders to sell their common stoak in the secondary market and the price at which such holders can sell any such securities. These 
additional procedures could also limit our ability to raise additional capital in the future. 

The market price of our Common Stock is, and Is likelJ, to continue to 1,£4 J,ighly volatile and subject to wide Jli,ctuatlona. 

The market price of our Common Stock is likely to continue to be highly volatile and could be subject to wide fluctuations in response to a 
number of factors, soma of which are b9Yond our control, including but not Ihnited to: 

•s dilution caused by our Issuance of additional shares of Common Stock and other fonns of equity securities;s
•s announcements of new acquisitions, expansions·or other business fnltiatives by us or our potential competitors;s
• OUt' ability to takD advantage of new aequfsitions. expansions or other business initiatives;s
•s quarterly variations in our revenues end opcmtfng.cxpenses;s
•s changes in the valuation of similarly situated companies, both in our Industry and in other industries;s
•s cballanges associated with timely SBC fitinss;s
•s illlquidily and laok of marketability by betas an OTC quoted steck:s
•s changesfn analysts' estimates affecting our company, our competitors and/or our industry;s
•s clianges in the accounting methods used in or otherwise aft'ecting cur industry;s
•s additions and departures of key personnel;s
•s anno1D1cements of technological innovations or new products;s
•s fluctuations in fntmest rates and tho availability of capital in the capital market&; ands
•s significant sales of our Common Stock. including sates by selling shareholders following the registration of shares under a prospectus.s

These and other factors aro largely beyond our controi and tho impact of these risks, singly or in the agrepte, may result in material 
adverse changes to tho marlcet price of our Common Stock and our results of operations and financial condition. 

FINRA. sale, pradlt:e l'eflllremmb may also limit a 61odcbolder'1 tlbUU, to 611J1 and s,U 011r stock. 

In addition to the "penny stock" rules described above, FINRA has adopted roles that require that in recommending an invmtment to a 
customer, a broker-dealer must have reasonable grounds for believing that the investment is suitable for that customer. Prior to recommending 
speculative low-priced securities to their non-institutional customers, broker-dealers must make reasonable efforts to Qbtain information about the 
customer's fiDancfal status. tax status, Investment objectives and other infonnation. Under interpretations of these rules. the FINR.A believes that 
there is a high probabitil)' tbat speculative low-priced securities wilt not be suitable for at least·some customezs. Tlie FINRA requirements make it 
more difficult for broker-dealers to recommend that their customers buy our common stock. which may limit your ability to buy and sell our stock 
and have en adverse effect on the market for our shares. 
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Sluzreholden will experience dilution upon the exercise of options and issuance a/ common stock under our lncentivep/lln.r. 

Outside of the plan, by Boanf resolutions. the following Stook Options were issued in the fourth quarter of 2017 with an exercise price of 
$0.06 per share, to each to each of the following for director and/or consultant services tendered to Om-Cal Resources: 

Stock Options 
GrantedRecipientName .�wa,Rogoza - .o l!)O;OQO·,

2SO,OOORed To Black Inc. 
� Qo�lt.-pjrector . . _ . lPD,po(I 
R.cmok Fmm, a company owned by Comelus Koiver 100,000 
1or�finan¥•Lfd:,,a��Y-dwi!� by f��ayD�· .. ·�· fOOiOOl)

,·t ,t 

Total . 650.080 

The following sbmes wen, issued in Iha fourth quarter of2017 for dhector and/or consultant services rendered as follows: 

RecipientName Shares Issued 
W�.1.1¢.J. �8811 �o.OOQ-'·.o
Mi.cbll'?.l Hogan. . • 600,000 
�P.BDnMatsJ?�d .250,000 
Ronald Schlnnour 250,000 
!Jaiy.o�otr . • . •. _ _ .•• IOOiOOC)
R.ewok Fann Ltd., a corporation owned by Comelus Korver "100 000 

.- ·-•.- ..-! •.. • 

forUfo�anaiaJ,j.�d:.�a..cotJl�on·owned°�Case)fDquglass .•• • ;....;.. _____ 1_0_.o._000;.;.,.. 
Total 1,640.000 

As at December 31, 201S, and December 31, 2016, we had no options outstanding under our 2003 Non-Qualified Option Plan. Our 2003 
Non-Qualified Option Plan permitted us to issue up to l.S00,000 shares of our common stock either upon exercise of stock opdons gmnted under 
such plan or through n,stricted stock awards under such plan. 

In addition, the Company no longer has any outstanding wammts as all warrants have expired. 

We do not 1!%J1ed to pay dividt111tls in theforeseea/Jls future. 

We do not intend to declare dividends for the foreseeable future. as we anticipate that wo will reinvest any future eamings In tho 
development and growth of our business. In addition, debt arrangements we may enter into in the future may preclude us from paying dividends. 
Therefore, investms will not receive any funds unless they sell thefr common stock, and shareholders may be unable to sell theft shmea on favorable 
terms or at all. Investors cannot ba assured of a positive return on investment or that they will not lose tho entire amount of their investment fn our 
common stock. 

We may inue additional not:k wid,0111 sl,areholder consent. 

Our board of dlrectms has authority, without action m vote of the shareholders, to issue all or part of our authorized but unissued shares. 
Additional shans may be issued in comtection with future flnancin& acquisitions, employee stack plans, or otherwise. Any such issuance will dilute 
the percentage ownemhip of existing shareholders. We me also cummtly authorized to tssuc up to 10,000,000 shares of pn,fcmed stock and 
100,000,000 of common stoclc. The board or diicctors can issuo prefem:d stock in one or mom series and flx the tenns of such stock without 
sbaRholder appmval. Pn:fened stock may include the right to vote as a series on pmtlcular matters, piefimmces as to dividends and "liquidation, 
conversion and �ption rights and sinking fund provisions. Tbe Issuance of pn,Cem:d stock could edversely affect tho rights of the holders of 
common stock and reduce the value of the common stock. In addition, specific risbts granted to holders of preferred stock could discourage, delay 
or prevent a transaction involving a change in control of our company, even if doing so would benefit our slunhotders. Such Issuance could also 
discourage proxy ccntests and make it more difficult for you and other shareholdem to meet directors of your choosing and to cause us to.take other 
ccnporate actions you desire. 
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"11,ae is currently a llmlted trading marka/or oar common stack and ws ctllllllll ensure tl,at one will ever tlsvelop or be s"8tlllne4. 

To date them has not been a sisuificant liquid trading market for our common stock. We cannot predict how liquid the market for our 
common stock might become. We cummdy do not satisfy the inidal listing standards for any major securities exchange. Cumm!ly our common 
stock is tra4ed on the OTCQB. Should wa fail to mnain traded on the OTCQB or not be able to be traded on the OTCQB, the trading price of our 
common stock could suffer, the trading market for our common stock may be less liquid and our common stock price may be subject to increased 
volatilfty. Furtbennore, for companies whose securities me quoted on the OTCQB. it may be more difficult (i) to obtain accmate quotations. (tl) to 
obtain coverage for significant news events because major wire services generally do not publish press releases about such companies and (iii) to 
obtain needed capital. 

Offen or ava�dilit,y for sale of o sr11ntaatlal numbu of shares of 011r comnion SIDCk may co,ue the pries of our common stock lo decline. 

If our stockholders sell substantial amounts or our common stock in the public market. or upon the expiration or any statutmy holding 
period under Rule 144, or issued upon the exercise or outstanding options or warrants, it could create a ckcumstance commonly referred to as an 
"overhang" and in antfclpadon of which tho-market prlce of our c:ommon stock could fall The existence, of an overhang. whether or not sales have 
oc:cmred or are occurring, also could binder our ability to mise additional financing through the sale of equity or equity-related securities in the 
future at a time and price that we deem reasonable or appropriate. 

0111' Internal controla 1IU1J' l,e buzdefuate, whlda could caus, our fmanclal reporting to be unrdWla and lead lo misinformatllJn being 
disstJ111inaNd to the :,111,llc. 

Our management is s:eaponsible for establishing and maintaining adequate intemal control over financial reporting. As defined in Exchange 
Act Rulo 13a-ts(f), intemal control owr fillanaial mpmting is a process designed by, or under the supervision o( the principal executive and 
principal financial officer BDd effected by the beard of dlrcctms. management and other personnel. to provide reasonable assurance regarding the 
reJlablllty of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements.far external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting 
principles and includes those policies and procedures that: (i) pertain to the maintenance of recmds that in ieascmable detail accumtely and fairly 
reflect the ttansactions and dispositions or tho assets of tho Company; (h1 provide reasonable assurance that transactions are teearded as necessmy to 
pennit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. and tbat receipts and expendlwres of the 
Company are being made only In accordance with authorizations of management and ctirectms or 1be Company. and (iii) ptoVide reasonable 
assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized iu:quialtfon, use or disposition of tha Company's assets that could have a 
material effect on the financial statements. 

We haw a limited number of pmsonnel that are requm:d to perfonn various roles and duties as well as be responsible for monitoring and 
ensuring compliance with our latcmal control procedures. As a result, our intemal controls may be inadequate or ineffective, which could cause our 
finaDGial reporting to be unreliable and 1aad to misinfonnadon being disseminated to tho public. Investors relying 11pon this mfsinfonnation may 
mako an uninformed investment decision. 

ITEM lB. UNRESOLVED STAllll COMMENTS. 

Not applicable. 

rrEM 2. PROPERTIES. 

GENERAL 

We own or have interes1s in two United States properties. They are: 

•l Pisgah. San Bcmadino County. Califomial
•l Cerbat, Arizonal

A summmy offmportant features about each of these propc,rties is set forth in Exhibit 99.t to om Form 10-KSB/A filed 011 March 11, 2009, 
and invcstots should take caro to miew this summmy. 

Adlts (a type of entnmce to underground mine shafts), tunnels and open pit locations following what may be a trend (direction that an ore 
body may follow) or vein structure (faults and cracks caused by shifts in the earth that had filled in with silica fluids and other magma volcanics 
which solidified leaving minerals behind) over a latge region have been found on tho property. The 1egacy of previous mining activity including; 
abandoned equipment, stono built homes, a cement water reservoir and llUl1lCIOUS tailings pfles. or piles of dirt left over tiom pravious mining 
operations. can bo seen from various locations. 
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In the United States, one property ts owned (patented mining claims on a volcanio cindets property at Pisgah, Callfomfa). one is leased 
with an option to puMhase (the Cerbat property fn Mohave County, Arizona). 

The evaluation and acquisition of precious metals. mining properties and mineral properties is competitive; as there BM munerous 
companies involved in the mining and minerals business. The Company has processed and tested minemllzed materials and pioduced very small 
amounts of precious metals on a testing basis. These have come primarily ftom testing material ftom the Pisgah Mountain and Cerbat properties. 

Exploration for and production of minerals ts highly speculative and Involves greater risks than exist fn many other industries. Many 
exploration programs do not result in the discovezy of minmalbation and any mineralization discovered may not be of a sufficient quantity or 
quality to be profi1ably mined. Also, because of the uncertainties in determining metallurgical amenability of any minerals discovered, the mere 
discovmy of mfneralizadon may not wemmt the mining of the minerals on the basis or available technology. 

Tho Company's decision as to whether any or the mineral properties it now holds, or which it may acqalre in the future, �in 
commercially mineablo deposits, and whether such properties should be brought into production, will depend upon tho results of tho exploration 
programs and independent feasibility analysis and the recommendation of engineers and geologists. The decision will involve the constdemtlon and 
evaluation of a number of significant facton, including, but not limited to: 1. 1be ability to obtain all tequirecl permits; 2, Costs or bringing the 
property into produelion, including exploration and development or preparation or feasibility studies and constmction or production fiu:Uities; 3. 
Availability and costs of financing; 4. Ongoing costs of production; S. Market prices ror the metals to be produced: end 6. 'Ibe existence of reserves 
or mineralization with economic grades of metals or minemls. No assurance can be given that any of the piopertiea the Ccmpany owns. teases or 
acquires contain (or will contain) commercially mfneable mineral deposits. and no IISSUl'Bllce can bi:, given that the Company will ever genemte a. 
positive cash flow Imm production opmations on such properties. 

Explomtion and mining operations in the United States me subject to statutoxy and agency requlmnenlS which address various issues, 
including: (i). environmental permitting and ongoing compliance, including plans of opmations which are supervised by the Bureau of Land 
Management (''BLM''), the Bnvlnmmental Prptectlon Apncy ("EPA") and stato and coun1¥. regulatoiy authorities and agencies (e.g., s1ate 
departments of environmenta1 quality) for water and air quality, hazardous waste, etc.; (ll) mine safety and OSHA generally; and (ill) wildltfa 
{Department·oflnterior for migratmy fowl, if attractive standing WDtcr ts involved in operations), See (b) (11) below. The Company has been added. 
by San Bernardino Ccnmty as a party to the Approved Minin&' Reclamation Plan and related permits. which have been issued for tho Pisgah 
Properly. See Item 2, Description of Properties - Pisgah, caJifomia- Pisgah Pioperty Mhtlng Lease. 

Becauso any explmation (and future mining) operations of the Company would be subject to tho pennitting requiremems of one or more 
agencies, the commencement of any such operations could bo delayed, pending agency approval (or a detennlnatlon that approval ts not required 
because of size, etc.), or the project might even be abandoned due to prohibitive costs. 

The Company has historically expended a significant amount of funds on consulting. geochemical analytical testing. metallurglcal 
processing and extracting. and precious metal assaying or material. however, the Company does not consJder those activities as research and 
development activities. AJI those expenses are borne by tho Company. 

Federal, state and local provisions regulating the discharge of material Into the environment. or otherwise relating to tho protection of the, 
environment. such as the Clean Air Act, Clean Water Act, the Resource Conservation and Recovery Act. and the Comprehensive Envlmmnental 
Response Uabillty Act C'Superfbnd") affect mineral operations. Por explomtion and mining opmations. apptlcab!e environmental mgulat{on 
includes a permitting process for mining operaticms. an abandoned mine reclamation program and a pemdttfns prosram for Industrial development. 
Other noncnvironmental regulations can impact explmation and mining operations and indirectly affect compliaco with envlnmmcntal regulatiODS. 
For examplo, ·a state highway department may have to approve a new access road to make a project accessible at lower costs, but tho new road itself 
may raise environmental issues.. Compl,ianco with these Jaws, and any regulations adapted there under, can make the developmmt of mining claims 
prohibitively expensive, thereby frusttating the sale or lease of properties, or CUJtailfng pmfits or royalties which might have been received them 
fi'om. 
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The Company presently has no Ml-time employees and relies on outside subcontractors, consultants and agents, to perform various 
admbustratlve, legal and technical ftmctions, as required. 

PISGAH, CALIFORNIA PROPBRTY 

ln 1997 we acquired fee title to the Pisgah Property, a "volcania cinders" property at Pisgah, San Bernardino County, Callfomia, for 
$567,000. The cinders material resulted from a geologically recent volcanio eruption. 

The propeny fs privately owned and Is comprised of approximately 120 acres located 10 miles southwest of Ludlow, California, with a 
very large hill of volcanic cinders, accessible by paved road from Interstate 40. An independent survey service hired by the Company reported that 
there are approximately 13.S0D,OO0 tons of volcanio cinders above the sur&ce. Approximately 3,500,000 tons of the cinders have been screened and 
Btockpiled, the result of prior operations by Burlington Nortbem Railroad Co. It processed the cinders fiom the bill for railroad track ballast, taking 
all cinders above about one-Inch diameter and leaving the rest on the ground surface within one-quarter mile of the hill. The mnaining material in 
the bill and the matarfal left over ftom Burlington's operations can easily be nmovcd by front end loaders and loaded into dump trucb for hauling. 
The Cinder and Cinder #l patented mining claims contain mmphotoglcally young alkali basalt and hawaiftc lava flows and cinder (rock types 
created by volcanic activity). Tho cinder end spatter cone is about 100 metms high and has a basal diameter (circumference area at the base of the 
volcanic matoria1) of about 500 meters, end was fonned by the splattering of lava into a cono shape during volcanic activity. Tho volcanic cone and 
cram consists of unsorted basalis tephra (volcanic material), ranging tiom finest ash, through scoriascious cinders and blocks. or slag like structures 
bom ftom Igneous rock, to dense and broken bombs up to two meters in dimension. 

Tho Pisgah Property consists orpatented claims wo owni no fees have to be paid to the BLM or work performed ou the claims to retain title 
to tho property. 

Prom the year 2000 through 2002, the Company nm numerous tests on tho wlcanlc clndm property to determine if the material contains 
precious metals. Although tho program indicated pteefous metals might exist in material taken from the Pisgah Property, overall the program results . 
were Inconclusive. 

Pisgah Property-Mining Leaae 

In May, 1998, wa afgned a Mfniog Lease Apement fbr the Pisgah Property with Twin Mountain Rock Venture. a California general 
partnership (11Twin Mountain,"). The Astecmcmt Is for an initial tmm of 10 yem, with an option to renew for an additional ten-year tmm. Twin 
Mountain bas the right to take 600,000 tons of volcanic cinders during the initial term, and 600,000 more tons during tho additional term, for 
processing and salo as decorative rock. The material would be removed ft-om the original cinder deposit, not the stockpiled material. Twin Mountain 
has not removed any material to date. 

The agmemant provides that Twin Mountain will pay minimum annual nmtal payments of $22,SOO for tho initial tenn and $27,500 per year 
for the additional tenn. Twin Mountain Is also obligated to pay us a monthly production royalty for all material removed fiom the premises: The 
greater of So/o of gross sales £0.b. Pisgah. or $0,80 per ton for material used for block matcriali plus l 0% of gross sales f.o.b. Pisgah for all other 
material. Twin Mountain will be credited against these payments for mimmmn royalty payments previously made. 

Twin Mountain is current fn payments. Twin Mountain has not yet removed any material from tha property and bas not indicated when it 
would do so. Twin Mountain docs not have the right to ramovo or extract any precious metals fiom the property. It does haw the right to remove 
cinder material, whfoh could contain ptecious metals (and Twin Mountain would have title to the removed cinder material), but it cannot process the 
materials for precious metals either on ot off site. 

Mining and reclamation permits, and an air quality pmmit have been issued by the California regulatory agencies in the names of both 
Twin Mountain and tho Company. We posted a cash bond tn the amount of Sl.379 (1 % of the total bond amount) and Twin Mountain has posted the 
remainder of the $137,886 bond. If'Twin M1111l1tain defaults, we would be responsible for reclemati011 of the property, but reclamation costs incmred 
in that event would &c paid in whole or part by tho bond poatcd by us and Twin Mountain. Reclamation costs am not presontly detemdnable. 
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In addition to our historic exploration activities, we am currently under taking alternative revenue producing opportunities at our Pisgah 
Property. On Janumy 23, 2012 we entered into a mineral tease agreement with a partner who will purchase up to 100,000 tons of resources derived 
from the property to produce commercial products fonesala. The agreement is for an initial period of ten (10) ycan. with an additional five (5) year 
extension at the option of the lessee. We will tceeiw fees for the removal of minemls at diminishing prices in SO.SO increments between S12 per ton 
and $10 per ton for each 20,000 tons of material removed. 

Pisgah Property-Material Supply .Agreements 

On Janwuy 23, 2012, the Company entered Into a mineral lease apement with a OcodCotp Inc. to pun:base material from the Pisgah 
Property. 1bfs mineral lease agreement is for an initial period of ten (10) years, with an additional five (5) year extension at the option of the lessee. 
Sale prlces of mmerals are set at diminishing prices in SO.SO incn:mcnts between·Sl2 per ton and SID per ton for each 20,000 tons of material 
removed. As of the date hereof. no material has been sold and no rovenuo has been racoived by the Company under this agn:emenL 

On Aptil 9, 2013, the Company entered into a Matmial Supply Agreement (the "Original MSA ") with Candeo Lava Products. Inc., 
f'Candco"), an Alberta. Canada ccmpany controlled by a fimner director of the Company and brother of our then CBC. This Agieement was 
amended on Mateh 3, 2014 (the "Amended MSA9?. Pursuant to tho Amended MSA. Candeo fs entitled to purchase volcanic lava or clndm from 
Pisgah Property that Is not c:unently stockpiled on the Pisgah Property (the 11Materia1'1 at a price equal to the greater of Sl.5 per ton and the net sales 
margin per ton removed fiom the Pisgah Property realized as follows: (I) 35% of the net sales auqfns during the f1rst year of mfnfng; and (ii) SO% 
of the net sales margins for the subsequent years during tbe term of the Amended MSA (the ''Ploduction Payment"). Under the Amended MSA, 
Omdeo· has the right to remove an initial amount of up to 1,000,000 tons (the "Initial Amount'') of Material ftom tho Property and additional 
incremental amounls (tho "Additional Amounts") of I,000,000 tons each, upon tho successful removal of the Initial Amount &om the Property. 
Candeo's right to remove thD Additional Amounts from the Property is on the basis that once Candeo bas removed the first Additional Amount of 
the Material from the Property, it shall have tho right to remove subsequent Additional Amounts of Material from the Property, so Jang as � 
removes its then cummt Additional Amount. As such, Candeo's right to extend the term of the Amended MSA Is entirely based on Candeo's 
succesafW pffl0tlll8llco of Its Material nmoval commitments under the terms of the Amended MSA. 

Under the Amended MSA, Candeo is required to pumhase a minimum of ten thousand (10,000) tons of Material during each of the rust 
three years of the term of the agreement, all at a purchase price of SIS.OD per ton, for a total payment of S150,000 per year In each of the first three 
years of the Term (tho "Pl'e,.Purchased Payments"), with cxedlt being given by the Company to Candeo for all pro.paid tons of Material that have 
already been purcbased and paid for under tho Original MSA. The Pre--Purchased Material will remain on the Pisgah Propcnw until Candeo 
commences its production operations or engages the Company to mine and remove Material on Candeo's behaJf. Io the event that Candeo engages 
the Company to mine and mnovo any of the Material, Candeo shall pay all of the Company's reasonable coats end expenses in conducting such 
mining and removal opmadDnS plus a fee of 15%. All mtning and removal operations on the Pisgah Property will be subject to all necessmy 
regulatoiy and other third part;y approvals being obtained. Tho Pre-Pmcbased Payments will 11ot be mb.ndable to Candeo but shall be credited 
against the rmt Production Payments. 

The term of the Amended MBA has been extended from un initial tenn of ten (10) years to twenty (20) years (the "Pdmmy Tenn") and 
Candeo has the option to extend the tenn for-an additional thirty (30) years exercisable at any time-with no less than three (3) months written notlco 
prior to the expiration of the Primary Term, provided that Candeo fs not in default under any of the provisions of the Amended MSA and that the 
whole of the Initial Amount has been removed from the Property. 
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Location and Access 

The Pisgah Pmjeat is located in San Bernardino County, 72 lcilomctcrs (4S miles) east of the city of Bamtow1 Califomia, and 307 
1a1ometen (192 miles) south-southeast of Las Vegas, Newda, United States. Barstow lies near the southwest bonier of Califomla, east of the 
Junctionoflntmstate IS, Intemtate40 and U.S. Route 66, Thu Project Is centered at Latitude 34o 441 47"North, Longitude 1160 22' 29" West(See 
Figures 1, 2 and 3). or UTM (melrlo)•coordlnates 55700 B/384500 N In Zone 11, datum point NAD 27. lt lies within the NW¼ of Section 32, 
Township 8 North, Range 6 Bast from San Bernardino Meridian and has an area of 48.4 hectares (120.2 acres). 

Access to tho Pisgah Project Is by tho paved 2-Jane paved road. From tho junction of Interstate 1S and Jntmstete 40 just east ofBarstow, 
Califomia travel east along Interstate 40 for 52 kilometers (32.S mlles). Take the Hector R.d. Bxit and tum right onto Hector Rd. From here tum left 
onto Historic Route 66 for 7 A 1d1ometms (4.6 miles). and then tum right (south) onto the Pisgah Crater toad. Follow this road for 3.2 kilometers 
(2.0 miles) to the Pisgah Crater workings, 

Pisgah Project 

---� 
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General Localfon Map 
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Pisgah Project 

Regional Lgcatfon Map 
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Pisgah Project 

Township Location M8J! 
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Pisgah Project 

Topography Map 
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OWL CANYON-S &; S JOINT VBNTUR,R 

The Company has abandoned tho Owl Canyon - S & S Joint Venture enteied Into in 1996 with the Scbwmz tamlly choosing to use its 
leSOIB'CCS on tho Pisgah Project. 

CBRBATPROPBRTY 

On March 12, 1998, wo signed a Lease end Purchase Option Agreement covering six patented mining claims in the Cerbat Mountains, 
Hualapai Mining District, and Mohave County, Arizona. The patented claims cover eppmximately 120 acres. We paid $10,000 as the initial lease 
payment and aro obligated to pay $1,S00 par quarter as minimum advance royalties, which payments have been made to date. 1he Company bas the 
option to purchase tho property for $250,000, less payments already made. In the event .of production before purchase, we will pay the lessor a 
production royalty of 5% of the gross returns received ftom tho sale or other disposition of metals produced. Except for limited testing and 
evaluation work porformed in mid-2002, no work bas bean performed on this property since 1999. Access is north 15 miles ftom Kingman, Arizona 
on Highway 93, east ftom the historical marker to Mill Ranch, then left three miles to a locked gate. 

The countiy rock is pre-Cambrian granite, gneiss and schist complex. It is intruded by dikes of mfnette, granite poipbyJy, diabase, rhyolite, 
basalt and other rocks, some of which am associated with wotkable veins and am too greatly serieitized (alteied small particles within tho material) 
for determinatton. The complex Is also flanked on tho west by masses of the tertfmy volcanic rocks. principally myolite. The mineralized body 
contains principally gold. silver and lead. They occur in fissure veins, which generally have a north-easterly trend and a steep north-easterly or 
south-westerly dip. Those situaled noJth or Cerbat wash mo chiofly gold bearing while those, to the south principally contain sliver and lead. The 
gangue (material that is considered to have basa metals that are not precious or worth tee0vering for market value) is mainly quartz and the values 
usually favor the hanging wait. 'lbe Company bas been fnfonned by the owner that the property contains several mine shafts of up to several 
hundred feet in depth and tailings piles containing thousands of tons of tailings. The property has not produced since the late 1800's. 

We conducted (ID late June and :July 2002) a limited number of preliminary tests and assays on material taken from mine dmnps (material 
left on the property from mining by others many years ago). It was auticipatcd that this material could be economically processed. However, the 
dump material tonnage will not support a sma11-saale operation without being supplemented wflh additional undeiground ore. We me considering 
selling or fannins out thDptOperty, as there have been expressions of interest In the property ftom time to time. We have bad no significant activity 
on Cerbatas ofthD date oftbis annual report. 

Location and Access 

The Cerbat Group of claims is located in tho Hualapai Mining District about IS miles north ftom Kingman which is the nemest railroad and 
supply point. Tho state highway ftom Kingman to Boulder Dam and Las Vegas passes within 4 miles of the property and a good County toad 
connects the highway with the mining site. The County road passes through the Rotling Wave and Red Dog claims making transportation available 
to the lower workings. An old road connects the New Discovery shaft with the Cerbat workings near the crest of the bill This group of claims is 
favorably situated for trucking and transportation pUtpOSes. 

WIIQEUP PROPBRTY 

During 2012 and 2013, we conducted a comprehensive research and development progmn to ascertain tho potential £or any rare earth 
elements on tho Wildeup property with the assistance of an independent geologist working together with students from the 1.Jnivasity of Nevada 
Las Vegas• geology department (UNLV). The study baa becm completed and the results have been presented to the Company. Based on those 
results, the Company has decided to abandon any development of the Wilrieup Property. 

ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS. 

On June 3, 2014, a group or Company shareholders under the direction of Ronald D. Sloan (a fonner Chief Bxecutive Officer and director 
of the Company) (collectively tho "Plaintiffs") filed a shareholder derivative complaint in Nevada State Court against the Company, as well as its 
lhen cmrent dlrectms (Thompson MacDcnm.Id, G. Michael Hogan. and Ron Scbhmour)1 William Hogan, FutureWortb Capi1al Cmp. and Candco 
(collectively the "Defendants"). 'lbc Plaintiffs are alleging. among other things, that the Defendants caused the Company to enter into a transaction 
with Candco involving the Pisgah Property that was not in the best interests of the Company. However, tho transaction with Candee is in the best 
interests of the Company (see above in 11Note 3-llelated Party Transactions - Material Supply Agreement"). 
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There ere many other allegations made by the Plaintiffs, all of which are considered by the Defendants to be frivolous with no basfs in met. 
In fact. due to the actions of the prior management of the Company, the Company would not have been able to condm.te operations and would have 
failed without the intervention of new management. including certain of the Defendants, and without entering into the transaction with Candeo. 
Accordingly, no provision bas been recorded in the financial statements of the Company for any payment to the Plaintiffs pur&11BDt to tho claim or 
otherwise, Legal collllsel for the Company is Justin Jones, Esq. ofWolf. Rifkin, Shapiro, Schulman, and Rabkin, LLP of Las Vegas, Nevada. 

In the ordinaty COU1Se of business. we Bie fi'om time to time involved in various pending or threatened legal actions. The litigation process 
is inherently uncertain and it is possible that the resolution of such matters might have a material adverse effect upon our financial condition and/or 
results of operations. However, in the opinion or our Board of Directors, matters currently pending or threatened against us me not expected to have 
a material adverse effect on our financial position or results of operations. 

ITEM 4. MINE SAFETY DISCLOSURES. 

The Company does not cummtly operate any mines related to its claims. As a mutt, mine sar� disclosures ma not applicable. 
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PARTII 

ITEM 5. MARKET PORRBGISTRANT'S COMMON EQlJITY, RELATED STOCKHOLDER MA1TERS AND ISSUER PURCHASES 
OF EQUITY SECURITIES. 

(a) Market Informatione

•e Our Common Stock 1mdcs spomdically on the over-tho-counter bulletin board maTkct (OTC: QB) under the symbol cam. Our commone
stock has traded infrequently on the OTC: QB, which limits our ability to locate accmata bish and low bid prices for each quarterwilbin tha last two 
fiscal yeam. Therefore, tha following tabla lists the quotadons for the high and tow bid prices as ieportcd by a Quarterly Trade and Quote Summary 
Report-of the OTC Bulletin Board for the calendar yem 2012 and 2011. The quotations from the OTC Bulletin Board reflect inter.clealer prices 
without retail mark-up, markdown, or commissions and may not represent actual transactions. 

2014 201S 
High Low Hi�- Low 

1&1·Quarter. $ 0.04 $ ·e 0.02 .s·.e ·p.gs $ ·_e o�ose
2ad ��-- 0.03 S o.�ss .. s. � - - • O.JJ6 • � • ... o... ose-

0.04 $ 

_ 
·. ·$ ... · _ -·.o.�6 ··s_. o:o�. ·: __ $-, 

4th Quarter 
Q.03e

0.06 S 0.03 S 0,03s 
2016 2017 

High Low High Low
···u1 .s .• ·· 0,03·

. .... •
s 

•l' ·•· 
�0:03· ·-S�. •' . - ,o.o�. '• J�-Q.WJ!Cm'' . 

s 0.07 $ 0.0S s 0.03 s�� _<zyarter
• -3� Q1iilltere o;ofs 0.07 $ .0.1)� $ 

0.03 
0.03'$ 

4"Quartere $ 0.0S S $ 0.03s 

(b) Holders of Common Stock 

As ofDecember 31, 2016, there were approximately 42,867,060 shares outstanding held by approximately 180 shareholders. 

Asat Number of shareholders Number of shares outstanding.�cc,mbar31,201S 1�0. .4�67,060
March 31, 2016 180 42,867,060 
1��0,�16e

., 
180 42,867,cf�

September 30, 2016 180 42,867,060 
-= Decenmer�J, 2016 180. 42,861,060
Malch31,2017 180 42J67,060
·Junu �Q, 2017e 1so· 42..867,060 
September30,2017e 180 42.867,060 

Upon the resignation or 0. Michael Hogan es an officer and director of the Company on August 19, 201S, all accrued and unpaid salaries 
as of that date of $676,333 ($600.000 as at December 31, 2014) wcro settled with an agreement to issue 600,000 common shares (worth 
approximately $18,000 based on August 19, 201S &hara prices). This transaction bad been zecorded during the quarter ended September 30, 201S, 
although the shares bad yet to bB issued. '11te shares were issued on December 31, 2017. 

Mr. William Hogan resigned from the Board of Dhectors on Febnwy 27, 2013, and his compensation via his FutureWorth Capital Corp. 
consulting agreement terminated as of December 31, 2012, On August 19, 201S, FutureWorth Capital Corp. settled all accrued end unpaid 
compensation of $180,000 to that date (S180,000 as at December 31, 2015) with an agreement to issue 240,000 common shares (worth 
approximately $7,200 based on August 19, 201S sban, prices). This tnmsaction had b=n recorded during the quarter ended September 30

1 2015 
although the shares had yet to be issued. The shares were issued on Decemberll,2017. 
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The above table includes the issuance owed to Michael Hogen and em Hogan in 201S. The shares were not offlcJally Issued untU 
December 31, 2017. 

(c)Dividendse

In the future we intend tc follow a policy of retaining earnings, if any, to finance the growth of the business and do not anticipate paying 
any cash dividends in the foreseeable future. Tho decimation and payment of futum dividends on the Common Steck will be the sole dlsmetion of 
bomd of dfrectom and will depend on our pmfitabili1f and financial condldon, capital requirements, statutory and contractual restrictions. future 
prospects and other factors deeJned relevant, 

(d)Securftlea Authorized for Issuance under Equity Compensation Planse

STOCK OPTION PLANS 

There meno Stock Options open as ofDecember311 2014,2015, or2016. On December 31, 20171 650,000 StockOptionswcwgrantedto 
mernbms of the Board of Directors and consultants of the Company in lieu of cash compensation. 

WARRANTS 

Can-Cal has no warrants outstanding as of tho ft&cal year ending 2014, 201S, 2016, or 2017, 

Recent Sales o(Unregfstered Securities 

There were no saJes of equity securities by the Company during the fiscal year ended December 31, 2014, 201S, 2016, or the nine months 
ended September 30, 2017. 

Outside of the plan, by Board resolutions, the following Stock Options wen, issued in the fourth quarter of20l7 with an exmcfse price of 
S0.o6 per shme, to each to each of the following for director and/or consultant services rendered tc Can-Cal Rcsoun:er. 

StodcOptlons
RedplentName Granted· 

-� 100,000e
Red To Black Inc. 250,000
Omy' Oosiemott ·Direcior ·J0J);ODOe
Revmk Pann: a com�·owned byComeJus Korver .199,.09.Q
For l.ife'l11nancfai ·Ltci.; a CODlp!fLY·�et! by.�ay Douglass 100;000,
Total 650.000 

The following shares were issued in the fourth quarter of20l 7 for director and/or consultant services rendered as·fotlows: 

�fentName Shares Issued 
Williiim.J. Hqgan •e �o.oooe
;Mich�I Ho� 600,000
ngtDP.sou.MacQon�d _:asqiodo 
Ronald Schinnour . ... - .•e .?-SQ,000e
� O9st¢thoff' •• lOQ,000e
Revrok Fann Ltd.. a corporation owned.byComelus Korver 100.000e
for-Life Financial Ltd.;-a cmporation owned by-Casey Douglass · · · • · - - · · 100,000
Total 1,640,000e

Upon the resignation of G. Michael Hogan as an officer and director or tho Company on Ausust 19, 2015, all accrued and unpaid salaries 
as of that date of $676,333 ($600,000 as at December 31, 2014) were settled with an agreement to Issue 600,000 common shares (worth 
approximately $18,000 based on August 19, 201S share prices). This transaction had been recorded during the quarter ended September 30, 201S, 
although the shares had yet to be issued. The shares were issued on December 31, 2017. 
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Mr. William Hogan resigned from the Board orDirectors on Pebrumy 27, 2013, and his compensation via his FutureWorth Capital Corp. 
conaulting agreement terminated as of December 31, 2012. On August 19. 2015, FutureWorth Capital Corp. settled all accrued and unpaid 
compansation of $180,000 to that date ($180,000 as at December 31, 2015) with an agreement to issue 240,000 common shares (worth
approximately S7.200 based on August 19, 2015 share prices). This transaction had been recorded during the quarter ended September 30, 201S 
although tha shares bad yet to be issued. The sblUU were Issued on December 31, 2017. 

We claim an exemption ftom registration for lhc issuances described above pursuant to Section 4(a)(2) and/or Rule 506 of Regulation D of 
the Securities Act. since the foregoing issuances did not Involve a public offering. tho recipients were (a) "accredited investors"i and/or (b) had 
access to similar documentation and fnfonnation as would be required in a Registration Statement 1D1dcr the Securities Act. the recipients acquired 
the securities for investment only and not-with a view towards, or for resale in connection with, the public sale or distn"bution thereof. The securities 
were offered without any general solicitation by us or our representatives. No underwriters or agents were involved in the foregoing issuances and 
grant and we paid no undmwdtfng discounts or commJssions. The securities sold are subject to transfer restrictions, and the certificates evidoncing 
lhe securities contain an appropriate legend stating that such securities have not been registered under the Securities Act and may not be offered or 
sold absent registradon or pursuant to an exemption therefrom. The securities were not rcgjsten,d under the Securities Act and such securities may 
not be offered or sold In the United States absent n,sisttatlon or an exemption from registration under the Securities Act and any applicable state 
securities laws. 

Issuer Purchases orEquity Securities 

We did not repurchase any of our equity securities during tho year ended December 31. 20141 2015, 2016, or 2017. 

ITEM 6. SELECTED FINAN� DATA, 

Not applicable. 

ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS. 

)fem 7. Management's Discussion and Analysls ofl'lnandal Condition and Results of Operations. 

The following discussion of tlta buaine.ss,jinanclal condition and rar,lts of operation of the. Campany should bB read in co,uunctlon with 
thejinancial statements af 11,e ComptlllJI for theyear.r ended December 31, 2016, 20JJ and 2014 and the notes to tltase statements tl,at are included 
elsewhere In 1h18 Annual Report on Form 10-K. Our d"rsCU8lion includes /orwanl-looklng statemen/8 based upon currem apectat/tJns that invowe 
rlsb and uncertalntle.r, such as our plans, objectives. expectatloM and Intentions. ACIUal results and the timing of events could d;ller materllllly 
pom those amlclpated In these forward-looking natements as a raull of a number of/actors, including those set forth under the section tided "Risk 
Factors.'' 

Ovenfe\V 

Can-Cal Resources Ltd. is a publicly traded exploration stage company engaged fn seeking the acquisition and explomtion of metals 
minctal properties. Aa part of its growth strategy. tho Company will focus its future activities In tho USA, with an emphasis on tho Pisgah Mountain, 
California property and the Cerbat, Arizona property. 
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At December 31, 2016, we had cash on hand of approximately $Nil available to sustaln operations. At December 31, 2015, cash on hand 
was $1,905. Accordingly, we are uncertain as to whether the Company may continue as a going concern. While we may seek additional investment 
capital. or possible funding or joint ventute ammgements with other mining companies, we have no assurance that such in�t capital or 
additional funding andjointv� arrangements wr11 be available to the Company. 

We expect in the near tenn to continue tc rely on outside financing activities to finance our operations. We used investment pmceeds 
realized during 2012 for (i) completion of work-up of two potential extraction processes to detennfne which process wo will employ to potentially 
prove up any precious metals, pla1fnulil groups elements and/or other base metals on the Pisgah, California property and tho Cerbat, Arizona 
property. if·any; (ii) the development of a drill program to potentially provo up any tonnages and ptecfous metaJs and/or other base metals on the 
Cerbat. Arizona property, if any; (ill) the continued development a comprehensive research and development program to ascertain the potential for 
any me earth elements on the Owl Canyon, California property (subsequently abandoned); (iv) strategic working capital reserve and (v) to finance 
our operations. 

In addition to our historic exploration activities, we arc cmrently under taking alternative revenue producing opportunities at our Pisgah 
Property. On January 23, 2012, the Company entered Into a mineral leaso agreement with a OoodC01p Inc. to purchase material ftom tho property. 
This mineral tease agreement is for an initial period often (10) years, with an additional five·(S) year extension at the option of the lessee. Sale 
prices of minemls are set at diminishing prices in SO.SO increments between S12. per ton and SI0 per ton for each 20,000 tons of material nmoved. 
As of the date hereat no material bas been sold under this agreement and no teVenuo has been received by the Company. 

On April 91 2013, the Company entered into the Original MSA with Candeo and the Amended MSA on March 31 2014. Pursuant to the 
Amended MSA, Candeo is entitled to purchase Material ftom the Pisgah Property at a prlce equal to the greater of SIS per ton and the uet sales 
margin per ton. removed fi'om the Pisgah Property realized as follows: (i) 35% of the net sales margins during Iha first year of mining; and (it) SO% 
of the net sales margins for the subsequent years during the tenn of the Amended MSA. Under the Amended MSA, Candeo has the right to remove 
an Initial Amount ofup to 1,000,000 tons of Material fiom the Pisgah Property and Additional Amounts of 1,000,000 tons each, upon the successfbl 
removal of the Initial Amount ftom the Pisgah Property. Candeo's right to remove the Additional Amounts ftom the Pisgah Property is on the basis. 
that once Candeo has removed the first Additional Amount of the Material ftom the Pisgah Property, it shall have the right to remove subsequent 
Additional Amo1mts of Material from the Property, so tong as it removes its then cmrent Additional Amount. As such, Candeo's rlgbt to oxtend the 
term of the Amended MSA is entirely based on Candeo's successful performance, or its Material removal commitments under tho tenns of tho 
Amended MSA. 

Under the Amended MSA. Candee ls required to purchase a minimum often thousand (10,000) t011s of Material during each of the first 
three years of.the tenn of the agreement, all at a PUf9base price of SIS.00 per ton, for a total payment of SJS0,000 per year In each of the first three 
years of tho Term, with credit being given by the Company to Candeo for all pn,■pafd tons of.Material that have already been purchased and paid for 
under tho Original MSA. The !ff.Purchased Matmial will Nl1lllfn 011 thB Pisgah Property Wltil Candeo commences its production operations or 
engages the Company to mine and•remove Material on Candeo's behalf. In the event that Candeo engages the Company to mine and removeany of 
the Material, Candeo shall pay all of the Company•s reasonable costs and expenses in conducting such mining and removal operations plus a fee of 
15%. Alf mining and removal operations on the Pisgah Property will be subject to all necessmy regulatmy and other third-party approvals being 
obtained. The Pre-Purchased Payments will not be reftmdablo to Candeo but shall be credited against the first Production Payments. 

The tetm of the Amended MSA. bas been extended from an initial term of ten (10) years to twenty (20) yeam (tho "Primmy Term") and 
Candeo has the option tc axtend the term for an additional thirty (30) years exercisable at any time with no less than three (3) months written notice 
prior to the expiration of the Primary Term. provided that Csndeo is not in default under any of the provisions of the Amended MSA and that the 
whole of the Initial Amount has been removed from the Property. 
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Results of Oparaffom for the Yean Ended December 31, 2016, 2015, and 2014: 

CS dollars) Year Ended December 31, 
2016 2015 2014 
.,

���·· ,9'167 ,33,100 .. 27.SOO 

�g-�:
Exploration costs 

0

10,929 •010,1�11;,096
·111J(6, 

• 

370 

. Oenaral anci acimtmstmtlw - ·1.1s�,9.� . 
Depreciation. 282 

36�33 . -· :· ·•· .. ho;ooo 
202,903 259,984 

Offi .. �- c�,. - • .0
To1Bl operating _expenses0 164,4420

Netoperatins loss (1SS,27S)0 (169,803) 

Other income c•se): 
-. -·�, mtpp@D 

Fcm:lp ex_!:bango_galn (loss) 
Non�_�o 

:C9.1�-· 
396 

. (13,,�3)
14S 
-2680 . 2,626 · 19,22ij .. 

Total ot�er incomo.(�sc) (12,'30) (10!�77) 9,518 

Liss befcmtproyislon fbr incomo taxes (i68 10S) . (180,1�0) -�66) _, 
. .P.mvfsicm:ror'.incomeiaxes . . . -

Nettoss . · .. .. · • (168,lOS) pso
1
1so> �j 

Revenues: 

Rental revenue was $9,167 for the year ended December 31, 2016. $33,100 for 201S, and $27,S00 for 2014. Rental revenue relates to 
inaome derived from tho nmtal of the Company's land fot tho pmposes of mineral extraction. filming movies ot cond11cting photo shoots. The 
decrease in rental revenue In 2016 was duo to tbD rental contracts not being renowcd. 

No nmtal revenues have been realized in any interim period In 2017. 

Exploration Costs: 

Par tho year ended December 31, 2016, explaratlon costs were $17,096. $10,929 in 201S, and Sl0,161 for tha year ended December 31, 
2014. The increase in explomtion costs is due to hlgherpmperty taxes paid on our locations In 2016. 

We incurred about SS10CO in exploration costs ht the 2017 interim period ended Juno 30, 2017 and none in tho other periods. 

General and Admlnlmative: 

General and administrative expenses were $147,346 for the year ended December 31, 2016. Sl 1S,359 for 2015 and S129,453 for the year 
ended December 31, 2014. This increase in general and administmtive axpmso fn 2016 was primarily due to legal expenses incurred as a result of 
the lawsuit brought fonvard by our shareholdcn. Tho decrease in costs io 2015 was largely due to the iesignation of the Conb'Oller whose position 
bas not been tilled. 

In the interbn periods in 2017 we incurred about $7,000 in O&A each quarter except the three month period ended June of2017 when 
O&A totalled about $60,000 primarily in pmfessional fees. Subsequent to September 30, 2017, a Board resolution was passed, made effective as of 
January 1, 2017, that Por Ufe Financial Ltd., whfch ts owned by Casey Douglass. and provides management services to tho Company. would have 
an inmease in remuneration to $75,000 per annum. This increase in remunemtion will be recognized in the fourth quarter of 2017. 

Ofllcer Salary: 

Officer Salaries was $Nil for the year ended December 31, 2016. $76,333 for 201S, and $120,000 for 2014. Tho CBO's compensation was 
f1Xed at $10,000 per month. All salaries payable in 2015 and 2014 wen, accmed, but not paid, and iemain an outstanding obligation of the Company 
as at December 31, 2016. Tho CBO had resigned in mfd-2015 and bas not been replaced during this reporting thneframe. 
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Net Operating Gain or Loss: 

Net operating loss for the year ended December 31, 2016 was S ISS:215 or $0.00 per share, there was a net operating loss of S 169,803 or 
$0.00 per share for 201S, and $232,484 for the year ended December 31, 2014, or $0.01 per share. This operating lass dccreaso is primarily due to 
decrease in Exploration Costs and General and Administrative expense as explained above. 

Other·lncome: 

There was other non-recurring rmmue for the year ended December 31, 2016 of $268, $2,626 in 2015 and $19,224 tbr the year ended 
December 31, 2014. The other income in 2016 was duo to the wrlte,;off of charges incurred, the other Income in 2015 and 2014 was due to the-write­
off' of accounts payable for stale-dated payables confinned as no longer owed. 

In the interim periods In 2017 other income consisted of gain on sale of assets ofS9,000 in the three months ended lune 30, 2017. 

Interest Expeme: 

Interest expcmse for the year endedDecemb�31, 2016 was $13,243, $13.399 in 201S, and $9,706 for the year ended December 31, 2014. 
1he increase in interest expense is due to the higher average canying amounts on the notes payable tbroushout the year. 

In the interim periods in 2017 interest expense remained steady at about $3,000 per quarter. 

NetLoss: 

See the explanation ofNet 0_peratmg Loss above. 

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES 

The follo�g table summarizes total assets, accumulated deficit, stockholdem' equity (deficit) and worldng capital at December 31, 2016, 
201s. and 2014. 

($dollars) December31
2 

2016 2015 2014 
Total Assets· ·- .•. _1,290 •0 ,3;19S: 867 

. (1 l,09S,687.) t\�ul� (Defi�it).. oo,91s,son(1 l,�3,792) 
� �6�8,28). 
(654,928) 

�ol��:.��41. (PeficlJ)
Wmking Capital (Deficit) 

(1,162,976)
(1.163.258) 

At December 31, 2016, we had total assets ofSl,290, consisting of prepaid expenses, compared to assets ofS3,19S in 201S, and $867 in 
2014. We have implemented financial controls in the business to ensure each expense is warranted and needed. Our cash on hand at December 3 J, 
2016 was $Nil 

No significant changes havo taken place in tho three quarters 0£2017 as Noted below: 

(S thousands of dollars) December31, 
9/30/2017 6/30/2017 3/31/2017

'.total Assets" •3 ·.- .2 1 · 
Amutated (Deflctt) (11.345) ci 1,333) c10,s66f 
ltockhoJders' �ty (De!ic1t> .(736): . � . C��l 
Working Capital (Deficit) (736) (725) . --- -66_5), 

Off Balance Sheet Arrangements 

We do nat have any off-balance sheet arrangements of any kind. 
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Contradual Obligations 

Wo have no significant changes in coDtractual obJiga!ious as of December 31, 2016 and there were no significant changes in contractual 
obligations us atDccemberll,2015, 

Critical Accounting PoDdes and Estimates 

Th8 preparation of financfal statements in confonnity with accounting principles generally accepted in th� United States of America 
requhea us to make estimates and judgments that affect tho reported amounts of assets and liabWtles, disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at 
tho date of the financial statements and the reported amotmts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. On an on-going basis, we 
evaluate our estimates and judgments, including those related to revenue tee0gnition, allowance tbr sales returns and doubtful accounts, inventory 
valuatfon, business combination purchase price allocations, our review Car impainnent of long-lived ussets. intangi'ble assets and goodwill. income 
taxes and stock-based c:ompansalion expense. Actual remits may differ from these judgments and estimates, and they may bo adjust= as more 
iofmmatfon becomes available. Any adjustment may be significanL 

An accounting policy is deetned to be critical if it requltea an accounting estimate to be made based on assumptions about matters that are 
highly uncertain at the dmo the estimato is made. if diffel1:Jlt estimates rmsonably may have been used, or ir changes in the estimate that are 
reasonably likely to occur may materially impact tho financial statements. Wo refer readers to Noto l to our audited financial statements for the 
years ended December 31, 2016 and 201 S filed with this Annual Report. 

Recent Accounting Pronouncements 

See Note 1 contained in the "Notes to the Financial Statements" for a discussion of new and recently adopted accounting ptonouncements. 

ITEM 7A. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK. 

Not applicable. 

ITEM 8. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA. 

Index to Financial Statements 

Reports gflndenendent Ragfstered Public A£cgunting Pinn P-1 

BaJance Sheets es ofDece1nbeJ: :n, 2016. 201 sand 2014 P-2 

Staten1ents of Operations for the years ooded Pecorobar: 11, 2016. 201 sflDd 2014 F-3 

Statements o[Afflh Flows Car the yegg ended December31. :?OJ§, 201sand :?QJ4 P-4 

Statementso[Stpckholdm'rDeficit) for Years EndedDeqanberll,2016. 2015 and 2014 P.S 

Notes to Pinanciel Slatements F-6 

ITEM f, CIIANGESIN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON ACCOUNTING AND lllNANCIALDISCLOSURE. 

Nono 
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ITEM 9A. CONI'ROLS AND PROCEDURES. 

We maintain "disclosure controls and procedures." as such tmm is defined In Rulo 13a•IS(e) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 
(the "Exchange Act"), that are designed to ensure that infonnation requited to bo disclosed in our Exchange Act nports is recmded, processed. 
summarized and reported within the time periods specified in the Securities and Exchange Commission mies and fonns, and that such information is 
accumulated and communicated to our management, including our Chief Executive Officer and Chief' Financial Officer, as appropriate. to allow 
timely decisions teprding requirecl disclosure. We conducted an ovaluathm (the "Evaluation"), 1D1der the supenisfon and with the participation of 
our Chief Bxecu1ivo Officer C'CBO") and Chief Financial Officer f'CFO"), of the effectiveness of the design. and operation of our disclosure 
controls and procedures ("Disclosure Controls") as of the end of tho period covered by this report pursuant to Rule 13a-1S of the Exchange Act 
Based on this EvaluatiDD, our atlcf Executive Officer has GOILcluded that the Company's disclosure controls and procedures wen, not effective 
because or the identification of a material weakness in our internal conb'Ol over financial repotting which is idandficd below In Management's 
Annual Report on Intemal Control over Financial Reporting, which we viow as an integral part of our disclosure coutrols and procedures. 

Changes in Internal Control 

We have also evaluated our internal control over financial reporting, and there have been no significant changes in our internal controls or 
in otbet factors that could significantly affi:ct those conll'Ols es ofDecember 31, 2016. 

Limitations on the Effectiveness of Controls 

Our management, including our CBO, does not expect that our Disclosure Controls and internal controls will prevent all c:rrors and all 
fi'aud. A control system. 110 matter how well conceived and operated. can provide only reasonable,, not absolute, assurance that tho objectives of tho 
control system are met. Further, the design of a control system must reflect the fact that there me resource constraints. and the bmiefits of controls 
must be ccnsidered relative to their costs. Because of the inherent limitations In all control systems, no ovaluatlon of conttols can provide absolute 
assunmce that all c:ontml issues and instances of fraud, if any. within the Company have been detected. These inherent lhnitatfons include the 
realities that judgments in decision-making can be faulty, and that bteakdowns can occur because of a simple eaor or mistake. Additionally, 
controls can be circwnvented by tho individual acts of some pemona, by collusion of two or more people, or by management or board overrido of 
tho control. 

The design or any system of controls also is based in part upon certain assumptions about the likelihood of ftrtme events, and there can be 
no assurance that eny design will succeed in achieving its stated goals under all potential ftiture conditions; over thne. controls may become 
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or the degree of compliance with the poltcles or piocedmes may deteriorate. Because of the inherent 
limitations in a cost-eff'ective control system, misstatements due to error or Baud may occur and not be detected. 

CEO Certlftcatlon 

Appearing immediately following the Signatures section of this report there are Certifications of the CBO. 1be Company cmrently has no 
CFO. The Certification me required fn acconlance with Section 302 of the Sarbams-Oxley Act of 2002 (the Section 302 Certifications). This Item 
of this report, which you are currently reading is the infonnation concemtng the Evaluation referred to in the Section 302 Certifications and this 
infonnation should bo mtd in conjunction with the Section 302 Certifications for a more complete understanding of the topics presented. 

Management's Annual Report on Internal Control over Financial lb!pordng 

Our management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control ovar financial reporting, as defined tn Rules 13a-
1S(f) under the :Exchange AcL 

The management of the Company assessed the effectiveness of tho Company's internal control over financial reporting based on the 
criteria for effective fntcmal control over financial reporting established in Internal Control-Integrated framework issued by the Committee of 
Sponsoring Organizations of the Tmldway Commission ("COSO, and SBC guidance on conducting such assessments. Based on this assessment, 
management determined that, during the year ended December 31, 2016, our fntemal controls and procedures wme not·effective to detect the 
inappropriate application of US <JAAP rules, as more fblly described below. Thia was due to deficiencies In the design or operation or the 
Company's intemaI control that adversely affected the Company's internal controls and that may be considered to be material wealmesses. 
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Management identified the following material weaknesses in internal control over financial reporting: 

1. The Company bas limited segregation or duties, whfch is not consistent with good internal control procedures.o

2.oTho Company does not have a written intemal control procedurais manual wbicb outlines the duties and teporting n,quirements of the
Directors and any staff to be hired In the future. This lack of a written intemaI control procedurals manual does not meet the requirements of the 
SBC or good intemal controls. 

Management believes that � material weaknesses set forth in items 1 and 2 above did not have an effect on the Company's fmancial 
results. 

The Company and its management will endeavor to com:ct the above noted weaknesses in intemal conttol once ft bas edequato ftmds to do 
so. 

Management will continue to monitor and evaluate the eff'edfveness of the Company's internal controls and procedures and its internal 
controls over financial reporting on an ongoing basis and are committed to taking further action and implementlns additional enhancements or 
improvement&, as nc:cessmy and as funds allow. 

This annual report does not include an attestation teport of tha company's registered public accounting finn regarding fntemal control over 
financial reporting. Management's report was not subject to attestation by the company's registered public accounting finn pumuant to temponuy 
rules of lhe Securities and Exchange Commission that permit the company to provide only tho management's n:port in this annual report. 

ITEM 9B. OTHER.INJlORMA'DON. 

None. 
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PARTW 

ITEM 10. DIRECTORS, EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND CORPORATE GOVERNANCE, 

Subsequent to December 31. 201"4. all.pmious officers and directors of tho Company msigned. 

On August 19, 201S, Jonathan Legg and Tim J. Nakaska were elected to lhe Board of DirectOIB of the Company. Michael Hogan resigned 
from the Board of Directors. 

On September IO. 2015, Thompson MacDonald (Chalnnan of the Board of Directors) and Ronald Schinnour Je&igned ftom the Board of 
Directors to pursue other inteiests. 

On ·September 10, 201S, Richard Singleton was elected to the Boanl of Dimctorst such that the ongoing directots of tho Company are 
Jonathan Legg. Tim J, Nakaska andRichard'Singleton. Also, on that date, Jonathan Legg was elected Cbahman-ofthe Board, TimJ. Nakaska was 
elected Chairman of the Audit Committee and Richard Singleton was elected Chainnan of the Compensation Committee. 

On May 1, 2016, Jiiaharcl Singleton resigned from the Board of Directors. 

On June 10, 2016. Casey Douglass was elected to the Board ofDirectors, 

On September 10, 2016, Tun J. Naskaska and Jonathan Legg resigned fhmnbe Board of Directom. Omy Oosterhoff and Comelus (Case) 
Kotver were elected to the Board of dhectors. Casey Douglass was elected as Chainnan of tho Board. 

The new Officers and directors of the Company are listed below. Directors are cleated to hold offices untt1 the nm nnua1 meeting of 
shareholders or until their successors are elected or appointed and qualified. Officers arc appointed by the board of directors until a successor fs 
elected and qualified or until resignation, removal or death. 

Name _
_ • �S:l' . �r .. an�:qh�orthe.B� · 

D�or. 

.. ... 
__Ag__e_ Position and Tenuren

Mr. Casey Douglass of Red Deer, Alberta, was elected as a Director as of June 10, 2016. Mr. Douglass has owned and matl8ged fiuming 
and agn1nisinesses for over 15 yeam in Canada and Russia. Mr. Douglass' expertise ln Russia involved: market analysis; business design; finance; 
importing and staff training on new .equipment. His expertise also included ccnporate structuring and strong management skills. During tho past 10 
yeam, Mr. Douglass has specialized in providina Insurance and finance solUllons to the exempt cmporato marketplace of Western Canuda. the 
majority of which occumd in Alberta. Mr. Douglass has studied Agricultural Economics and Rural Sociology at University of Alberta and is a 
strong community player in Red Deer, A1herta as well as other global communities. Mr. Doug1ass looks fmward .to assisting Can-Oll Resources 
ftom ils previous difficult times to upcoming positive and new business activities within North America. 

Mr. Gmy Oosterhofrof Red Deer. Alberta, was appointed as a Dimctor 88 of September 10. 2016. During the majority ofhfs working 
career, Mr. Oosterhofl'· bas been in the general insurance fndustty whme he achieved the achartered Insurance Broker" designation, which at tlie 
timo was the highest level attainable for general insurance broken. Ho was the senior leader and majority shareholder of a thriving general insurance 
brokerage in Red Deer, Alberta which was sold in 2001. Afterward, Gmy continued in a teaching capacity throughout Alberta until 2009. 
Additionally, fiom 2001, to date, Gary has used bis outsumding entrepreneurial experience and background talents in ground floor opportunities and 
went on to pursue tho zeal estate business, which also has become very successfil1. Today, Mr, Oostcmoff' leads a syndication of high wealth 
investors for acqulsltlon, development, construction, managemont and marketing of both msidcntial and commercial holdings in central Alberta. Mr. 
Oosterhoft'bas also been a Board member providing mgional governance under Alberta Housing Act. 

Mr. Camelus (Case) Kmvor ofRoclc.y'Mountam House, All?erta, was appointed 88 a director as of September 10, 2016. Since 1962, Mr; 
Korver has been involved in thrivtng agricultural businesses near �ky Mountain House, Alberta, initially with a prosperous family owned d1my 
operations, Jn 1972, ho expanded and diversified into several other successful business operations. Including beef cattle, hay, grains. and oilseeds, In 
200B, Mr. Korver further transitioned into speclallml custom grazing and bay for the Alberta equine merkot. Mr. Korver has used his successful 
business-savvy in vmious capital markets investments. Tho majority of which are private companies. He has continuously pmvided active service on 
various boards at both the Alberta Provincial and County levels including tho Albel1a Government Lean Appeal Board; County Police Advisory 
Committee; County Agriculture Service Board; Rocky Mountain.Agriculture Society; Chair of Orey Wooded Poragd Association: Counsel Member 
with Clearwater County. Chair or Central Alberta Mille Producers Association and Director, Rocky Natural Oas Co-op. 
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(a) Director Compensationo

The Company has not compensated oUSside (non-employee) dhectors for service but has reimbursed them for travel costs to aae.nd Board 
meetings. Our Conner director, Mr. G, Michael Hogan, who served as CEO and President during 201S, was entitled to receive compensation for his 
servicas as CBO and Pmldant in tJte .!fflOUDt ofS120,0DO annually. His salaries for 2015 and 2014 were� but not paid. 

Subsequent to September 30, 2017, passed by Board resolution, tho three directors of the Company were each issued 100,000 sbares and 
100,000 stock options. 

(b) Identification of Certain Significant Employees and Consultants 

None. 

(c) Family Relationships.o

Not applicable. 

(d) Involvement In Certain Legal Pmceedinss.o

During tho past rive yeam. no director, person nominated to become a director, or executive officer of the Company: 

( l) hes filed or had filed against him, a petition under the federal banlauptcy Jaw or any stato insolvency law, nor has any court appointed a receiver,
fiscal agent or similar officer by or against any business of which such person was a gencral partner, or any corporation or business association ofo
which he was an executive officer within two yems before the time of such filing;o

(2) was convicted in a criminal proceeding or is the named subject of a pending criminal proceeding (excluding traffic violations and other minoro
offenses);o

(3) was the subject of any otder, judgment, or decree. not subsequently reversed, suspended or vacated. of any court of competent jurisdiction, 
permanently or temporarily �Dining, baning or suspending hbu fiom., or otherwise limiting bis involvement in, any type of business, securities or 
banking activities, or 

(4) was found by a court of competent JurladfctiDU in a civil action or by the Securities and Exchange Commission or the Commodity Futures
liading Commission to have violated any federal or state securities or commodities law, and the judgment in such civil action or fmding by theo
Commission has not been subsequendy reversed. suspended or vacated.o

SBCI'ION 16(A) BBNEFICIAL OWNBRSRIP RBPOimNG COMPLIANCE 

Based upon a review ofFonns 3 and 4 fiamfshecl to the company pursuant to Rule 16a-3(a) and written representations referred to In Item 
40S(b) (2)(i) of Regulation S.K. no directors, officers. beneficial ownms of more than t 0% of the company's common stock, or any other person 
subject to Section 16 of tho BxcbangeAct &Uedforthoperiod fromJanuaiy I, 2015 through December 31, 201S to file on a timely basis tho reports 
sequi1'ed by Section 16(a) of lhe Bxcbanga Act. 

CODB OF BTHJCS 

The Company bas adopted a Codo of Ethics. A copy of the Codo or Ethics will be pruvided to any penoa, without charge. upon written 
request sent by email to Casey Douglass, President (cascy@forlifefinancialcom). 
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ITEM 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION. 

The following table sets forth summmy compensation information for the years ended DecembBr 31, 2016. 201S, 2014 and 2013 for our 
chief executive officers and directors. 

Summary Compensation Table 
ADOther 

Name and Principal Position 
C"asey:Douglasi · 

-� .. : . ..::o

m1ca1 Year 
2016 

Salary (S)
-·s -o- ·o

Bonus m 
s �o

Option
Awards($)

s -0-

Compensation 
(S)

•$ -()..-• s 

Total ($} 
-Q •• 

0 �cliael Hogan; ·• 
, Fcmiier"Piisic!mit.,CBO, 

Director'. 

·2oi6 

2015 

2014 
2013 

:;s-. �o:. 
·s 7�.333o
s 120.0.00 
S: l�O_Q.O 

s 

S· 
$ 

s 

.-o--

-()!' 
-0-
-0-

.. . -s
,. �4-° 

·, I ,.
'• .;. .. $ .. �-

$ .;().
.

s -P-' 

. --
. :S .;�:

..
t,. ...,, 1.:... ,j I 

- $o .():. 

$ .0-
.$ .•().. 

s 

s 
S· 

$ 

-0-

16;333...
120,000
•UO�QOO 

-Officers as a�� 2016 
201s· 
2014 
:2013. 

s -0- $ -0. 
s �6,3}3 s -0-

-:S 120,000 s -0-
s.o. 1-20,000: ... .. S -O-·o

s '\,. 

s 
J 

·ti 

� 
-0-
� 
-0-.o

$ 

·s 
$.
$o

-0-
-0!. 
-0-
-a:. 

s· ..():. 

s , 76,333 
S 120,000 
S, .. 1201000. 

The Company has no executives or employees, however, beginning September 2016, For Life Financial Ltd., a company owned by Casey 
Douglass, was engaged for management services. Please refer to Item 13 for addttfonal detalls. 

On July 1, 2010, the Company entered into a twelve-month employment agreement, subject to automatic monthly renewals, with the 
Company"s CEO, G. Michael Hogan, The tenns of the agreement Included a fixed annual salmy of s120.ooo. The Company may elect to satisfy 
payment in sbares of common stock in lieu of cash at a market value equal to SO.JO above tha average closing tradJng price of the common stock for 
the preceding fm, (S) days from the date of such election. No pa)'lllcnts have bean made in cash or stock to date, 

We owed accrued salaries to our CBO of SNfl. $Nil. and S600,000 Bt December 31, 2016, 2015, and 2014, mpectively. The salaries owing 
amount was settled with an agreement to issue 600,000 shares In Heu of cash as described above. 

Grants of Plan-Based Awards 

We did not grant any plan-based awmds to our named executive officer during the fiscal year ended December 311 2016. or 2015. 

Outstanding Equity Awards 

Thero were no wtexerclsed stock options. stock that has not vested. and equity incentive plan awmds held by our executive officers at 
December 31, 2016. or201S. 

Option Exercises 

There were no options issued or exercised by our executive officers during fiscal 2016, or 2015. 

Equity Compensation Plan Information 

There are no oulstanding Options and Wammts as of the year ended December 31, 2016, or 201S. 
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ITEM 12, SEClJRITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT AND RELATED STOCKHOLDER 
MATTERS 

Tho following tables presents information, to the best of Can-CaJ's knowledge, about the ownenmip of Can-Cal's common stock on 
Decembar 31, 2016 and 2015, teladng to those pemons lmown to beneftciatly own more than S% of Can-Cal's capital stock and by Can-Cal's 
directms and executive officem. Tho pemmtago ofbenoficlal ownership for the following tables are based on 42,867,060 shares of common stock 
outstanding as of December 31, 2016 and 2015 (including the share issuances to Michael Bogan and William J. Hogan for the settlements of their 
debts). Tho percentage ofbmeficfal ownenhip for the following table fs based on 42,867,060 shares of common stock outstanding as of December 
31, 2016 and201S. 

BenBficial ownership is determined tn accordance with the rotas of the Securities and Exchange Commission and does not necessarily 
indfcate beneficial ownership for any other purpose. Under these rules, beneficial ownership includes thoso shares of common stock over which the 
sbarebolder bas sole or shared voting or investmmt power. It also includes shares of common stock that the shareholder has a right to acquire within 
60 days after December 31, 2016 pursuant to optionsi wamnts, conversion �1eges or other righL The peicentage ownership of the outstanding 
common stock, however, is based on the assumption, expressly required by the rules of the Securities and Bxchange Commission, that only the 
person or entity whose ownership fs being nported has converted options or warrants into shares of Can.CaJ's common stock. 

2016 
Percentage or 
Outstanding

Common Stock 
Name and Address of Beneftclal OWner, Officer or Director Naki C1>4(3) Number of Shares NOCc(Z) 

lenetl�al1OWQers,,..0.PlcerJ atid:Dlrectp&l: .. - . _
0 Michael HoP'!, Former CBO, President and Director 2,960:419 -6.9%O
PaicY.•Dqu�;il�tor� . . _ .. _ . _263;P®. 0.60/4
9!U)' �terhoff, DfreC!or 100,000 0.2%-Cotn!1U9:(��) Kopler,��r •OlOOjODl>- f°" •.. :O · -· .. 02i. 
AD Beneflclal Owners, Dlredon and Executives as a Group M23,419 1.9% 

(I)OAs used in this table, "beneficial ownership" means the sole or shued power to vote, or to direct the voting of, a security, or the solo or shared
invest:ment power with teSpcct to a security (i.e., the power to dispose of. orto diract the disposition of, a security), 

(2)OFigures are t0Wldcd to the nearest tell1h of a percenLO
(3) The address of each person is cate of Can-Cal: 41 Springfield Avenue, Red Deer, Alberta, Canada T4N 0C7.O

2015 

Percentage of 
Outstanding

Common Stock 
Name and Address of Beneftclal OWner, Oftlcer or Director Mota <1>11 <l> Number of Shares Ne>to(Z) 

G Michaol Hagan, Fonner COO, Presidcmt and Diteetor 

Ron Schinnour, Director 

6.9% 
- • . 2.0% 

1.0% 
-=-.- .:: 

All•Bebefldl!l Owners,-�tD�r&
.:
1!11� �secutiwi ai a 'tJroup .9.9% 

(l)OAs used in this table. "beneficial ownership" means tho sole or shared power to vote, or to direct tho voting ot; a security, or the sole or sharedO
investment power with respect to a security (Le., the power to dispose ot; or to ditect the disposition of. a security).O

(2)OFigures are rounded to the nearest tenth of a pm:enLO
(3) The address of each person is� of Can-Cal: 42 Springfield Avcnuo, Red Deer, Alberta, Canada T4N 0C7.O

ITEM 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS, AND DIRECJ'OR INDEPENDENCE. 

Starting lune 10, 2016, Por Life Financial Ltd., a company owned by Casey Douglass, one of the directors. was hired to manage the day.to­
day pparations of the Company. The agreement was signed for a monthly mta of $2,100 CAD per month. On  September 20, 2016, a second 
agm:ment to wholly manage the Company was added at a rate of $50,000 USD per annum, Effective Janumy 1, 2017, a Board resolution was 
passed to Increase the remuneration of tho second agreement to a mto ofS75,000 USD per annum. 
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Casey Douglass, a director of the Company bas a 2% ownership in Candeo Lava Products Inc. The Company has a material supply 
agreement with Candeo Lava Products lno. far the Pisgah Property, pursuant to which Cancleo will pay for and acquire 30.000 tons, and then It will 
pre-purchase a minimum of ten thousand (10,000) tons par year at a purchase price of fifteen doUars (SIS.00 USD) per ton for a total payment of 
SIS0,000 USD per year in each of the first three yean of the term. 

Since August 2012, O. Michael Hogan, the former CEO and fonner Chairman of the Board, has been providing tlmds to tho Company to 
pay for ongoing operations. The amount received is a note payable, is unsecured, bean fntezest at 10%. and is due on demand. At December 31, 
2016, the amount outstanding, Including interest, fs$122,239. 

ITEM 14. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTANT llEES AND SERVICES. 

(S)(i) The Board of Directors has not established an audit committee. However, tho Board of Directors, as a group, cmries out thu 
responsibilities, which an audit committee would have. In this respect the Board of Directors has the responsibility of rovtewing our ftnancfal 
stateme.n1s, exercising general oversight of the integrity and reliability of our accounting and financial rcpmtfns practices, and monitoring tho 
effectiveness of our Internal coutrol systems. The Board ofDirectots also reconnnends selection of the auditing ftnn and exen:lses general ovemgbt 
of the activities of our indapcndcnt auditors, principal financial and accounting offlcm and employees and related matters. 

Until his resignation. the Board of Directors delegated management of the Company to Mr. G. Michael Hogan and the Board ofDlrectors. 
Tim responsibility was then passed on to tha Chairman of the Board to manage the terms of engagement. before wa engage Independent auditor for 
audit and non-audit services, except as to engagements for services outside tho scope of the original tenns, in which Instances the services have been 
provided pursuant to preapproval poltcies and procedures, established by management These pre-approval policies and procedures aro detaUed as to 
the categoiy of service and the Board of Directom is kept infonned of each service provided. 

(7) Thayer O'Neal Company, LLC, was retained as our auditing Jinn by tho Board of Directors for the fiscal yem ended Decembor 31, 
2014, 201S,and 2016. ThayerO'Neal Company, LLCbitled us as follows tbrtbeyears endedDecember31,2016,201S, and 2014, respectively: 

($ dollars) 

Audft.pees'AJ 
Awfit�Reiaied F�(II) 
TaxPeas<cJ 

Ail Oth�P;es<di - · ··-
Totsl fees paid oraccrued- . . .. 

For the Fiscal Yeam Ended December 31, 
2016 2015 2014 

25.443 n,soo 

. •.25.44(. 22;soo ..· ·=·-===--=======� 
a)o Includes fees for audit of the annual financial statements and review of quarterly-financial Information tiled with tha Securities ando

Exchange CommJssion.o
b)o For assurance and ielated services that were reasonably related to tbu perfom1ance of the audit or review of the financial statements,

which are not Included in the Audit Fees category. The Company bad no Audit-Related Pees for the periods ended December 31,
2016 and 2015.o

c)o For tax compliance. laX advice, and tax planning smvices, n:Iating to any and all fedeml and state lax retums as nccessmy for the
periods ended December 31, 2016, 2015, and 2014, respectively.o

d)o Por services in respect of any and all other reports as required by tho SEC and other sovemfng agencies.o
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P-2

P-4

Anicles of Jncorpomtion 3.0 
3.1 
3.2 
10.l1

PARTIV 

ITEM 15. EXHIBITS, PINANCJAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES. 

The following infonnation required under this item is filed as part of this report: 

(a)11. Financial Statements1

Page 

F-1
Managengent•s Repp11 on r ntemal Control Oyer Financial Rgrtjpg 
Reportorlndependont Jtegistped Public AgcountmgPinn 

F-31
Balance Sheets 
Statements gf Operatlgns 
Statements ofOtsh flow 
Statmnents ofStocklzolders' Q)eficit)
Nares to FlnanclnJ Statements 

P-S1
F-61

(b) 2. Financial Statement Schedules 

None. 

(c) 3. Bxbibit Index1

lnccnpmated by reference 
Exhibit ____Bxhi__"b1it_1 __ ____ Filed herewith __P:_o_rm __ "Period ending Exhibit Piling data Dos_criptlo_n 

3.1 
3.2 A,n:mdment to the Articles of lncomomtion 

FonnlO-SB NIA 7/9/1999
7/9/1999
7/9/1999
1n12016 

Fonn 10-SB N/A
NIA3.3 Ponn 10-SB 

10.l1 form of Mineral Lease Agreement 10-K1 12/31/2014
10.21 Form of Pmmjggry Note wjtb FumreWorth 

Capita) 10-K 12/31/2014 10.2 1n12016 
10.3 fonn ofSpbmfntion Amymm,t for 

Pmmls§Ory Note with FuturgWprth Cnpiml 10-K1 12131/2014 10.3 1n12016 
10.4 Eonn ofWarmnt Certlficatq wJth 

future}Yorth Capital 10-K1 12/31/2014 10.4 1n12016 
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Cartificatign DY!Jm!Dl tg Seotion 303 g( t)l! 

Sarbnnes-OxJev Act 
99.1 

ti&m!b. �\!ilsis:mn. Cerllni and Jb� Qwl 

101. 

Bxbt'bit 
31.1 

ExhibitDescription 

SmbmJes•Qxley Act 
Ci,[tffigmiog Jll!!'.!USDt to �eclion 90§ gf the 

Filed herewith Ponu Period endin& Bxhibit Filing date 

X 

32.1 
X 

Sumuma gfSiB.Dill!a!DI D�ajl§ Bamfing 

Otnyon Properties 10.KSB/A 12/31/07 99.1 03/11/09
X101. INS XBRL Instance Document 

101. SCH XBRL Schema Document X 

101. CAL XBRL Calculation Linkbase Document X 

101. DEF XBRLDefiniti011 Linkbase Document X 

101. 
LAB XBRL Labels Linkbase Document X 

PRE XBRL Presentation Linkbase DOQl111ent X 
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SIGNATURES 

Pursuant to the requinmumts ofSect.ion 13 or IS(d) of the Securities Bxchangc Act of 1934, as amended, the Registrant has duly caused 
this report to be signed on its bebalf'by the undemigned, thereunto duly authori7.ed. 

CAN-CAL RESOURCES LTD. 

By: IslCasey Douglass 

Casey Douglass, Chalnnan of tho Boaid of Directom 

Date: March 9, 2018 

POWER OF ATTORNEY 

Pmsuant to tho requirements of thD Securities Act of 1933, as amended. and Bxchango Act of 1934, as amended, this Annual Report on Form 10-K 
bas been signed by tho following persons in the capacities Indicated on the dates indicated. 

IslGary Oosterhoff, DfRctor 

March 9,2018 

Gmy Oosterhoff 

/s/ Comelus Korver, Dh=tor 

March9,2018 

Comelus Korver 
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM 

To the Board of Directors of 
Can-Cal Resources Ltd. 

We bave audited the acc:ompanying consolidated balance sheets of Can-Cel Resources Ltd. (collectively1 

1'tbe Company') as of December 311 2016,
201S and 2014 and the Jelated consolidated statements of opmations, stockholdms' equity and cash flows for each of the three years In the period 
ended December 31, 2016. These financial statemcots are the responsibility of tho company's management. Our responsibility is to express an
opinion on these financial statements based on om audits. 

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standmds of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). 1bose standards 
require that we plan and perfbnn an audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the financial statements are free of material mlsstatemenL The 
Company is not required to have, nor were we engaged to perfo1m. an audit of its intemal contml over fimmcJal reporting. Our audits included 
consideration of internal control over financtal reporting as a basis for destping audit procedures that are appropriate fn the oimumstances, but not 
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company's intemal control over rmanciat reporting. Accordlngty, wo express 
no such opinion. An audit includes examining. on a test basis. evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial stalenUmls, assessing 
the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall fimmctal statement presentation. We 
believe that our audits pt'OVide a reasonable basis for our opinion. 

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly. in all material respects, tho financfal position of Can-Cal 
Resoutces Ltd. as of December 31, 2016, 2015 and 2014 and lhe JeSUlts of their operations and their cash flows for each of the tbree years in the 
period ended December 31, 2016 In conformity with accounting principles generally accepted In tho United States of America. 

The accompanying consolidated fmancial statements have been pn,pared assuming that the Companywilt continue as a going concem. As described 
in Note 2 to the consolidated financial statements, the Campany has suflbred recurring losses ftom operations and negative cash flows from 
operating activities that mise substantial doubt about·its ability to continue as a going concern. Management's plans In regard to these mattms are 
also dcscn1>ed in Note 2. The consolidated financial statements do not Include any adjustments that might result trom the QUtcome of this 
uncertainty. 

/sf Thayet O'Neal Company, LLC 

Thayer O'Neal Company, LLC 
Houston,Texas 
Pebrumy 14, 2018 
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1.163,843 
-490i018 

9,710.504 

486,823)_ (

3,195 

CAN-CAL RESOURCES LTD. 
(AN EXPLORATION STAGE COMPANY) 

BALANCBSHEBTS 

December 31, December 31, December 31, 
2016 2015 2014 

ASSETS 
Current assets: . ..Cash" s ... . .. - -$ ·-r�os :· l. �85 

Other current asse1s 1,290 1.Z,O0
•0Total �f �ets •0 • •0 . •0 . • _ �•r\.+'?.0 - .3il950 58S 

Property and equipment. net of accumulated depn:cialion (See Note 5) 
•. 5 282 .. ··•Totaiiisscts . • . � - .• • . '0 s .1.290 s ��3�'190'0·$ _ ·867' 

..... . . . 
- -�- __ · : ·t,i�i11i1if&rAND Sfo�oLi>.-S' (DEFICiT> · · · 
Cum:nt liabilities: 

. .. 
• '  . 157;366 s 

S06 
$ .. 56,932��!J.pa�le· ·. : : .. .......Accounf!I.P.!lYable. te!ated_parties, S06 180.,96 

A���cs . :_:: .•. : -�,880 : ...·3�400 7,588
Accsued exp�, related parties 105�462 92,9�0 680,665 
µpea1_11ed �aj �JICS ••• _ ,9,167 . ·9,1�. 
Unearned revenues, mtated p� 253 76S 199,6S9 11�,6S_O. . , ... ,... -
No!88 �\e,tteW!d �es:' 132,2390 t13;33S--·•0 . '.ff6�616·..0 ·0

1,163�843 
Total current liabilities 656,2180 490

2
018 

Total lii1,llities. • .. 656,218" .: 
��itments and contingencies(� �ote Bf 
ltockhotclepl'�!�cit); _ . : · . 

- -· Preferred stocJtCI> 
: Coimnon atucaO> · •0 .. �;�6'f. :: �, . ��,�l" \ ... 

10,S6S,997 10,565,997 
. .--:(l•ii>iS�GB7)' . 

�=- 4.Z927 

• :110;9.1s.so7)._ 

- · 
. Additionat'paid-in �tal 
{Defij,tt) acpUIIJlll�tell �.expiiu!,tlon:s�go 

. . . · •.·(li;26l,792)! 

(654,928)Total stockholders' (deficit) •0 (1,162,976)__ . _. _ 

Totaliiabiliti� ·and stockholders' (deficit) s 1.290 S $ 867==---

(1)0 Ptefmred stock, SO.DOI par value, 10,000,000 shares authorized, no shmes issued and outstanding0
(2)0 Common stock. S0,001 par value, 100,000,000 shares authorized, 42,867,060 issued and outstanding as ofDecember 31, 2016 and 201 S,0

42,027,060 issued and cUIStandfng as orDecember31, 20140

The aa:ompanying notes are an Integral pan o/thesejbtanclol statements. 
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� 

•••• • • 

2015 

'iQ$29_ .�-

.as2 .... 

_ 

_ 

(169,803)0 __ S _......,_,(2 48
;.,_ 2 4) 3 ,;.;; .:..;. 

. . •. . . .0 : {13�3) (13J� . •. . . _-
'19;224 �8 · . .I�- --·--2�,62�60. .

__ s __ __ 9� __ 1 __ s 
II f • 

CAN-CAL RESOURCES LTD. 
(AN EXPLORATION STAGE COMPANY) 

STATBMBNT OP OPERATIONS 
Por the years ended December 3t. 2016, 201S, and 2014 

2016 

RentaJJncmne s 9,167 $ �3,J00 
2014 

S 21,soo·. 

(jp_eraffi;lg ��e§:
Exploration costs 
·Ocnmil and'aclminfstrativo0
D�on·· 

t:15i3,?" • 
10,161 

·tij;45�
370 

-·-··-·�Ii���O�O 
259.984 

Officersalaiy. ;;--.........-..--· --�'��--ll-3. 
�oiai opemting expenses S 164.442 _ S 202.903 

Net operating los·s S (ISS.27S� _ . $ . . .. . -- . 
. ... .. 

-·
.Other hico�c (�): ..

In·-terest- �-···
Foreign exchange gain (loss) 396 

.. .' . :(9,7.06)
145 

s 
. ��l!"reGli!riDB'income 
. !?tal o�income (�ense)0 ,s c12.Blo> n• 

o,377)
• • _. 

Loss�efoteprovision for incoziie taxes -- (168,JOS) _ .• (180.\80) •0 (222�6)0
l'rovfsion·fcr mcome taxes 
Netioss · -· ·· s p68,10S) S (1800180� S 966).0 CE0-=====(222::::ca::i .a=:::a 

-·0....
Weighted average nmnber of common.shares OU1St8ndin8 - basic and ftilly

diluted 42.867.060 42,8670060 - 4Z027Jl60 _ .. .0 ·"' 

,!"' 

Net toss per share:. basic and 0fhlly diluted (0.0Q)(l) (0:00) O> 
=$ ===-==(O._ .O0

_. l)0

(1) Value is a negative amount less than 0.01.0

The accompanying nota are an Integral part o/thesejlnanclal staJements. 
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·:310� 

:(1�9i>f.� 
·' ·· . l0Ji7· ·· · : . . - : (s;01sr-

A��-. C1,l!B). 
;3,,965: .12;502. .., �2888 . Ac� PJJPODSC:S, �IJtcd.parf\es 

32,i90 
___ Cl_B.;...,40 ...... 9) _s 

-�i�m no'�p . . 1S,S63 ayebl&; relited·part!es.· 

i.388. 

67�333) (

CAN-CAL RESOURCES LTD. 

(AN EXPLORATION STAGE COMPANY) 
STATBMENTS OF' CASH PLOW 

Yearended 
201' 2015 2014 

CASH FLOWS PROM OPERATING AC'l'IVlTla 

• Net loss • . •A·-� · ·- ··A
Acfustnients � ��cf tenet 1� io �01 �\·us�,r.:�sactiv1�1. .. _ .. 

S� -���,lOSl.• S . .C.1.8.!),189) ·. S . "(222,966)A
. .2(2·J;,epiecfaµon:1Qif'milo�OD: � :-: .c •.. 

Decrease (increase) In assets: -"· Pff'Palt exp'epsc;s .. .  
In� (c!e�) in liabilities:

A�ountspyabte 

-M�·-

· ' . 89i716. 
(10,015)_3,4�. 

Uueamed revenues (9,167)
v.��m�ues. reiated party'" .. 54

1 106· "•84,009,. Net� used in operating activi� (17,468) $ c;022> 

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES 

tS.563 .. 

. . .... ·3342:. 37.606 . 
s ....s ___ 3.__ 34_2 .,.._ ..... s __ ..,,,;Q=B=,40=..9)-

Net cash provided by (used fn) financing activities 
• • � • .. "I •

• •·t - ... 
"cso3j 

S8S 

Net inmeaso (decrease)m QlSb 
·cash;�:cd enad. .. . . ,P_
Cash. end of period . s s 

I 

. 
. . 

SUPPLEMENTAL CASHMWiNFORMATION 
l8S6;333. 

(lBO;OODf 

. .1sauaili:O ofsbmes fbnettlement of;rel�ted•� itebt 
Accrued salaries settled fmm the issuance of sbares 
Related p� accounts �bte B�!ed fa���cc ofstiaros 

The accompanying notes lll'B an Integral parl of theaejlnanclal &lalements. 
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1•@22;�·- .•• :-�(22Z966);• .6•- I •• 

• •';I.. •' :• • I •• 1: 

t ,. f 
(168.10� ----------- . 

)laJance; �ber.·3� 2016 ·

CAN-CAL RESOURCES LTD, 
(AN EXPLORATION STAGE COMPANY) 

STATEMENTS OP CHANOBS IN STOCKHOLDERS' DEFICIT 
December 31, 2016, 2015, 2014 and 2013 

(Deficit)
Accumulated 

Common stock Addltlonal during Total 
Number of Pald•ln E111loratlon Stockholders' 

Shares Amount • , Capital . Stage Deficit 
... . ce, .. ·- . - . ., ... � · .Balan · •Deceznlilr si' 2013 ·'42t027i06Q, ·.: S- 42,027.: ' $" ·: ?;110;5$)4 .6..� $ ·(lp;�4J.) .•. s .,. (949,ql0).6

. 
S (},162,976)

,, . •'..·- .:.Netio�
Bala�ce, D�c�iiib� .�l, 2014 

·6·•_.-.-...• ·\•. . ...\•J• 

s. 42,0274�,027,060 .,s �9,710,504. • $ C!�,91�50� _ .
II •I• .: . 

Issuance of -�am in exchange for �u,..otT ·or 
debt .84�000 840 .�ss.�93 856,333 

1-fe;I�� ; .• - ,A . . . .. :·aso;110) ··(180,180)6
I-· • 

Ba!ance, December 31, 2015 s., 1�,565,?97 (486,823)42,867,060 S <MfS�687)642,867. S S6. .... . � -: . . ·. ·-· ..· � #It •  1 -

fl•l�(192l. 

_ 

'6

.6

41867· ·� ;s� ,1o;s6s.997.�·-�s =· 

(168,iOS)
s: . (654328):: 

Net loss . 
..·s42i867.060 

'11re accompanying notes are an Integral part of t1zeaefinanc:lal statements. 



CAN-CAL RESOURCES LTD. 
(AN EXPLORATION STACE COMPANY) 

NOTBS TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
December 31, 2016, 201S, and 2014 

NOTE 1-NATtJRE OF BUSINESS AND SUMMARY OJJ SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

Nature of Business 

Can-Cal Resources Ltd. ("-c&n-Cal" or the ''Companyj is a Nevada cmp0tation incorporated on March 22, 199S. 

'lbc Company fa an exploration company engaged in the exploration for precious metals, specifically focused on mineral exploration projects. We 
have examined various prospective mineral properties fot precious metals and acquired those deemed promising. We currently own, lease or have 
mining interest In two mineral ptoperties in the scuthwestem United States (California and Arimna. as follows: Cerbat, Arizona; and Pisgah. 
Califbmia). The Company previously had mineral rights iD Owl Canyon, Callfomfa and Wildeui>s Arizona. which have now been abandoned. 

As an exploration stage entmprise, the Company discloses the deficit accumulated during the exploration stage. An entity remains in the exploration 
stage until such time es proven or probable reserves have been established for its deposits. Upon the location of commercially minealJle reserves, the 
Company plans to prepare for mineral extmction and enter the development stage. To date. the exploration stage of the Company's operations 
consists of contracting with geologists who sample and assess the mining viabilitf of the Company's claims. 

Summery pf stgplRcant Aga;ggntlng PoHcles 

Basis of Presentation 

These financial statements and related notes are presented in accmdance with aecounting principles genmally accepted in the United States. The 
Company's fiscal year-mscl is December 31, 

The Company's functional and reporting currency is the United States dollar (USD). Monetaty assets ll!ld liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are translated in accordanco with ASC 820, using the exchange rate prevailing at the balance sheet date. Gains and losses arising on 
settlement of fcmsign currency denominated transactions ·or balances are Included in lhe determination of income. Foreign CUl'l'eDcy transactions are 
prfmatjly under1aken in the Canadian dollar (CDN). The Company has not, to the date of these financial statements, entered into derivative 
fnstrumc::nts to oftket the impact of foreign cummcy fluctuations. 

Certain amotmts in the prior periods piesented have been ieclassified to confonn to the current period financial statement presentation. 

Bxptoratjon Stage Company 

The Company is cumndy an exploration stage company. As an exploration stage enterprise, the Company discloses the deficit accumulated during 
the explomtion·stago and the cmnulative statements of operations and cash flows from inception to the cmrent balance sheet date. The eompany bas 
incurred an accumulated deficit ofSl 1,263,792 far the period from inception (March 22, 199S) through December 31, 2016. An entity remains in 
the exploration stage until such time as proven or probable reserves have been established for its deposits. Upon the location of commercially 
mmeable-reserves, the Company plans to prepare for mineral extraction and enter the development stage. To date. the exploration stage of the 
Company's operations cODSists of contracting with geologists who sample and assess tho mining viability of the Company's claims. 

AU revenue is treated as uneamed revenue until auoh time, that the product is shipped. 

use ofBstimates

The �on of financial statements in confonnity with generally accepted acco1mting principles requires numagement to make estimates• and 
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and If abilities and disolosure of contingent assets and liabilities .at the date of the fmancial 
statements and the repmtm amount of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates. 
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CAN-CAL RESOURCES LTD. 
(AN EXPLORATION STAGE COMPANY) 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATBMBNTS 
December 31, 2016. 2015, and 2014 

Casb andr&!b EgujyaJents 

Cash equivalents fnoluda money market accounts which have maturities of.tlm:e months or less. For the pmpose of the statements of cash flows, all 
highly liquid investments with an original maturity of three months or less me considered to be cash equivalents. Cash equivalents are stated at cost 
plus e.ccrued interest, which approximates market value.. 

Long-Liyed Assets 

F"ixed assets are recorded at the lower of cost or estimated net recoverable amount, end is depreciated using the stratght-lille method over the 
estimated usefi11 life of the telated asset as follows: 

M�� anda,ioipml!]:1� 
Transportation equipment 
��..:�-

Maintenance and repairs will be charged to expense as incuued. Significant renewals and betterments will be capl1Dlized. At the time of mimnent 
or other disposition of equipment, the cost and accumulated depreciation will be removed ftom the accounts and the resulting gain or toss, if any, 
will be reflected in operations. 

The Company will assess the recoverability of equipment by determining whether the depreciation and amortization of thase assets over their 
remaining life can be m:overed through projected undiscounted future cash flows. The amount of equipment impabment, if any. will be measured 
based on fair value and fs charged to operations fn the period in whlch such impalnnent is detmnined by managemenL 

Fair ValueofFinancial Instruments 

Under PASB ASC 820-10.05, the Financial Accounting Standards Board establishes a ftamowotk for measuring ftdr wluo in genemlly accepted 
accounting principles and expands disclosures about fair value measurements. Thia Statement reaffirms that fair value is the relevant measurement 
attribute. Tho adoption of this standard did not have a material effect an the Company•s financial statements as reflected hmeln. The carrying 
amounts of cash, accounts payable and accrued expenses reported on the balance sheets are estimated by management .to appmxbnate fair value 
prfmmily due to the short-tmn nature of the instruments. The Company had no Items that required thirvalue measUtement on a recmring basis. 

Basic and Diluted Loss perShare 

The basic net loss per common share is computed by dividing the net loss by the weighted average nmnber of common shares outstanding. Diluted 
net loss per common sham is computed by dividing the net loss a4fusted on an "as if converted" basts, by the weighted average number of common 
sharesoutstanding plus potential dilutive securities. Por 2017, 2016, 201S, and 2014, potential dilutive securides bad an anti-dilutive efmct and were 
not included in the calculation of diluted net toss per common share. 

Stock-Based Compensation 

The Company has adopted FASB guidance on stock-lJased compcosalian. Under FASB ASC 718-10-30-2, all share-based payments to employees, 
including grants of employee stock options, to be raeognized in the income statement based on their fair values. Pro fonna dlscJosure is no tonger an 
alternative. There havo been no stock and slOCk options issued for services and compensation for the years ended December 31, 2017, 2016, 201S, 
and 2014. 

•ioyears.
Syearse
7��e

Modification ofWammts 

The Campany extended a total of 6,417,496 warrants on September 30, 2012, which were orlglnally granted on June 30, 2009 as part of debt 
financing arrangements. A modification of the temLs 01' conditions of an equity award Is treated as an exchange of the original award for a new 
award. The incremental (additional) cost is computed as any excess of the fair value of tho modified award over the fair value of the orlslnal award 
immediately before modification. 

F-7e
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CAN•CAL RESOORCES·LTD. 

(AN EXPLORA110N STAGE COMPANY) 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

December 31, 2016,201S, and2014 

Them has been no recognition of any stock-baaed finance charges for the yems ended D�ber 31, 2016, 2015, or 2014. 

IncomeTaxes 

Tho Company recognizes dofmed tax assets and liabilities based on diff'mences between the financial reporting and tax basis of assets and liabilliies 
using the enacted tax mtes and laws that are expected to bo in effect when tho differences are expected to be iecovered. The Company provides a 
valuation allowance for def med tax assets fiJt which it does not consider realbatlon of such assets to be more likely than not. 

UncertainTax Positions

In accordance with ASC 740, "Income Taxes" (" ASC 740"), the Company recoguizea the tax benefit ftom an uncertain tax position only if it is 
more likely than not that the 1aX position will be capable of withstanding examination by the taxing authorities based on tho technical merits of the 
position. These standards pn:scn"be a recognition tlm,shold and measunmcnt attribute for the financial statmnent recognition and measurement of a 
tax position taken or expected to be taken in a tax return. These standards also provide guidance on de-recognition, classification. interest and 
penalties, accounting in interim periods. discloame, and transition. 

Various taxing authorities pmfodically audit the Company•s income tax rctums. These audits-include questions regarding the Company's tax filing 
positions, including the timing and amount of deductions and the allocation of income to -various tax jurisdictions. In evaluating the exposum 
connected with these various tax filing positions, Including state and looal taxes, tho Company records allowances for probable exposures. A 
number of yeam may elapse before a particular matter, for which an allowance has been-established, is audited and fully resolved. The Company bas 
not yet \Dldergone en examination by any taxing authorities. 

The assessm• of tho Company's tax position relies on the judgment of management to estimate the exposures associated with the Company's 
wrious fflfng positlons. 

Mineral Claim Payments and Bxptoration Expendituress

1be Company is primarily engaged in the acquisition and exploration of mining properties. Mineral property explomtion costs are expensed as 
incurred. Mineral property acquisition costs are initially capitalized when incmred. We assess the cmying cost for hnpairment under the PASB 
ASC topic 360 at each fiscal quarter end. When it has been determined that a mineral property can be economically developed as a result of 
establishing proven and probable reserves, the coats subsequently incurred to develop such property are capitalized. Such costs will be amortized 
using tho units-o&productton method over the established life of the proven and probable reserves. If mineml properties arc subsequently abandoned 
or impahcd. any capitalized costs wlll bo charged to opemttons. 

eap1ta11zec1 ?dfneral Costs 

Mineral rights are recorded at cost of acquisition. When there is tittle likelihood of a. mineral right being exploited; the value of mineral rights have 
dimluisbed below cost, or the economic feasibility of extraction is limited, a write-down is affected against income in the period that such 
determination is made. The Company did not record any write downs during tho years ended December 31. 2016, 2015, and 2014. Non-mining 
assets are recorded at coat of acquisition. These assets include the assets of the mining operation not included In the·prevlous categories and all the 
assets of the non-mining apemtions. Mining asse� including mine dovelopmcnt end inftastructutc costs end mine plant fhcilities. are recorded al 
cost of acquisition. Bxpcnditures incurred to evaluate and develop 118W ore bodies, to define minnlizatlon in existing ore bodies, to establish or 
expand productive capacity, is capitalized until commezcial levels of production ara achieved, at which time the costs will be amomzed. 

Recent Accountfpg Prgnguncemenr, 

Intangibles - Goodwill and·Qther Cl'opic 3S0). In January 2017, tho Financial Accounting Standards Board ("PASB") issued Accounting Standards 
Update.("AStri 2017-04. The update simplifies the subsequent measurement of goodwill by eliminating Step 2 from the goodwill impairment test. 
Under the amm4Dlent an entity should recognize an impahment ohargo for tho amount by which the canying amount exceeds the reporting unit's 
fair value; however, the loss recognized should not exceed the total-amount of goodwill allocated t9 that reporting uniL Bff'ective for public business 
entities that are SBC fil• for annual or any interim goodwill lmpalnnent tests In fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2019. We me currently 
evaluating whether the adoption of this new guidance will have a. significant impact on 01D' consolidated financial statements and related disclosures. 
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CAN .. CAL RESOURCES LTD. 
(AN EXPLORATION STAGE COMPANY) 

NOTES TO PINANCIALSTATEMBNTS 
December 31, 2016, 201 S, and 2014 

Cash Flows: Statement of Cash Flows (ropic 230) .. Restricted Cash. In November 2016, ASU 2016-18 was issued. Tho update requites that a 
statement of cash nows explains the change during the period in the total of cash. cash equivalents, and amounts genemlly described as restricted 
cash or restricted cash equivalents. EtTectivo for publfc business entitles for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2017, and interim periods 
within those fiscal years. Barty adoption is pennitted. We are currently evaluating whether the adoption of this new guidance will have a significant 
impact on our consolidated financfal statements and selated disclosures. 

Leases (Topfc 842). In February 2016, ASU 201�02. Leases, was Issued. This standmd will require all lessees to m:ognlzo a right of use asset and 
a tease liability on the balance sheet, except for laascs with dumdons that an, less then twelve months. Bffective for Public business entitles for 
fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2018, including interim periods within those flSC81 years (Le., January I, 2019, for a calendar year entity). 
Nonpublic busfness entities should apply the amendments for fiscal years beginning after December IS, 2019 (I.e., January 1, 2020, for a calendar 
year entity), and interim pcdcds within fiscal ycan beginning after December IS, 2020. We arc cummtly evaluating whether the adoption of this 
new guidance will have a significant impact on our consolidated financial statements and related disclosuies. 

Financial Instnanents - Overall (Subtopic 825-10): Recognition and Measurement of financial Assets and Pfnancial Liabilities. In Jamwy 2016, 
ASU 2016-01 was issued to admess certain aspects of iecognition, measurement, presentation_ and disclosme of financial instruments. The ASU 
supeaedes the guidance to classify equity securi1fes with readily detennlnabte fair wlues tnh> different categories and requires equity securities 
(except those that are accounted for under the equity method or thoso that iesult in consolidation of the jnvesteo) to be measured at fair value with 
changes in the fair value recognmd through net income.. It also simplifies the bnpafrment assessment of equity investments without readily 
determinable fafr values by requiring assessment for impairment qualitatively at each reporting period. Bffective for public companies for fiscal 
years beginning after December IS, 2017, including interbn periods within those fiscal yems. We are cummtly evaluating whether the adoption of 
Ibis new guidance will have a significant impact on our consolidated financial statements and dfsalosures. 

Revenue Recognition (l'opic 606): Revenue ftom Contracts with Customers. ID May 2014, ASU 2014-09 was issued. Under this ASU and 
subsequently Issued amendments, an entity is required to recognize the amount of revenue it expects to be entitled to for the transfer of promised 
goods or services to customers. The updated standard will replaco moat existing revenue recognition guidance in U.S. OAAP. Tbfs ASU provides 
alternative methods of transition, a full retrospective and a modified restroapective approach. Tho modified retrospective approach would result In 
recognition orthe cumulative Impact ot a retrospective application as of the beginning of the period of inltfal apptlcaticm. Publfo business entities. 
certain not-for- profit entities, and certain employee benefit plans should apply the guidance in ASU 2014-09 to annual reportfng periods beginning 
after December 1s. 2017, including interim reporting periods within that reporting period. 

NOTE 2-GOING CONCERN 

Tho accompanying tinancfal statements have been prepared assuming the Company will continue as a going concem. As shown in the 
accompanying ruumdal statements, the Company had a net loss ofSJ681105 fbr the year ended December 31, 2016, has used net cash fn operating 
activities of SS.061,95S from inception and had a woddng capital deficit of $654.928 et December 31, 2016. The future of the Company ls 
dependent upon its abiUty to obtain financing and upon fbture profitable operations ftom tho development of its new business oppomndtfes.
Management has plans to seek additional capital through private placements and public offerings of its common stock. The linanclal statements do 
not Include any adjustments relating to the recovemblltty and classltlcatfon of recotded assets, or the amounts of and classification ofliabilitfes that 
might be nccessaty in the event the Company cannot condnue In existence. 

The ability of the Company to contmuD as a going concem is dependent on securing additional sources of capital and the success of the Company's 
plan. The financial s<atements do not include any adjustments that might be necessmy if the Company is unable to continue as a going concern. 
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CAN-CAL RESOURCES LTD. 
(AN EXPLORATION STAGE COMPANY) 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATBMBNTS 
December 31, 2016, 201S, and 2014 

NOTE3-RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 

Material supply Agreement 

On April 9, 2013, the Company entered into a material supply agreement (the "the Original MSA") with Candco Lava Products Inc. rcandco"), 
which was amended on Mmch 3, 2014 (tho "Amended MSA").Pursuant.to the Amended MSA, Candeo is entitled to purchase material ("Matarial") 
ftom the Pisgah Property at a price equal to the greater or SIS per ton and the net sales margin per ton temoved from the Pisgah Property realized as 
follows: (l) 35% of the net sales margins during the ftnt year of mining; and (ii) SO% of the net sales margins for the subsequent yeaIS during the 
term of the Amended MSA. Under tho Amended MSA, Candeo bas tho right to mnove an Initial Amount of up to 1,000,000 tons or Material from 
the Pisgah Property and Additional Amounts of 1.000.oao tons each, upon the successful removal of tho Initial Amount from the Pisgah Property. 
Candeo's right to remove the Additional Amounts fiom the Pisgah Property is on the basis that once Candeo bas removed the first Additional 
Amount of the Material ftom tho Pisgah Property, it shall have the right to remove subsequent Additional Amounts.ofMaterial &om the Property, 
so long as it removes Its then current Additional AmounL As such, Candeo's right to extend the tenn of the Amended MSA is entirety based on 
Candeo's succmsfbl pmt'omumce of its Material removal commitments under the terms of the Amended MSA. 

Under the Amended MSA. Cendeo Is required to pmbaso a minimum of ten thousand (10.000) tons of Material during each of the first thrco years 
of the tenn of tho agreement, all at a purchase price ofSlS.00 per ton. fora total paymentof$1SO,0O0 per year in each of tho first three years of the 
Term. with credit bctng given by tho Company to Candeo for all pro-pald tons of Material that have already been purchased and paid for under the 
Orlgloal MSA. The Pre-Purchased Material will remain on the Pisgah Property tmtil Candeo commences its production operations or engages the 
Company to mine and remove Material on Candeo's behalf. In tho event that Candeo engages the Company to mine and remove auy of the Material. 
C!andeo sbal1 pay all of the Company's n,asoaabte costs and expenses in conducting such mining and mnoval operations plus a fee of IS%. All 
mining and removal operations on tho Pisgah Property will be subject to all necessmy tegulatmy and other tblnl-party approvals being obtained. The 
Pro-Purchased Payments will not be ntfimdable to Candeo but shall be credited against the first Production Payments. 

Tho term of tho Amended MSA has been eitended from an initial term of ten (10) years to twenty (20) years (the "Primmy Tenn") and Candeo has 
tho option to extend the term for an·addttional dmty (30) years exeraisable a� any time with no less than three (3) months written notice prior to the 
expiration of the Primmy Tenn, provided that Candeo ls not in default under any of tho provisions of the Amended MSA and that the whole of the 
Initial Amount has been mnoved fiom tho Property. 

Cgmpepsation 

On July 1. 2010. the Company entered into a twelve-month employment agreement, subject to automatic monthly renewals. with the Company's 
CEO. G. Michael Hogan. Tho terms of tho agreement include a fixed annual salmy of $120,000. Tho Company may elect to satisfy payment in 
shares of common stoak in lieu or cash at a madcat value equal to S0.10 above tho average closins trading price of the common stock for the 
preceding five (S) days ftom the dato of such election, No payments have been made in aasb or stock to date. 

We owed accrued salaries to our CBO ofSNtl, SNU, and S600,000 at December 31, 2016, 2015, and 20141 respectively. The salaries owing amount 
was settled with an agreement to issw, 600,000 shares In lieu of cash. 

On June 30, 2010, tho Company entered Into a consulting agreement, with a Board ofDircctot"s consulting fmn, FutureWorth Capital Cotp. The 
tenns of the agreement Include BDnual compensation ofSG0,000, payable monthly. The Company mayelect.tosatisfy payment in shares of common 
stock ln lieu of cash at a market wlue equal to SO.IO above tlie average closing trading price-of the common stock for tho preceding five (S) days 
ftom tho date of such election. No payments have been made in cash or stock to date. As of� 31, 2016, the Company owed FutureWorth 
Capital Corp. $506, (2015 - SS06) as Included in accounts payable, related parties, for service prior to, and during the service period under the 
consultmg egreemenl Tbe consulting agreement was teuninated on Febnwy 27. 2013 with Mr. William Hogan's resignation from the Board of 
Dfrectms. 
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County taxes· 
·· 

Total .prepaid expenses 

December 31, 
2016 2015 2014· · s :•:·.·J·;290.: ): · _, -i�o;� 

S 1,290 S 1,290 =$---==-
... :._s·_.....-__ 

CAN-CAL RESOURCES LTD. 
(AN EXPLORATION STAGE COMPANY) 

NOTES TO FINANCIALSTATBMBNTS 
December 31. 2016,201S, and2014 

Share-Based Qmtpensetiop 

All warrants previously issued by the Company have expired as of the fiscal year ending December 3t. 2014. No new wammts have been issued as 
ofDecember31, 2016. 

NOTE 4-PREPAID EXPENSES 

Prepaid expenses consisted of the following as of December 31, 2016, 201S, and 2014, respectively: 

NOTE 5-PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT 

Property and Equipment consists of tho following: 

December31 
2016 2015 2014 

Macliinmy �ap(equi.JIDlent s ...... :. �,pq_o .J. .t.®.P;··.: $;_ ...: • -� �.ooo 
Trau�tion equipment 31,787 . 31.J�7 31,787
liumitliaramHixtaics :·-1�12 . Ji372· ; 1�72 

s �._ts9 s 34,159 s 34,159
i!1�=-·· · on .. .. . Q$IS9) . Q3i. ... . . .. � . . � �-�11S9) .... ·-· 877)
Net book value $ $ $ 282 

Depreciation expense totaled $Nil, $282, Qnd $370 for the years ended Decomber3 l, 2016, 201S, and 2014, respectively, 

NOTE ti-NOTES PAYABLE, �LATED PARTIES 

Notes payable, related parties consisted of the following as of December 31, 2016, 201S. and 2014. respectively: 

December 31, 
2016 2015 2014 

Nota payable Cl> s -1:n��· ·$ .lo6,67f ·S 108,335 
Promissmy note payable (2J 10,000 10,000 .S,000
fo�_re}ate&l·P� noto,_payable ...• s rs2;p9 . . ··s -1'16.67.6·:.. :·=S =z::::c:::::1·11=3�- S :·::::11 3::111o

(1)o Note payable to the fonner CEO, unsecmed, baarlng Interest at-10% and due on demand.o
(2) PromisSOt)' note payabto originated on November 30, 2012 with FutureWorth Capital COip., a consulting fbm owned by our former Chairman

of the Board of Directors, unsecured, bearing interest at 10%, matures on November 29, 2013. In connection with tho promlBSOJY note, the 
Company granted warrants to purchase 20,000 shares of the Company's common stock at an exercise price of·S0.10. Tho wammts expued on 
November 29. 2014. 
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CAN-CAL RESOURCES LTD, 
(AN EXPLORATION STAGE COMPANY) 

NC>Tlm TOFINANCIALSTATBMBNTS 
Decemherll,2016, 2015, and2014 

Tho following presents components of interest expense by instrument type for the years ended December 311 2016, 201S, and 2014, respectively: 

December 31, 
2016 2015 2014 

���-9!1 not'!.·P.Y.B�lo, x.uhlfed:partf�.. . .. s. 13;243o s 

Accounts payable related vendor finance charges 
-

s· . _ ' ·-��70 
336_ 

1.intlJIC0�9Stil�@.liiliy];a'sed) : :_ :. 
Total interest·expenso $ 13.243 s 13.399 $ 9,7015 

NOTE 7-UNBARNED RENTAL REVENUES 

On May 1, 1998, we entmed into an agreement with Twin Mountain Rock Ventum ("Twin Mountainj to lease our property located in San 
Bmnardino County, Csllfomia for a period· of ten yems, further, we will make available to Twin Maunlafn a minimum or 600,000 tons of finished 
material during the tenn of the agmcment In oxchaage for a minimum annual royalty payment in the amount of $22.SOO. The initial agreement 
expired on April 30, 2008. Twin Mountain elected to utilize the renewal option for an additional ten-year period with an increased minimum annual 
royalty of S27.SDO. As of December 31, 2016, 2015, and 2014. we bad uneamcd revenue from this agieement totaling SNU. $9,167, and S!M67,
respectively. 

NOTEB-COMMITMBNTSANDCONTINGENCIES 

A) Mining ctafm9o

The Company has a lease and purchase option agreement covering six patented claims in the Cerbat Mountains, Hualapai Milling District and 
Mohave County Arizona. The Company pays SI.SOD per quarter as minimum advance royalties. Tho Company has the option to purchase the 
property for. $250.000 plus interest at a rato of 8% compounded annually ftom and after the date of its exercise of the option to purchase the 
propert¥. If the Lessee oxercises Its option to purchase, all tbnds paid to Lessors shall be cmiitcd towan:1 ths purchase price as of the date the 
payments were made. 

B) Mining reclamation costso

Mining and reclamation pennits, and an air quail� pcanit have been issued by the Cslifomia regulatory agencies in the names or both Twin 
Mountain, our joint venture partner, and tho Company. The Company posted a cash bond in the amount ofSl,379 (1% of the total bond amount) 
and Twin Mountain has posted the remainder of tho $137,886 bond. If'l\vin Mountain defaults, we would be responsible for reclamation of the 
praperty, but reclamation costs incmred in that event would be paid In whole or part by the bond posted by us and 1\vin Mountain. Reclamation 
costs me not presently determinable. 

C) Litigationo

On June 3, 2014, a group of Company sban:hotdcrs under the direction of Ronald D. Sloan (a former Chief Bxecutive Officer and director of the 
Company) (collcotivcly the "Plaintiffs") filed a shmaholdcr derivative complaint in Nevada Stato Court against the Company, as well as its 1hen 
current directom (Thompson MacDonald, G. Michael Hogan. and Ron Schinnour). William Hogan. FotureWorth Capital Coip. and Candeo 
(collec1ively lhe "Defendants"). The Plaiutiffs are alleging, among other things, that the Defendants caused the Company to enter into a tmnsaction 
with Candeo involving the Pisgah Property that was not fn the best interests of the Company. However, the transaction with Candeo is in the best 
Interests of the Company (see above, in "Note 3 -Related Party- Material Supply Agreement"). 

There am many other allegations made by the PJafntiffs, all of which are considered by the Defendants to be frivolous with no basis in fact. Jn fact, 
due to the actions of the prior management or the Company, the Company would not have been able to continue operations and would have tailed 
without the imervention of new management, fncluding certain of tbs Defmldants, and without entering into the transaction with Candeo. 
Acccmfingly, no ptOVlsfon bas been recorded in the ftnanctal statements of the Company for any payment to the Plaintiff's pursuant to the claim or 
otherwise. Legal counsel for the Company is Justin Jones, Bsq. of Wolf, Rifkin, Shapiro, Schulman, and Rabkin, LLP of Las Vegas. Nevada. 
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CAN-CAL RESOURCES LTD. 
(AN EXPLORATION STAGE COMPANY) 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATBMBNTS 
December 31, 2016, 201S, and 2014 

In the ordinm:y comse of business, we are ftom time to thne involved fn various pending ot threatened legal actions. The litigation process is 
inherently 1D1certain and it is posS1"ble that the resolution of such matters might have a material adverse effect upon our financial condition and/or 
xesutts of operations. However, in the opinion of our Boanl ofDlrectan, matters cummtly pending or threatened against us me not expected to have 
a material adverse effect on our financial position or results of operations. 

NOTE9-SHAREBOLDBRS'EQUITY 

In 2015, in exchange for to1Dl accrued salaries of $676.333, an agreement was signed to issue 600,000 common shmes (worth approximately 
Sl 8,000 based on August 19, 2015 share prices). This transaction had been accepted and recorded although the shares had not yet been issued clue to 
the lawsu.iLThe common slimes were issued December 31, 2017. 

In 2015, in exchange for accounts payable owing of $180,00q, an agreement was signed to issue 240,000 common shares (worth approximately 
$7,200 based on August 19, 201 S sharo prices). This transaction had been accepted and recorded although the shares had not yet been issued due to 
the lawsuit. 'Ibc common shares were Issued December 31, 2017. 

Whtie the above shares were not officially Issued until December 31, 2017, as the debt was written off in 201S, we bave included the Issuance of the 
shares in the financial statements starting in 2015. No shares of common stock were fssued by the Company during 2016. 

NOTE 10-OP'OONS 

OptionPlan 

Options granted for employee and consulting services - The 2003 Non-Qualified Option Plan was established by the Board of DJrectms in June 
2003 and approved by shareholders in October 2003. A total of 1,S00,000 shares of common stock are reserved for issuance 1mder thfs plan. There 
were no optione issued during the year ended December 31, 2016. 

Pcmyani took at Incentive Plan 

Outside of the pla.n, by Board resolutions, the following Steck Options were Issued in Q4, 2017 with an exercise price of S0.06 per sbme, each to the 
following for director and/or consultant services �dered to Can-Cat Resources: 

Stock Options 
Rec!21ent Name Gnnted 
§jndia�go�o 100,oao·
Red To Black Inc,o 250,000
rlao.r pos�hdff; i>irector . . . .... � _ • iOQ,000
Revrok FB11Dt a �y owned by Comelus Kotver 100,000 
}tor �·l!�i j;td., a company ��eci-'W�Douglass 100;000' 
Total 650,000 
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CAN-cAL RESOURCES Lm.

(AN EXPLORATION STAGE COMPANY) 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATBMENTS 

December 31, 2016, 2015, and 2014 

Tho following shares wem issued in Q4, 2017 for director and/or consultanl iorvfces rendered as follows: 

Recipient Name Shares Issued0

NOTE 11-WARRANTS 

Warrants BxpJred 

In years previous to 2013, warrants were granted which have subsequently expired. 

The following Is a summary of the common stock warrant activity as of December 31, 2016, 2015, and 2014: 

•0 Wanants0 Weighted Average 
Outstanding Excm:ise Price 

•BaianjlC; January 1. 2014_0 ·s 9;4SSj8l0 $ · 
Granted
,Ouii::elieif
Bxmcised .
Bxjured·, . .(9.455.810)" (o.tl)

Balance, December31, 2014 .
Cmmtild. ·-· 
eanceu�
-ercised0 -:-· 

Expired
.B�i:e,.December 3J, 20 IS·

Granted
Cancelleii•
Exercised 

• • -
• •• , -,Bxpired I 

------
•.
-------

Balance. December 31,2016 $ 
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CAN-CAL RESOURCES LTD. 
(AN EXPLORA110N STAGE COMPANY) 

NOTES TO PINANCCAL STATEMBNTS 
December31, 2016, 2015, and 2014 

NOTE 12-INCOME TADS 

The Company accounts for income taxes under FASB ASC 740-10, which requ&es use of the liability method. FASB ASC 740.10--25 provides that 
deferred tax assets and liabilities are recorded based on the differences between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their canying amounts for 
financial reporting purposes, referred to as tempormy differences. 

As of December 31, 2016, the Company incurred a net operating loss an<lt accordingly, no provision for income taxes has been recorded. In 
addition, no benefit for income taxes has been recmded due to the uncertainty of the realization of any tax assets. The Company had approximately 
$9.308.403, $9,140,298 and SB,960,l 18 of federal net opmating losses at December 31, 2016, 2015, and 2014, respectively. The net opeiating loss 
carry forwards, if not ut11ized, will begin-to expire in 2029. 

Defened income taxes 1effect the net tax effects of tempormy differences between the canying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial 
reporting purposes and the amounts used for income tax purposes. Significant components of the Company's deferred tax assets arc as follows: 

December31 
2016 2015 2014

'Deferred tax asset {tax tale 21 %) 
s· . . . 't:

1
954

2
16S $ '12919�63 :· s 

1,954,765 1,919,463 
. )f�t���B:l!J!smt�� . . ..:. 
Total deferred tax assets: 1,881.265 

Less:-Yaluition"atlowance 0.919�463)
Nei deferred tax assei:s s $ s 

Based on the available objective evidence, including the Company's histmy of its loss. management believes it is more likely than not that the net 
deferred tax assets will not be fully realizable. Accordingly, the Company provided for a full valuation allowance against its net deferred tax assets 
at December 31, 2016, 201s. mid 2014. 

In acccmfance with P ASB ASC 740, the Company has evaluated its tax positioos and detennined there are no uncertain tax positions. 

NOTE13-SUBSEQUBNTEVENTS 

Upon the resignation of 0. Michael Hogan as an officer and director of the Company on August 19, 2015, all accrued and unpaid salaries to that 
date of $676,333 ($600,000 as at December 31, 2014) were settled with an agreement to issue 600,000 common shares (worth approximately 
St81000 based on August 19, 2015 share prices). This transaction bad bcc:n teCOrded during the quarter ended September 30,201S although the 
shares bad yet to be issued. The shares were issued on December 31, 2017. 

Mr. William Hogan resigned fiom the Board ofDnectms on Februaey 27, 2013, and his compensadon via his FutureWorth Capital Corp. consulting 
agreement terminated as ofDecember 31, 2012. On August 19, lOlS, FutureWorth Capital Corp. settled all accrued and unpaid compensation of 
$180;000 to that date (SIS0,000 as at December31,201S) with an agreement to issue 240,000 common shares (worth approxfmately $7,200 based 
on August 19, 2015 share prices). This transaction had been recorded during the quarter ended September 30, 201 S although the shares had yet to be 
issued. The shares were issued on December 31, 2017. 

Can-Cal Resources Ltd., as one of several Defendants fn Derivative Lawsuit teached --Settlement Agreement in Principle" mid-November 2017. AB 
of January 8, 20181 all Parties are progressing toward a more detailed Definitive Agreement. 

Tenns of the Agreement include: 

•e A new Board of 5 comprised of2 Directors nominated by Plaintiffs and 2 fiom Defendants. These 4 will select the 511:A Director.e
•e Sale of minimum tonnage oflava material to Candeo Lava Products withtn certain time frames.e
•e Proceeds fiom lava material sales are budgeted towards Plafntift's legal casts, acute Accounts Payables and Management Fees. An annual

minimum was established to cover base costs of keeping Can-Cat ftom insolvency.e
•e As Candeo develops its marketing, ft expects to substantlally fnorease volumes of law material sales and thus future purchases 1rom Can­

Cal. After the first 60-7S,OOO tons are purchased. then Can-Cal will begin to receive 20% of gross n,venues, or ORI (Overriding Royalty
Interest) ftom Candeo's sates or lava material.e

•e Can-Cal Resources will be able to focus on developing any other resoua:e potential.e
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CAN-CAL RESOURCES LTD. 
(AN EXPLORATION STAGE COMPANY) 

NOTES TO FINANCrAL STATBMBNTS 
December 31, 2016,2015, and2014 

NOTE 14-QUARTERLY FINANCIAL JN(l()RMATION (UNAUDITED) 

CAN-CAL RESOURCES LTD. 
BALANCE SHEETS 

(Unaudited) 

September 30, 
2017 

June30, 
2017 

Marc:h31, 
2017 

ASSB'J'S 
CUmmt assets: 

·Qiih 
1,290 

. -;Jj�-- �,$'
1,290 

. s, -
other�nt-�ets 1.290 
:·:ro!BJ���etS : . - . . - . ... . -�, ·� .t6·1,7oi·. l;�0:6

Property and equipment, net of accumulated depreciation (See Note 5)
Totat·assets c::S =-" .- .... · 1:11111::s::::!3•=0.14 s_; ___ ---===·-' =1';7=02=·· �-:.:as._-•.... ....,�=·l=,290=i-.• • ! ::::r 

. - .....6 ..... ..... . �·· ........... :: . � ..• :Li'Miif'..i�•�:�giaiag>Bis((Dmcrrl6 . .. .• .. ;�! 1.- -·-

Cwmlt liabilities: 
-•.' . 1��3·s ... s. _ n;s.293 s · · .1�;4u; 

:. : . 

����i�le .: __ ._--;..:. •• 

-�axpmsg_� � .•• , 

. . 
s06 __ � - _so(·-. � ��-§89{. 

S06 
"6,880; 

. - -. 
•�880' • ..- :-·- •. .. . . . . . 

il4J�T _. - .11!,lSQ 10�,290Accru;ed.�Penses. teJa� parties -.. - ..6
Unemmfd'rimtal revenues ,._ ,.- . .,__ 
tineamectrevesiiies. u:iatect paity 327,348 302;118 253;;�·6�Otesp_a.)1lb!o; f'!latC!1J>artfes •6 -• ·138:29.1: �. --·--·:__.•_______t3.....16;__rl3__8_ �6 "i33j891 

Totai current liabilities 739.401 726,285. 666.748'.
't'otdl liahilltfi:s 

• ·· 
• ·:,· '"""" · .:' · 739.401 726,2856 666.1AB·

���elm:...;:���gcmci� <ti:o��1!-8) .. :� 
i ... "��,u.;u\• "' . .. . • ... •• :.
i #• • - - •. -· 

-

emi:.m� eto� 

• • • ., .. 

-.J ·:·.. 42;867.: • ·• 42,8�;.·6
10,565,997 

· · · · •, • •• · . -10,56S,997...Addi�onat P,B!ci-hi ag,ital. .. 
(R�cit).�lateil clum!i-explora!J� �� _ ,. nrJ:il:.w,}'.� 

To1al stockho�' (deficit) (736,387) C724,sB3L 
--fl-1';274.322);

(665.458) 
... 

Total liabilities and stockhoiclers' (deficit) $ 3,014 $ 1,702 S 1,290
__ _..IIZICC:::::::::I 

(I) Preferred stock, $0.001 parvalue, 10,000,000 shares authoti7.ed, no shares issued and o�tstanding. 
(2) Common stock, $0.001 par value, 100,000,000 shares authorlzccI, 42,867.060 issued and outstanding as of September 30, 2017, June 30, 2017

and March 31.2017. 
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CAN-CAL RESOURCES LTD. 
(AN EXPLORATION STAGE COMPANY)

NOTES TO PINANCJAL STATBMBNTS 
December 31, 2016, 2015, and 2014 

CAN-CAL RESOURCES LTD. 
BALANCE SHEETS 

(Unaudited) 

ASSETS 

September 30, 
2016 

Jane30, 
2016 

March31, 
2016 

Current assets: 
... - . . .. -$ ... - "-_S·-�J. $ ,8990

othei cmimt.asseii. 1,290 
Total,curiedt assets . l',290 

1.290 1,290 
- . •..l·).906 3,189

�erty am! equipmmit, net-of a=umulated deprecfat1on°(S� Note sj· 
Taiai•assefs . , ·s·· ; . : � � • ·-. _ :: · · · -· .. 1.290 ·s •.• .lj290-. s . .. 36189. . ,

-1" ...-r,-· ,, :-:, 
. - . . .. 

. . . -�JLITJBS �No·STdqaroLDBJlS.' (D�Cl'ij 
Cumnt liabilities: 
• � � PllY.ablc .••_ • .. _ . f:4-7,868. - )04,µ9 __

Accounts �)'t\ble, �l!led p�es . 506 506
·6;oos 

S06

&:oos._6,(!05 _Aci;ni�� • • - .� .: -� •6
Accru� expenses, te�ed _parties . 102,321 99,1,0 96,070 

-�ea·"1!!ilrrottues ._ __ . ·6 2�92 
Uneamed revenues, rotated� 228,895 199,719•..• �.}25 
Notes payabie, rei�ted p�s ,i20i634: 118{/61 11�676-.. • ..

Total cmrent liabilities SS4,716606,229 506,271
•'rotal ·Babilitfes .(ilf6@}_ 506,27.1 ·: 

Commitmenui:imd contingencies (See Noto 8) I .. - .. . . .. . .. 
--��lqm'!(cl:P�t): _· .. ... -

Pf:fem,d s�c�1>. 
. Common·�- •· • .: _· 4;86? ..6 �2'8.67 42,867. 

Ad�tfonal pl!id-fu capital-
(D�f\clt) �iltecl during explorail�n stage 

_ · . _ · - 10,S��,,S,7 

{604.939) 

10,565,997 10,565,997
,11

1
11f.946>·fl 1i162:29°o)6

Tolat ��tders' (dcficitl (553.426)- {503,082) 

Total liabnities and stcclcholders' (deficit) $ 1,290 s 1,290 $ 3,189 

(1)6 Prefmred stock, S0.001 pm value, 10,000,000 shares authorized. no shares issued and outstanding6
(2) Common stock, S0.001 par value, 100,000,000 shares authorized. 42,867,060 Issued and outstanding as of September 30, 2016, June 30, 20166

andMateb31, 2016 
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CAN-CAL RESOURCES LTD. 
(ANEXPLORATIONSTACECOMPANV) 

NOTBS TO FINANCIAL STATBMBNTS 
Decembor31, 2016,201S, and2014 
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Exhibit 31.1 

CERTIFICATION 

I, Casey Douglass, certify that: 

1.oI have reviewed this Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2016, of Can-Cal Resources Ltd.;o

2.oBased on my knowledge. this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fhct or omit to state a material fact necessary to make·o
the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading wfth respect to tho period coveredo
by this report;o

3.oBased on my lmowledge. the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report_ fairly present in all material respects
the financial condition,results of operations and cash flows of the rogislrBDt as of, and for, the periods pres_ented in this report;o

4.oI am responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Bxcbange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and l Sd-1S
(e)) end internal control over financial reporting {as defmed In Bxcbango Act Rules lJa-1 S(t) and lSd-1S(f)) for the registrant and have:o

(a)oDesigned such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to bo designed under ouro
supervistcm, to ensure that. material informallon relating to tho regislnlnt is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly 
during the period in which this report is being prepared; 

(b) Designed such lntemal control over financial nporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to bD designed under our 
supervision, to provide reasonable assurance rcgmding tho reliability of ftnancia1 reporting and the preparation of flnmtcial statements for 
external pmposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles; 

(c) Bwluated the effectiveness of-the registrant's disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period coveted by this report based on-such evaluation; and 

(d) ·Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant's internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant's most
recent fisc:al quarter (the tegistrant's fourth fiscal quarter in the caso of an annual �) that has materially affected, or is n,asonably likely to 
materially affect, the registrant�s lntemal control over financial reporting; and 

S. I have disclosed, based on my most recent evaluation of bttemal control over financial reporting, to the registrant's auditms and the audit
committee of the registrant's board of directors (or persons perfcmning the equivalent ftmctions):o

(a) AU sfgnlficant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which .are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant's ability to record. process, summarize and report financial information; and 

(b) Any ftaud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registnmt's internal 
control over financial reporting. 

Date: March 9, 2018 

/slCa.teyDouldtm 
Casey Douglass 
Chainnan oftbe Board 
(Principal Executive Officer and Principal Flnancial/Accotmting Oftlcer) 



Exhibit 32.l 

CERTIPICATION OF PRINCIPAL EXECUTIVE omCERAND 
PRINCIPAL FINANCIAL OFFICER 

PURSUANT TO 18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350, 
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO 

SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002 

In connection with the accompanying Annual Report on F011ll 10-K of Om-Cal Resources Ltd. for the year ended December 31, 2016, I 
certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pmsuant to Section 906 of tho Sarbanes-Oxley Ac:t of2002t to my Jmowledge. that: 

(1)ethe Amma1 Report on Ponn 10-K of Can-Cal Resources Ltd. for the year endedDeccmber 31, 2016, f\Jlly complies with thee
requirements of Section 13(a) OT lS(d) of the Securities Bxcbanp Act of 1934; and 

(2) the infonnation contained in the Annual Report on Ponn 10-K for the year ended·December 31, 2016, fairly ptesents in all material 
respects, the financial condltfon and results of operations of Can-Cal Resomces Ltd. 

By: 11/Casez 1Jor11lass 
Name: Casey Douglass 
Title: Chainnan of the Board 

(Principal Executive Officer Bild Principal Financial/Accounting 
Officer} 

Date: Maroh 9, 2018 

.A signed original ofthis written statement required by Secllon 906, or otlter document authentlcallng. acknowledging, or otherwise adopting the 
signature thllt appears in typed form within the electronic version ofthis written statement required by Section 906. has been provided to Can-Cal 
Resource.r Ltd and will be retained by Can-Cal Raources Lid andfumlslted to the Set:aritles and E:xcbm,ge Commission or Its stq/f upon request. 
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Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a large accelerated tiler, an accelerated filer, a non-accelerated filer, a smaller reporting 
company or an emerging growth company. See the definitions of "large accelerated filer," "accelerated filer', "smaller reporting 
company'

, 
and "emerging growth company" in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act 

Large accelerated Oler □ Accelerated filer □ 

Non-accelerated tiler □ (Do not check if a smaller reporting company) 
Emerging Growth Company □ 

Smaller reporting company a 

If an emerging growth company, indicate by check mark if the registrant has elected not to use the extended transition period for 
complying with any new or revised financial accounting standards provided pursuant to Section 13(a) of the Exchange Act. □ 

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a shell company (as defined in Rule 12b·2 of the Exchange Act). 
□ Yes a Noo

The aggregate market value of voting stock held by non-affiliates of the registrant was approximately $957,340 as of computed by 
reference to the sale price of a share of the registrant

,
s Common Stock on June 30, 2017 reported by OTC Bulletin Board (Ref: 

Bloomberg). The voting stock held by non-affiliates on that date consisted of 42,904,060 shares of common stock. 

The number of shares outstanding of each of the registrant's classes of common stoc� as of April 4, 2018, was 43,667,060 shares of 
common stock, $0.00 I par value held by approximately 601 shareholders. 

Documents Incorporated by Reference 
None. 
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FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS 

This document contains "forward-looking statements" within the meaning of the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 
199S• . All statements other than statements of historical fact are "forward-looking statements" for purposes of federal and state 
securities laws, including, but not limited to. any projections of eamfngs, revenue or other financial items; any statements of the plans, 
strategies and objections of management for future operations; any statements concerning proposed new services or developments; any 
statements regarding future economic conditions or performance; any statements or belief; and any statements of assumptions 
underlying any of the foregoing. 

Forward-looking statements may include the words "may," "could," "estimate," "intend,,. "continue," "believe," "expect" oro
"anticipate" or other similar words. These forwmd-looking statements present our estimates and assumptions only as of the date of this 
report. Accordingly, readers are cautioned not to place undue reliance on forward-looking statements, which speak only as of the dates 
on which they are made. We do not Wtdertake to update forward-looking statements to reflect the impact of circumstances or events that 
arise after the dates they .are made, except as otherwise provided by law. You should, however, consult further disclosures we make in 
this Annual Report on Form 10-K, Quarterly Reports on Form 10-Q and CUrrent Reports on Form 8-K. 

Although we believe that the expectations reflected in any of our forward-looking statements are reasonable, actual results 
could differ materially from those projected or assumed in any of our forward-looking statements. Our future financial condition and 
results of operations, es well as any forward-looking statements, are subject to change and inherent risks and uncertainties. The factors 
impacting these risks and uncertainties include. but are not limited to: 

the unavailability of funds for capital expenditures; 
inability to efficiently manage our operations; 
inability to achieve future operating results; 
inability to raise additional financing for working capital; 
the inability of management to effectively implement our strategies and business plans; 
our abillty to recruit and hire key employees; 
our ability to diversify our operations; 
actions and Initiatives taken by both current and potential competitors; 
deterioration in general or regional economic, market and political conditions; 
the fact that our accounting policies and methods are fundamental to how we report our financial condition and results of 
operations, and they may require management to make estimates about matters that are inherently uncertain; 
adverse state or federal legislation or regulation that increases the costs of compliance, or adverse findings by a regulator 
with respect to existing operations; 
changes in U.S. GAAP or in the legal, regulatory and legislative environments in the markets in which we operate; and 
the other risks and uncertainties detailed in this report. 

In this• Fonn 10-K references to "Can-Cal", 1'the Company", "we," "us," "our" and similar tenns refer to Can-Cal Resources 
Ltd. 

AVAD.,ABLE INFORMATION 

Can-Cal files annual, quarterly. and current reports and other infonnation with the Securities and Exchange Commission 
(SBC). You can read these SEC tilings and reports over the Internet at the SBC's website at www.sec.gov. You can also obtain copies of 
the documents at prescn"bed rates by writing to the Public Reference Section of the SBC at 100 F Street, NB, Washington, DC 20549 on 
official business days between the hours of 10:00 am and 3:00 pm. Please call the SEC at (800) SBC-0330 for further information on 
the operations of the public reference facilities. We will provide a copy of our annual report to security holders., including audited 
financial statements, at no charge upon receipt to of a written request to us at Can-Cal .Resources Ltd., 42 Springfield Avenue, Red 
Deer,Alberta, Canada T4N 0C7. 

ii 
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PART! 

ITEM 1. BUSINESS. 

Business Development 

Can-Cal Resources Ltd. r'can-Cal" or the "Company") is a Nevada corporation incorporated on March 22, 199S under the 
name of British Pubs USA, Inc., as a wholly owned subsidiary of 3058S6 B.C., Ltd d/b/a N.W. Electric Carriage Company (''NWE''), a 
British Columbia, Canada company (''NWE"). On April 12, 199S, NWB exchanged shares of British Pubs USA, Inc. for shares of 
NWB held by its existing shareholders, on a share for share basis. NWE changed its name to Can-Cal Resources Ltd. on July 2, 1996. 

In January 1999, the Company sold its wholly-owned Canadian subsidiary, Scotmar Industries, Ine., which was engaged in the 
business of buying and s�vaging damaged trucks from Insurance companies for resale of guaranteed truck part components. Tbe 

·e subsidiary was sold for a profit and. the proceeds used to acquire and explore mineral properties, as the Company determined that thee
subsidiary would lose money in the vehicle salvage business unless more capital was obtained at that time specifically for that business.e

Business orCompanye

The Company is an exploration company. Since 1996, we have examined various mineral properties prospective for precious 
meta1s and minerals and acquired those deemed promising. We own, lease or have mining interest in two mineral properties in the 
southwestern United States (California and Arizona, as follows: Cerbat, Arizona; and Pisgah, California). 'Ihe Company formerly had 
an interest in a property in Owl Canyon, California, and Wikieup, Arizona but these were abandoned. 

Prior to 2003. the Company performed numerous "in-house" assays on mineral samples ftom our properties in the United 
States. An assay is a test perfonned on a sample of minerals to determine the quantity of one or more elements contained in the sample. 
The in-house work was conducted with our equipment by persons under Can-Cal contract who are experienced in performing assays, 
but who were not independent of us. We also sent samples of materials from which we obtained the most promising results to outside 
independent assayers to confirm in-house result.s. 

In 2003, the Company incorporated a wholly-owned subsidiary in Mexico, Sierra Madre Resources S.A. de C.V. ("SMR"), to 
be an operating.entity for mining-related acquisitions and activities in .Mexico. In Februmy 2004, SMR acquired a 100% interest in a 
gold-silver mineral concession, in Durango State, Mexico. In July 2004, SMR applied to the Mexican Government for a goid-silver 
concession, also in Durango State, Mexico. These were exploration stage properties, referred to in previous Company reports as the 
"Arco Project" and the "Arco 2 Project". In November 2004, SMR applied to Me](.ico's Director of Mines for three grass roots, gold­
silver exploration concessions located in the State of Chihuahua, Mexico. These applications were subsequently cancelled in Februmy 
2005 due to Incomplete application filings. SMR may reapply for one or more of these concessions in the future, but has currently 
ceased operations in Mexico. 

The Company's current focus has changed from Mexico to the United States with present emphasis on the Pisgah Mountain 
property located in Pisgah, califomia C'Pisgah Property"). 

All the Company's United States properties are considered "grass roots" because they are not known to contain reserves of 
precious metals or other minerals (a reserve is that portion of a mineral deposit which could be economically and legally extracted or 
produced at the time of the reserve detenninatfon). None of these properties are.in production. 

Can-Cal is currently an exploration stage company. Au entity remains In the exploration stage until such time as proven or 
probable reserves have been established for its deposits. Upon the location of commercially mineable reserves, in the event that we are 
successful in locating commercially mineable reserves, the Company plans to prepare for mineral extraction and enter the development 
stage. To date, the exploration stage of the Company's operations consists of contracting with geologists who sample and assess the 
mining viability of the Company's claims. 

To the extent that financing is available, we intend to explore, develop, and, if producible and warranted, bring into production 
precious metals· properties for either on our own account or in conjunction with joint venture partners (in those instances where we 
acquire less than a 100% interest in a property). However, either due to a combination of a lack of available financing, the. number of 
properties which-merit development, and/or the scope of the exploration and development work of a.particular property being beyond 
the Company's financial and administrative capabilities, the Company may contract out one or more of its properties to other mining 
companies 
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Our executive offices are located at42 Springfield Avenue, Red Deer, Alberta, C&nada T4N OC7 (tel. (403) 342 6221). 
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ITEM lA. RISK FACTORS. 

In the course of conducting our business operations, we are exposed to a variety of risks that are inherent to our industry 
specifically, and to early stage companies and for investments in securities, generally. The following discusses some of the key inherent 
risk factors that could affect our business and operations, as well as other risk facto.-s which are particularly relevant to us in the c111Tent 
period of significant economic and market disruption. Other factors besides those discussed below or elsewhere fn this report also could 
adversely affect our business and operations, and these risk factors should not be consi�ered a complete list of potential risks that may 
affect us. 

Risk Factors Related to Our Business 

Losses to Date and General Risks Faced by the Compt111,Y. 

We are an explomtion stage company engaged in the acquisition and exploration of precious metals mineral properties. To 
date, we have no producing properties. As a result, we have had minimal sources of operating revenue and we have historically 
operated and continue to operate at a loss. For the year ended December 31, 2017, the Company recorded a net loss of $349,237 and 
bad an accumulated deficit of $11,613,029 at that date. Our ultimate success will depend on our ability to generate profits from our 
properties. 

We lack material operating cash flow and rely on external funding sources. If we are unable to continue to obtain needed 
capital from outside sources,_ we will be forced to reduce, curtail or cease our operations. Furthennore the, planned explpration and 
development of the mineral properties in which we hold interests depends upon our ability to obtain financing through: 

Bank or other debt financing, 
Equity financing, or 
Other means. 

As a mineral exploration company, our ability to commence production and gene.rate profits is dependent on our ability to 
discover viable and economic mineral reserves. Our ability to discover such reserves are subject to numerous factors, many of which 
are beyond our control and are not predictable. 

Exploration for minerals Is speculative in nature, involves many risks and is frequently unsuccessful. Any mineral exploration 
program entai1s risks relating to: 

The location of economic ore bodies, 
Development of appropriate metallurgical processes, 
Receipt of necessary governmental approvals, and 
Construction of mining and processing facilities at·any site chosen for mining. 

The commercial viability of a mineral deposit is dependent on a number of factors including: 

The price of various minerals, 
Exchange rates, 
The particular attributes of the deposit, such as its sim, grade and proximity to infrastructure, financing costs, taxation, 
royalties, land tenure, land use, water use, power use, and foreign government regulations restricting importing and 
exporting minerals and environmental protection requirements. 

All of the mineral properties in which we have an interest or right ere in the exploration stages only and are without mineral 
reserves. Current or proposed exploration or development programs on properties in which we have an interest may not result fn the 
discovery of any minerals or mineral reserves and may not result in a profitable commercial mining operation. 
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The audit report on thejinancial statements at Decemher 31, 2011 has a "going concern" quallflcadon, whlcli means we may not 
1,e able to continue operations unless we ohtaln addltlonalfuntllng and are successful with our strategic plan. 

We have experienced losses since inception. The extended poriod over which losses have been experienced is principally 
attributable to the fact that a lot of money has been spent on exploring grass roots mineral properties to determine if precious metals 
might be present in economic quantities. In order to ftlnd future activities the Company must identify end verify the presence of 
precious metals in economic quantities, which Is cummtly ongoing "In House" in addition to independent third party tes$g. If 
economic results are identified, the Company then would either seek to raise capital itself, to put the Pisgah Propeey and the Cerbat 
properties into production, or sell the properties to another company, or place the properties into a joint venture with another company. 

Attaining these objectives will require capital, which the Company will have to obtain principally by selling stock or income 
generation. However, we have currently have no definitive arrangements in place to raise the necessary capital to continue operations 
for any extended period of time, and have generally relied upon relatively small, and Jntennittent infusions to sustain operations. 

Qwe do not obtain additional financing, our business wlllfalL 

Our current operating funds are less than necessary to complete all intended objectives and therefore we will need to obtain 
additional financing or commencement of income generation in order to continue in business. We cummtly do not have any operations. 
Our only source of income at present Is from two third parties. 

On May 1, 1998, the Company entered into a Mining Lease Agreement for the Pisgah Property with 1\vin Mountain Rock 
Venture, a Califorilia general partnership ("Twin Mountain,"). The agreement provides that 1\vin Mountain will pay minimmn annual 
nmtaI payments of $22,500 for the initial term and $27,500 per year fat the additional tenn. Twin Mountain is also obligated to pay a 
monthly production royalty for all material removed from the premises. 

On March 3, 2014, the Company entered into an amended material supply agreement with Candeo Lava Products Inc. for the 
Pisgah Property, pursuant to which Candeo wfll pay for and acquire 30,000 tons, and then it will pre-purchase a minimum of ten 
thousand (10,000) tons per year at a purch11&e price of fifteen dollars ($15.00 USD) per ton for a total payment of $150,000 USD per 
year in each of the first three years of the term. 

We do not cmrently have any additional 81T811genients for financing and may not be able to find such financing if required. 
Obtaining additional financing would be subject to a number of factors, including investor acceptance o( our business model and 
general market conditions. These factors may make the timing, amount, tenns or conditions of additional financing unavailable to us. 

The most likely source of future funds presently• available to us is through the sale of equity capital in one or more negotiated 
private sale transactions. Any sale of share capital will result in. dilution to existing shareholders. 

Aa an exploration compan1, we are subject to tl,e risks of tl,e minerals buslneaa. 

The exploration for minerals is highly speculative and involves risks different :from end in some instances greater than risks 
encountered by companies In other industries. Without extensive technical and economic feasibility studies, no one can know if any 
property can be mined at a profit. Most exploration programs do not result in the discovery of mineralimtion th!lt leads to commercially 
viable mining activities and most explQration programs never recover the funds invested in them. Furthennore, even with promising 
reserve reports and feasibility studies, profits cannot be assured. We have not systematically drilled and sampled any of our properties 
to confirm the presence of any concentrations of precious metals, and drilling and sampling results to date have been inconclusive. 
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Tl,e British Columbia Securldes Commission l,as required us to obtain a report by an Independent consulJant qutdlfled· under the 
standards of tl1e BCSC 

The British Columbia Securities Commission ("BCSC'') previously required the Company to obtain a report by an 
independent consultant qualified under the standards of the BCSC. Under British Columbia securities laws., all disclosure of scientific 
or technical infonnation, including disclosure of a mineral resource or mineral reserve must be based on infonnation prepared by or 
under the supervision of an independent third party who is "qualified" under the terms of that Jaw. The Company was therefore required 
under order to supply such verification by a "qualified" third party consultant, and its stock was prohibited ftom trading in· British 
Columbia until the BCSC accepted such verification. The BCSC also requested documentation -regarding all subscribers to the 
Company stock who were at such time residing in British Columbia. The Company subsequently retained a "qualified" third pQrty 
consultant who prepared and filed the necessary reports with the BCSC. If the BCSC continues with additional investigatmy 
proceedings, it will require the Company to expend additional funds on legal and accounting fees, which will have a negative impact on 
omresources available for exploration and general operating activities. 

There is substantial risk that such testing on the United States properties would show limited concentrations of precious 
metals, and such testing may show a 'lack of precious metals in the properties. Any positive test results will only confinn the presence 
ofprecious metals in the samples, and it cannot be assumed that precious metaJs .. bearing materials exist outside of the samples tested. 

Polley changes. 

Changes in regulatory or political policy could adversely affect �ur exploration and future production activities. Any changes 
in government policy, in the United States or other countries where properties are or may be held, could result in changes to laws 
affecting ownership of assets, land tenure, mining policies, taxation, environmental regulations, and labor relations. 

Environmental costs. 

Compliance with environmental regulations could adversely affect our exploration and future production activities. There can 
be no assurance that future changes to environmenta

l

legislation and related regulations, if any, will not adversely affect our operations. 

Future reserve estimates. 

All of the mineral properties in which we have an interest or right are In the exploration stages only and are without reserves of 
any minerals. Even if and when we can prove such reserves, reserve estimates may not be accurate. There is a degree of uncertainty 
attributable to any calculation of reserves or resources. Until reserves or resources are actually mined and processed, the quantity of 
reserves or resources must be considered as estimates only. In addition, the quantity of reserves or resources may vary depending on 
metal prices. Any material change m the quantity of reserves, resource grade or stripping ratio may affect the economic viability of OlJl" 
properties. In addition, there can be no assurance that mineral recoveries in small-scale laboratory tests will be duplicated fn large tests 
under on-site conditions or during production. 

Tire possibility of a globaljlnanclal crisis may algnlflcanO, impact oar bu,lness andjl111111clal condltlon for t/,eforeseeableft,ture. 

The credit crisis and related tunnoil fn the global financial system may adversely impact our business and our financial 
condition, and we may face challenges if conditions in the financial markets do not improve. Our abilif1 to access the capital markets 
may be restricted at a time when we would Uke, or need, to raise financing, which could have a material negative impact on our 
tlexi"bility to react to changing economic and business conditions. The economic situation could have a material negative impact on our 
lenders or customers, causing them to fail to meet their obligations to us. We wfll need additional capital and financing to fund our 
fiscal 2014 operating forecast. There is no assurance that additional capital or financing will be available to us on tenns that are 
acceptable to us or at all. 
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Risks Related to Our Securities 

Because our common stock Is deemed a low-priced "Penny., ,tock, an Investment in our common ,tock should be considered J1lgl, 
risk and subject to markelablllty•reatrlctlons. 

Since our common stock is a penny stock, as defmed in.Rule 3aS1-I under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as.amended 
(the "Exchange Act"), It will be more difficult for investors to liquidate their investment even if and when a market develops for the 
common stock. Until the trading price of the common stock rises above $5.00 per share, if ever, trading in the common stock is subject 
to the penny stock rules of tho Securities Exchange Act speoifi� in rules lSg-1 through lSg-10. Those rules require broker-dealers, 
before effecting transactions in any penny stock, to: 

Deliver to the customer. and obtain a written receipt for, a disclosure document; 
Disclose certain price information about the stock; 
Disclose the amount of compensation received by the broker-dealer or any associated person of the broker-dealer; 
Send monthly statements to customers with market and price infonnation about the penny stock; and 
In some circumstances, approve the purchaser's account under certain standards and deliver written statements to the 
customer with inmrmation specified in the roles. 

Consequently, the penny stock rules may restrict the ability or willingness of broker-dealers to sell the common stock and may 
affect the ability of holders to sell their common stock in the secondary market and the price at which such holders can sell any such 
securities. These additional procedures could also limit our. ability to raise additional capital in the future. 

T/,e market price of our Common Stock Is, and Is Ukely to continue to be, l1lgl1ly volatile and subject to·wide fluctuation& 

The market price of our Common Stock is likely to continue to be highly voJatile and could be subject to wide. fluctuations in 
response to a number of factors, some of which are beyond our control, Including but not limited to: 

dilution caused by our Issuance of additional shares of Common Stock and other fonns of equity secmities; 
announcements of new acquisitions, expansions or other business initiatives by us or our potential competitors; 

•. our ability to take advantage of new acquisitions, expansions or other business initiatives; 
quarterly variations in our revenues and operating expenses; 
changes in the valuation of similarly situated companies, both in our industry and in other industries; 
challenges associated with timely SBC filings; 
illiquicllty and lack of marketability by being an OTC quoted stock; 
changes in analysts' estimates affecting our company, our competitors and/or our industry; 
changes in the accounting methods used in or otherwise affecting our industry; 
additions .and departures of key personnel; 
announcements of technological innovations or new products; 
fluctuations in interest rates and the availability of capital in the capital ·markets; and 
significant sales of·our Common Stock, including sales by selling shareholders following the registration of shares under 
a prospectus. 

These and other factors ere largely b�yond our control, and the impact of these risks, singly or in the aggregate, may result in 
material adverse changes to the market price of our Common Stock and our results of operations and financial condition. 
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FINRA. sales practice requirements mtlJ1 also limit a stockholder's abllif:Y to buy and sell our stock. 

In addition to the upenny stock11 rules described above, FINRA has adopted rules that require that in recommending an 
investment to a customer, a broker-dealer must have reasonable grounds for belleving that the investment is suitable for that customer. 
Prior to recommending speculative low-priced securities to their non-institutional customers, broker-dealers must make reasonable 
efforts to obtain infonnation about the customer's financial status, tax status, investment objectives and other information. Under 
intetpretations of these rules, the FINRA believes that there is a high probability that speculative low-priced securities will not be 
suitable for at least some customers. The FlNRA requirements make it more difficult for broker-dealers to recommend that their 
customers buy our common stock, which may limit your abili� to buy and sell our stock and have an adverse effect on the market for 
our shares. 

Share/iolden will experience dilution upon the exercise of options and Issuance of common stock under our incentive plans. 

Outside of the plan, by Board resolutions, the following Stock Options were issued in the fourth quarter of 2017 with an 
exercise price of $0.06 per share, to each to each of the following for director and/or consultant services rendered to Can-Cal 
Resources: 

Stock Options 
Recipient Name Granted 

Revrok Fannt a company owned by Comelus Korver 100,000 
For Life Financial Ltd., a company owned by Casey Douglass 

650,000 
100,000 

Total 

Also, outside the plan, the following shares were issued in the fourth quarter of2017 for director and/or consultant services 
rendered as follows: 

Thompson MacDonald 2S0,000 
Recipient Name Shares 'Issued 

Ronald Schinnom 250,000 
104S899 Alberta Ltd., a company owned by Gary Oosterhoff 100,000 
Revrok Fann Ltd., a corporation owned by Comelus Korver 100,000 
For Life Financial Ltd., a corporation owned by Casey Douglass 

800,000 
100,000 

Total 

As at December 31, 2016, and December 31, 2017, we had no options outstanding under our 2003 Non-Qualified Option Plan. 
Our 2003 Non-Qualified Option Plan permitted us to issue up to 1,500,000 shares of our comi;non stock either upon exercise .of stock 
options granted under such plan or through restricted stock awards under such plan. 

In addition, the Company no longer bas any outstanding warrants as all warrants have expired. 

We do not expeet to pay tlhldends In theforeseeablefutare.. 

We do not intend to declare dividends for the foreseeable future, as we anticipate that we will reinvest any future earnings in 
the development and growth of our ,business. In addition, debt arrangements we may enter into fn the future may preclude us from 
paying dividends. Therefore, investors will not receive any funds unless they sell their common stock, and shareholders may be unable 
to sell their shares on favorable terms or at all. Investors cannot be assured of a positive return on investment or that they will not lose 
the entire amount of their investment in our common stock. 

Sandra Rogoz.a 
Red To Black Inc. 
1045899 Alberta Ltd., a company owned by Gary Oosterhoff 

lOO,ooo 
250,000 
100,000 
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We may laue atldltlonal stock without shareholder consent. 

Ol:tr board of directors has authority, without action or vote of the shareholders, to issue all or part of our authorized but 
unfssued shares, Additional shares may be issued in connection with future financing, acquisitions, employee stock plans, or otherwise. 
Any such issuance will dilute the percentage ownership of existing shareholders. We are also currently authorized to issue up to 
I 0,000,000 shares of preferred stock and 100,000,000 of common stock. The board of directors can issue preferred stock in one or more 
series and fix the terms of such stock without shareholder approval. Preferred stock may include the rlgbt to vote as a series on 
particular matters, preferences as to dividends and ·liquidation, conversion and redemption rights and sinking :fund provisions. The 
Issuance of preferred stock could adversely affect the rights of the holders of common stock and reduce the value of the common stock. 
In addition, specific rights granted to holders of preferred stock could discourage, delay or prevent a transaction involving a change in 
control of our company, even if doing so would benefit our shareholders. Such issuance could also discourage proxy contests and make 
it more difficult for you and other shareholders to elect directors of your choosing and to cause us to take other corporate actions you 
desire. 

Tl,ere Is cu"ently a Umlted trading market/or our common stock and we cannot ensure tl,at one wUI ever develop or be sustained. 

To date there has not been a significant liquid trading market for our common stock. We cannot predict how liquid the market 
for our common stock might become. We currently do not satisfy the initial lis�ng standards for any major securities exchange. 
Currently our common stock is traded on the OTC Pink market. Should we fail to remain traded on the OTC Pink market or not be able 
to be traded on the OTC Pink market, the trading price of our common stock could suffer, the trading market for our common stock 
may be less liquid and our common stock price may be subject to increased volatility. Furthennore, for companies whose securities are 
quoted on the OTC Pink market, it may be more difficult (i) to obtain accurate quotations, (ii) to obtain coverage for significant news 
events because major wire services generally do not publish press releases about such companies and (iii) to obtain needed capital. 

Offers or a11allablUt,p for sale of a substantial number of sl1ares of our common stock 11111.Y cause the price of our common stock to 
decline. 

If our stockholders sell substantial amounts of our common stock in the public market, or upon the expiration of any statutory 
holding period under Rule 144, or Issued upon the exercise of outstanding options or wamnts, it could create a circumstance 
commonly refe1Ted to as an "overhang" and in anticipation of which the market price of our common stock could fall. The existence of 
an overhang, whether or not sales have occurred or are occuning, also could hinder our ability to raise additional financing through the 
sale of equity or equit;y-related securities In the future at a time and price that we deem reasonable or appropriate. 

Our IRternal controls may be Inadequate, wt,icl, could cause our fma11dal reporting to be unreliable and lead to misinformation 
being disseminated to the public. 

Ourmanagement is respoosible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial reporting. As defined 
in Exchange Act Rule 13a-15(f), internal control over financial reporting is a process designed by, or under the supervision of. the 
princfpaJ executive and principal financial officer and effected by the board of directors, management and other personnel, to provide 
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes· in 
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles and includes those policies and procedures that: (i) pertain to the maintenance 
of records that in reasonable detail accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the Company; (ii) 
provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessmy to pennit preparation of financial statements in accordance 
with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the Company are being made only in accordance 
with authorizations of management and directors of the Company, and (iii) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely 
detection of unauthorized acquisition, use or disposition of the Company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial 
statements. 

We have. a limited number of personnel that are required to perfonn various roles and duties as we11 as be responsible for 
monitoring and ensuring compliance with our internal control procedures. As a result, our internal controls may be inad�quate or 
ineffective, which could cause our financial reporting to be unreliable and lead to misinfonnation being disseminated to the public. 
Investors relying upon this mfsfnfonnation may make an uninfonned investment decision. 
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ITEM 1B. UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS. 

Not applicable. 

ITEM 2, PROPEKI'IES. 

GENERAL 

We own or have interests in two United States properties. They are located in: 

Pisgah, San Bemadino County, California 
Cerbat, Arizona 

A summary of important features about each of these properties is set forth in Exhibit 99.1 to our Fonn 10-KSB/A ffled on 
March 111 2009, and investors should take care to review this summary. 

Adits (a type of entranche to underground mine shafts), tunnels and open pit locations following what may be a trend 
(direction that an ore body may follow) or vein structure (faults and cracks caused by shifts in the earth that had filled in with.silica 
fluids and other magma volcanics which solidified leaving minerals behind) over a large region have been found on the property. The 
legacy of previous mining actJvity fncludingi abandoned equipment, stone built homes, a cement water reservoir and nmnerous tailings 
piles, or piles of. dirt.left over ftom previous mining operations, can be seen ftom various looations. 

In the United States, one property Is owned (patented mining claims on a volcanic cinders property at Pisgah, Callfomla)1 one 
is leased with an option to purchase (the Cerbat property In Mohave County, Arizona). 

The evaluation and acquisition of precious metals, mining properties and mineral properties is competitive; as there are 
numerous companies involved in the mining and minerals business. The Company has processed and tested mineralized materia1s and 
produced very small amounts of precious metals on a testing basis. These have come primarily ftom testing materlal from the Pisgah 
Mountain and Cerbat properties. 

Exploration for and production of minerals is highly speculative and involves greater risks then exist in many other industries. 
Many exploration programs do not result in the discovery of mfneralmition and any mineralizadon discovered may not be of a 
sufficient quantity or quality to be profitably mined. Also, because of the uncertainties in determining metallurgical amenability of any 
minerals discovered, the mere discovery of mineralimion may not warrant the mining of the minerals on the basis of available 
technology. 

The Company's decision as to whether any of the mineral properties it now holds, or which it may acquire in the ftlture, 
contain commerc1ally mineable deposits, and whether such properties should be brought into production, will depend upon the results 
of the exploration programs and independent feasibility analysis and the recommendation of engineers and geologists. The decision will 
involve the consideration and evaluation of a number of significant motors, including, but not limited.to: 1. The ability to obtain all 
required permits; 2. Costs of bringing the property into production. including exploration and development or preparation of·feasibflify 
studies and construction of production facilities; 3. Availability and costs of financing; 4. Ongoing costs ofproductfon; S. Market'prices 
for the metals to be produced; and 6. The existence of reserves or mineralimtion with economic grades of metals or minerals. No 
assurance can be given that any of the properties the Company owns, leases or acquires contain (or will contain) commercially 
mineable mineral deposits, and no assurance can be given that the Company will ever generate a positive cash flow from production 
operations on such properties. 
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Exploration and mining operations in the United States are subject to statutory and agency requirements which address various 
issues, including: (I) environmental permitting and ongoing compliance, including plans of operations which are supervised by the 
Bureau of Land Management ("BLM"), the Environmental Protection Agency ("BPA") and state and county regulatory authorities and 
agencies (e.g., state departments of environmental quality) for water and air quality. hazardous waste, etc.; (ii) mine safety and· OSHA 
generally; and (iii) wildlife (Department of Interior for migratory fowl, if attractive standing water is involved in operations). The 
Company has ·be(m added by San Bernardino County as a party to the Approved Mining/ Reclamation Plan and related permits, which 
have been Issued for the Pisgah Property. See Item 2t Description of Properties .. Pisgah, California - Pisgah Property Mining Lease. 

Because any exploration (and future mining) operations of the Company would be subject to the permitting requirements of 
one or more agencies, the commencement of any such operations could be delayed. pending agency approval {or a determination that 
approval is not required because of size, etc.), or the project might even be abandoned due to prohibitive costs. 

The Company has historicaliy expended a significant amount of funds on consulting, geochemical analytical testing, 
metallurgical processing and extracting. and precious metal assaying of material, however. the Company does not consider those 
activities as research and development activities. All those expenses are home by the Company. 

Federal, state and local provisions regulating the discharge of material into the environment; or otherwise relating to the 
protection of the environment, such as tho Clean Air Act, Clean Water Act, the Resource Conservation and Recovery Act, and the 
Comprehensive Bnvironmenfal Response Liabfllty Act ("Superfundst) affect mineral operations. For exploration and mining operations,a
applicable environmental regulation includes a pemdtting process for mining operations, an abandoned mine reclamation program and 
a permitting program for industrial development. Other nonenvironmental regulations can impact exploration and mining operations 
and indirectly affect compliance with environmental regulations. For example. a state highway department may have to approve a new 
access road to make a project accessible at lower costs, t,ut. the new road itself may raise environmental Issues. Compliance with these 
laws, and any regulations adopted there under, can make the development of mining claims prohibitively expensive. thereby frustrating 
the sale or lease of properties, or curtailing profits or royalties which might have been received there from. 

The Company presently has no tbll•time employees and relies on outside subcontractors, consultants and agents, to perform 
various adminfSU11tive, legal and technical functions, as required. 

PISGAH. CALIFORNIA PROPBRTV 

In 1997 we acquired fee dtle to the Pisgah Property, a "volcanic cinders" property at Pisgah, San Bernardino County, 
California, for S567,000. The cinders -material resulted from a geologically recent volcanic eruption. 

The property is comprised of approximately 120 acres located 10 miles southwest of Ludlow, California, with a very large hill 
of volcanic cinders,. accessible by paved road ftom Interstate 40. An independent survey service hired by the Company reported that 
there are approximately 13,S00,000 tons of volcanic cinders above the surface. Approximately 3,S00,000 tons of the cinders liave been 
screened and stockpiled, the result of prior operations by Burlington Northern Railroad Co. It processed the cinders from the hill for 
railroad track ballast, taking all cinders above about one-Jnch diameter and leaving the rest on the ground surface within one-quarter 
mile of the hill. The remaining material in the hill and the material left over from Burlington's operations can easily .be removed by 
ftont end loaders and loaded into dump trucks for hauling. The Cinder and Cinder·#2 patented mining claims contain morphologically 
young alkali basalt and hawalite Ia� flows and cinder (rock types created by volcanic activity). The cinder and spatter QOne is about 
100 meters high and has a basal diameter (circumference area·at the base of the volcanic material) of about S00 meters, and was formed 
by the splattering of lava into a cone shape during volcanic activi13'. The volcanic cone and crater consists of unsorted basalis .tephra 
(volcanic material), ranging from finest ash, through scoriascious cinders and blocks, or slag like structures born from igneous rock; to 
dense and broken ·bombs up to two meters in dimension. 

The.Pisgah Property consists of patented claims we own; no fees have to be paid to the BLM or work perfonned on the claims 
to retain title to the property. 
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From the year 2000 through 2002, the Company ran numerous tests on the volcanic cinders property to detennine if the 
material contains, precious metals. Although the program indicated precious metals might exist in material taken ftom the Pisgah 
Property, overall the program results were.inconclusive. 

PugahProper�-M"mmgLease 

In May 1998, we signed a Mining Lease Agreement for the Pisgah Property with Twin Mountain Rock Venture, a California 
general partnership ("Twin Mountain,"). The Agreement is for an initial tenn of 10 years, with en option to renew for an additional ten­
year term. Thin Mountain bas the right to take 600,000 tons of volcanic cinders during the Initial tenn, and 600,000 more tons during 
the additional tenn, for processing and sale as decorative rook. Toe material would be removed from the original cinder deposit, not the 
stockpiled material. 1\vin Mountain has not removed any material to date. 

The agreement provides that Twin Mountain- will pay minimum annual rental payments of $22,500 for the initial term and 
$27,500 per year for the additional term. Twin Mountain is also obligated to pay us a monthly production royalty for all material 
removed.from the premises: The greater of 5% of gross sales £0.b. Pisgah, or $0.80 per ton for material used for block material; plus 
I 00/4 of gross sales f.o.b. Pisgah for all other material. 'I\vin Mountain will be credited against these payments for ininimum royalty 
payments previously made. 

'Iwin Mountain is cmrent in payments. 1\vin Mountain has not yet removed any material ftom the property and has not 
indicated when it would do so. 1\vin Mountain does not have the right to remove or extract any precious metals from th� property. It 
does have the right to remove cinder material, which could contain precious metals (and 1\vin Mountain would have title to the 
removed cinder material), but it cannot process the materials for precious metals either on or off site. 

Mining and reclamation pennits, and an air quality pennit have been issued by the Califomia regulatory agencies In the names 
ofdbotli 1\vin Mountain and the Company. We posted a cash bond in the amount of$1,379 (1% of the total bond amount) and 'l\vfn 
Mountain has posted the remainder of the $137,886 bond. lfl\vin Mountain defaults, we would be responsible for reclamation of the 
property, but reclamation costs incurred in that event would be paid in whole or part by the bond posted by us and 'l\vin Mountain. 
Reclamation costs are not presently determinable. 

In addition to our historic exploration activities, we are currently undertaking alternative revenue producing opportunities at· 
our Pisgah Property. On January 23, 2012 we entered into a mineral lease agreement-with a partner who will ptn'Chase up to 100,000 
tons of resources derived from the property to produce commercial products for resale. The agreement is for an initial period often (10) 
years, with an additional five (S) year extension at the option of the lessee. We wlll receive fees for the removal of minerals at 
diminishing prices in SO.SO increments betw�:D-$12 per ton and $1"0 per ton for each 20,000 tons of material removed. 

Pisgah Property-Material Supply Agreements 

.. 

On January 23, 2012, the Company entered into a mineral lease agreement with OoodCorp Inc. to purchase material from the 
Pisgah Property. This mineral lease agreement is for an initial period of ten (10) years, with an additional :five (S) year extension at the 
option of the lessee. Sale prices of minerals are set at diminishing prices in $0.50 increments between $12 per ton and $10 per ton for 
each 20,000 tons of material removed. As of the date hereof, no material has been sold and no revenue bas been received by the 
Company under this agreement. 

On April 9, 2013, the Company entered into a Material Supply Agreement (the "Original MSA").with Candeo Lava Products, 
Inc� (11Candeo"), an Alberta, Canada company controlled by a foimer director of. the Company and brother of our then CEO. This 
Agreement was amended on March 3, 2014 (the "Amended MSA"). Pursuant to the Amended MSA, Candeo Is entitled� pu�hase 
volcanic lava or cinders from Pisgah Property that is not currently siockplled on the Pisgah Property (the "Material") at a price equal to 
the greater of $1S per ton and the net sales margin per ton removed from the Pisgah Property reali7.ed as ,follows: (i) 35% of the net 
sales margins during the first year of mining; and (ii) 50% of the net sales margins for the subsequent years during the·tenn of the 
Amended MSA (the "Production Payment"). Under the Amended MS.A, Candeo has the right to remove an initial amount of up to 
1,000,000 tons (the ''Initial Amount") ofMaterial from the Property and additional incremental amounts (the "Additional Amounts") of 
1,000,000 tons each, upon the successful removal of the. Initial Amount from the P-roperty. Candeo's right to remove the Additional 
Amounts from the Property is on the basis that once Candeo has removed the first Additional Amount of the Material from the 
Property, it shall have the right to remove subsequent Additional Amounts of Material from the Property, so long as it removes its then 
current Additional Amount. As such, Candeo's right to extend the term of the Amended MSA is entirely based on Candeo's successtbl 
perfonnance of its Material removal commitments under the terms of the Amended MSA. 
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Under the Amended MSA, Candeo· is required to purchase a minimum of ten thousand (10,000) tons of Material during each 
of the first three years of the term of the agreement, all at a purchase price ofS15.00per ton, for a total payment of$1S0,000 per year in 
each o_f the first three years of the rerm (the "Pre-Purchased Payments"), with credit being given by the Company to Candeo for all pre­
paid tons of Material that have already been purchased and paid for under tho Original MSA. The Pi'e-Purchasecf Material will remain 
on the Pisgah Property until Candeo commences its production operations or engages the Company to mine and remove Material on 
Candeo's behalf� In the event that Candeo engages the Company to mine and remove any of the Material, Candeo shall pay all of the 
Company's reasonable costs and expenses fn conducting such mining and removal operations plus a fee of 1S%. All mining and 
removal operations on the Pisgah Property will b� subject to all necessary regulattny and other third party approvals being obtained. 
The Pre-Purchased Payments will not be refundable to Candeo but shall be credited against the first Production Payments. 

The tenn of the Amended MSA has been extended from an Initial term of ten (10) years to twenty (20) years (the "Primary 
Termj and Candeo has the option to extend the term for ail additional thirty (30) years exercisable at any time with no less than three 
(3) months written notice prior to the expiration of the Primar,y Term, provided that Candeo is not In default under any of the provisionso
of the Amended MSA and that the whole of the Initial Amount has been removed from the Property.o

Location and Access 

The Pisgah Project is located in San Bernardino County, 72 kilometers (45 miles) east of the city of Barstow, California, and 
307 kilometers (192 miles) south-southeast of Las Vegas, Nevada, United States. Barstow lfes near the southwest border of California, 
east of the junction of lnteistate 15, Interstate 40 and U.S. Route 66. The Project is centered at Latitude 340 44, 4T' North, Longitude 
l160 22' 29" West, or UTM (metric) coordinates 55700 PJ384500 N in Zone 11, datum point NAD 27. It lies within the NW ¼ of 
Section 32, Township 8 North, Range 6 East from San Bernardino Meridian and has an area of 48A hectares (120.2 acres). 

Access to the Pisgah Project 1s .by the paved 2-lane paved road. From the junction of Jtiterstate 15 and Interstate 40 just east of 
Barstow, California travel east along Interstate 40 for 52 kilome�rs (32.S miles). 'lake the Hector Rd Bxit and tum right onto Hector 
Rd From here tum left onto Historic Route 66 for 7.4 kilometers (4.6 miles), and then turn right (south) onto the Pisgah Crater road . 
. Follow this road for 3.2 kilometers (2.0 mil�) to the Pisgah Crater workings. 
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Pisgah Project 

General Location Map, 
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OWL CANYON -s& $ JOINT 'VENTURE 

The Company has abandoned the Owl Canyon - S & S Joint Ventme entered into in 1996 with the Schwarz family choosing to 
use its resources. on the Pisgah Project. 

CERBAT PROPERTY 

On March 12, 1998, we signed a Lease and Purchase Option Agreement covering six patented mining claims Jn the Cerbat 
Mountains, Hualapai Mining District, ·and Mohave County, Arizona. The patented clahns cover approximately 120 acres. We paid 
$10,000 as the initial lease payment and are obligated to pay Sl,S00 per quarter as minimum advance royalties, which payments have 
been made to date� The Company has the option to purchase the property for $250,000, less payments already made. In the event of 
production before plil'Chase, we will pay .the lessor a production royalty of 5% of the gross returns received from the sale or other 
disposition of metals produced. Bxcept for limited testing and evaluation work performed in mid- 2002, no work has been performed on 
this property since 1999. Access is north 15 miles from Kingman, Arizona on Highway 93, east from the historical marker to Mill 
Ranch, then left three miles to a locked gate. 

The country rock is pre-Cambrian granite, gneiss and schist complex. It is Intruded by dikes of minette, granite .porphyry, 
diabase, rhyolite, basalt and other rocks, some of which are associated with workable veins and are too greatly serieltized (altered small 
particles with� the material) for determination. The complex fs also flanked on the west by masses .of the tertiary volcanic rocks, 
principally rhyolite. The mineralized body contains principally gold, silver and lead. They occur in fissure veins, which generally have 
a north-easterly trend and a steep north-easterly or south-westerly dip. Those situated north of Cerbat wash are chiefly gold �g 
while those to the south principally contain silver and lead. The gangue (material that is considered to have base metals that are not 
precious or worth recovering for market value) is mainly quartz and the values usually favor the hanging wall. The Company has been 
informed by the owner that the property contains several mine shafts of up to several hundred feet in depth and tailings piles containing 
thousands of tons of tailings. The property has not produced since the late 1800's. 

We conducted (in late June and July. �002) a limited number of preliminary tests and assays on material taken from mine 
dumps {material left on the property from mining by others many years ago). It was anticipated that this material could be economically 
processed. However, the dump material tonnage will not support a small-scale operation without being supplemented with additjonal 
underground ore. We are considering selling or fanning out the property, as there have been expressions of interest in the property from 
time to time. We have had no significant activity on Cerbat as of the date of this annual report. 

Location and Access 

The Cerbat Group of claims is located in the Hualapai Mining District about 15 miles north from Kingman which Is the 
nearest railroad and supply point. The state highway from Kingman to Boulder Dain and Las Vegas passes within 4 miles of the 
property and a good County road connects the highway with the mining site. The County road passes through the Rolling Wave and 
Red Dog claims making transportation available to the lower workings. An old road connects the New Discovery shaft with the Cerbat 
workings near the crest of the hill. This group of claims is favorably situated for trucking and transportation purposes. 

WIKIRUP PRQPBRTY 

During 2012 and 2013, we conducted a comprehensive research and development program to ascertain the potential for any 
rare earth elements on the Wikieup property with the assistance of an independent geologist working together with students from the 
University of Nevada Las Vegas' geology department (UNLV). The study has been completed and the results have been presented to 
the Company. Based on those results, the Company has decided to abandon any development of the Wikieup Property. 
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ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS. 

On June 3, 2014, a group of Company shareholders under the direction of Ronald D. Sloan (a former Chief Executive Officer 
and director of the Company) (collectively the "Plaintiffs") filed a shareholder derivative complaint in Nevada State Court against the 
Company, as well as its then cU1Tent directors (Thompson MacDonald, G. Michael Hogan, and Ron Schinnour), William Hogan, 
PutureWorth Capital Corp. and Candeo (collectively the "Defendants't). The Plaintiffs are alleging, among other things, that the 
Defendants caused the Company to enter into a transaction with Candeo involving the Pisgah Property that was not in the best interests 
of the Company. However, the transaction with Candeo is in the best interests of the Company (see ''Note 3 - Related Party 
Transactions - Material Supply Agreement" fn the attached financial statements). 

There are many other allegations made by the Plaintiff's, all of which are considered by the Defendants to be frivolous with no 
basis in fi1ct. In fact, due to the actions of the prior management of the Company, the Company would not have been able to continue 
operations and would have failed without the intervention of new management, including certain of the Defendants, and without 
entering into the transaction with Candeo. Accordingly, no provision has been recorded fn the financial statements of the Company for 
any payment to the Plaintiffs pursuant to the claim or othenvise. Legal counsel for the Company is Justin Jones, Bsq. of Jones 
Lovelock, LLP of Las Vegas, Nevada. 

Can-Cal Resources Ltd., as one of several Defendants in Derivative Lawsuit reached "Settlement Agreement in Principle" 
mid-November 2017. As of January 8, 2018, all Parties are progressing toward a more detailed Definitive Agreement. 

Terms of the Agreement include: 

A new Board of S comprised of 2 Directors nominated by Plaintiffs and 2 from Defendants. These 4 will select the sth 

Director. 

Sale of minimum tonnage of lava material to Candeo Lava Products within certain time frames. 

Proceeds from lava material sales are budgeted towards Plaintiff's legal costs, acute Accounts Payables and Management Fees. 
An annual minhnum was established to cover base costs of keeping Can-Cal from insolvency. 

As Candeo develops Its marketing, it expects to substantially increase volumes of lava material sales and thus future purchases 
from Can-Cal. After the first 45,000-8S,000 tons are purchased, then Can-Cal will begin to receive 20% of gross revenues, or 
ORI (Overriding Royalty Interest) from Candeo's sales of lava material. 

can-Cal Resources will be able to focus on developing any other resource potential. 

In the ordinary course of business, we are from time to time involv.ed in various pending or threatened legal actions. The 
litigation process is Inherently uncertain and it is possible that the �lution of such matters might have a material adverse effect upon 
our financial condition and/or results of operations. However, in the opinion of our Board of Directors .. matters currently pending or 
threatened against us are not expected to have a material adverse effect on our financial position or results of operations. 

The lawsuit brought forward by its shareholders has reached a tentative settlement. Tenns of the settlement agreement include: 

- A new Board of Directors to consist of five individuals. Two nominated by the Plaintiffs, two nominated by thea
Derendants, and a fifth agreed upon by these four;a

- Sale of minimum tonnage of lava material to Candeo within set timeframes;a
- Proceeds fi'om lava material sales to be applied to pay Plaintiff's legal costs, acute accounts payable, and managementa

fees. Annual minimum purchases of lava material by Candeo have also been established to cover the basic costs ofa
keeping the Company in operation and solvent;a

- As Candeo develops its marketing operations, it is expected to substantially increase the volumes of its annual lavaa
material purchases from the Company. After the first 45,000-8S,000 tons are purchased, then the Company will begin toa
receive a 20% overriding royalty interest from Candeo,s sales ofalava material;a

- The Company will be able to focus on developing any other resource potential; anda
- More complete infonnation made available to shareholders to be expected in April 2018.a

ITEM 4. MINE SAFETY DISCLOSURES. 

The Company does not currently operate any mines related to its claims. As a result, mine safef¥ disclosures are not 
applicable. 
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PARTII 

ITEM 5. MARKET F'OR REGISTRANT'S COMMON EQUITY, RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATIERS AND ISSUER 
PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES. 

(a) Market Information0

Our Common Stock trades sporadfoally on the OTC Pink market under the symbol CCRE. Our common stock has traded 
infrequently on the OTC Pink market. which limits our ablli1Y to locate accurate high and low bid prices for each quarter within the last 
two fiscal years. Therefore, the following table lists the quotations for the high and low bid prices as reported by a Quarterly Trade and 
Quote Summary Report of the OTC Pink market for the calendar years 2014 through 2017. The quotations ftom the OTC Pink market 
reflect inter-dealer prices without retail mark-up, markdown, or commissions and may not represent actual transactions. 

2016 2017 
High Low High Low 

1st Quarter $0.07 $0.03 $0.03 $0.03 
$0.07 $0.05 $0.03 $0.032nd Quarter 
$0.07 SO.OS $0.03 $0.033rd Quarter 
$0.0S $0.03 $0.03 $0.03 

(b) Holden of Common Stock 

4th Quarter 

As ofDecember31, 2017, there were approximately43,667,060 shares outstanding held by approximately 601 shareholders. 

Number of 
Number of shares 

Asat shareholders outstanding 
December 3 lt 2015 180 42,867,060 
March 31, 2016 180 42,867,060 
June 30, 2016 180 42,867,060 
September 30, 2016 180 42,867,060 
December 31, 2016 180 42,867,060 
March 31, 2017 180 42,867,060 
June 30, 2017 180 42,867,060 
September 30, 2017 180 42,867,060 
December 31, 2017 601(1) 43,667,060 

(I)0 Official records show historical number as 598. 3 more were added in stock issuance this period. 'Management apologizes for0
confusion due to numbers reported earlier.0

Upon the resignation of G. Michael Hogan as an officer and director of the Company on August 19, 2015, all accrued and 
unpaid salaries as of that date of $676,333 {$600,000 as at December 31, 2014) were settled with an agreement to issue 600,000 
common shares (worth approximately $18,000 based on August 19, 2015 share prices). This transaction had been recorded during the 
quarter ended September 30, 2015, although the shares had yet to be issued. The shares were issued on December 31, 2017. 

Mr. William Hogan resigned from the Board of Directors on February 27, 2013, and his compensation via his FutureWorth 
Capital Cmp. consulting agreement terminated as of December 31, 2012. On August 19, 2015, FutureWorth Capital Corp. settled all 
accrued and unpaid compensation of $180,000 to that date ($180,000 as at December 31, 2015) with an agreement to Issue 240,000 
common shares (worth approximately $7,200 based on August 19, 201S share prices). This transaction had been recorded during the 
quarter ended September 30, 201S although the shares had yet to be issued. The shares were issued on December 31, 2017. 

The above table includes the issuance owed to G. Michael Hogan and Bill Hogan in 2015. The shares were not officially 
issued until December 31, 2017. 
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On December 31, 2017, aside from the 600.000 shares issued to G. Michael Hogan and 240,000 shares issued to Bill Hogan, 
an additional 800,000 shares were issued to fonner and current directors of the Company for their work on seeing the· Company 
continue. 

(c) Dividendse

In the future we intend to follow a policy of retaining earnings. if any, to rmance the growth of the business and do not 
anticipate paying any cash dividends in the foreseeable future. The declaration and payment of future 4ivldends on the Common Stock 
will be the sole discretion of board of directors and will depend on our profitability and financial condition, capital requirements, 
statutory and contractual restrictions, future prospects and other factors deemed relevant 

(d) Securities Authorized for Issuance under Equity Compensation Plans 

STOCK OPTIONS 

There are no Stock Options open as of December 31, 2016. On December 31, 2017, 650,000 Stock Options were granted to 
members of the Board of Directors and consultants of the Company in lieu of cash compensation. 

WARRANTS 

Can-Cal bas no warrants outstanding as of the fiscal year ending December 31, 2016, or 2017. 

Reeerit Sales of Unregistered Securities 

There wme no sales of equity securities by the Company during the fiscal year ended December 31, 2016. 

By Board resolutions, the following Stock Options were mued in the fourth quarter of2017 with an exercise price of $0.06 
per share, to each to each of the following for director and/or consultant services rendered to Can-Cal Resources: 

Sandra Rogoza 100,000 
Red To Black Inc. 2S0,000 
104S899 Alberta Ltd., a company owned by Gary Oosterhotf 100,000 
R.evrok Fann, a company owned by Comelus Korver 100,000 
For Life Financial Ltd., a company owned by Casey Douglass 

650,000 
100,000 

Total 

The following shares were issued in the fourth quarter of2017 for director and/or consultant services rendered as follows: 

1045899 Alberta Ltd., a company owned by Gary Oosterhoff 100,000
Revrok Fann Ltd., a corporation owned by Comelus Korver 100,000 
For Life Financial Ltd., a corporation owned by Casey Douglass 

800,000 
100,000 

Total 

19 

Recipient Name 
Stock Options 

Granted 

Recipient Name 
Thompson MacDonald 
Ronald Schfnnour 

Shares Issued 
250,000 
250,000 

,.n,1-. 
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Upon the resignation of G. Michael Hogan as an officer and director of the Company on August 19, 2015, all accrued and 
unpaid salaries as of that date of $676.,333 ($600,000 as at December 31s 2014) were settled with an agreement to issue 600,000 
common shares (worth approximately $18,000 based on August 19, 2015 share prices). This transaction had been recorded during.the 
quarter ended September 30, 2015, although the shares had yet to be issued. The shares were Issued on December 31, 2017. 

Mr. William Hogan resigned from the Board of Directors on February 27, 2013, and his compensation via his FutureWorth 
capital Corp. consulting agreement terminated as of December 31, 2012. On August 19, 201S, FutureWorth capital Corp. settled all 
accrued and unpaid compensation of $180,000 to that date ($180,000 as at December 31, 2015) with an agreement to issue 240,000 
common shares (worth approximately $7,200 based on August 19, 2015 share prices). This transaction-had been recorded dming the 
quarter ended September 30, 2015 although the shares had yet to be issued 'The shares were issued on December 31, 2017. 

We claim an exemption from registration for the issuances descn"bed above pmsuant to Section 4(a)(2) and/or Rule S06 of 
Regulation D of the Securities Act, since the foregoing issuances did not involve a public off'ering, the recipients were (a) "accredited 
Investors"; and/or (b) had access to similar documentation and fnfonnatlon as would bo required in a Registration Statement under the 
Securities Act, the recipients acquired the securities for investment only and not with a view towardsJ or for resale In connection with, 
the public sale or distnoution thereo£ The securities were offered without any general solicitation by us or our representatives. No 
underwriters or agents were involved in the foregoing Issuances and grant and we paid no underwriting discounts or commissions. The 
securities sold are subject to transfer restrictions. and the certificates evidencing the securities contain an appropriate legend stating that 
such securities have not been registered under the Securities Act and may not be offered or sold absent registration or pursuant to an 
exemption therefrom. The securities were not registered under the Securities Act and such securities may not be offered or sold in the 
United States l,lbsent registration or an exemption ftom registration under the Securities Act and any applicable state securities laws. 

Issuer PuRbases or Equity Securities 

We did not repurchase any of our equity securities during the year ended December 31, 2016, or 2017. 

ITEM 6. SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA. 

Not applicable. 

ITEM 7. ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF 

OPERATIONS. 

The following discussion of the business, financial condUlon and results of operation of the Comptl11JI should be read In 
conjunction with the financial statements of the Company for the years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016 and the notes to those 
statements that are included elsewhere in this Annual Report on Form 10-K. Our discussion includes forward-loolclng statements based 
upon current �ectatlons that involve risks and uncertainties, such as our plans, objectives, apectatlons and intentions. Actual results 
and the timing of '1Venls could differ materially from those anticipated In these forward-looking statements as a result of a number of 
factors, including those set forth under the section titled "Risk Factor,. " 

Overview 

Can-.Cal Resources Ltd. is a publicly traded exploration stage company engaged in seeking the acquisition and exploration of 
�etals mineral properties. As part of its growth strategy, the Company will focus its future activities in the USA, with an emphasis on 
the Pisgah Mountain, Califomia property and the Cerbat, Arizona property. 

At December 31, 2017, we had cash on band of approximately $769 available to sustain operations. At December 31, 2016, 
cash on hand was $Nil. Accordingly, we are uncertain as to whether the Company may continue as a going concem. While we may 
seek additional Investment capital, or possible funding or joint venture arrangements with other mining companies, we have no 
assmance that such investment capital or additional funding and joint venture arrangements will be available to the Company • 
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We expect in the near term to continue to rely on outside financing activities to finance our operations. We used investment 
proceeds realized during 2012 for (i) completion of work-up of two potential extraction processes to determine which process we will 
employ to potentially prove up any precious metals, platinum groups elements and/or other base metals on the Pisgah, California 
property and the Cerbat, Arizona property, if any; (ii) the development of a drill program to potentially prove up any tonnages and 
precious metals and/or other base metals on the Cerbat, Arizona property, if any; (iii) the continued development a comprehensive 
research and development program to ascertain the potential for any rare earth elements on the Owl Canyon, California property 
(subsequently abandoned); (iv) strategic working capital reserve and (v) to finance our operations. 

In addition to our historic exploration activities, we are currently under taking alternative revenue producing opportunities at 
our pjsgah Property, On January 23, 2012, the Company entered into a mineral lease agreement with a GoodCorp Inc. to purchase 
material from the property. This mineral lease agreement is for an initial period of ten (10) years, with an additional five (5) year 
extension at the option of the lessee. Sale prices of minerals are set at diminishing prices in SO.SO increments between $12 per ton and 
$10 per ton for each 20,000 tons of material removed. As of the date hereof, no material has been sold under this agreement and no 
revenue has been received by the Company. 

On April 9. 2013, tho Company entered into the Original MSA with Candeo and the Amended MSA on March 3, 2014. 
Pursuant to the Amended MSA, Candeo is entitled to purchase Material from the Pisgah Property at a price equal to the greater of$ IS 
per ton and the net sales margin per ton removed from the Pisgah Property realized as follows: (i) 3S% of the net sales margins during 
the first year of mining; and (ii) SO% of the net·sales margins for the subsequent years during the �rm of the Amended MSA. Under the 
Amended MSA, Candeo has the right to remove an Initial Amount of up to 1,000,000 tons of Material from the Pisgah Property and 
Additional Amounts of 1,000,000 tons each, upon the successful removal of the Initial Amount from the Pisgah Property. Candeo's 
right to remove the Additional Amounts from the Pisgah Property is on the basts that once Candeo has removed the first Additional 
Amount of tho Material from the Pisgah Property, it shall have tho right to remove subsequent Additional Amounts of Material ftom the 
Property, so long as it removes its then current Additional Amount. As such, Candeo's right to extend the term of the Amended MSA is 
entirely based on Candeo's successful perfonnance of its Material removal commitments under the terms of the Amended MSA. 

Under the Amended MSA, Candeo ls required to purchase a minimum ofnten thousand (10,000) tons ofMaterlal during each 
of the first three years of the term of the agreement, all at a purchase price of$1S.00 per ton, for a total payment ofSIS0,000 per year in 
each of the first three years of the Tenn, with credit being given by the Company to Candeo for all pre-paid tons of Material that have 
already been purchased and paid for under the Original MSA. The Pre-Purchased Material will remain on the Pisgah Property until 
Candeo commences its production operations or engages the Company to mine and remove Material on Candeo's behalf. In the event 
that Candeo engages the Company to mine and remove any of the Material, Candeo shall pay all of the Company's reasonable costs and 
expenses in conducting such mining and removal operations plus a fee of 15%. All mining and removal operations on the Pisgah 
Property will be subject to all necessary regulatory and other third-party approvals being obtained. The Pre-Purchased Payments will 
not be refundable to Candeo but shall be credited against tho first Production Payments. 

The tenn of the Amended MSA has been extended from an initial tenn ofnten (10) years to twenty (20) years (the "Primary 
Tenn") and Candeo has the option to extend the term for an additional thirty (30) years exercisable at any time with no less than three 
(3) months written notice prior to the expiration of the Primary Tonn, provided that Candeo is not in default under any of the provisionsn
of the Amended MSA and that the whole of the Initial Amount has been removed from the Property.n
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Results of Operations for the Years Ended December 31, 2017 and 2016: 

($dollars) 

Rental Income 

For year ended December 31, 
2017 2016 

$ - $s 9,167 

Operating expenses: 
Exploration costs 
General and administrative 
Depreciation
Director fees 
Stock-based compensation 

Total operating expenses 

Net operating loss 

Other income (expense):
Interest-expense
Gain on sale of asset 
Foreign exchange gain (loss) 
Non-recuning income 

Total other income (expense) 

8,738 
228,747 

75,000 
30,500 

342,983 

(342,983) 

164,442 

(155,275) 

(12,451)
9,000 

(3,503) 
700 

17,096 
147�346 

(13,243) 

14S 
268 

(6,254) (12,830) 

Loss before provision for income taxes 
Provision for Income taxes 

$ $ (168,105) 

Net loss s (349,237) $ (168,l0S) 

Revenues: 

Rental revenue was $Nil for the year ended December 31, 2017 and $9,167 for the year ended December 31, 2016. Rental 
revenue relates to income derived from the rental of the Company's land for the purposes of mineral extraction, filming movies or 
conducting photo shoots. The decrease in rental revenue in 2017 was due to the rental contracts not behtg renewed. 

Exploration Costs: 

For the year ended December 31, 2017, exploration costs were $8,738 and $17,096 in 2016. The decrease in exploration costs 
is due to lower property taxes paid on our locations In 2017. 

General and Administrative: 

. General and administrative expenses were $228,747 for the year ended December 311 2017 and $147,346 for 2016. 'Ibis 
increase in general and adminis1rative expense in 2017 was primarily due to legal expenses incmred as a result of the lawsuit brought 
forward by our shareholders as well as increased costs for the management contract of the Company. 

Director Fees: 

Director fees were $75,000 for the year ended December 31; 2017, and SNil for 2016. During the settlement of the Jawsult 
from the sharebolderBs It was deemed prudent that the three directors of the Company would eacli be compensated $25,000 per year 
starting January 1, 2017. 
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Net Operating Gain or Loss: 

Net operating loss for the year ended December 31., 2017 was $349,237 or $0.01 per share, there was a net operating loss of 
$15S,27S or $0,00 per share for 2016. This operating loss increase Is primarily due to higher General and Administrative expense and 
Director fees as explained above. 

Other Income: 

There was other non-recurring revenue for the year ended December 31, 2017 of$700 and $268 in 2016. The other income in 
2017 was due to a photoshoot on our property while other income in 2016 was due to-the write-off of charges incurred. 

Interest Expense: 

Interest expense for the year ended December 31, 2017 was $12,451 and $13,243 in 2016. The decrease was due to an 
amendment in the calculations. 

Net Loss: 

See the explanation ofNet Operating Loss above. 

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES 

The following table summarizes total assets, accumulated deficit, stockholders' equity (deficit) and working .capital at 
.December 31, 2017 and 2016. 

($ dollars) 

Total Assets 

December 31, 

2017 2016 

6,S59 1,290 
Accumulated (Deficit) (11,613,030) (11,263,792) 
Stockholders' Equity (Deficit) 
Working Capital (Deficit) 

(973,665) 
{973,665) 

(654,928) 
(654,928) 

At December 31, 2017, we had total assets·of$6,S59, consisting of prepaid expenses and cash, compared to assets of$1,290 in 
2016. We have Implemented financial controls In the business to ensure each expense is wammted and needed. Our cash on hand at 
December 31, 2017 was $769. 

Off Balance Sheet Arrangements 

We do not have any off-balance sheet 81T81lgements of any kind. 

Contractual Obligations 

An agreement was signed effective June 10, 2016 with For Life Financial for the office administration of the Company and 
can be terminated by either party with one month's written notice. An agreement was signed effective September 10, 2016 to manage 
the Company. ·The contract Is effective until December 31, 2018 and will continue until the earlier of the completion of the services or 
the tennination of the agreement. Termination of the agreement may be for any or no reason upon four months written notice. The 
Company may, in its sole discretion, request For Life Financial to cease perfonnlng services during the four-month period. For Life 
Financial may tenninate this agreement for any or no reason upon two months written notice. 

On September 1, 2017, an agreement was signed with Red to Black Inc. to perfonn the accounting for the Company. The 
contract is effective until December 31, 2017 and will automatically renew and can be terminated by either party with thirty-day notice. 

23 

https://www.sec.gov/Arcblves/edgar/data/1083848/000168316818000967/cancal..lOk-123117


S/1612018 bttps-J/www.sec.gov/Anmives/edgar/data/1083848f000168316818000967/c:ancaLIOk-123117.htm 

Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates 

The preparation of financial statements in confonnl� with accounting principles generally accepted tn the United States of 
America requires us to make estimates and judgments that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, disclosure of contingent 
assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting 
period. On an on-going basis, we evaluate our estimates and judgments, including those related to revenue recognition, allowance for 
sales returns and doubtful accounts, inventory valuation, business combination purchase price allocadons, our review for impafnnent of 
Jong-lived assets, intangible assets and goodwill, income taxes and stock-based compensation expense. Actual results may differ ftom 
these judgments and estimates, and they may be adjusted as more information becomes available. Any adjustment may be slgnlficant. 

An accounting policy is deemed to be critical if it requires an accounting estimate to be made based on assumptions about 
matters that are highly uncertain at the time the estimate is made, ff different esthnates reasonably may have been used. or if changes in 
the estimate that are reasonably likely to occur may materially impact the financial statements. We refer readers to Note 1 to our audited 
financial statements for the years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016 tiled with this Annual Report. 

Recent Accounting Pronouncements 

See Note 1 contained in the "Notes to the Financial Statements" for a discussion of new and recently adopted accounting 
pronouncements. 

ITEM 7A. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK. 

Net applicable. 

ITEM 8. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA. 

Index to Financial Statements 

&@ports oflnd;pendent Registered Public Accountjng.fi[m 

Balance Sheets es of December 3 J, 1017 end 20 J 6 

Statements of Qperations for the Yeau Ended December J 1. 2017 and 2016 

p .. J 

F-2e

F-3e

Statements of Stockholders' (Peflcit} for Years Ended December 31. 2Q 17 and 2016 

Statements of Cash Flows for the Years Ended December 3 J, 2017 and 20 J 6 

Notes to Pioancjal Statements 

F-4' 

F-Se

F-6e

ITEM 9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL 
DISCLOSURE. 

None 
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ITEM 9.A. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES. 

We maintain "disclosure controls and procedures," as such term is defined in Rule 13a-IS(e) and lSd-lS(f) under the 
Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (the "Exchange Act"), that are designed to ensure that infonnation required to be disclosed in our 
Exchange Act reports is recorded, processed, summarized �d reported within the time periods specified In the Securities and Exchange 
Commission rules and forms, and that such information is accumulated aud communicated to our management, including our Chief 
Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, as appropriate, to allow timely decisions regarding required disclosure. We conducted an 
evaluation (the "Bvaluationj, under the supervision and with the participation of our Chief Executive Officer ("CEO") and Chief 
Financial Officer ("CPO"), of the effectiveness of the design and operation of our disclosure controls and procedures ("Disclosure 
Controls") as of the end of the period covered by this report pursuant to Rule 13a-1S of the Exchange Act Based on this Evaluation, 
our Chief Executive Officer has concluded that the Company's disclosure controls and procedures were not effective because of the 
identification of a material weakness tn our internal control over financial reporting which Is Identified below in Management's Annual 
Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting, which we view as an integral part of our disclosure controls and procedures. 

Changes In Internal Control 

We have also evaluated our internal control over financial reporting. and there have been no significant changes in our internal 
controls or in other factors that could significantly affect thos� controls as of December 31, 2017. 

Limitations on the Effectiveness of Controls 

Our management, including our CEO, does not expect that our Disclosure Controls and internal controls will prevent all errors 
and all ftaud. A control system, no matter how well conceived and operated, can provide only reasonable, not absolute, assurance that 
the objectives of the control system are met. Further, the design of a control system must reflect the fact that there are resource 
constraints, and the benefits of controls must be. considered relative to their costs. Because of the inherent limitations in all control 
systems, no evaluation of controls can provide absolute assurance that all control issues and Instances of fraud, if .any, within the 
Company have been detected. These inherent limitations include the realities that judgments in decision-making can be faulty, and that 
breakdowns can occur because of a simple error or mistake. Additionally, controls can be circumvented by the individual acts of some 
persons, by collusion of two or more people, or by management or board override of the control. 

The design of any system of controls also is based in part upon certain assumptions about the likelihood of future events, and 
there can be no assurance tliat any design will succeed in achieving its stated goals under all potential future conditions; over time, 
controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may 
deteriorate. Because of the inherent limitations in a cost-effective control system, misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not 
be detected. 

CEO Certification 

Appearing immediately following the Signatures section of this report. there are Certifications of the CBO. The Company 
currently has no CFO. The Certification an, required In accordance with Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 (the Section 
302 Certifications). This Item of this report, which you are currently reading Is the information concerning the Evaluation refetTed to in 
the Section 302 Certifications and this information should be read in coajunction with the Section 302 Certifications for a more 
complete understanding of the topics presented. 

Management's Annual Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting 

Our management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial reporting, as defined 
ln Rules 13a-1S(f) and lSd-1 S(t) under the Exchange Act. 
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The management of the Company .assessed the effectiveness of the Company's internal control over financial reporting based 
on the criteria for effective internal control over financial reporting established in Intemal Control-Integrated Framework issued by 
the Committee of Sponsoring Organbations of the Treadway Commission ("COSO") and SBC guidance on conducting such 
assessments. Based on this assessment, management determined that, during the year ended December 31, 2016, our internal controls 
and procedures were not effective to detect the inappropriate application of US GAAP rules, as more fully described below. This was 
due to deficiencies in the design or operation of the Company's internal control that adversely affected the Company's internal controls 
and that may be considered to be material weaknesses. 

Management identified the following material weaknesses in internal control over financial reporting: 

1. The·Company has limited segregation of duties, which is not consistent with good internal control procedures.o

2.oThe Company does not have a written internal control procedurals manual which outlines the duties and reportingo
requirements of the Directors and any staff to be hired in the tbture. This lack ofa written internal control procedmals manual does not 
meet the requirements of the SEC or good internal controls. 

Management believes that the material wealmesses set forth in items 1 and 2 above did not have an effect on the Company's 
financial results. 

The Company and its management will endeavor to correct the above noted weaknesses in internal control once it has 
adequate funds to do so. 

Management will continue to monitor and evaluate the effectiveness of the Company's Internal controls and procedures and its 
internal controls over financial reporting on an ongoing basis and are committed to taking further action and implementing additional 
enhancements or improvements, as necessary and as fimds allow. 

This annual ,report does not include an attestation report ofthe company's registered public accounting firm regarding Internal 
control over financial reporting. Management's report was not subject to attestation by the company's registered public accounting finn 
pursuant to temporary rules of the Securities and Exchange Commission that permit the company to provide only the management's 
report in this annual report. 

ITEM 9B. OTHER INFORMATION. 

None. 
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PARTIII 

ITEM 10. DIRECTORS, EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND CORPORATE GOVERNANCE. 

On May 1, 2016, Richard Singleton resigned from the Board of Directors. 

On June 10, 2016, Casey Douglass was elected to the Board of Directors. 

On September 10. 2016, 11m J. Naskaska and Jonathan Legg resigned from the Board of Directors. Gary Oosterhoft' and 
Comelus (Case) Korver were elected to tho Board of directors. Casey Douglass was elected as Chairman of the Board. 

The new Officers and directors of the Company are listed below. Directors are elected to hoid offices until the next annual 
meeting of shareholders or until their successors are elected or appointed and qualified. Officers are appointed, by the board of directors 
until a successor Is elected and qualified or until resignation, removal or death. 

Name Age Position and Tenure 
Casey Douglass 

60 
Director and Chairman of the Board. 
Director.Gary Oosterhoff 

Cornelus (Case} Korver 72 Director. 

Mr. Casey Douglass of Red Deer, Alberta, was elected as a Director as of June 10, 2016. Mr. Douglass has owned and 
managed fanning and agn"businesses for over 1S years in Canada and Russia. Mr. Douglass' expertise in Russia involved: market 
analysis; business design; finance; importing and staff training on new equipment His expertise also included corporate structuring and 
strong management skills. During the past 10 years, Mr. Douglass has specialized in providing insurance and finance solutions to the 
exempt corporate marketplace of Western Canada, the majority of which occurred in Alberta. Mr. Douglass has studied Agricultural 
Economics and Rural Sociology at University of Alberta and is a strong community player in Red Deer, Alberta as well as other global 
connnunfties. Mr. Douglass looks forward to assisting Can-Cal Resources from its previous difficult times to upcoming positive and 
new business activities within North America. 

Mr. Gmy Oosterhotf of Red Deer, Alberta, was appointed as a Director as of September 10, 2016. During the majority of his 
working career, Mr. Oosterhoff has been in the general Insurance industry where he achieved the "Chartered Insurance Broker'' 
designation, which at the tfmo was tho highest level attainable for general insurance brokers. He was the senior leader and majoricy 
shareholder of a thriving general insurance brokerage In Red Deer, Alberta which was sold in 2001. Afterward, Gary continued in a 
teaching capacity throughout Alberta until 2009. Additionally, fi'om 2001, to date, Oaey has used his outstanding entrepreneurial 
experience and background talents In ground floor opportunities and went on to pursue the real estate business, which also has become 
very successful. Today, Mr. Oosterhoff leads a syndication of high wealth investors for acquisition, development, construction, 
management and marketing of both residential and commercfaJ holdings in central Alberta. Mr. OosterhotI has also been a Board 
member providing regional governance under Alberta Housing Act. 

Mr. Comelus (Case) Korver of Rocky Mountain House, Alberta, was appointed as a director as of September 10, 2016. Since 
1962, Mr. Korver has been involved in thriving agricultural businesses near Rocky Mountain House, Alberta, initially with a 
prosperous family owned dimy operations. In 1972, he expanded and diversified into several other successful business operations, 
including beef cattle, hay, grains, end oilseeds. In 2008, Mr. Korver further transitioned into specialized custom grazing and hay for the 
Alberta equine market. Mr. Korver has used his successful business savvy In various capital markets investments. The majority of 
which are private companies. He has continuously provided ·active service on various boards at both the Alberta Provincial and County 
levels including the Alberta Government Loan Appeal Board; County Police Advisory Committee; Councy Agriculture Service Board; 
Rocky Mo1mtain Agriculture Society; Chair of Orey Wooded Forage Association; Counsel Member with Clearwater County; Chair of 
Central Alberta Milk Producers Association and Director, Rocky Natural Gas Co-op. 

(a) Director Compensationc

W'lth the settlement of the lawsuit brought forward by the Company's shareholders, the Company has begun compensating its 
directors starting January 1, 2017 with director fees of $2S,000 per annum each. Directors are also reimbursed for travel costs to attend 
Board meetings. The directors were also given a one-time Issuance of 100,000 shares each on December 31, 2017. 
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(b) Identification of Certain Significant Employees and Consultantsa

None. 

(c) Family Relationships.a

Not applicable. 

(d) Involvement in Certain Legal Proceedings.a

None of our executive officers or directors has been involved in any of the following events during the past ten years: 

(1)a any bankruptcy petition tiled by or against any business of which such person was a general partner or executive officera
either at fl!e time of the banlauptcy or within two yems prior to that time;a

(2)a any conviction In a criminal proceeding or being a named subject to a pending criminal proceeding (excluding traffica
violations an4 minor offenses):a

(3) being subject to any order, judgment, or decree, not subsequently reversed, suspended or vacated, of any court of competent 
jurisdiction, pennanently or temporarily enjoining, barring, suspending or otherwise limiting his involvement in any type of 
business, secmities or banking activities; 

(4)a being found by a court of competent jurisdlction {in a civil action), the SEC or the Commodities Futures Thldlng
Commission to have violated a federal or state securities or commodities law;a

(S)a being the subject of; or a party to1 any Federal or State judicial or administrative order, judgment, decree, or finding, nota
subsequently reversed, suspended or vacated, relating to an alleged violation of (i) any Federal or State securities ora
commodities law or regulation; (H) any law or regulation respecting financial institutions or insurance companies, including,
but not limited to, a tempormy or permanent h\iunctfon, order of disgorgement or restitution, civil money penalty ora
�porary or permanent cease-and-desist order, or removal or prohibition order, or (iii) any law or regulation prohibitinga
mail or wire fraud or fraud in connection with any business entlt;y; ora

(6)a being the subject of; or a party to, any sanction or order, not subsequently reversed, suspended or vacated, of any self­
regulatory organmtlon (as defined in Section 3(a)(26) of the Bxcbange Act), any registered entity (as defined in Section (1)
(a)(40) of the Commodity Exchange Act), or any equivalent exchange, association, entity, or organization that hasa
disciplinary authority over its members or persons associated with a member.a

SECTION 16(A) BENEFICIAL O\VNERSHIP REPORTING COMPLIANCE 

Based upon a review of Fonns 3 and 4 furnished to the company pursuant to Rule 16a-3(a) and written representations 
refemd to in Item 405(b) (2)(i) of Regulation S-K, no directors, offlceis, beneficial owners of more than 10% of the company's 
common stock. or any other person subject to Section 16 of the Exchange Act failed for the period ftom Janumy I, 2015 tlirough 
December 31, 2016 to file on a timely basis the reports required by Section 16(a) of the Exchange Act. 

CODB OF ETHICS 

The Company has adopted a Code of Ethics. A copy of the Code of Ethics will be provided to any person, without charge, 
upon written request sent by email to Casey Douglass, Board Chair (casey@forllfetlnanclal.com). 
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ITEM 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION. 

Tho following table sets forth summmy compensation infonnation for the years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016 for our 
chief executive officers and directors. 

Summa!I Com2ensation Table 

Name and Prlnci2al Position 
Casey Douglass 

Director 

Fiscal 
Year 
2017 
2016 

Salary 
(S)

$25,000 
$-0-

Bonus 
�S) 
$-0-
$-0-

Option
Awards 

($)
$1,100 

$-0-

All Other 
Compensation 

(S) 
$3,000 

$-0-

Total 
{Sl 

$29,100o
$-0-

Oaiy Oosterhotr 
Director 

2017 
2016 

$25,000 
$-0-

S-0-
$-0-

$1,100 
$-0-

$3,000 
$,-0-

$29,100 
$-0-

Comelus (Case) Korver 
Director 

2017 
2016 

$25,000 
$-0-

$-0-
S-0-

$1,100 
$-0-

$3,000 
$-0-

$29,100 
$-0-

Officers as a Group 2017 
2016 

$75,000 
$-0-

$-0-
$-0-

$3,300 
$-0-

$9,000 
$-0-

$87,300 
$-0-

Grants of Plan-Based Awards 

Outside of the Plan, each of the directors was issued 100,000 stock options on December 31, 2017. No stock options were 
··issued to tho directors in the year ended December 31, 2016. 

Outstanding Equity Awards 

There were 300,000 exercfsable stock options held by our directors on December 31, 2017. There were no outstanding stock 
options vested or unvested as at December 31, 2016. 

Option Exereises 

There were no options issued or exercised by our executive officers during fiscal 2017, or 2016. 

Equity Compensation Plan Information 

There are no outstanding Waaants as of the year ended December 31, 2017, or 2016 • 
. 

ITEM 12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT AND RELATED 
STOCKHOLDER MATTERS 

The following tables presents information, to the best of Can-Cal's knowledge, about the ownership of Can-Cal's common 
stock on December 31, 2017 and 2016, relating to those persons lmown to beneficially own more than 5% of Can-Cal's capital stock 
and by Can-Cal's directors and executive officers, The percentage of bene�cial ownership for the following tables are based on 
43,667,060 shares of common stock outstanding as of December 31, 2017 and 42,867,060 outstanding as of December 31, 2016 
(including the share issuances to Michael Hogan and William J. Hogan for the settlements of their debts). The percentage of beneficial 
ownership for the following table is based on 43,667,060 and 42,867,060 shares of common stock outstanding as of December 31, 2017 
and 2016. respectively. 

Beneficial ownership is determined in accordance with the roles of the Securities and Exchange Commission and does not 
necesun1y indicate beneficial ownership for any other purpose. Under these rules, beneficial ownership includes those shares of 
common stock over which the shareholder has sole or shared voting or investment power. It also includes shares of common stock that 
tho shareholder has a right to acquire within 60 days after December 31, 2017 pursuant to options, warrants, conversion privileges or 
other right. The percentage ownership of the outstanding common stock, however, is based on the assumption, expressly required by 
the rules of the Securities and Bxchange Commission, that only the person or entity whose ownership is being reported has converted 
options or warrants into shares of Can-Cal's common stock. 

..... ,, .. 
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(o)d Candeo sha[ have a period of ton (1 0) business days after receipt of the Disposltlon ·d
Notice (the "Notice Period") from Can-Cal to elect in writing to acquire thed
Property under such proposed Disposition on the terms and conditions contained ind
the Disposition Notice and. If Candeo so elects, Can-Cal hereby agrees to completed
the transaction comprising the Disposition with Candeo;d

(d)d if Candeo declines or fails to elect withln the Notice Period to complete thed
Disposition on the terms and conditions set out in the Disposition Notice, Can-Cald
shall be entitled for a period of 120 days beginning upon the expiry of the Noticed
Period, to complete the Disposition on 'substantially the same terms and conditionsd
as set forth in the Disposition Notice. Upon expiry of such 120 day period, or In thed
event that such terms and conditions of the proposed Disposition, ohanged
materially, Can-Cal shall not be entitled to complete a Disposition without againd
complylng with section 2:l(a) to (d) .inclusive mutalls mutandis; and

.
. 

in the event that Can-Cal does not complete the proposed Disposition in �rdanced
with the foregoing, the provisions of this section shall apply to the next proposedd
Disposition mutatls mutandls.d

24, SUBORQINATION AND ATl'ORNMENT. Subject to the next sentence of this 
section 24, this Second Amended MSA and tho rights of Candeo hereunder shall be subject and 
subordinate to any deed of 1rUst, mortgage or other financing lien whloh at any ·time hereafter 
may encumber the 'J'roperty (such deed of trust, mortgage or other financing lien, and any 
replacement, renewal, modification, amendment or extension thereot being hereinafter referred 
to as 81'.l ''Encumbrance"). Notwithstanding the foregoing, the subordination of this Second 
Amended MBA to any Encumbrance and Candeo's obligations under this section 24 shall only 
be effective if the holder of such Bncumbtance executes and delivers to Candeo a commercially 
reasonable non-disturbance agreement acknowledging that the holder of such Encumbrance jf it 
purchases the Property, or any other purchaser of the Property as a result of such Encumbrance, 
whether by foreclosuro or deed 1n lieu thereat shall take the Property subject 10 the then current 
rights of Candeo under this Second Amended MSA. Candeo shal� within ten (10) business days 
of Candeo's receipt of any request from. Can-Cal therefor, execute and deliver to can .. Cal a 
commercially reasonable subordination, non-disturbance and attornment agreement with n,spect 
to any Encumbmnco that (1) confirms and gives effect to the priority of such Enmimbrance over · 
this Second Amended MSA and the subordination of this Second Amended MSA to such 
Encumbrance, (ll) contains 1he non-disturbance agreement required under this section 24, and 
(iii)dprovides that If the holder of such Encumbrance or· any other person claiming under ord
through such Encumbrance shall succeed to the interest of Can-Cal in this Second Amendedd
MBA, then Candeo shall recognize and attom to such holder or other person as can .. cal underd
the terms of this Second Amended MSA.d

OAN: 26243769.!i 
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arbitrator. Any such arbitration, including th� selection of the arbitrator, shall be govemed by 
the rules mid regulatlo� of the American Arbitration Association. The decision of any such 
arbitrator shall be final and binding on the parti� and tho costs aml fees relating thereto shall be 
bome and paid In the manner the arbitrator determines to be fair and equitable. 

20.eNOTICES. Any notice or other communication which may be permitted or required
under this Second Amended MSA shall be Jn writing and shall be delivered person�lly or sent by 
United States registered or certified mail, _postage prepaid, addressed as follows, or to any other 
address as either 1!& 

-rJfto Can-Cal: 

ma: deal ate b notice to the other 

Can-Cal Resomces Ltd. 
---, 

I 

[address] 

[ contact person] 

If to Candeo: Candeo Lava Products·tno. 
1712 .. 25 St. S.W. 
Calgary, AlbertaT3C 1J6 

L 
I Atb:ntion: William J, Hogan 

21.eASSIGNMENT. Neither party shall assign all or a portion of its interest in this
Second Amended MSA without the prior written consent of the other party, which consent shall 
not be unreasonably withheld, delayed or conditioned. Can-Cal shall be entitled to assign all or 
any portion of its interest hi this Second Amended MSA provided the assignee agrees 1n wrltfng 
to assume and be bound by the terms hereof 

22.e BINDlNG ON SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS. All covenants, agreements,
provisions, and conditions of this Seco�d Amended MSA shall bo binding upon and enure to the 
benefit of the parties hereto, their respective helrs, personal representatives, successors, and 

23. RIGHT OF FIRST REFUSAL. 1n tho event of any sale of all or any portion of the
Property (collectively "Dl!IIJosltion"), Can..cal hereby grants to Candeo the right of first refbsal 
to acquire such Property. The right of first refusal shall be subject to the following tenns: 

(a) in the event Can-Cal proposes to undertake any Disposition of all or any portion of 
the Property or in the event Can-Cal receives a binding proposal (or a proposai
which would be binding and enforceable If ft were executed and delivered by tho 
parties thereto) for a Disposition of all or any portion of the Property, Can-Cal shall 
forthwith provide written notice (the "Disposition Notl�'i thereof to Candeo; 

(b) the Disposition N9tice shall contain. the terms and conditions pursuant to which 
Can-Cal proposes to complete' the Disposition, or for which a proposal for a 
Disposition Notice bas been made including the consideration proposed to be paid. 
iflmown; 
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transactions contemplated bythls Second Amended MS.A. 
(ill) If Can-Cal breaches any of its representations or warranties. hereof or fails to 

perfonn in any material respect any of its covenants, agreements or obligations under this 
Second Amended MSA, without curing such failure with thirty (30) days written notice �f 
(or moving to cure such failure Is the event of such failure cannot be-feasibly, cured withtn such 
period). 

17.dCAN-CAL'S RIGHT TO TERMINATE. Can-Cal may 1emll!Jate this Secondd
·dAmended MSA:d

(i) With the written consent of Candeo; 

(ii)d If Candeo at any time, other than during the first three .years of the initial Tenn,d
does not remove any Material from the Property for a period of twelve (12) consecutive months; 

(iii)d If any court of competent jurisdiction over the Property; or any governmental,d
admin!strative or regulatory authority, agepcy or body shall have issued an order, decree or 
ruling or taken any other aotlon permanently eJtfoining, restraining or otherwise prolu"biting the 
transactions contemplated byth?.Second Amended MSA; 

(iv) If Candeo breaches any of its representations or wmanties hereof· or falls to 
perform in any material respect any of Its covenants, agreements or obligations under this 

.. Second Amended MSA, without curing such failure with thirty (30) days written notice thereof 
(or moving to cure such failnro is 1he event of such failure cannot be feasibly cured within such 
period); 

(v)d In the event that Candeo fails to obtain or maintain sufficient property liabilityd
insurance, which policies shall be mado available to Can-Cal upon Candeo•s commencement of 
operations- on the Ptoperty, without cur.lng such failure with thirty (30) days written notice 
thereof; provided, howov�. that during such notice period Candeo ·shall cease any and all 
activity on the Property until such curo (or termlnation). 

18.dEXPROPRIATION.d

(a)dIn the event that aii or substantially all of the Property shall be taken by eminentd
domain for any public or quasi-public purpose such that Candeo's opemtions are no longer 
economically feasible, then this Second Amended MSA shall expire on the date when title to the 
Property vests 1n the appropriate authority or on the date possession is required to be 
surrendered. whichever ls earlier. The compensation or damages for this taldng shall l,e 
apportioned by and between the Can-Cal and Candeo taking into consideration the residual value 
of the land and surface rights to Can-Cal and the remaining present value of the existing term of 
� SCJ:OndAmended MSA to Candeo. 

(b) A voluntary sale or conveyance under threat of expropriation or condemnation but in 
lieu thereof, shall be deemed an appropriation or taldng under the power of eminont domain. 

19 • .ARBITRATION. Any disagreement between the parties in connection with any 
matter arising out of this Second Amended MSA shall be referred to arbitration before a single 
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shareholders, agents and employees .C'Can-Cal Indemnified Parties," individually a "Can-Cal 
Indemnified Party') harmless from and agaJnst any and all claims of liability for htjury or 
damage to any person or property arising from the use of the Property by Candeo, or from the 
conduct of Candeo's business,. or from any activity, work or thing done, permitted or suffered by 
Candeo or Candeo's invitees, licensees, agents, contraotom or employees in or about the Property 
or elsewhere. Candeo shall further pay, defend.. indemnify and hold the Can-Cal Indemnified 
Parties harmless from and against any and all claims arising ftom any breach of any 
representation, warranty or covenant hereunder. or default 1n the perf'o.anancc of any obligation 
on C&ncleo's part to be perfonned under this Second Amended MSA, or arising fcom any 
negligence of Candeo or Candeo's invitees, licensees, agents, contractors or employees, and from 
and against all costs, attomeys' fees, expenses and llabllities incurred in the defense of any such 
claim or action or proceeding brought thereon. In the event any action or proceeding ts brought 
against any Can-Cal Indemnified Patty by reason of any suoh ctafmt Candeo, upon notice from 
such Can-Cal Indemnified Party, shall defend the same at Candeo's expense by counsel 
reasonably satisfactory to such Can-Cal lndemnitied.Party. 

(b) Can-Cal shall pay, defend and indemnify and hold Candeo and its officers, directors, 
shareholders, agents and omployees ("Candeo Indemnified Parties," individually a "Candeo 
Indemnified Party") harmless ftom and against any and all olalms of liability for injury or 
damage to any person or property arising ftom the use of the Properly by Can--Cal, or ftom the 
conduct of Can-Cal's business, or from· any activity, work or thing done, permitted or suffered by 
Can-Cal or Can-Cal's invitees, licensees, agents. contractors or employees in or about the 
�rty or elsewhere. Om-Cal shall further pay, defend, indemnify and hold Candeo 
Indemnified Parties hamiless fi:om and against any and all claims arising from any breaoh of any 
i:epresentation, warranty or covenant hereunder or default in the performance of any obligation 
on ean ... Cal's part to be perfonned under this Second Amended MS/\,. or arlslng ftom any 
negligence of can .. Cal or Can-Cal's invitees, licensees, agents, contractors or employees, and 
from and against all costs, attorneys' fees, expenses and llabtllties Incurred in the defense of any 
such claim or action or proceeding brought thereon. In the event any aotlon or proceeding is 
brought against any Candeo Indemnified Party by reason of any such olllhn. Can-Cal, upon. 
notice :from such Candeo Indemnified Party, shall defend the same at Can-Cal's expense by 
counsel reasonably satisfactory to such Candeo· tndemnttled Party. 

lS. �S. If any liens or claims of mechanics, laborers, or material moo shall be flied 
against the Property or any part or parts thereo£ for any � labor, or materials ii.lrnlshed or 
clafnied to be ibmished to Candee, or on behalf of Candeo, then Candeo shall cause such lien to 
be discharged within thirty (10) days after the date such Uen is filed; or If suoh lien is disputed by 

. Candeo and Candeo contests the same in good faith, Candeo shall cause such lien to be bonded 
around and discharged from the Property within thirty (30) days after the date such lien is filed. 

16.l CANDBO'S RIGHT TO IBRMINATE. Candeo may tmminate this Secondl
Amended MSA: 

(i) With the prior written consent of Can-Cal; or 

(h') If any court of competent jurisdiction over ·the, Property, or any sovermnental, 
administrative or. regulatory authority, agency or body shall have issued an order, decree or 
ruling or taken any other ac�on permanently eqfolning, restrainfpg or otherwise prohibiting the 

cNi: 28243789.6 



-7-

long as Can-Cal's uso does not interfere with the rights granted Candeo herein. 

(b) Can-Cal shall not conduct its operations in any way which would adversely affect 
Candeo's use of the Property In accordance with this Agreement. 

(o)aCan-Cal agrees that for so long as this Second Amended MSA is in effect, it will nota
use or sell any Material from du, Property for Agricultural Purposes or for any use by any party 
for AgrJoultural Purposes or in competition with the type of products that Candeo is selling, or 
planning to sell, into tho market place for Agricultural Purposes, 

13.aINSURANCE.a

(a)aCandeo shall, at Its sole cost and expense, commencing no later than the date upona
which Candeo commences operations on the Property, and continuing throughout the duration of 
this Second Amended MSA, obtain, keop; and maintain in :full force and effect comprehensive 
general public liability Insurance against claims for personal fl\lury, bodily iq)ury, death. or 
property damage ooourrlng in, up011t or about the Property in an amount of not less than Five 
Million United States Dollars (USSS,000,000.00) , or such other amount as the parties may 
agree, fn respect to injury or death of one person and to the limit of not less than Five Million 
United States Dollars (US$S.000,000.00), or suoh other amount as the parties may agree, 1n 
respect to any one accident, and to the limit of not less than Five Mllllon United States Dollars 
(US$S,000,000.00), or such other amount as the parties may agree, in respect to property 
damage with respect to the use of tho Property. Bach party shall deliver to the other party 
ce.rttfioates of Insurance, whloh shall declare that the xespective insurer may not cancel the same, 
in whole or fn part, without giving each party written notice of its intention to do so at least thirty 
(30} days' prior written notice. -In addition, Candeo shall ensure that ·any contractors or sub­
contractors engaged in respect of operations on the Property shall have insurance coverage 
substantially slmllar to that required of Candeo, whloh to the extent that all operations have been 
contracted by Candeo. can. stan� in plaoe of the coverage required to be obtain� by Candeo. 

(b) Can-Cal shall, at its sole cost and expense, commencing no later than the date upon 
which Can-Cal commences operations on the Property, and continuing throughout the dw:ation 
of this Second Amended MSA, obtain, keep, and maintain in full force and effect compreh011Sive 
general public liability insurance against claims for personal huury, bodily injury, death, or 

·aproperty damage oocuning in, upon, or about the Property in an amount of not less than Fivea
Million United States Dollars (US$S,000,000.00), or such other amount as the parties may agree,a
in respect to injury or death of one person and to tho limit of not less than Five Mllllon Uniteda
States Dollars (US$S,000,000.00), or such other amount as the parties may agree, in respect toa
any one acoiden� and to the limlt of not less than Five Mitlion United States Dollarsa
(US$5,000,000.00); or such other amount as the parties may agree, in respect to propertya
damage with respect to the use of the Property. . Bach party shall deliver to the other partya
certificates of insurance, wbioh shall declare that the respective insurer ma.y not cancel the same,a
in whole or fn part, without giving each party written notice of its intention to do so at least thirtya
(30)adays• p�or written noticu.a

14.aINDEMNIFICATION.a

(a)aCandeo shall pay, defend and indemnify and hold Can-Cal and its officers, directors,a

CAN:2S243789.B 
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(b) Pledge Not· to Compete. Candeo and Can-Cal shall not, and each shall cause its 
afflliafes and associates to not. conduct its business in a manner which is in competition with the 
other parties' business, which is expressly llmlted to Agricultural Purposes with rqspect°to any 
rights of Candeo arising-from this pledge not� compete and expressly does·not apply to 
Material purchased as Minimum Purchases hereunder. For the avoidance of doubt, Can-Cal 
shall not be restricted from competing with Candeo in any business outside Agrloultural 
Purposes, including the sale of any Material for any purpose which is not an Agricultural 
Purpose and this expressly includes the right of Can-Cal to .compete with sales by Candeo of 
Material purchased as Minimmn Purohdses hereunder. 

10.TAXES AND UTILITIBS.o

(a)oCandee shall P.-Y prior to delinquency all personal property tax.es applicable too
Candeo's personal property, :fbrtmes, furnlshlng and equipment located on the Property, as well 
as all production ot severance taxes ·computed or based upon removal by Candeo Qf Material 
from the Property. If Candeo shall in good faith desire to contest tho validity or amount of any 
tax, assessment, levy, or other govemmental charge herein agreed to be paid by Candeo, Candeo 
shall be permitted to do so, and 1o defer payment of such tax or charge, until final determination 
of the contest. If the outcome of such contest is unfavorable to Candeo. Candeo shall 
immediately pay all taxes, charges, Interest and penalties detennfned to be due, 

(b) Candeo agrees to pay all expenses for heat, electricity, lighting, telephone, waste 
management fees and charges for water assessed against the Property, arising ftom C8ndeo's 
activities thereon, at such time as said charges become due. 

11.PBRMITS.o

·o (a) Candeo shall use its good faith efforts to cause all permits associated wlth itso
operations on the Property to be issued in the names of Candeo and Can-Cal provided, however, 

. that the parties agree and aolmowledge that such permit obligations are only applicable for 
activities associated with tho removal and sale of Material. Candeo shall pay for any fees or 
costs associated with obtahrlng and maintaining such permit&. 

(b) In the event that Candeo's permits are terminated or not renewed as a result of ean .. 
Cal's actions, Candeo may, in Its sole discretion, either (i) terminate th1s Second Amended MSA 
with no further obligations hereunder; or (li) suspend the Tenn of th� Second Amended MSA. 
until Candeo reinstates such permits, up to a maximum porlod of two (2) years. In the event 
Candeo's permits � not reinstated prior to the expiration of such two (2) year period, or In the 
ovent Candeo notJfies Can-c,.t that it has abandoned its efforts to reinstate such permits, this 
Second Amended MSA shall temiinate, and Candeo shall have no further obligations hereunder. 
In the event that Candeo reinstates such permits with1n suoh two (2) year _period, the applicable 
T� of this Second Amended MSA shall be extended for the perlod of suspension. 

12.oCAN-CAL'S RESERVED RIGHTSo

(a) The rights of Candeo granted hereby shall be subject to Can-Cal's reserved concurrento
right to use the Property for the puq,ose of exploration, development and mining and the use of 
any sur.fitc� or underground water or water rights occuning on or appurtenant to the Property; .so 

CAN: 28243789.S 
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8.BOOKSANDRBCORDS:INSPECTION 

(a)eCandee shall keep books and records necessary to document the quantity of Materiale
removed ftom the Property, the amount of Minimum Purchases and the Gross Sale Revenue. 

(b) Candeo shall install and maintain a bucket scale or truck scale to weigh all Material 
removed Immediately prior to its removal· from the Property. Candeo shall weigh all Material 
removed from the Property byuse of such bucket scale or truck scale to determine and record the 
weight of all Material that has been removed ftom the Property. Scale tickets or other automatic 
means shall be used to record the weight of all such Material. 

(o)eFor the purpose of permitting verlfication by Can..Cal of any amounts due hereunder,e
Candeo will keep and preserve supporting documentation and records which shall disclose in 
reasonable detail all information required to permit Can-Cal to verify the Purchase Payment 
calculations under this Second Amended MSA. · Upon reasonable advance notice to Candeo, 
Can-Cal or its agents shall have the right, during Candeo's regular business hours, to examine or 
audit such supportmg documentation and records. Candeo shall retain such supporting
doeumentatlon and records for a period of one (1) year following the termination or expiration of 
this Second Amended MSA. 

(d)eOn or before tho 25th day of the end of the fiscal quarter following commencement ofe
operations by Candeo and for each tlscal quarter of this Second Amended MSA, Candeo shall 
forward to ean .. ca� at the address herein given or at such other place or places as Can-Cal shall 
from thno to thne designate in writing, quarterly reports indicating thereof the quantity of 
Material removed from the Property during the previous quarter, the amo�t of Minimum 
Purchases and the Gross Sale Revenue, as well as a computation of the Purchase Payment due 
thereon. Payment of tho Purchase Payment shall be made in accordance wlth section 6 hereqf. 

(e)e In the event that Can-Cal and Candeo cannot agree as to the accuracy of thee
calculation of the Purchase Payment, then either p&ftY. may refer the matter to arbitration under 
Paragraph 19 hereof. 

(fJ Candeo to report to Can-Cal quarterly upon its activities (including any agreements· 
entered into) and share with can .. Cal all Information that it shares with its shareholders as and 
when sent to Candeo•s shareholders. 

I 

(g) Can-Cal will advise Candeo prior to auy public disclosure of any information by Can­
Cal relative io Candeo and shall consult with Candeo and provide Candeo ylith a reasonable 
opportunity to comment on such disclosure, as it relates to Candeo or this Second Amended 

. .
MSA 

9.ePBRPpRMANCBOBLIGATIONSe

(a) Operations and Reclamation. Candeo shall conduct its operations on the Property in ae
careful and workmanlike manner and in compliance with all applicable laws, ordfnances and 
regulations of all· governmental authorities having jurisdiction over the Property or Candeo•s 
operations lnoluding, without limitation, all Environmental Laws. 
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(b) With respect to the. sale of Material that ts a Minimum Purchase, :fli\een U.S. 
dollars (0S$1S.0O) per ton; and 

(c)a In respect ofMinbnum Purchases refeaed to Jn section 7(J:,) and (c) below only,a
in the event that the Gross Sale Revenue per ton Is greater than U.S.$15.00 per ton, ana
amount equal to 20% of the amount that the Gross Sale Revenue per ton exceedsa
US$1S.00 per ton.a

Candeo (or its assign or assigns) shall pay such Purchase Payment to Can-Cal quarterly, with 
each Purchase Payment being made on or before the January 1S, April 15. July 1S or October 
15 immediately following the date the subject Material has been purchased by Candeo, except 
where a more specific date for payment 1s set forth in Paragraph 7 below: 

7.a MINlMlJM PURCHASES OF MATERIAL. Candeo wlll purchase a minimuma
amount of Material '(the "Minimum Purchases'') as follows: 

(a)a twenty-five thousand (25,000.) tons of Materlal shall be paid for within five (S)a
days follow.mg the Start Date, with an option of Candeo to purchase an addltlonal twentya
thousand (20,000) tons of Material exercisable and payable by Candeo within 180 daysa
following the Start Date (''Option l "), and only upon the prior exercise and payment Ina
full under Option 1, 1hen Candeo shall be granted the right to purchase an addltlonal fortya
thousand (40,000) tons of Material exercisable and payable by Candeo within 36S daysa
following the Start Date("Option 2");a

(b) ten thousand (10,000) tons of Material during each of the first three years 
following the first anniversary of the Start Date, unless Option 1 has not been ex�ised 
and paid in full by Candeo, in which oase this Minimum Purchase obligation (10,000 tons· 
per year) commences upon the Start Date and payment in full for the first year ($150,000) 
thereunder must be made within 180 days following the Start Date; and 

(o)a in each year following the three year period referred to In section 7(b) above, thea
Minimum Purchase amount will increase (or decrease) from ten thousand (10,000) tons·a
of Material by an amount equal to the increase (or decrease) in the Consumer Price Indexa
for the calendar year ended immedJately prior to the calculation CC'lhe CPI a<Uustment'').a

For greater clarity, only in respect of the Minimum Purchases referenced in section 7(a) above, 
the Purchase Payment shall be limited to and shall not exceed the amount ofUS$1S.00 per ton. 
The Material purchased as part of the Minimum Purchases by Candeo may remain on the 
Property until Candeo commences its production operations, which will be subject to all 
necessary regulatory and other approvals required to remove Matarlal from the Prop�. such as 
permits, certlfied weigh scale, productions. plan, environmental reclamation plan (if •pplicable) 
and insurance all of which shall be the rosponsibllity and at the sole oost of Candeo. Candeo 
hereby agrees that it will provide thirty (30) days prior written notice to Can-Pal of the 
commencement of the operations on the Property, which notice wm state the anticipated•amount 
of Material to be removed, the period of time during which the removal will occur and the means 
that will be used to effect such removal. A separate License Agreement sliall secure Candeo's 
irrevocable right to access and remove Material purchased and paid for, but not removed from 
·the Property.a

CAN:2824S769.& 
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such other improvements and services, inoludlng roads, Inclines, drifts, entry ways, fences, gates 
and conveyors, as may be necessary or incidental to the removal of Material and the subsequent 
sale of Material subject to all applicable Jaws., mies and regulations and in compliance with all 

·s Environmental Laws;s

(o)sThe non-exclusive right to use, subject to all applicable laws, rules and regulations
and in compliance with all Bnvkomnental ·Laws, any surface or ground water situated within or 
upon the Property• in connection with Candeo's operations hereunder; provided, however, that 
Candeo shall not take water ffom C�·Cal's existing wells, tanks or surface reservoirs without 
tho written consent bf Can-Cal, which consent shall not be unreasonably withheld; 

(f) All other rights and privileges which are necessaey to Candeo in the exei-cise of any or
all of the rights herefna�o-ve set forth which are not in conrlict wlth Can-Cal's tights under this 
Second Amended MSA or with applicable state, federal of local laws, ordinances and regulations 
including. without llmltatlon, all Environmental Laws; and 

(g)sCandeo may record this Second Amended MSA to confirm and secure its rights and
� hereunder m. any land records or registries where the Property is located; and, Candeo 
mayin addition file and record Pln�cing Statements ln the form attached hereto as ExhibitB. 

4.s TERM. The Term of this Second Amended MSA shall, subject to Candeo's right tos
terminate as set forth in Paragraph 16 below, and to Can-Cal's right to terminate as set forth in 
Paragraph 17 below, continue for an initial period of twenty (20) years from the Start Date (the 
''Primary Term''), unless extended pursuant to the tetmS bereo£ Candeo shall have the option 
to extend the Tenn of this Second Amended MS.A. up to four (4) separate timesJ in each instance 
for an additional five (S) years (each a "Renewal Tenn"), exercisable at any time with no less 
than sixty (60) days written notice prior to the expiry of the Primary Term or the immediately 
previous Renewal Term, as the case may be, provided that Candeo ls not in default under any of 
the provisions of this Seoond Amended MSA and that at least 1,000,000 tons of Material have 
been completely removed from the Property durlng the Primary Tean and at least 250,000 tons 
of Material have been completely removed :fi:om the Property during any applicable Rmlewal 
Term, as the case may be, 

S. DAMAGES. Candeo shall pay Can-Cal reasonable compensation for any damages to
fences, existing structures or other tangible improvements, timber, crops or livestock resulting 
from Candeo's removal of Material, but Candeo shall not be liable for any reason or in any event 
whatsoover for consequom1al, special, punitive or incidental damages, including, but not limited 
to, loss of opportunity or loss of iuturo profits arising from any damages to fences, existing 
strµctures or other tangible improvements, timber, crops or livestock resulting from Candeo's 
removal of Material. 

6.s PURCHASE PAYMENT. The price that Candeo shall pay to Can-Cal per ton ofs
. Materla1 ("Purchase Payment") putehased by Candeo (or its assign or assigns) following the 

date hereot sbl!ll be as follows: 

(a)s With respect to the sale of Material that is not a Minimum Purchase (as hereafter
defined), 20% of the Gross Sate Revenuej ands

CAN: 28Z4S769.& 
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Hazardous Materials. 

"Gross Sale Revenue" means the actual gross sale revenue of Material received by 
Candeo or its assignee or usignees from purchasers, but shall not Jnolude any amounts credited 
or .refunded to the purchasers for refumed or defective goods. 

CCffa2ardous Materials" means any hazardous or toxic substanc;e, material or waste that is 
regulated by any federal, state, county, territorial, reglonat municipal or local govemmental 
authority under any Environmental Law now or hereafter effective, Jnoludlng, without llmitatlon, 
any waste, pollutant, hazardous substance, toxic su11stance, hazardous waste, special waste, 
petroleum or petroleum-derived substance or waste, or any constituent of any such substance or 
waste. 

"Material'' m� the volcanic lav� cinders, gravel, rock, sediments., and other material 
on or under the Property that Can-Cal may lawfblly sell hereunder; 

"Start Date" means the first business day after tho Judgment ls filed in the case currently 
pending in the Eighth Judicial District Court of the State of Nevada Jn and for Clark County, 
styled as: Ronald D. Sloan, et aL v. Can• Cal Resources, Ltd, et at Case No. A-14-70146S-B; 

"Tenn', shall mean the term of this Second :Amended MSA as set forth In section 4 
below. 

3.e RIGHTS OF CANDBO. Can-Cal grants unto Candeo the following rights ande
privileges with respect to Material: 

(a) The exclusive right and privilege during the Primary Term (as defined in Paragraph 4e
below) to remove an initial amount of up to 1,000,000 tons (the ''Initial Amount") of Material 
from the Property, in such manner as Candeo, in ifs sole discretion but subject to all applicable 
laws, rules and regulations and.in compliance with all Bnvlromnental Laws, deems advisable; 

(b)eProvided that Candeo has removed the Initial Amount during the Prbnary Term,e
Candeo shall have the exclusive right and privilege during the Tenn to remove additional 
incremental amotmts (the "Additional Amounts") of 1,000,000 tons each of Material :from the 
Property, on the basis that once Candeo has removed the first Addltlonal Amount of Material 
from the Property, it shall automatically have the right to remove a second Additional Amount of 
Material from the Property, and so on, such that it shall have the continuing right tp remove 
further Additional Amounts as long as it removes its then cur.rent·Addltlonal Amount of Material 
from the property, all in such manner as Canden, In its sole discretion but subject to all 
applicable laws, rules and regulations and in compliance with all Environmental Laws., .deems 
advisable; 

(c)eThe non-exclusive right to use and affect the surface of the Property., as may be
necessary or incidental to the exercise of the .rights herein granted subject to all applioablo laws, 
rules and regulations and in compliance with all Environmental Laws; 

(d) The non-exclusive rJght, to construct, assemb�e, erect, uso, maintain, improve., repair,
replace, rebuild, reinove and relocate In dr upon the Property such machinery. equipment, and 



SECOND AMENDED AND RESTATED MATERIAL SUPPLY AGREEMENT 

THIS SECOND AMENDED AND RESTATED MATERIAL SUPPLY AGREBMBNT 
(hereinafter the "Second Amended MSA'') ls made and entered into as of this 15th day of 
March, 2018, by and between Can-Cal Resources, Ltd., a Nevada corporation, as supplier 
(hereinafter reforred to as "Can-Cal") and Candeo Lava Products Inc., an Alberta corporation, as 
customer, (hereinafter referred to as "Candeo'•) and amends, replaces and supersedes that 
Amended and Restated Matedal Supply Agreement made and entered into as of the 3rd day of 
March, 2014 between Can .. Cal arid Candeo which amended and restated the Material Supply 
Agreement made and entered into as of the 9th day of April, 2013 (together with the Amended 
and Restated Material Supply Agreement, the "Prior MSAs''). 

..;..,,-:· 

WITNESSB1H: 

WHEREAS, Can-Cal is the owner of that certain property situated 4S miles east of the 
city of Barstow, CA, containing 120 aores, more or less, which property, Including all Material 
(as defined herein) situated therein, thereon and thereunder and all improvements thereon and 
appurtenances thereto, is hereinafter referred to as-the ''Property' and is more fully descnoed on 
ExhibitA, attached hereto; 

WHEREAS, Candeo and Can-Cal desire to enter into this Second Amended MSA for the 
aupply of Material to Candeo from Can-Cal; 

NOW, THBRBFORE, in consideration often dollars ($10.Q0) in hand paid to Can-Cal, 
the receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged, and further in consideration of the 
covenams hereinafter set forth, Can-Cal end Candeo agree as follows: 

1.a RBMOV AL OF MATERIAL. Can-Cal does hereby agree to allow Candeo or itsa
successom or assigns to remove Material from the Property during the Term and upon the 
covenants ana conditions set forth in this Second Amended MSA for the purposes of subsequent 
sale by Candee for use in earth minenaUzatlon, both organic and inorganic, for mral and urban 
distribution in the agricultural sector (both retail and commercial) only (hereinafter referred to as 
"Agricultural i,irposes"), provided however that Material· previously purchased by Candeo 
under the Prior MSAs, In.the total amount of 30,000 tons, which amount Candeo represents and 
warrants to be accurate and which amount shall bo verified within thirty (30) days of the mutual 
execution of this Second Amended MSA 1;,y receipts and proof of payments received by Can-Cal 
and Material sold by Candeo pursuant to tho Minhnum Purohases (as defined below) may be 
used for any purpose whatsoever. Notwlthstandmg the foregoing, Candeo agrees that it shall not 
attempt to extract ot cause � have extracted precious metals from Material or otherwise receive 
compensation, directly or Indirectly, from the sale or use'of Materlal for precious metal purposes. 

2.a DEFitiITIONS. The following words and tenns wherever used in thi� Seconda
Amended MSA are defined as follows: 

"Environmental Laws" means all fed�ral, .state, county, tenitorial, regional, municipal 
and local laws, statutes, ordinances, codes, mles and regulations related to protection of the 
en�ent oi the handling, use� generation, treatment, storage, trans�ortation or disposal ofa

CAN: 28243769.S 
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14 �HACKB'IT.IISQ. 

- ........ ·-· - ... -·. --

1 "ORDER
2 

'Based bn the �big stip\llatiq11. tfle trial date of March .t9� 2018 shall bo VACATBD. 

A status check shall be set for � Q\,
3 

, 2018,. at j •. l,Q @p.m., to .•
4 

6 

�li,h the procedure far providina'. notice of the ,etttement 1o Can-Cai shareholders and an 

opp�tyto ba heard tegardlng't)tfs Jettlement, and to schedule a.mimess hearing. 

1T 18 SO OJlOE)IBD. 

7 
DATED this \b�yof rl\titt>,n .i018,

B 

9 
10 

11 
by. 

=:Z - �. 
JOllNA"l'HONPAYBOHt, BSQ. 

15 SKLAR WlLLlAMSPLLC 
410 SouthRatnP¢Bo11levard; Suite.350 

u, Las Vegas, Nevada 8914S 
11 
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attornes,'s fees and• c:osts. 

12:.l6 The trial date ofMarch 19, 2018', shall be wcated. 

IN WITNESS \v&EREOF', the -parties bnve caused tbis· Stipulation to be -executed b_y 

their &lly liudlor.ized attomey.s; as of March 15� 2018. 

Datedtbis._dayof _____ 2018. Datedfbulfiyof �,20l8-

SKLA1t WlLLL\MS PLLC HOLLAND & BART LLP 

Stephen 1l. ij-.Cla\ft, B:14. Cl'JBN SOlO) 
Johnathon F.ayeghi, Bsq. :(NBN l27q6) 9ss, H.iltwond Dfivo., Setond Floor 
4U) S .. Ram.Patt Blvd., Stu3:SO Las Ve8$18N� 89134 ,. 
Las 'VeP.S, NV 89145 Coynselfor Dll/inldtPttP. Wtlltam I. Hogan, 

Thompson Mat:Ddnaltl,.Ro1tllld S�lnnoul", 
Co-Counsel for Platntlffe Mtal,ael Hogmi. Cilhdeo Lava hoduc/8, Inc., 

and Future Worth Capital Corp� 
ettd 

D•etftbi,_dayof ___ �2018, Dated this_ day of. ____ ___, 2018. 

JONES LOVELOCK. 

WILLIAM R FISHMAN, ESQ .. Justin.Jon.ea, &q. (NBN 8519) 
2000 S. Colorado Blvd 400 S. 4th St.. SteSOO 
ToWer One, Suite 9000 Las Veg,s, Nevada 89101 
Oenvet, CO 80222 Counsel fol' D�ndant 

Can-Cal Resources, Ltd 
Co-Cou,,sel for Plaintiffs 

(Order Vacating Trial Date and.Setting S'tatus Check.Pollows] 
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attomey's fees and costs. 
2 

12.16 The trial date ofMurph 19. 2018, shall be vacated. 
3 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have caused this Stipulation to be executed by 

their dulyauthorized attorneys, as of March 15, 2018. 

Dated this _dayof
7 

SKLAR WILLIAMS PLLCo8 

9 

10 
Stephen R. Hae� Bsq. (NBN 5010)o

11 JohnathonFayegbi, Esq. (NBN 12736) 
410 S. Rampart Blvd., Ste 350 

12 Las Vegas, NV 8914S 
13 

Co-Counsel for Plaintiffs 
14 

1S 

Dated this _dayof16 

17 

18 

19 WILLIAMR FISHMAN, SSQ. 
2000 S. Colorado Blvd 20 Tower One Suite 9000o

21 Denver, CO 80222 

22 CtrCounsel for Plaintiffs 

23 

24 

2018. Dated this _day of 2018. 

HOLLAND & BART LLP 

Patrick J. Reilly, Bsq. (NBN 6103) 
9SSS Millwood Drive, Second Floor 
Las Vegas, Nevada 89134 
Counsel/or Defendants William J. Hogan. 
Thompson MacDonald, Ronald Scbinno11r, 
Mlcl,ael Hogan, Candeo Lava Products, Inc., 
and FumreWorth Capital Corp. 

2018. Dated this \�y of l"\a,.r&!:,h • 2018.o

JONES LOVELOCK 

Justin 
400 
Las 
Cou 

n Esq. (NBN 8519) 
th St., Ste SOD 

gas, Nevada 89101 
el for Defendant 

Can-Cal Resources, Ltd 

2S (Order Vacating Trial Date and Setting Status Check Follows] 
26 

27 

28 
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.. , � .. 

� 

2 

,l 
attomey's fees ·and costs. 

12J6 Tho 1rlal date of March 19. 2018, shall be VAcated. 
3, 

lN WlTNESS WIIEBEOI, the -parties have � _this Stipulation to be executed by 

their duly authorized attomeys, as ofM"an.h ts, 2.0)8, 

Daf.l:d fhis/_5. d8'j of /1aach , 2018,o
: 

8 

9 

10 
��IINH�������--e n Hackett, • �soi0)

11 Johttathon Fayeghf, Bsq. (NBN 12736) 
410 S, Rampart Blvtl., Ste 350oIi Las Vegas,NV 8914S 

�3. 
Co-Cmms.el/or Plaintiffs 

14. 
and 

15 

Dated this Lj'f'rday of f/l(l Cl� "201e 16· 

·:: fl/§��
w��-

�000 S. Colorado Blvd 20 Tower One, Suite 9000 
21 Denver, co 80222 

22 Ca-CoflnSel /4.r.Plalnti.ffe 

24 

Dated lhls .._ daO' of _____ 2018. · 

BOLLAND & BARTLLP· 

Patrick J. Reilly, }3.q. (NBN 610�) 
9��5 ffUlwb<fd Dtl� S'ect,pd Ploor 
Las Vegas, Nevada.89134. 
Counaet/or De.fendants-J'flUiam J: HogfPI. 
thompson MacDonllld, Rona/d 8_p,inm;,ur, 
Michael H,,gan, Clmdeo.uwq Produ�/8, Inc., 
11(11}. FtllureWortb CaplliJI Corp. 

Dated this_ day of ___ ---(' 2017.o

JONES LOVBLOCK 

Justin Jones, Esq! (NBN ss19) 
400 S. 41!) St., Ste 500 
'Las Vegas, Novaila 89101 
Counseljar lJ'ffend(iht 

· Can-Cal ReYourc,,s. Lid 

2S [Order Vaeatlng Trial Date and Setting Status Cheek JQ}lowa] 
26 

27 

2S 
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1 

2 

3 

4 

6 

7 
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13 
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1S 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

2S 

26 

27 

28 

not be deemed a waiver of any other prior or subsequent breach of this Stipulation. 

12.7 Nothing in this Stipulation, or the negotiations relating thereto. is intended to or 

shall be deemed to constitute a waiver of any applicable privilege or immunity, including, without 

limitation. attorney-client privilege, joint defense privilege, or work product protection. 

12.8 All designations and agreements made, or orders enterecl during the course of the 

Derivative Actions or the Canadian Action relating to the confidentiality of documents or 

infotmation shall survive this Stipulation. 

12.9 This Stipulation shall be binding upon, and inure to the benefit o( the successors 

. and assigns of the Parties. 

12.l O The cons11'Uctlon, interpretation, operation, effi:ct, and validity of this Stipulation,o

and all documents necessary to effectuate it, shall be govemed by the laws of the State ofN�vada, 

except to the extent that federal law or the laws of Alberta require tbatsuch laws apply to the 

Canadian Action. 

12.11 This Stipulation shall not be construed more strictly against one Party than another 

merely by virtue of the fact that it, or any part of it, may'hav� been prepared by counsel for one of 

the Parties, it being recognized that it ls the result of arm's-length negotiations among the Parties, 

and all Parties have contributed substantially and materially to the preparation of this Stipulation. 

12.12 All counsel and any other Person executing this Stipulation and any of the exhibits 

hereto, or any related Settlement document, warrant and represent that they have the full authority 

to do so, and that they have the authority to take appropriate action required or permitted to be 

taken pursuant to this Stipulation to effectuate its terms. 

12.13 The administration and consummation of the Settlement as embodied in this 

Stipulation shall be under the authority of the Court, subject only to the jurisdiction the Court of 

Queen's Bench of Alberta retains concerning the Canadian Action. 

1214 This Stipulation may be executed in one or more countmpart.s. All executed 

counterparts and each of them shall be deemed to be one and the same instrument. Signatures sent 

· by facs�e or via e-mail in PDF format shall be deemed originals.o

121S Except as otherwise expressly provided herem, each Party shall bear its own 
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1 
11.e Warrantye

2 
11.1 Plaintiffs' represent that Plaintiffs have been continuous shareholders of thee

3 
Company at all times relevant to the allegations in the Derivative Action and through thee

4 
date of this Sdpulation; and all Parties represent an� warrant that none of the Releasede

s 
Claims have been assigned, encumbered, or in any manner transferred in whole or in part,e

6 
and that they will not attempt to assign, encumber, or in any manner transfer in whole or ine

7 
part any of the Released Claims.e

8 
12.e Miscellaneous Provisiqnse

9 
12.l All of the exhibits to this Stipulation ere material and integral parts hereof and aree

10 
fully incorporated hereht by this reference. 

11 
12.2 The Parties intend the Settlement to be the full, final, and complete resolutipn of all 

12 
claims asserted or that could have been asserted by the Parties with respect to the Released Claims. 

13 
Accordingly, the Parties agree not to assert in any forum that the Derivative Action and the 

14 
Canadian Action were brought, prosecuted, or defended in bad faith or without a reasonable basis. 

1S 
The Parties agree that the tenns of the Settlement were negotiated at arm's-length and in good faith 

16 
by the Parties and their respective counsel and reflect a s�ement that was reached voluntarily 

17 
based upon adequate information and after consultation with experienced legal counsel. 

18 
12.3 This Stipulation and its exhibits constitute the entire agreement among the Parties 

19 
concerning the Settlement, and no representation. warranty, or inducement has been made by any 

20 
Party concerning this Stipulation and its exhibits other than those contained and memorialized in 

21 
such documents. 

22 
12.4 This Stipulation along with its exhibits maynot be modified or amended, nor may 

any of its provisions be waived, except by a writing signed by counsel for the Parties hereto, or 
24 

their successors, that me materially and adversely affected by the modification. amendment, or 
25 

waiver. 
26 

12.5 The headinp herein are used for the pmpose of convenience only and are not 
27 

meant to have legal effect 
28 

12.6 The waiver by one Party of any breach of this Stipulation by any other Party shall 

Page24of27 

· 



1 
the Released Persons in any court prior to the Effective Dato, Plaintiffs and their counsel shall join, 

2 
if requested by Defendants, in ·any motion to dismiss or stay such proceedings and otherwise shall 

3 
use their best efforts to cooperate with Defendants to effect a withdrawal or dismissal of the 

4 
claims. 

s 
. 9.5 To promotejl}dicial comity, the Plaintiffs and the Plaintiffs' Counsel agree and wt11 

6 
authorize the Canadian counsel they have retained in the Canadian Action to execute a Standstill 

7 
Agreement in order to preserve any rights of the Parties in the Canadian Action up to and until the 

8 
Discontinuance of Claim, as referred to in paragraph 6.1 above, is filed. 

9 
10.d No Admission of Wrongdoingd

10 
10.1 Each of the Parties expressly denies and continues to deny all allegations of 

11 
wrongdoing or liabWty against itself; himsel� or herself arising out of any conduct, statements, 

12 
acts, or omissions alleged, or which could have been alleged, in the Derivative Action or the 

13 
Canadian Action. The existence of or tho provisions contained in this Stipulation shall not be 

14 
deemed to prejudice in any way the respective positions of the Parties with respect to the 

15 
Derivative Action and the Canadian Action, ·shall not be deemed a p,resmnption, a concession, or 

16 
admission by any of tho Parties of any fault, liability, or wrongdoing as to any facts, claims, or 

17 
defenses that have �een or might have been alleged or asserted in the Derivative Action or the 

18 
Canadian Action, or with respect to any of the claims settled in the Derivative A�tion or the 

19 
Canadian Action, or any other action or proceeding, and shall not be interpreted, construed, 

20 
deemed, invoked, offered, or received in evidence or otherwise used by any Person in the 

21 
Derivative Action or the Canadian Action, or in any other action or proceeding, whether civil, 

22 
criminal, or adminJstrative. The Released Persons may file this Stipulation and/or the Judgment in 

23 
any action that may be brought against them in order to support a defense or cowiterclaim based on 

24 
principles of res judicata, collateral estoppel, full faith and credit, release, standing, good faith 

settlement, judgment� or reductio0t or any other theory of claim precl�ion or issue preclusion 
26 

or similar defense or counterclaim. The Parties may also file this Stipulation and documents 
27 

executed pursuant and in furtherance thereto in any action to enforce the Settlement and/or the 

Judgment. 
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1 
cooperate and use their best efforts to secure the dismissal (or a stay in contemplation of dismissal 

2 
following the Judgment becoming Pinal) thereof. 

3 
8.3 In the event the Settlement is terminated as set forth in section 8.1 above, then the 

4 
Settlement shall be without prejudice, and none of its terms shall be effective or enforceable except 

5 
as specifically provided herein; the Parties shall be deemed to have reverted to their respective 

6 
positions immediately prior to execution of this Stipulation; and. except as speoifically provided 

1 
herein, the Parties shall be deemed to � in the teSpective positions they were in prior to the 

8 
execution of this Stipulation, including, for the avoidance of doubt, the reJ\m.d set forth in 

9 
Paragraph S.3. In such event, this Stipulation and any aspect of the discussions or negotiations 

10 
leading to this Stipulation shall not be admissible 1n the Derivative Actions or the Canadian Action 

11 
and shall not be used against or to the prejudice ofPlalntiffs or Defendants In any otherproceedlng 

12 
for any purpose. 

13 
9. Cooperation 

14 
9.1 Pending the Court's determination as to final approval of the Settlement, Plaintiff's, 

1, 
Defendants and the Releasing Persons are barred and enjoined from commencing, prosecutbig, 

16 
instigating, or in any way participating in the commencement or prosecution of: (i) any action 

17 
asserting any Released Claim against any of the Released Persons; and/or (ii) all ctahns arising out 

18 
of, relating to, or in connection with the institution, prosecution, assertion, settlemen� or resolution 

19 
of the Derivative Action, the Canadian Actlon, or the Released Claims. 

20 
9 .2 The Parties and their respectiv.e counsel agree to cooperate fully with one another In 

21 
seeking the Court's approval of the Settlement, to use their best efforts to effect the consummation 

22 
of this Stipulation l!lld the Settlement (Including, but not limited to, resolving any objections raised 

. with respect to the Settlement), and to agree upon and execute all such other documentation as 
24 

reasonably may be requited to obtain approval by the Court' of the Settlement. 
25 

9.3 The Parties may agree to reasonable extensions of time to cmy out any of the 
26 

provisions of this Stip�on to the extent that such deadlines have not been so ordered by the 
27 

Court. 
28 

9 .4 If any of the Released Claims areasserted or continue to be litigated against any of 
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6 
7 .1 

7 

(a) 

1 
efforts to take, or cause to be taken. all actions, and to do, or cause to be done, all things reasonably 

2 
necessary, proper, and appropriate to secure the permanent discontinuance of the-Canadian Action. 

3 
The.permanent discontinuance of the Canadian Action is a material part of this settlement and it ise. 
not effective unless the Canadian Court agrees to its permanent discontinuance. 

s 
7.e Effective Date of Settlemente

The Effective Date of the Settlement shall be the first business day on which all ofe

the following shall have occurred or been waived in accordance with s�on � hereof: 

the· mutual execution by Candeo and Can-Cal of the Second Amendede
9 

MSA. substantially in the fonn attached hereto as Exhibit A (which OCCU1Ted on March 1S, 2018); 
10 

(b) entry of the Preliminary Approval Order substantially in the form attached 
11 

hereto as Exhibit C; 
12 

(c)e completion of the notice requirements as set forth in Section 4 above; ande
13 

(d)e the entry of the Judgment substantially in the fonn attached hereto ase
14 .. 

ExhibitF. 
15 

8. Waiver or Termination · 

16 
8.1 Plaintiffs and Defenclants shall have the right to terminate the Settlement and this 

17 
Stipulation by providing written notice of their election to do so to all other Parties hereto within 

18 
fourteen (14) calendar days of: (i) the Court's Pinal refusal to enter the Preliminary Approval Order 

19 
in any material respect; (ii) the Court's Pinal refusal to approve this Stipulation or any material part 

20 
of It; (til) the Court's Pinal refusal to enter th� Judgment; (iv) the date upon which the Judgment is 

21 
modified or reversed in any material respect by a Final order of the Court, the Nevada Court of 

22 
Appeals, the Nevada Supreme Court, or the U.S. Supreme Court; or (v) the Canadian's Court's 

. 
.

23 
refusal to permanently discontinue the Canadian Action. 

24 
8.2 In addition, in the event that any shareholder derivative claims directly related to 

2S 
the subject matter of the Derivative· Actions, the Canadian Action, or die Released Claims are 

26 
commenced or prosecuted against any of the Released Persons in any. court, tnounal, or forum 

27 
prior to the Effective Date, and (following a motion by Defendants) such claims are not �missed 

with prejudice or stayed in contemplation of dismissal, Plaintiffs and Defendants agree to 
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1 
price of the common stoc k ls less than U.S. $0.17 per share during such 45-day period then the 

2 
pri� per s hare of the Can-Cal Shares {U.S. $0.17) will be reduced accord�gly (but in no event to 

less than U.S. $.06 per share) and additional shares (as appllc:able) will be issued in respect of such 
4 

rights, all subject to Court approval. 
s 

5.2 Within ten (10) days after the Effective Date, Can-Cal shall pay tho Fee and 
6 

Expense Amotmt to Sklar Williams PLLC as receiving agent for Plaintiffs' Counsel and shall issue 
7 

the Can-Cal Shares to Plaintiffs' Counsel as follows: $200,000 to William R. Fishman and 
8 

$175,000 to Sklar Williams PLLC, all as set forth and subject to the formula in section 5.1 above 
9 

and all subject to Court approval. The Fee and Expense Amount and the Can-Cal Shares, as 
10 

approved by the Court, shall constitute final and complete payment for Plaintiffs• Counsels' fees 
11 

and expenses that have been incurred or will be incurred in connection with the Derivative Action 
12 

and the Canadian Action. Defendants shall have no involvement in, responsibility for, and no 
13 

liability whatsoever with respect to the cost and fee allocation among Plaintiffs' Counsel, or if any 
14 

other Person asserts some claim to any portion of the Fee and Expense Amount or the Can-Cal 
15 

Shares. 
16 

5.3 If for any reason the Settlement Is In any way canceled or terminated, or if the Fee 
. 

. 

17 
and Expense Amount or Can-Cal Shares are reduced, disapproved, reversed, or otherwise 

18 
modified, then it s hall be the obligation of'Plaintlffs' Counsel to make appropriate refunds or 

19 
repayments to Can-Cal and/or Defendants' of any attorneys' fees and expenses previously paid . 

2 
within thirty (30) days of being o!dered to do so by a court of appropriate jurisdictiond. Each of 

21 
Plaintiffs' Counsel that receives any portion of any Pee and Expense Award or Can-Cal Shares 

22 
submits and is subject to the Court's jurisdiction for the purposes of enforcing this paragraph or. the 

23 
provisions related to any Pee and Expense Award or Can-Cal Shares issuance. 

6. Diseontinuanee of the Canadian Actiond
25 

6.1 Within five (S) calendar days after the $375,000 proceeds from the Initial 
26 

Settlement Payment to Can-Cal have been deposited into the trust account of Candeo's Counsel, 
27 

the Canadian Plaintiffs shall file a Discontinuance of Claim of the Canadian Action. constituting 
28 

the peimanent discontinuance of the Canadian Action and shall otherwise use their reasonable best 
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I 
1 

forth in this Stipulation and the qate of the Settlement Hearing, substantially in the fonus attached 

hereto as·Exhibits D and B. respectively, which shall be tiled by Can-Oll on a Form· 8-K with the 
3 

SEC. 

4.3 Within ten (10) business days-after the entry of the Preliminary Approval Order, 
s 

Can-Cal shall: (i) cause the Summary Notice to be filed with the SEC via a Form 8-K; (ii) cause the 

Summary Notice to be published once in the Calgary Herald and Las Vegas Review Journal 

newspapers of general circulation; and (iii) post copies of the Notice° and this Stipulation on the 
8 

Defendants' counsels' websites, Holland & Hart & Jones Lovelock. Defendants shall be solely 

teSponsible for paying all costs and expenses related to providing notice as set forth in this 
10 

Paragraph 4.3. 
11 

4.4 Within ten (10) business days after the entry of the Preliminary ApprovaJ Order, 
12 

Plaintiffs' Counsel shall post a copy of the Notice and Stipulatlon on the website of Sklar Williams 
13 

PLLC. 
14 

5.e Attorneys' Fees and Expensese
15 

S.1 After negotiating the Amended MSA and the corporate govemance measures,e
16 

Plaintiffs' Counsel and Defendants' Counsel separately negotiated the attorneys' fees and expenses 
17 

that Candeo and the Company would pay to Plaintiffs' Counsel. As a result of these negotiations, 
18 

and in light of the substantial benefits conferred upon Can-Cal by P1aintiffs' Counsel's efforts, the 
19 

Company and Candeo have agreed that Candeo will pmohase from Can-Cal, pursuant to the 
20 

Second Amended MSA attached as Exhibit A, $375,000 of Pisgah Material upon the terms set 
21 

forth in the Second Amended MSA, of which the Company has agreed to pay $22-5,000 to 

J>]aintlff1' Counsel for attorneys' fees, $100,000 to Plaintiffs' CotmSel for expenses (the "Fee and 

Expense Amount', and $50,000 (and any additional amounts paid to Can-Cal as a �ult of the 
24 

exercise of the options by Candeo pursuant to section 2.2(a) and 2.2(b)) shall be reserved by 
2S 

Can-Cal as working capital; ftlrther. the Company has agreed to pay an additional $375,000 for 
26 

Plaintiffs' attomeys• fees and expenses, which will be paid exclusively with Can-Cal common 
27 

stock at a price ofU .S. SO.I 7 per share, plus rights to shares as follows: once the Can-Cal common 
28 

shares trade for 4s continuous business days after the Effective Date, if the average closing trading 
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1 
(a)o _SO% of monies advanced by Candeo for a reclamation permit to be used by botho

2 
Can-Cal and Candeo ($65,274.19), for a total of$32,637.09; 

3 
(b) Reimbursement of 4/S of the the professional services and cosis of Holland & Hart, 

4 

s 

LLP, plus expert witness fees incurred in this action ($2.Sl-,228.00), for a total of $200,982.40; 

( c)o Reimbmsement of professional fees and costs incurred in this action by Can-Calo
6 

and advanced on its behalf in the amountof$43,019.7S; 
7 

(d)o Funds in the amount of $180,071.03-advanced by Michael Hogan to and on behalfo
8 

of Can-Cal before and during this litigation; and 
9 

. (e) Funds in the amowit of $5,000.00 advanced by Defendant Rona!d Schinnourwhlle 
10 

a director of Can-Cal. 
11 

The Reimbursables set forth in this section 3.4 shall be paid by Can-Cal only upon exercise 
12 

of Option 2 and only upon and to the extent of receipt of.payment by Can-Cal from Candeo for 
13 

material purchased by Candeo under Option 2. In the event that Candeo does not exercise Option 
14 

2 within 365 days after the Effective Date, or in the event that Candeo does not make payment to 
15 

Can-Cal for the purchase of said material within thirty (30) days after exercise of Option 2, the 
16 

Defendants shall forever waive and release any and all claim of reimbursement from Can-Cal for 
17 

18 

repayment of the foregoing Reimbursables. Any and all other olahns not expressly set forth herein 

are waived and released. 
19 

4.o Approval and Noticeo
20 

4.1 Promptly after execution of this Stipulation, PlaJntlffs shall submit this Stipulation 
21 

·o
22 

together with its exlu"bits to the Court and shall apply for entry of an order (the "Preliminary 

Approval Order"), substantially In the form of Exhibit C attached hereto, requesting, Inter alia: (i) 
23o

24 

2S 

preliminary approval of the Settlement set forth in this Stipulation; (ii) approval of the foan and 

manner of providing notice of the Settlement to Current Can-Cal Shareholders; and (iii) a date for 

26 

the Settlement Heating. 

4.2 Notice to Current Can-Cal Shareholders shall consist of a Notice of Proposed 
27 

Settlement and Settlement Hearing (''Notice, and Summary Notice of Proposed Settlement and 
28 

Settlement Hearing ("Summary Notice''), which includes the general tenns of the Settlement set' 
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1 

2 

3 

4 

s 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

2S 

26 

27 

28 

·eShares (U.S. $0.17) will be reduced accordingly (but in no event to less than U.S. $.06 per share)e

and additional shares (as applicable) wi11 be issued to Plaintiffs' Counsel in respect of such rights.e

A Final Judgment and Order of Dismissal substantially in the form of Exhibit F attached heretoe

will be entered dismissing with prejudice the Derivative Action and a similar order shall be enterede

in the Canadian Action pursuant to.Section 6 below.e

3. Releases 

the Released Claims against the Released Persons. 

3.1 Upon the Effective Date, .the Releasing Persons shall be deemed to have, and by 

operation of the Judgment shall have, fully, finally, and fOICVef released, relinquished, and 

discharged the Released Claims (including Unlmown Claims) against the Released Persons. 

Nothing herein shall in any way impair or restrict the rights of any Party to enforce the terms of this 

Stipulation or the Judgment. Releasing Persons shall be deemed to have, and by operation of the 

Judgment shall have, covenanted not to sue any Released Person with respect to any Released 

Claims and shall be pennanently barred and enjoined from instituting, commencing or pros�uting 

3.2 Except as set forth in Paragraphs 3,3 and 3.4 below, upon the Effective Date, each 

of the Released Pem>ns shall be deemed to have i\Jlly, finally, and forever released, relinquished, 

and discharged all current and fonner Plaintif&, Plaintiffs' Counsel, and Can-Cal from all claims 

(including Unlatown Claims), arising out at relating to, or in connection with ·the institution, 

prosecution. assertion, settlement. or resolution or the Derivative Actio� the Canadian Action or 

the Released Claims. Nothing herein shall in any way impair or restrict the rights of any Party to 

enforce the tenns of this Stipulation or the Judgment 

3.3 Nothing in this Stipulation or in Paragraph 3.2 above constitutes or reflects a 

waiver or release of any rights or olaiins of Defendants against their insurers, or their insurers' 

subsidiaries, predecessors, successors, assigns, affiliates, or representatives, including, but not 

limited to, any rights or claims ofDefendants under any directors' and officers' liability insurance 

or other applicable insurance coverage maintained by the Company. 

3.4 Nothing in this Stipulation or in Paragraph 3.2 above constitutes or retlects a 

waiver or release of any of the following rights or claims (collectively the "Reimbursablesj: 
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1 
its rights or comply with its obligations under the Second Amended MSA (except in enforcing thee

2 Second Amended MSA); and (iii) increase its voting capital stock to more than 100.000.000 votese
3 

in �e aggri,gate. 
4 

Candeo and Defendants shall cause to be granted to a designee of tho Plaintiffs a 
s 

7-year irrevocable proxy, coupled-with-an-interest, to vote at least 20% of the ownership of suche
6 

parties in Can-Cal on all matters except for "Supermajority Matters," as that term is defined in thee
7 

Certificate of Amendment of Articles of Incorporation of the Company filed with the Nevada 
8 

Secretary of State, as set forth in Exhibit B-2 attached hereto. 
9 

The current Can-Cal Board of Directors shall resign and the new Board of Directors 
10 

shall be appointed.and will be e9mprised of three to flve members to be mutually approved of by 
11 

the Plaintiffs and Candeo. 
12 

Candeo, at its cost (without credit therefor to any other payments hereunder), shall 
13 

complete payment for audit fees for 2015, 2016. and 2017 and to bring all SEC filings current 
14 

(collectively, the 

Candeo on a 50-S0 basis. 

2.4 

"Securities Compliance Work'1. 
15 

Any potential claim by Good Corp. would be jointly opposed by Can-Cal and 
16 

Candeo and the costs and liabilities (if any) with respect thereto would be shared by Can-cal and 
17 

18 
Settlement Consideration 

,19 
The $375,000 proceeds from the Initial Settlement Payment to can:.Cal to be 

20 
applied: $100,000 to Plaintiffs' Counsel as cost rehnbtll.'Sement; $225,000 to Plaintiff's Counsel as 

21 
legal fees; and $S0,000 to be retained as working capital by Can-Cal together with itse

22 
currently-held funds. Any additional amounts paid to Can-Cal as a result of the exercise of the 

23 
options by Candeo pursuant to secti� 2.2(a)and 2.2(b) above shall be retained as working capital 

·24 
by Can--Cal. An additional $375,000 of legal fees to Plaintiffs' Counsel will be paid exclusively 

25 
with shares of common stock of Can-Cal at a price of U.S. $0.17 per share ("Can-Cal Shares"), 

26 
plus rights to shares of common stock as follows: once the Can-Cal cpmmon shares trade for 45 

27 
continuous business days following the Effective D�, if the average closing trading price thereofe

28 
is less than U.S. $0.17 per share during such 45-day period then the price per share of the Can-Cale
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11 

21 

instead be Candeo's), as more fully set forth in Exhibit A hereto. 

I 

Candeo to report quarterly upon its activities (including any agreements entered into) and 
12 

to share with Can-cal all information that it shares with its stockholders as and when seni to 
i3 

Candeo's stockholders; provided, however, that prior to any disclosure of any information by 
14 

Can-Cal relative to Candeo, Can-Cal shall consult with Candeo and provide Candeo with a
'. .

IS 
reasonable opportunity to comment on such disclosure. 

16 
Candeo,to have a right of first refusal with respect to Can-Cal's sale of the Pisgah Property. 

·11e
In all events, any transfer or hypothecation of the Pisgah Property will require the transferee or 

18e
lenderto offer to Candeo a customary Stibotdination Non-Disturbance and AttommentAgreement 

19 
in a fonn reasonably sat1sfactory t.o Candeo. 

20 

1 

2 

3 

4 

s 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

material acquired by Candeo as �imum Purchases is acquired for resale to a third-party on an 

arm's-length basis and that except for the Minimuin Purchases there shall be no sales of material to 

Candeo or any affiliate thereof. 

All minin& material removal, and other activities of any kind or nature to extract material 

shall be performed and paid for by Candeo, with notice therel>f to Can-Cal, with the Amended 

MSA (i.e., 1n the Second Amended MSA) to be modified incidental thereto (i.e., insurance 

obligations will be Candeo's, Candeo to secure requisite pennits and all other governmental
• 

approvals, at its cost but with both Candeo· and Can-Cal both named thereon, and all other 

applicable obligations that were to be those of Can-Cal under the MSA and Amended MSA to 

Candeo cannot assign or hypothecato its rights without the prior written consent of 

Can-Cal, whioh consent shall not be unreasonably withheld 
22 

To the extent that the foregoing description conflicts with the Second Amended MSA, the 
23 

actual terms of the Second Amended MSA shall control and govem the Parties. 
24 

2.3 Can-Cal Corporate Oovemance Reforms 
2S 

The Articles of Incorporation of Can-Cal will be amended to require a 
26 

supennajority vote of at least 900/4 of1he outstanding shares, as set forth in Exhibit B-1 attached 
27 

hereto, for any determination by Can-.Cal to: (i) petition for bankruptcy protection; (it) modify �e 
28 

Second Amended �A or otherwise interfere or negatively affect the ability of Candeo to exercise 
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1 

2 

3 

4 

s 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

per ton: 

25 

26 

27 

28 

used for any purpose. The term shall be limited to 20 years, subject to renewal rights for up to 4 

separate 5 year tenns in favor of Candeo, subject to �mpletion by Candeo of specified 

performance criteria. Can-Cal shall receive from Candeo quarterly 20% of gross revenues (the 

"ORl"); provided, however, that such 20% is on an arm's-length basis, with no sales to Candeo or 

its affiliates except for "Minimum Purchases,'� as set forth below. Can-Cal to have customary 
. 

. 

audit rights of Candeo. Without regard to any pUl'Chase of material prior to the Effective Date (as 

defined below), which purchases are not subject to the ORI, Candeo shall purchase the following 

minimum amotmts of material (the "Minimum Purchases") at the rate of$1S .per ton with Candeo 

to pay (except for the purchases specified in subsection 2.2(a) below, for which the·ORJ; shall not 

be paid) the ORI on the positive difference, if any, of the price thereof sold to thtrd-parties less $15 

a.o 25,000 tons ($375,000) within 5 calendar days after the Effective Date of theo
Settlemen1t which amount shall be deposited into.the Trust account'ofCandeo'so
Counsel and then transferred to Sklar Williams PLLC as receiving agent -foro
Plaintiffs' Counsel, within ten (10) days after the Effective Date (the sale(s)o
_provided for under this Subsection (a) the "Initial Settlement Payment'); pluso
an option to purchase up to an additional 20,000 tOl1S (payable to the Company
up to $300,000) exercisable at any time within 180 days after the Effective Dateo
("Option .. l "); and only upon the prior ekeroise and payment in full of Optiono
1, an option to purchase an additional 40,000 tons (payable to the Company upo
to $600,000) of Material exercisable by Candeo within 365 days following theo
Effective Date ("Option 2");o

b.o 10,000 tons ($150,000) annually for each of the three years following theo
Effective Date, unless Option 1 is not exercised, in which case the tint 10,000
tons hereunder must be Purchased and paid for by Candeo within 180 days ofo
the Effective Date; ando

c.o In respect of eaeh year after three years from the Effective Date, the annualo
Minimum Purchases shall increase (starting with the increase at theo
commencement of the fourth year from the Effective Date) annually by theo
increase in the CPLo

The material acquired by Candeo Wlder the Mmfmum Purchases may be left "in-place" for 

subsequent removal upon notification from Candeo to Can-Cal as set forth in the Second Amended 

MSA and the Material Storage Ucense Agreement, copies of which are attached hereto as Bxln"bit 

A and Exhibit A-1. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary, the Parties aclmowledge that all 
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1 
to tho Released Claims, but that it ls the intention of the Parties, all current or former directors of 

2 

3 

4 

s 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

Can-Cal and all Cunent Can-Cal Shareholders by operation of law to completely, fully, finally, 

and forever extinguish any and all Released Claims, known or unknown, suspected or 

unsuspected. which now exist or heretofore exi'sted in either of the Derivative Action or the 

Canadian Action save and except for any claims which may arise after the effective date in 

connection with a failure by any of the Parties failing to comply with the tenns of this Stipulation 

and Settlement. The Parties acknowledge, and all the current or former-directors of Can-Cal, and 

the Current Can..Cal Shareholders by operation of law shall be deemed to have aclmowledged, that 

the· Inclusion of "Unknown Claims" in the definition of "Released Claims" wa., separately 

bargained for and is a material element of tho Settlement. 

2.d Terms of Settlement and Settlement Considerationd
12 

13 

14 

IS 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

2.1 AP, a result of the flilng, prosecution, and settlement of the Derivative Action andd

the Canadian Action, the Company has already adopted and implemented and/or will adopt and 

implement the Second Amended MSAt attached as Exlu'blt A hereto and the corporate resolutions 

and amendments to the Articles of Incorporation and other corporate governance refotm measures 

described in Exhibit B �ereto within thirty (30) calendar days after the Effective Date of the 

Settlement. The Amended MSA and the corporate governance refonn measures were jointly 
· 
developed and negotiated by the Parties through Counsel. Without admitting any wrongdoing, 

Can-Cal, through its Board, acknowle�ges that the securing of the Second Amended MSA 

attached as Exhibit A and the cmporate govemance reform measures attached as Exhibit B confer 

substantial benefits upon the Company and its shareholders. Can-Cal, through its Board, also 

acknowledges that 1he prosecution and sett1!Went of the Derivative Action and the resolution of 

the Canadian Action were substantial and material factors in the Board's decision to enter into the 
24 

2S 
Second Amended MSA attached as Exhibit A and adopt and:implement the cotporate govemance. 

reform measures identified in Exhibit B. 
26 

27 

28 

2.2 The Second Amended MSA shall be modified as follows: Candeo to have rights to 

. the Pisgah Material for agricultural pmposes only (i.e., both commeroial end retail); provided, 

howev�, that material previously sold or sold as Minimum Purchases (as defined below) may be 
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1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6.a

7 

8 

9 

1.0 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

adequacy, fairness, and reasonableness of the Settlement pursuant to NRCP 23.1 and determine 

whether � issue the JudP.,ent. 

1.24 "Can-Cal" or the 11Company11 means nominal defendant Can-Cal Raources, Ltd., a 
. . . 

Nevada corporation, and its affiliates, subsidiaries, predecesso� successors, and assigns. 

1.25 11Derivative Action" means the above-captioned consolidated state shareholder 
.a

derivative action pending in this Court; captioned Ronald D. Sloan, et aL v. Can- Cal Resources,a

Ltd, et al, Case No. A-14-701465-B. 

1.26 "Stipulation" means this stipulation and agreement of settlement 
·1.27 11S�ary Notice" means the Summary Notice of Proposed Settlement and· 

Settlement Hearing, substantially in the form attached hereto es Exhibit E. 

1.28 11Unknown Claims" means any and all Released Clahns that any of the current or 

former Pl�tlffs, Defendants, Can-Cal, the current or former directors of Can-Cal, or the Current 

Can-Cal Shareholders do not know or suspect to exist In his, her, or its favor at the time of the 

release of the Released Persons. With respect to any and all of the Released Clakns, the Parties 

agree that upon the Effective Date, the Parties shall have. and each of the current or former 

directors of Can-Cal, and the Current Can-Cal Shareholders shall be deemed to have, and by 

operation of. the Judgment shall have, expressly waived. relinquished and released any and all 

provisions, rights and benefits conferred by or under Califomia Cm1 Code section 1S42 or any law 

or principle of common law of the United States or any state or tenitory of the United States or any 

foreign nation which is similar, comparable or equivalent to California Civil Code section 1S42, 

which provides: 

A GENERAL RELEASE DOES NOT EXTEND TO c�s WHICH THE 
CREDITOR DOES NOT KNOW OR SUSPBCTBXISTlNHIS OR BER FAVOR 
AT THE TIME OF BXECUTlNGnIE RELEASE, WlilCHIF KNOWNBYBJM 
OR HER. MUST HAVE MATERIALLY AFFBCTBD HIS OR BER 
SETILBMENT WITH THE DEBTOR. 

The Parties aclaiowledge, and all the current or former directors of Can--Cal, and all the Current 

Can-Cal Shareholders by operation of law shall be deemed to have aclmowledged, that they may 

discover facts in additi�n to or different from those now known or believed to be true with respect 
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1 
trusts, predecessors, successors, and assigns or other individual or entity in which any Individual 

2 
Defendant has a controlling interest, and each and all-of their respective past and present officers, 

3 
directors, employees, agents, affiliates, parents, subsidiaries, divisions, attorneys, accountants, 

4 
auditors, advisors, insurers, coinsurers, re-insurers, heirs, executors, personal representatives, 

s 
estates, administrators, trusts, predecessors, successors, and assigns; and (iii) with regard to the 

6 
Corporate Defendants and Can-Cal, all past or present agents, officers, directors, attomeys, 

7 
accountants, auditors, advisors, insurers, co-insurers, .reinsurers, partners, controlling 

8 
shareholders, joint venturers, related or affiliated entities, advisors, employees, affiliates, 

9 
predecessors, successors, parents, subsidiaries, insurers. and assigns for Can-Cal or the Corporate 

10 
Defendants. 

11 
1.19 "Released Claims11 means any and all suits, claims, debts, demands, controversies, 

12 
obligations, losses, rights, liabilities, and causes of action of every nature, including both known 

13 
and Unknown Claims (as defined in paragraph 1.28 below), whether arising under federal, state, 

14 
common or foreign Jaw, at law or in equi�, that were asserted or could have been asserted, directly 

1S 
or derivatively on behalf of Can-Cal, by Plaintiffs as shareholders or by any other Cment Can-Cal 

16 
Shareholder, or by Defendants, Can-Cal, or the current or former directors of Can-cat, that arise 

17 
out of or relate to: (i) the allegations � in the Derivative Action; (ii) the allegations asserted 

18 
in the Canadian Action; or (lii) the Settlement, except for any claims to enforce the Settlement. 

19 
1.20 "Released Persons" means each and all of the current and· former Plaintiffs, the 

20 
Defendants, ean .. eat, the current and former directors of Can-Cal, and their Related Persons. 

21 
1.21 "Releasing Persons" means Plaintiffs (both individually and derivatively on behalf 

22 
of Can-Cal), all other Current Can-Oll Shareholders, Plaintiffs' Counsel, Defendants, Defendants' 

23 
Counsel, Can-Oll, and all other current and fonner directors of Can-Cal and any of their respective 

24 
heirs, executors, administrators, estates, predecessors, successors, or assigns (or any Person 

2S 
claiming by, through, ln the right of'; ot an behalf of them or the Company by subrogation, 

26 
assignment, or otherwise). 

27 
I .22 "Settlement" means the settlement contempfated by this Stipulation. 

28 
1.23 "Settlement Hearing" means the bearing at which the Court will review the 
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24 

1 
Rachey, Sam Brounstein, Sandra Jansen, Brian .Jansen, Rhonda Kim Nichols, Scott Nichols, 

2 
Carmen Adair, Krista Schofield, Mark Bratseth, Rose Trust II. Cliff Olson, Natalie Mayzel, David 

3 
Jesske, Thornton D. Barnes, James Has;on, Sandra Hasen, Eddie Guillet and Ryan Guillet. 

4 
1.16 "Plaintiffs' Counsel" means Sklar Williams PLLC and William R.. Pishman.2 

s 
1.17 ''Preliminary Approval Ordor11 means an order entered by the·Court, substantially in 

6 
the form attached hereto as Exhibit C, setting forth the date for a Settlement Hearing on the 

7 
proposed Settlement, directing notice thereof and preliminarily determining, for purposes of the 

8 
Settlement only, that the Derivative Action is properly maintained as a shareholder derivative 

9 
action onbehaif of the Company. 

10 
1.18 "Related Personsn means: (l) all current or former Plaintiffs and their spouses, 

1:1 
·smarital comm�ties, immediate family members, heirs, executors, personal representatives,s

12 
estates, administrators, trusts, predecessors, successors, and assigns or other Individual or entity ins

13 
which l\llY Plaintiff has a controlling interest, and each and all of their respective past and presents

14 
officers, directors, employees, agents, affiliates, parents, subsidiaries, divisions, attomeys,s

15 
accountants, auditors, advisors. insuterS, coinsurers, re-insurers, heirs, executors, personals

16 
representatives, estates, administrators, trusts, ptedeeessors, successors, and assigns; (ii) withs

17 
regard to each Individual Defendant, the Individual Defendant's spouses, marital communities,s

18 
immediate family members, heirs, executors, personal representatives, estates, administrators,s

19 

20 

21 

22 2 On June 26, 2014, a motion to associate William R. Fishman as counsel for Plaintiffs was filed in 
the Derivative Action. Thereafter, Defendants did not oppose the motion to associate counsel ands23 on July 16, 2014, Defendants removed the case to the United atatesDistrict Court for the District 
ofNevada (ccFederal Court.,). While the case was pending in Federal Comt this Coµrt �ted the
unopposed motion to associate William R. Fishman as counsel for Plaintiffs by minute order dated 
A� 1, 2014. However, no formal order was ever entered regardin1 Mr. Fishman's admissions25 pro hie vice to practice in Nevada for purposes of this case only (� hac vice admission") 
because the ease remained pending fn Federal Court until it was temanded to this Court on Augusts26 8, 201S. Nevertheless, each year since 2014, Mr. Fishman has been Invoiced by and has �cf the 
Nevada State Bar the annual fee for his pro hac vice admission in this case. Accordmgl7, thes27 Parties hereby _stiP.ulate and� that William R. Fishman bas been admitted pro hac vtce as 
counsel for Plain�ffs in this case since this Court's minute order on August 11 201� and that orders28 . is confirmed and ratified nunc pro tune. 
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1 
expiration of tho time for the filing or noticing of any appeal or petition for certiorari from the 

2 
order (or, if the date for taking an appeal or seeking review of the order shall be extended beyond 

3 
this time by order of the issuing court, by operation of Jaw or otherwise, or if such extension is 

4 
i:equested, the date of expiration of any extension if any appeal or review is not sought), without 

s 
any such filing or noticing being made. However, any appeal or proceeding seeking subsequent 

6 
judicial review pertaining solely to the Court's award of attorneys' fees or expenses shall not in any 

7 
way delay. or affect the time set forth herein for the Judgment to become Final or otherwise 

preclude the Judgment from becoming Final. 
9 

1.9 11Indivfdual Defendants" means defendants William J. Hogan, Thompson 
10 

MacDonald, Ronald Schinnour and Michael Hogan. 
11 

1.10 "Corpomte Defendantsst means Candeo Lava Products, Inc. and Futureworth 
12 

Capital Corp. 
13 

1.11 "Judgment" means the proposed judgment and order of dismissal with prejudice to 
14 

be enteled by the Court upon approval of the Settlement, substantially in the form attached hereto 
1S 

as Exhibit F. 
16 

1.12 ''Notice" !!leans the long fotm Notico of Proposed Settlement and Settlement 
17 .. 

Hearing, substantially in the form attached hereto as Exhibit D. 
18 

1.13 ,"Parties" means the current and fonnor Plaintiffs In the Derivative Actio� the 
19 

parties mthe Canadian Action, the Individual Defendants, the Corporate Defendants, Can-Cal and 
20 

any current or former directors of Can-Cal. 
21 

1.14 ''Person" means an individual, corporation, limited liability corporation, 
22 

. professional corporation, partnership, limited · partnership, limited liability partnership, 
23 

association, joint stock company, estate, legal representative, � unincorporated association. 
24 

government or any political subdivision or agency thereof and any business or legal entity and 
25 

tliefr spouses, heirs, predecessors, successors, representatives, or assignees. 
26 

1.15 11Plaintiffs11 means Ronald D. Sloan, Robin Schwmz, Gary Collins, Jill Brown, Lark 
27 

Terrell. Daniel R. Sloan, Betty Ann Sloan, Pearl Kirk, N. 0. Wait, La.try Orwick,Patricia.LaSalll\ 
28 

Brian Wolfe, Stuart R. Cameron, Hugo Bondi, Joan Bratseth; P.A. Bratseth, Derek Milani, Dean 
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1 
for the Parties, in consideration of the benefits flowing to the Parties from, and as descnoed In, 1he 

Settlement,that all Released Claims shall be and hereby are fully and finally compromised, settled, 

released, and discontinued, and that the Derivative Action and the Canadian Action shall be 

dismissed with prejudice as to all Released Persons upon the terms and conditions set forth herein. 
s 

1.e Certain Definitionse
6 

As used in this Stipuladon, the following tenns havo the meanings specified below:e
7 

1.1 "Comtn means the Eighth Judicial District Court of the State of Nevada in and fore

Clark County. 
9 

1.2 "Cmrent Can--Cal Sbareholder(s)" means any Person who, as a !('COrd or beneficial 
10 

owner, owned Can-Cal common stock or any other security of the Company as of the date of the 
11 

execution of this Stipulation and who continues to hold their Can-Cal common stock or other 
12 

security of the Company as of the date of the Settlement Hearing. 
' 13 

1.3 "Defendants" means the Individual Defendants, the Corpomte Defendants and 
14 

Can-Cal. 
15 

1.4 11Defendants' Counsel" means Holland & Hart and Jones Lovelock. 
16 

1.S "'Derivative Action" means this Derivative Action styled as Ronald�loan, et al v. 
17 

Can-Cal Rssources, Ltd., Case No. A-14-70146S-B. 
18 

1.6 "Effective Date" means the date upon which the settlement shall have become 
19 

effective as set forth in Paragraph 7.1 and for the avoidance of doubt, is Intended to be construed as 
20 

coterminous with the "Start Date" as defined in the Second Amended Material Supply Agreement 
21 

between Candee and Can-Cal. 
22 

1.7 "Fee and Expense Amount'' shall have the meaning set forth In Paragraph 5.1. 
23 

1.8 "Final:" with respect to a court order, including, but not limited to tho Judgment, 
24 

means the later of: (i) if there is an appeal from a court order, the date of final affirmance on appeal 
25 and the expiration of the time for any :further judicial review whether by appeal reconsideration, or 
26 

a petition for a writ of certiorari and, if certiorari is.granted, the date of final afl:irmance of the order 
27 

following review pursuant to the grant; or (ii) the date of final dismissal of any appeal from the 
28 

order or the final dismissal of any proceeding on certiorari to review the order; or (tii) the 



1 
statements, acts, or omissions alleged, or that could have been alleged in the Derivative Action. 

2 
Defendants assert that they have satisfied their fiduciary duties and have acted in good faith and in 

3 
the best interest of Can-Cal and its shareholders at all relevant times. Each of the Defendants have 

4 
entered into this Stipulation and Settlement solely to avoid the continuing additional expense, 

s 
inconvenience, and distraction of the Derivative Action and the Canadian Action and to mitigate 

6 
therisks and uncertainty inherent in any legal proceedings. Each of the Defendants believe that it is 

7 
desirable and .beneficial that the Derivative Action and the Canadian :Action be settled in the 

8 
manner and upon the terms and conditions set forth in this Stipulation because, among other 

9 
things, it will allow the Company to conclude these legal proceedings on terms that are just and 

10 
reasonable, including the amendment of the Amended MSA to give Can .. Cal substantial equity 

11 
t\tnds in a short period of time, the completion of required audits for 201 S, 2016, and 2017, which 

12 
may enable Can-Cal's stock to continue to be registered with• the SEC and resolve the SEC 

13 
Administrative Proceeding (which filing was submitted o� March 12, 2018), the adoption and 

14 
maintenance of corporate goyemance measures, including selection of a new Board of Directors, 

15 
that the current Board of Can-Cal has determined, in its business judgment, serve Can-Cal's and its 

16 
shareholders' best interests. Further, Can-Cal through its Board, acknowledges that the Settlement 

17 
is fair, reasonable, and adequate, and in the best interests of Can-Cal and its shareholders� StiU 

18 
further, the Corporate Defendants believe this Stipulation and Settlement will enable each of them 

19 
to carry on their respective business entetprises without interference. 

20 
Neither this Stipulation, nor any of its tenns or provisions, nor entry of the Judgment, nor 

21 
any document or exhibit referred or attached to this Stipulation1 nor any action taken to carry out 

22 
th.ls Stipulation, is, may be construed as, or may be used as evidence of the validity of any of the 

23 
Released Claims or an admission by or against each of the Defendants or any of the Plaintiffs, 

24 
including claims made in the Canadian Action against Plaintiffs, of any fault, wrongdoing, or 

2S 
concession of liabWty whatsoever. 

26 
IV� TERMS OF STIPULATION AND AGREEMENT OF SETTLEMENT 

27 
NOW THEREFORE, IT IS STIPULATEI) AND AGREED, subject to approval by the 

28 
Court pursuant to Nevada Rule of Civil Procedure 23.1, by and between the undeaigned counsel 
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1 

2 

3 

Counsel regarding the specific facts of the cases, the perceived strengths and wealmeues of the 

cases, and other issues in an effort to facilitate negotiations and fact gathering; (vii) evaluating the 

merits of, and Defendants' potential liability in connection with the Derivative Action; (viii) 
4 

s 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

revie�g and analyzing thousands of pages of confidential document discovery produced by 

Defendants; (ix) reviewing and analyzing tens of thousands of pages of relevant documents in the 

Derivative Action and evaluating the merits thereof; (x) submitting numerous correspondence and 

other documents to the SEC end filing formal motions to intervene and responses in the SEC 

Administrative Proceeding involving Can-Cal to protect the stockholders' interests; (xi) 

submitting comprehensive briefs prior to two separate Judicial Settlement-Conferences, outlining 

their position, and Plaintiffs' claims ·in the Derivative Action; (xh") participating In two (2) 

in-person Judicial Settlement Conferences with Judge Hardy and numerous meetings in tho 

Derivative Action; (xiii) assisting Canadian counsel in filing a defense and motion to adjourn in 

the Canadian Action; and (xiv) negotiating this Settlement with Defendants over the course of four 

years, culminating at a day-long, in-person meeting on November 13, 2017 and continuing 

1brough preparation of comprehensive settlement documents through March, 2018. 

Based on Plaintiffs' Counsel's thorough review and analysis of the relevant facts and 

difficult circumstances, allegations, defenses. and controlling legal principles, Plaintiffs' Counsel 

believe that the· Settlement set forth in this Stipulation is fair, reasonable, and adequate, and 

confers substantial benefits upon Can-Cal �d its shareholders. Based . on thoir evaluation,n

Plaintiffs and Plaintiffs' Counsel have determined that the Settlement Is in the best interests of 
21 

22 

23 

Can-Cal and its shareholders and have agreed to fully settle the Derivative Action and completely 

resolve the Canadian. Action upon the tenns and subject to the conditions set forth herein. 

DL DEFENDANTS' DENIUS OF WRONGDOING AND LIABILlTY· 
24 

25 

26 

Each of•the Defendants ha� denied and continue to deny each and all of the claims, 

contentions, and allegations made against them or that could have been made against them in the 

Derivative Action and each of them believe the Derivative Action has no merit and that the claims 
27 

28 
in the Canadian Action do have merit. Each of the Defendants have expressly denied and continuo 

to deny all charges of �ngdoing or liability against them arising out of any of tho conduct, 
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1 
JI. PLAINTIFFS' CLAIMS .AND THE BENEFITS OFTBE SEITLEMENT 

2 
Plaintiffs believe that the Derivative Action has sub,tantial merit and that the Canadian 

3 
Action is without merit. Plaintiffs' entry Into this Stipulation and Settlement is not intended to be 

4 
and shall not be construed as an admission or concession conceming the relative strength or meri, 

s 
of the claims alleged jn the Derivative Action or the Canadian Action. Plaintiffs and Plaintiffs' 

6 
Counsel also acknowledge the significant risk, expense, and length· of continued proceedings 

7 
necessary to defend the Canadian Action and prosecute 1he Derivative Action against Defendants 

8 
through 1rial and through possible appeals. ·Plaintiffs' Counsel have also taken ihto account the 

9 
substantial risks, costs, and delays involved in complex shareholder derivative litigation, 

10 
generally, as well as the unique challenges presented by the Derivative Action and the defense of 

11 
the Canadian Action, including pleading fraud with the requisite particularity, and the significant 

12 
challenges of meeting the burdens of proof applicable to the underlying claims and of defeating the 

13 
available affirmative defenses, inoluding the business Judgment rule and the exculpation and 

14 
indemnification rights. afforded the Individual Defendants pursuant to Nevada Law under NRS 

15 
Chapter 78 and the Articles and By-Laws of Can-Cal. 

16 
Plaintiffs' Couosefhave conducted an extensive investigation over the course of three 

17 
yem, including: (i) reviewing ean .. CaJ's press releases, public statements, SEC tilings, and expert 

18 
witnesses' reports about the Company and the potential economic value of the Pisgah Material; (ii) 

19 
reviewing Confidential information and test result and reports about the Pi$gah Material and its 

20 
potential commercial uses and value; (iii) researchlng the applicable law with respect to the claims 

21 
alleged in the Derivativo Action and the Canadian Action and the potential claims and defenses 

22 
thereto; (iv) preparing and filing the derivative complaint and numerous Motions in the Derivative 

23 
Action and the Canadian Action, including defending against the removal of the Derivative Action 

24 
to Federal Court in Nevada and its subsequent remand to state court, multiple motions to dismiss 

25 
the Derivative Action, a partially successful motion to c_ompel an annual meeting. of the 

26 
stockholders of Can-Cal, a partially successful· motion to compel discovery, and numerous 

27 
communications and letters regarding discovery matters and disputes; (v) conducting damages 

28 
analyses and expert witness analyses; (vi) participating in informal conferences with Defendants' 
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3 

4 
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6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

-11 

12 

13 

14 

1S 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

i1 

28 

damages. 

adequate. 

C.e Settlement Effortse

_ During the pendency of the Derivative Action and both before and after the filing bf the 

Canadian Action, the Parties have conducted extended anus-length, good faith settlement 

discussions. On August 12, 2016, and December 2s 2016, counsel for the parties in the Derivative 

Action participated in two formal Settlement Conferences before the Honorable Joseph P. Hardy 

("Judge Hardy") of this Court, to assist them in exploring a potential negotiated resolution of the 

claims in the Derivative Action. To mcllitate a productive Settlement Conference, the Parties 

submitted extensive Confidential Settlement Conference Statements and Supplemental Settlement 

Conference Statements to Judge Hanly. 

Subsequent to the August and December, 2016 Settlement Conferences, counsel for the 

Parties hereto have conducted substantial communications and arm's-length negotiations ln an 

ongoing effort to reach a settlement of the Derivative Action and the subsequently tiled Canadian 

Action, including agreement on substantive coiporate governance changes for 1he Company, the 

replacement of 1:Jie existing Board of Directors with a new Board of D�ctors agieed upon by 

Plaintiffs and Defendants, an Amendment of the Amended MSA on favorable terms to Can-Cal 

which are agreeable to Candeo, the payment of agreed amounts of revenue to Can-Cal through the 

purchase of set amounts of Pisgah Material by Candeo by certain deadlines, the payment of 

attorneys' fees and costs in the Derivative Action, the filing by Can-Cal of up to date audits and 

other documents for the years 2015, 2016, and through third quarter 2017 with the United States 

Seeurities and Exchange Commission (''SEC") (which filing was submitted on·March 12, 2018) 

and the dismissals with prejudice of both th& Derivative Action and the Canadian Action. The 

Parties' representatives and their counsel met for an entire day on November 13, 2017, to work out 

the details of this settlement which were finalized through subsequent discussions and 

correspondence through to the date of this Stipulation. The Parties believe that a settlement at this 

juncture on the terms and on the conditions set forth in this Stipulation is fair, teasonable, and 
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6 

7 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

IS 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

2S 

26 

27 

28 

enrichment, abuse of control. gross mismanagelnent, and taking of corporate opportunity relating 

to the events alleg<;d in the Complaint. The Derivative•·Action seeks compensatory damages, 
•' . 

punitive damages, coiporate goyemance refotms, restitution and disgorgement of Defendants' 

alleged profits, equitable and/or h\junctive relief, and costs and attomeys' fees. Plaintiffs' 

:fundamental claim is that Individual Defendants William Hogan, Ronald Schinnour, Michael 

Hogan and Thompson MacDonald took from Can-Cal a corporate opportunity and en�ed in 

self-d�ling by ·entering �to favorable contracts for their personal benefit, awarding themselves 

excessive compensation through stock and taking from the company its main corporate asset and 

opportunity. the development of its Pisgah Material, located at the Pisgah Property. Plaintiffs 

allege tlie Individual Defendants conspired to transfer the benefit of that corporate opportunity and 

asset to former -Chairman of the Board William Hogan and Candeo Lava Products, Inc. 

("Candeo") through a Material Supply Agreelllent ("MSA j and an Amended Material Supply 

Agreement ("Amended MSA'? entered into by and between Can-Cal and Candeo. Defen�ts 

have denied all allegations of wrongdoing; claims of liability, and damages. 

B. Canadian Actiono

On or about January. 24, 2017, the Corporate Defendants and William I. Hogan,o

collectively, filed a Statement of Claim commencing an action in the Court of Queen's Bench of 

Alberta, Calgary, Canada, naming• as defendants 36 of the 40 original individual Plaintiffs in the 

Nevada Derivative Action (the ''Canadian Action"). The Canadian Action alleges that the prlmary 

purpose of the Derivative Action was a civil conspiracy among the Derivative Action Plaintiffs to 

Wllawfblly Interfere with the Amended MSA and Candeo's research, development and verification 

of the Pisgah Material. The Canadian Action also alleges that the individual Plainti:ft Ronald D. 

Sloan, orohestrated and authorized the intimidation of individuals away from acting as directors of 

Can-Cal for the benefit of that company and Candeo. The Corporate Defendants and William J. 

Hogan seek general damages of $3,187,S00.00, consequential damages for loss of business 

opportunities in an amount to be proven at trial, punitive damages in an amount to .be proven at 

trial and costs and other relief as deemed appropriate by the Court in the Canadian Action. The 

defendants in the Canadian Action deny all allegations of wrongdoing, claims of liability and 
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1 
STIPOLATIQN 

2 
This stipulation and agreement of settlement (the 11Stipulation.") is made and entered into 

3 
by and among the following Parties 1: (1) Plaintiffs Ronald D. Slpan, Robin Schwmz, Gary °Collins, 

4 
Jill Brown, Lark Terrell, Daniel R. Sloa14 Betty Aon Sloan. Pearl Kirk, N. 0. Wait, Larry Orwick, 

5·e Patricia La Salle, Brian Wolfe, Stuart R. Cameron, Hugo Bondi, Joan Bratseth, P. A. Bratseth,e
6 

Derek Milani, Dean Rachey, Sam Brounstein, Sandra Jansen, Brian Jansen, Rhonda Kim Nichols, 
7 

Scott Nichols, Carmen Adair, Krista Schofield, Marie Bratseth, Rose Tnist ll, Cliff Olson. Natalie 
8 

Mayzel, David Jesske, Thomton D. Barnes, James Bason, Sandra Hasan, Elodie Guillet and Ryan 
9 

Guillet, derivatively on behalf of Can-Cal Resources, Ltd. ("Can-Cal" or the "Company"); (2) 
10 

defendants William J. Hogan, Thompson MacDonald, Ronald Schlnnour and Michael Hogan 
11 

("Individual Defendants"); (3) Candeo Lava Products, Inc. and Futureworth Capital Corporation 
12 

("Corporate Defendants") and (4) nominal defendant Can-Cal ("collectively with the Corporate 
13 

Defendants and the Individual Defendants, "Defendants"). The settlement contemplated by this 
14 

Stipulation shall be re:feaed to as the "Settlement." 
1S 

L BACKGROUND 
...16 

Can-Cal is an explomtory stage mining c9mpany whose principal asset ts real property 
17 

located in Pisgah, San Bernardino Collffl1, .California, known as the "Pisgah Property." The 
18 

Pisgah Property is made up of a volcanic cinder material lmown as the "PisgahMaterial." 
19 

A.e Nevada Derivative Actione
20 

BeP.ing on May 29, 2014. Plamtlifs filed a shareholder qerivative complaint In thise
. · ·21 

Court, the Eighth Judicial District Court of the State ofNevada m and for Cl� Comity, against 
22 

the Individual Defendants, the Coiporate Defendants and nominal Defendant Can-Cal, styled as: 
23 

Ronald D. �loan, et al. v. Can- Cal Resources, Ltd., et al, Case No. A-14-70146S-B (the 
24 

"Derivative Acti(?n"). . The Derivative Action alleges breaches of fiduciary duty, unjust 
25 

26 

28 1 All capitalized terms not otherwise defined ate defined In Section IV.1. 
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STIPULATION�REEMENTS

• � •· I , 

1 SAO 
STBPHENR.HACKBlT, ESQ. 

2 NevadaBarNo.: 5010 
JOHNATHON FAYBGHI, ESQ.S

3 Nevada Bar No.: li736 
SKLAR Wil,LIAMS PLLC 

4 410 South Rampart Boulevard. Suite 350S
S Las Vegas, Nevada 89145 

Teleph�µe: (702) 360-6000 
Facshnllo: (702) 360-0000 

6 BmaU: shacS.Email: lfay�sklar-law.co 
klar-law.co!;S

7 
A.ttomeysfor Plaintiffs 

8S
DISTRICT COURT 

9S
CLARK COUNTY, NEV ADA 

10 
RONALD D. SLOAN; ROBIN SCHWARZ; CaseNo.: A-14-70146$-BS

11 GARY COLLINS; JII:,L BROWN; LARK Dept. No.: XI 
TERRELL; NANCY HERBOLD; _RANJEL R. 

12 SLOAN; BETIY ANN SLOAN; PEARLS
KIRK: JAMBS BOAN; N O WAIT; LARRYS

13 OR.wtCK; PATRICIA LA SAtLE; BRIAN
WOLFE; STUART R. CAMBRON; ROBERTS

14 WBBS'IER; HUGO BONDI; JOANS
BRATSBTH; P A BRATtB.'!!{j DEREKS

15 MILANI; DEAN RAt.;.t1.1n; SAMS
BROUNSTEIN; SANDRA .JANSEN; BRIANS

16 JANSEN; RHONDA . KIM NICHOLS;
SCOIT CARMEN ADAIR;S

OFSE NT 

NICHOLS;
17 KRISTA SCHOFIELD; MARK. BRATSETH; 

ROSE TRUST 11; CLIFF OLSON; DON 
18 COLLINS; ROYCE NORDSTROM;

NATALJB DAVID JBSSKB;S

smULATION AND�RDER VACATING
TRIAL DATEAND SETI'ING STATUS 

CHECK 
MAYZBL;

19 'IHORNTON·D. BARNES; JAMBS HASON;
SANDRA HASON; BODIE GUILLET;

20 RYANOUJLLET; 

21 ON BBHAI:.F OF CAN-CAL RESOURCES,
LTD.,·

22 

Plaintiffs,.
23 vs. 
24 CAN-CAL RBSOURCES, LTD., a NevadaS
2S ���ration; WlLLIAM J.. HOGAN;

THOTYIPSON. 'MACDONALD; RONALDS
SCHJNNOTJR; :MICHAEL HOGAN;26 CANDEO LAVA PRODUCTS, INC. aS

27 Canadian Corporation, and PUTURBWORTH
CAPITAL CORP., a Canadian Corporation, 

28 Defendants. 
Defendants. 
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SIGNATURES 

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 1S(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, the Registrant has 
duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authomed. 

CAN-CAL RESOURCES LTD. 

By: IslCasey Douglass 

Date: May JS, 2018 

Casey Douglass, Chairman of the Board of Directors 

POWER OF ATTORNEY 

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, and Exchange Act of 1934, as .amended, this Quarterly Report 
on Fonn 10-Q has been signed by the following persons In the capacities indicated on the da� indicated. 

/s/ Gary Oosterhoff 
Gary Oosterhoff 
Director 
MaylS,2018 

Isl Comelus Korver 
Comelus Korver 
Director 
May 15, 2018 
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ITEM 6. EXHIBITS. 

Exhibit 
3.1 

Exhibit Description 
Articles of Incorporation 

Filed 
herewith Fonn 

Form 10-
SB 

Incorporated by reference 

Period ending Exhibit 
N/A 3.0 

Filing date 
7/9/1999 

3.2 AmGnmumtm1be Artie]�of Iil'2momlign Fonn 10- N/A 7/9/1999
SB 

Fonn 10-13),..:LmD. N/A 3.2 7/9/1999 

10.1 
10.2 

10.3 

10.4 

31.l0

31.2 

32.1 

SB 

FgmJ ofMimmt La1e AmGmmll 10-K 12/31/2014 10.1 1n12016 
fgnn gf Pmmii�m Ngm !!itb Fgtm:;Wm:th 10-K 12/3112014 10.2 1n12016 
�mmJ. 
Fonn of SubscdmiJm,.t\greement for Pmmissozy. 10-K0 12/31/2014 10.3 1/7/2016 
�gt�»!ith Eu111BWortb �mntDl 
Eonn m:�1mmttm.ifimt� with Eim11:;Wm:lh 10-K0 12/31fl014 10.4 1n12016 
.cmiml 
Certi:fication of Principal Executive Officer X 

IUJI&wmt to S�tion 3Ql g!tb�Serbanes-,QxltY-&t 
C:m:dfiauo11 of fcinm121l FiDDDgi1I Qffi�c X 

gumu1mtmS�on JD2 of 1hs:a Subonlt'!-QXl§Y...Am 
�mfiaogu Qf Princi1ull Ex�lttm X 

finmcial Qffl�cPurst11mt tg 
SGmis20 2Qll of lb� Sm:bmm-Oxlms� 
Sumnuuy of Significant Details Regarding Pisgah, 10-KSB/A0 12/31/07 99.1 03/11/09 
Wikieup, Cerbat and the Owl Canyon Properties 

101.INS0
IOI.SCH0
101.CAL0
101.DEF0
101.LAB0
101.PRE0

XBRL Instance Document 
XBRL Schema Document 
XBRL Calculation Linkbase Document 
XBRL Definition Lin}tbase.Document 
XBRL Labels Linkbase Document 
XBRL Presentation Linkbase Document 

X 

X 

X 

X 
X 
X 
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PART 11- OTHER INFORMATION 

ITEM 1. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS. 

On June 3, 2014, a group of Company shareholders under the direction of Ronald D. Sloan (a fonner CbiefBxecutive Officer 
and director of the Company) (collectively the ''Plaintitl's0) filed a shareholder derivative complaint in Nevada State Court against the 
Company, as well as its then current directors (Thompson MacDonald, G. Michael Hogan, and Ron Sohlnnour), Willlam Hogan, 
FutureWorth Capital Corp. and Candeo (collectively the "Defendants"). The Plaintiffs are alleging, among other things, that the 
Defendants caused the Company to enter into a transaction with Candeo involving the Pisgah Property that was not in the best interests 
of the Company. However, the transaction with Candeo is In the best interests of the Company (see ''Note 3 - Related Party 
Transactions - Material Supply Agreement" in the attached financial statements). 

There are many other allegations made by the Plaintiff's, all of which are considered by the Defendants to be frivolous with no 
basis in fact. In fact, due to the actions of the prior management of the Company, the Company would not have been able to continue 
operations and would have failed without the intervention of new management, including certain of the Defendants, and without 
entering into the transaction with Candeo. Accordingly, no provision has been recorded in the financial statements of the Company for 
any payment to the 'Plaintiffs pursuant to the claim or otherwise. Legal counsel for the Company is Justin Jones, Esq. of Jones 
Lovelock, LLP of Las Vegas, Nevada. 

In the ordinary course of business, we are :from time to time involved in various pending or threatened legal actions. The 
litigation process is inherently uncertain and it is possible that the resolution of such matters might have a material adverse effect upon 
our financial condition and/or results of operations. However, in the opinion of our Board of Directors, matters currently pending or 
threatened against us are not expected to have a material adverse effect on our financial position or results of operations. 

Pursuant to an Order of the Eighth Judicial District Court of the State of Nevada in and for Clark County, a hearing will be 
held before the Honorable Elimbeth Goff Gonzalez on July 9, 2018 at 8:30 a. m. in Department 11 of the Eighth Judicial District Court 
of the State of Nevada in and for Clark County. At the Settlement Hearing, the Court will consider whether to grant final approval of 
the settlement and Plaintiffs' attorneys' fees and expenses and certain stock awards to Plaintiffs' Counsel ("Stock Awards"). The Court 
may adjourn the Settlement Hearing without tbrther notice to ean .. eat shareholders. 

This Stipulation and Agreement of Settlement and the detailed Notice of Proposed Settlement and Settlement Hearing 
("Notice"), descn'bing the Derivative Action, the Proposed Settlement, and the rights of Can-cal shareholders with regard to the 
settlement, bas been filed with the Court and is available for viewing on Defendants' Counsel's websites (www.HollandandHart.com 
and www.JonesLovelock.com), or on Plaintiffs' Counsel's website (www.Sklarlaw.com/notices/Can-Cal). 

ITEM lA. RISK FACTORS. 

As we are a smaller reporting company, we are not required to provide the information required by this Item. 

ITEM 2. UNREGISTERED SALES OF EQUITY SECURITIES AND USE OF PROCEEDS. 

Since the beginning of the fiscal quarter ended March 31, 2018, we have not sold any equity securities that were not registered under 
the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, that were not previously reported in a quarterly report on Form 10-Q or a current report on 
Form 8-K. 

ITEM3. DEFAULTS UPON SENIOR SECURITms. 

Since the beginning of the fiscal quarter ended March 31, 2018, we have had no senior securities issued and outstanding. 

ITEM 4. MINE SAFETY DISCLOSURES. 

Not applicable. 

ITEMS. OTHERJNFORMATION. 

None. 

• ------, .............. ,.,,ann1-,"21:1 .... ",...1 1n..Jr.l':111Rhtm 
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Appearing immediately following the Signatures section of this report there are Certifications of the CEO. The Company 
currently has no CFO. The Certification are required in accordance with Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 (the Section 
302 Certifications). This Item of this report, which y9u are currently reading is the infonnatlon concerning the Evaluation referred to in 
the Section 302 Certifications and this information should be read in conjunction with the Section 302 Certifications for a more 
complete understanding of the topics presented. 
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Contractual Obligations 

An agreement was signed effective June 10, 2016 with For Life Financial for the office administration of the Company and 
can be terminated by either party with one month•s written notice. An agreement was signed effective September 10, 2016 to manage 
the Company. Toe contract is effective until December 31, 2018 and will continue until the earlier of the completion.of the services or 
the termination of the agreement Termlnati�n of the agreement may be for any or no reason upon four months written notice. The 
Company may, in its sole discretion. request For Life Financial to cease perfonning services during the four-month period. For Life 
Financial may tenninate this agreement for any or no reason upon two months written notice. 

On September 1, 2017, an agreement was signed with Red to Black Inc. to perfonn the accounting for the Company. The 
contract is effective until December 31, 2017 and will Blltomatically renew and can be tennJnated by either party with thirty days 
notice. No new contract has been signed and the automatic renewal bas been continuing. 

ITEM 3. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK. 

We are a smaller reporting company as defined by Rule 12b-2 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, and are 
not required to provide the information under this item. 

ITEM 4. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES. 

Disclosure Controls and Procedures 

We maintain "disclosure controls and procedures," as such tenn is defined in Rule 13a-15(e) and lSd-lS(f) under the 
Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (the "Exchange Act"), that me designed to ensure that infonnatfon required to be disclosed in our 
Exchange Act reports is recorded, processed, summarized and reported within the time periods specified in tho Securities and Exchange 
Commission rules and fonns, and that such information is accumulated and communicated to our management, including our Chief 
Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, as appropriate. to allow timely decisions regarding required disclosure. We conducted an 
evaluation (the "Evaluationn), under the supeivision and with the participation of our Chief Executive Officer ("CEO") and Chief 
Financial Officer ccccpQ"), of the effectiveness of the design and operation of our disclosure controls and procedures ("Disclosure 
Controls'') as of the end of the period covered by this report pursuant to Rule 13a-1S of the Exchange Act. Based on this Evaluation, 
our Chief Executive Officer hes concluded that the Company's disclosure controls and procedures were not effective because of the 
identification of a material weakness in Qur internal control over financial reporting which is identified below In Management's Annual 
Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting, which we view as an integral part of our disclosure controls and procedures. 

Changes in Internal Control 

We have also evaluated our internal control over financial reporting, and there have been no significant changes in our internal 
controls or in other factors that could significantly affect those oontrols as of March 31, 2018. 

Limitations on the Effectiveness of Controls 

Our management, including our CBO. does not expect that our Disclosure Controls and internal controls will prevent all errors 
and all :fraud. A control system, no matter how well conceived and operated, can provide only reasonable, not absolute. assurance that 
the objectives of the control system are met. Further, the deslgn of a control system must reflect the fact that·there are resource 
constraints, and the benefits of controls must be considered relative to their costs. Because of the inherent limitations in all control 
systems, no evaluation of controls can provide absolute assurance that all control issues and instances of fraud, if any, withln the 
Company have been detected. These mherent limitations include the realities that judgments in decision-making can be faulty, and that 
breakdowns can occur because of a simple error or mistake. Additionally, controls can be circumvented by the individual acts of some 
persons, by collusion of two or more people, or by management or board override of the control. 

The design of any system of controls also is based In part upon certain assumptions about the likelihood of future events, and 
there can be no assurance that any design will succeed in achieving its stated goals under all potential future conditions; over time, 
controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may 
deteriorate. Because of the inherent limitations in a cost-effective control system, misstatements due to etTOr or fraud may occur and not 
be detected. 

CEO Certification 
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General and Administrative: 

General and administrative expenses were $76,160 for the three months ended March 31, 2018 and $7,515 for 2017. This 
increase in general and administrative expense in 2018 was primarily due to management fees, legal fees, and filing fees. 

Director Fees: 

Director fees were $18,750 for the three months ended March 31, 2018, and $Nil for the three months ended March 31·, 2017. 
During the settlement of the lawsuit from the shareholders, it was deemed that the three directors of the Company would each be· 
compensated $25,000 per year starting lanuuy 1, 2017, however, the entirety of the 2017 amounts were recorded in the fourth quarter 
of2017. 

Net Operating Gain or Loss: 

Net operating loss for the three months ended March 31, 2018 was $76,849 or $0.00 per share, there was a net operating loss 
of $10,531 or $0.00 per share for the three months ended March 31, 2017. This operating loss increase is primarily due to higher 
General and Administrative exp811Se an4 Director fees as explained above. 

Interest Expense: 

Interest expense for 1he three months ended March 31, 2018 was� recovery of$18,022 and a $2,828 expense for 2017. The 
reason for tho recovery of$18,022 in the first quarter of2018 was due to a recalculation of the related party loan outstanding with G. 
Mlchaol Hogan. After being reviewed by the lawyers involved In the lawsuit, it was determined that previously omitted expenses would 
be included and that legal expenses would remain bearing an interest mte of 10%, but all other expenses would bear an interest rate of 
5%. 

Net Loss: 

See the explanation ofNet Operating Loss above. 

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES 

The following table summarizes total assets, accumulated deficit, stockholders' equity (deficit) and working capital at March 
31, 2018 and December 31, 2017. 

March 31, December 31, 
2018 2017 

Total Assets $ 9,542 $ 6,559 

Accumulated (Deficit) (11,689,878) (11,613,029) 
Stockholders' Equity (Deficit) (1,051,514) (973,665) 
Working Capital (Deficit) $ (1,050,514) s (973,665) 

At March 31, 2018, we had total assets of $9,542, consisting of prepaid expenses and cash, compared to assets of $6,559 at 
December 31, 2017. We have implemented financial controls in the business to ensure each expense is warranted and needed. Our cash 
on hand at March 31, 2018 was $3,752. 

Off�anee Sheet Arrangements 

We do not have any oft:.balance sheet arrangements of any kind. 
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In addition to our historic exploration activities, we are currently under taking alternative revenue producing opportunities at 
our Pisgah Property. On January 23, 2012, the Company entered into a mineral lease agreement with a GoodCorp Inc. to purchase 
material from the property. This mineral lease agreement fs for an initial period of ten (10) years, with an additional five (5) year 
extension at the option of tho lessee. Sale prices of minerals are set at diminishing prices in $0.S0 increments between $12 per ton and 
$10 per ton for each 20,000 tons of material removed. As of the date hereo� no material has been sold tmder this agreement and no 
revenue has been received by the Company. 

On April 9, 2013, the Company entered into the Original MSA with Candeo and the Amended MSA on March 3, 2014. 
Pursuant to the Amended MSA, Candeo is entitled to purchase Material from tho Pisgah Property at a price equal to the greater of $1S 
perton and the net sales margin per ton removed ftom the Pisgah Property reaUzed as follows: (i) 35% of the net sales margins during
the first year of mining; and (H)·S0% of the net sales margins for the subsequent years during the term of the Amended MSA. Under the 
Amended MSA, Candeo has the right to remove an Initial Amount ofup to 1,000,000 tons of Material from the Pisgah Property and 
Additional Amounts of 1,000,000 tons each, upon the successful removal of the Initial Amount from the Pisgah Property. Candeo's 
right to remove the Additional Amounts from the Pisgah Property is on the basis that once Candeo has removed the first Additional 
Amount of the Material from the Pisgah Property, it shall have the right to remove subsequent Additional Amounts of Material from the 
Property, so long as it removes its then current Additional Amount. As such, Candeo's right to extend the term of the Amended MSA is 
entirely based on Candeo's successful perfognance of its Material removal commitments under the tenns of the Amended MSA. 

Under the Amended MSA, Candeo is required to purchase a minimum of ten thousand (10,000) tons of Material during each 
of the first three years of the tenn of the agreement, all at a purchase price ofSIS.00 per ton, for a total payment of$1S0,000 per year in 
each of the first three years of the Tenn, with credit being given by the Company to Candeo for all pre-paid tons of Material that have 
already been purchased and paid for under the Original MSA. The Pre--Purchased Material will remain on the Pisgah Property until 
Candeo commences its production operations or engages the Company to mine and remove Material on Candeo's beha1£ In the event 
that Candeo engages the Company to mine and remove any of the Material, Candeo shall pay all of the Company's reasonable costs and 
expenses in conducting such mining and removal operations plus a fee of 15%. All mining and removal operations on the Pisgah 
Property will be subject to all necessary regulatoiy and other third-party approvals being obtained. The Pre-Purchased Payments will 
not be refundable to Candeo but shall be credited against the first Production Payments. 

The tenn of the Amended MSA has been extended from an initial tenn of ten (I 0) years to twenty (20) years (the "PrimaiY 
Term") and Candeo has tho option to extend the tenn for an additional thirty (30) years exercisable at any time with no less than three 
(3) months written notice prior to the expiration of the Primary Tenn, provided that Candeo is not in default under any of the provisions
of the Amended MSA and that the whole of the Initial AmolDlt has been removed from the Property.e

Results of Operations 

Three Months Ended Mardi 31, 2018 Compared to the Thiee Months Ende4 March 31, 2017 

Results orOperations for the Three Months Ended March 31, 2018 and 2017: 

Three Months ended March 31, 
2018 2017 

Operating expenses: 
General and administrative $ 76,160 $ 7,515 
Director fees 18,750 

Total operating expenses 94,910 7,515 

Net operating loss (94,910) (7,515) 

Other Income (expense): 
Interest expense 
Foreign exchange gain Ooss) 

Total other income (expense) 

18,022 
39 

(2,828) 
!188)e

Loss before provision for income taxes 
Provision for income taxes 

Net loss $ 

18,061 (3,016) 

(76,849) (10,531) 

(76
!849) $ (10,S31) 
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precious metals and/or other base metals on the Cerbat, Arizona property. if any; (iii) the continued development a comprehensive 
research and development program to ascertain the potendal for any nue earth elements on the Owl Canyon, California property 
(subsequently abandoned); (iv) strategic working capital reserve and (v) to finance our operations. 
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ITEM 2. MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF 
OPERATIONS. 

Forward-Looking Statements 

This quarterly report contains "forward-looking statements". All statements other than statements of historical fact are "forward­
lookfng statements" for purposes of federal and state securities Jaws, including, but not limited to, statements regarding: the plans, 
strategies and objections of management for future operations; the future plans or business of our company; future economic conditions 
or performance; and any statements of assumptions underlying any of the foregoing. 
Forward-looking statements may include the words '5may," "could," "estimate," "Jntend," "continue," "believe," "expect" or 
"anticipate,, or other similar words. These forward-looking statements present our estimates and assumptions only-as of the date of this 
report. Accordingly, readers are cautioned not to place undue reliance on forward-looking statements, which speak only as of the dates 
on which they are made, Except as required by applicable law, we do not intend, and undertake no obligation, to update any forward­
looking statement. 

Although we belleve the expectations reflected In the forward-looking statements. in ·this report are reasonable, actual results could 
differ materially ftom those projected or assumed tn any fmward-looklng statements. All forward-looking statements are subject to 
change and inherent risks and uncertainties. The factors impacting these risks and uncertainties include, but are not limited to: 

•o our current lack of working capital;o

•o a possible lnabilf1¥ to raise additional finaneing;o

•o the fact that our accounting policies and methods are fundamental to how we report our financial condition and results ofo
operations, 

• 
and they may require our management to make estimates about matters that are Inherently uncertain;o

I 

• deterioration In general or regional economic conditions;o

•o adverse state or federal legislation or reP,lations that Increase the costs of compliance;o

•o inabllity to efficiently manage our operations; ando

•o the unavailability of funds for capital expenditures.o

All financial infonnation contained herein is shown in United States dollars unless otherwise stated. Our fmancfal statements are 
prepared in accordance with United States generally accepted accounting principles. 

In this quarterly report, unless otherwise specified, all references to "shares" refer to shares of common stock in the capital of our 
company, 

As used in this quarterly report on Form 10-Q, the tenns "we", "us" "our" and "Can-Cal" refer to Can-Cal Resources Ltd., a Nevada 
corporation, unless otherwise specified. 

Corporate Overview 

Can-Cal Resources Ltd. is a publicly traded exploration stage company engaged in seeking the acquisition and exploration of 
metals mineral properties. As part of its growth strategy, the Company will focus its future activities in the USA, with an emphasis on 
the Pisgah Mountain, California property and the Cerbat, Arizona property. 

At March 31, 2018, we had cash on hand of approximately $3,752 available to sustain operations. At December 31, 2017, cash 
on hand was $769. Accordingly, we are uncertain as to whether the Company may continue as a going concem. Whilo we may seek 
additional investment capital, or possible funding or joint venture arrangements with other mining companies, we have iio assurance 
that such investment capital or additional funding and joint venture Bl?D&ements will be available to the Company. 

We expect in the near tenn to continue to rely on outside financing activities to finance our operations. We used investment 
proceeds realized during 2012 for (t) completion of work-up of two potential extraction processes to detennine which process we will 
employ to potentially prove up any precious metals, platinum groups elements and/or other base metals on the Pisgah, California 
property and the Cerbat, Arizona property, if any; (il) the development of a drill program to potentially prove up any tonnages and 
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Unearned revenues as reflected on the Balance Sheet are a reflection of amounts received from Candeo based on the Amended MSA. 

On June 30. 2010, the Company entered Into a consulting agreemen� with a Board of Director's consulting firm, FutureWorth Capital 
Corp. The terms of the agreement include annual compensation of $60,000, payable monthly. The Company may elect to satisfy 
payment in shares of common stock in lieu of cash at a market value equal to $0.10 above the average closing trading price of the 
common stock for the preceding five (S) days from the date of such election. No payments have been made in cash or stock to date. As 
of December 31, 2017, the Company owed FutureWorth Capital Corp. $S06 (2016 - $S06) as included in accounts payable, related 
parties, for service prior to, and during the service period under the consulting agreement. The consulting agreement was tenninated on 
Februmy 27, 2013 with Mr. William Hogan's resignation from the Board of Directors. 

On June 10, 2016, the Company entered Into a consulting agreement. with a Board of Director's consulting finn, For Life Financial. 
The tenns of the agreement include monthly compensation of$2,100 CAD for managing the Company. On September 10, 2016, the 
Company amended the agreement to include additional annual compensation $50,000 USD, payable monthly as the scope of work 
increased. 

Stock-Based Compensation 

All wammts previOUBly issued by the Company have expired as of the fiscal year ending December 31, 2014. No new warrants have 
been issued as of March 31, 2018. 

On December 31, 2017, 650,000 Stock Options and 800,000 shares were issued as compensation for work done by consultants and 
directors of the Company. (Note 9) 

4.oNOTES PAYABLE, RELATED PARTIESo

Notes payable, related parties consisted of the followfng as of March 31, 2018 and December 31, 2017, respectively: 

Note payable Cl) 
Promissory note payable (2) 
Promissory note payable (3) 
Total related party notes payable 

Mareh31, 

2018 
December 31, 

2017 

(1)o Note payable to the fonner CEO, unsecured, bearing interest at 10% and due on demand.o

(2)o Promissory note payable originated on November 30, 2012 with FutureWortb Capital Cotp., a consulting firm owned by ouro
former Chairman of the Board of Directors, unsecured, bearing interest at 10%, matures on November 29, 2013. In connectiono
with the promissory note, the Company granted warrants to purchase 20,000 shares of the Company's common stock at an exerciseo
price ofS0.10. The wammts expired on November 29, 2014.o

(3)o Promissory note payable originated on February 1, 2018 with Candeo, a company in which the former CEO is a director. The noteo
bears an interest rate of I0o/o per annum and is payable on or before December 31. 2018.o

The following presents components of interest expense by instrument type as of March 31, 2018 and 2017, respectively: 

Mareh31, March 31, 
2018 2017 

Interest on notes payable, related parties 
Accounts payable reJated vendor finance charges 
Finance Costs (Equi1¥ based) 
Total interest expense 

The negative interest recognized in the three months ended March 31, 2018 is due to a recaJculation on the loan per revisions to the 
agreement from the lawyers of the lawsuit Previously omitted costs were added to the outstanding loan and the interest rate was left at 

$ 

$ 

149,129 

42,007 
191,136. 

$ 129,871 
10,000 

$ 139,871 

$ (18,022) $ 2,828 

$ �18,022) $ 2,828 
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Use of Estimates 

The preparation of financial statements in confonnity with generally accepted accounting principles requires management to make 
estimates and assumptions that affect the reportea amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at 
the date of the financial statements and the reported amount of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could 
differ from those estimates. 

Basic and Dilgte<J Loss perShare 

The basic net loss per common share fs computed by dividing the net loss by the weighted average number of common shares 
outstanding. Diluted net loss per common share Is computed by dividing the net loss acljusted on an "as if converted" basis, by the 
weighted average number of common shares ou1Standing plus potendal dilutive securities. For 2017 and 2016 potential dilutive 
securities had an anti-dilutive effect and were not Included in the calculation of diluted net loss per common share. 

2. GOING CONCERN 

The accompanying financial statements have been prepared assuming the Company wlll continue as a going concern. As shown in the 
accompanying financial statements, the Company had a net loss of$76,849 for the three months ended March 31, 2018, has used net 
cash in operating activities of$8,117,100 from inception and had a working capital deficit of$1,050,S14 at March 31, 2018. The future 
of the Company Is dependent upon its ablllty to obtain financing and upon future profitable operations from the development of its new 
business opportunities. Management has plans to seek additional capital through private placements and public offerings of its common 
stock The financial statements do not include any acijustments relating to the recoverability and classification of recorded assets, or the 
amounts of and classiticadon of liabilities that might be necessary in the event the Company cannot continue in existence. 

The ability of the Company to continue as a going concern Is dependent on securing additional sources of capital and the success of the 
Company's plan. The financial statements do not include any ac(justments that might be necessary if the Company is unable to continue 
as a going concern. 

3. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 

�..Agmement 

On April 9, 20131 the Company entered Into a material supply agreement (the "the Original MSA") with Candeo Lava Products Inc. 
(l'Candeo"), which was amended on Maroh 3, 2014 (the "Amended MSA0). Pursuant to the Amended MSA, Candee is entitled to 
purchase material �'Material") ftom the Pisgah Property at a price equal to the greater of $1 S per ton and the net sales margin per ton 
removed from the Pisgah Property realized as follows: (f) 35% of the net sales margins during the first year of mining; and (ii) SO% of 
the net sales margins for the subsequent years during the tenn of the Amended MSA. Under the Amended MSA, Candeo has the right 
to remove an Initial Amount ofsup to 1,000,000 tons of Material ftom the Pisgah Property and Additional Amounts of IJ000,000 tons 
each, upon the successfi.it removal of the Initial Amount from the Pisgah Property, Candeo's right to remove the Additional Amounts 
from the Pisgah Property is on the basis that once Candeo has removed the first Additional Amount. of the Material ftom the Pisgah 
Property, it shall have the right to remove subsequent Additional Amounts of Material from the Property, so long as it removes its then 
cumnt Additional Amount As such, Candeo's right to extend the term of the Amended MSA is entirely based on Candeo,s successful 
perfonnance of its Material removal commitments under the tenns of tho Amended MSA. 

Under the Amended MSA, Candeo Is required to purchase a minimum often thousand (10,000) tons of Material during each of the first 
three years of the term of the agreement, all at a purchase price of$15.00 per ton, for a total payment of$1S0,000 per year in each of 
the first three years of the Tenn, with credit being given by the Company to Candeo for all pre-paid tons of Material that have already 
been purchased and paid for 1D1der the Original MSA. Tho Pre-Purchased Material will remain on the Pisgah Property until Candeo 
commences its production operations or engages the Company to mine and remove Material on Candeo•s behal£ In the event that 
Candeo engages the Company to mine and remove any of the Material, Candeo shall pay all of the Company's reasonable costs and 
expenses in conducting such mining and removal operations plus a fee of 15%. All mining and removal operations on the Pisgah 
Property will be subject to all necessmy regulatory and other third-party approvals being obtained. The Pre-Purchased Payments will 
not be refundable to Candeo but shall be credited against the first Production Payments. 

The term of the-Amended MSA has been extended from an initial term of ten (10) years to twent¥ (20) years (the "Primary Term") and 
Candeo bas the option to extend the tenn for an additional thirty (30) years exercisable at any time with no less than three (3) months 
written notice prior to tho expiration of the Primary Term, provided that Candeo is not in default under any of the provisions of the 
Amended MSA and that the whole of the Initial Amollllt has been removed ftom the Property. 
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Can-Cal Resources Ltd. 
(An Exploration Company) 

Notes to Unaudited Financial Statements 
For the three months ended March 31, 2018 and 2017 

t. NATURE OF BUSINESS AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIESo

Nature or Rosiness 

Can-Cal Resources Ltd. ("Can-Cal" or the "Company") is a Nevada corporation incorporated on March 22, 1995. 

The Company is an exploration company engaged in the exploration for precious metals, specifically focused on mfneral exploration
projects. We have examined various prospective mineral properties for precious metals and acquired those deemed promising. We 
cummtly own, lease or have mining interest in two mineral properties in the southwestern United States (California and Arizona, as 
follows: Cerbat, Arizona and Pisgah, California). The Company previously had mineral rights in Owl Canyon, California and Wikieup, 
Arizona, which have now been abandoned. 

As an exploration stage enterprise, the Company discloses the deficit accumulated during the exploration stage. An entity remains In 
the exploration stage until such time as proven or probable reserves have been established for its deposits. Upon the location of 
commercially mineable reserves, the Company plans to prepare for mineral extraction and enter the development stage. To date, the 
exploration stage of the Company's operations consists of contracting with geologists who sample and assess the mining viability of the 
Company's claims. 

Summar,y of SignJllqnt Acqunting Pollcles 

Basis of Presentation 

The accompanying unaudited interim financial statements and related notes have been prepared in accordance with accounting 
principles generally accepted in the United States of America ("U.S. OAAP") for fnterim financial information, and with the rules and 
regulations of the United States Securities and Exchange Commission set forth in Article 8 of Regulation S-X. Accordingly, they do 
not include all of the information and footnotes required by U.S. OAAP for complete fmancial statements. The unaudited interim 
financial statements furnished reflect all adjusbnents (consisting of normal recurring accruals) which are, in the opinion of 
management, necessary to a fair statement of the results for the interim periods presented. Unaudited interim results are not necessarily 
indicative of the results for the full fiscal year. These financial statements should be read in conjunction with the financial statements of 
the Company for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2017 and notes thereto contained fn the Company's Annual Report on Form 10-K. 

The Company,s fimctional and reporting currency is the United States dollar (USD). Monetary assets and liabilities denominated ino
foreign currencies are translated in accordance with ASC 820, using the exchange rate prevaillng at the ·balance sheet date. Gains and 
losses arising on settlement of foreign currency denominated transactions or balances are included in the determination of income. 
Foreign currency transactions are primarily undertaken fn the Canadian dollar (CDN). 'nle Company has not, to the date of these 
financialstatements, entered into derivative Instruments to offset the Impact of foreign currency fluctuations. 

Certain amounts in the prior periods presented have been reclassified to conform to the current period financial statement presentation. 

Exploration Stag� 

The Company is currently an exploration stage company. As an exploration stage enterprise. the Company discloses the deficit 
accumulated during the exploration stage and the cumulative statements of operations and cash flows from Inception to the current 
balance sheet date. The Company bas incurred an accwnulated deficit of $11,638,879 for the period from inception (March 22, 199S) 
through December 31, 2017. An entity remains in the exploration stage until such time as proven or probable reserves have been 
established for its deposits. Upon the location of commercially mlneable reserves, the Company plans to prepare for mineral extraction 
and enter the development stage. To date, the exploration stage of tho Company's operations consfsts of contracting with geologists 
who sample and assess the mining viability of the Company,s claims. 
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Cao .. Cal Resources Ltd. 
(An Exploration Company) 
Statements or Cash Flows 

(Unaudited) 

Three Months Three Months 
Ended Ended 

March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017 
Operating aetivities 

Net loss for tho year $ (76,849) $ (10,531)
Adjustments to reconcile n�t loss to net cash used in operating activities 
Changes in operating assets and liabilities 

Accounts payable and accmed expenses 2,847 6,0S0 
Accounts payable and accrued expenses, related party (21,842) 2,828 
Unearned revenues, related party 

Net cash (used in) operating activities 
47,562 

(48,282) (1,653) 

FJnanclng activities 
Proceeds from Issuance of loans payable 51,265 1,6S3 
Proceeds from Issuance of convertl&le notes payable 

Net cash provided by financing activities 

Net changes in cash and equivalents 

Cash and equivalents at beginning of the period 

Cash and equivalents at �d of the period 

SUPPLEMENTAL CASH FLOW INFORMATION 
Cash paid In interest $ 

$e - $ 

$ 

Cash paid for income taxes 

S1,265 

2,983 

769 

$ 3,752 

1,(i53 

$ 

-

The accompanying notes ere an integral part of these unaudited interim financial statements. 
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Can-Cal Resources Ltd. 
(An Exploration Company) 

Statement or Operations 
(Unaudited) 

Operating expenses 
General and administrative expense 
Director fees 
Total operating expenses 

Net loss from operations 

Other Income (expense) 
Interest expense, related party 
Foreign exchange gain (loss) 
Total other income (expense) 

Loss before provision for income taxes 
Provision for taxes 

Net loss 

Loss per common share-Basic and diluted 

Weighted average number of common shares outstanding, basic and diluted 

Three Months Three-Months 

Ended Ended 
March 31, 2018 March 31. 2017 

$ 76,160 $ 7,515 
18,750 
94,910 7,515 

(94,910) (7,S1S) 

18,022 (2,828) 
39 (188) 

18,061 

(76,849) 

$ (76,849) 

$ (0.00) 

43
2
667,060 

(3,016) 

(10,531) 

$ (10,531) 

$ (0.00) 

42,867,060 

Tho accompanying notes are an Integral part of these unaudited interim financial statements. 
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Can-Cal Resources Ltd. 
(An Exploration Company) 

Balance Sheets 
(Unaudited) 

December 31, 
March31,2018 2017 

Assets 

Current Assets 
Cssb $ 3,752 s 769 
Other current assets 5,790 S,790 

Total Cmrent Assets 

Total Assets 

Liabilities and Stockholders' Deficit 

Current Liablllties 
Accounts payable $ 315,344 $ 310,817 
Accounts payable, related party S06 506 

Accrued expenses 6,999 8,679 
Accrued expenses, related party 96,071 117,913 
Unearned revenues, related party 4S0,000 402,438 
Notes payable, related parties 

1,060,056 980,224 
191,136 139,871 

Total Current Llabllltles 

Total Liabilities 1,060,0S6 980,224 

Commitments and Contingencies 

Stockholders' Equity (Deficit) 
Preferred stock, $0.00 l par value, 10,000,000 shares authorized; no shares Issued and 

outstanding 
Common stock, $0.001 par value, 100,000,000 shares authorir.ed; 43,667,060 shares issued 

and outstanding as at March 31, 2018 and December 31, 2017 43,667 43,667 
Additional paid-In-capital 10,595,697 10,595,697 
Accumµtated deficit (l l,689a878)a (11,613,029) 

Total Stockholders' Equity (Deficit) 

Total Liabilities and Stockholders' Equity (Deficit) 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these unaudited interim financial statements. 

9,542 

$ 9!542 

6,559 

$ 6,559 

2

(1,050,514)a

$ 9,542 

(973,665) 

$ 6,559 
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PART I-FINANCIAL INJORMATION 

IT.EM 1. FINANCIALSTATEMENTS. 

Our unaudited interim financial statements are stated. in United States dollars and are prepared in accordance with United States 
generally accepted accotu1ting principles. 

It is the opinion of management that. the unaudited interim financial statements for the quarter ended March 31, 2018 include all 
adjustments necessary in order to ensure that the unaudited interim financial statements are not misleading. 
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Indicate the number of shares outstanding of each of the issuer's classes of common stock, ·as of the latest practicable date: 43,667,060 
common shares issued and outstanding as at May 11.2018. 
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UNITED STATES 
SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION 

Washington, D.C. 20549 

FORM10-Q 

(MarkOne) 
[X] QUARTERLY REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 1S(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934 

For the quarterly period ended Mareh 31Jm.8. 

[ ] TRANSITION REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR lS(d) OF. THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934 

For the transition period ftom ____to___ _ 

Commission file number OQQ-26669 

CAN-CAL RESOURCES LTD. 
(Exact name of registrant as specified in its charter) 

Nevada 

(State or other jurisdiction 
86-0865852 

(I.R.S. Employer 
of Incorporation or organization) Identification No. 

42 SprJngftetd Avenue,Be4 Deer; Alberta, Canada, T4N QC7 
(Address of principal executive offices) (Zip Cc;,de) 

403.342,6221 
(Registrant's telephone number, including area code) 

lJ!A 
(Former name, former address and former fiscal year, If changed since last report) 

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant (1) has filed all reports required to be filed by Section 13 or lS(d) of the Yes [X] No [ ] 
Securities Exchange Act of 1934 dwing the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period that the registrant was 
required to file such reports), and (2) has been subject to such filing requirements for the past 90 days. 

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant has submitted electronically and posted on its corporate Web site, if any, Yes [X] No [ ] 
evecy Interactive Data File required to be submitted and posted pursuant to Rule 40S of Regulation S-T (§ 232.40S of 
this chapter) during the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period that the registrant was required to submit and 
post such files). 

Indicate by check.mark whether. the registrant is a large accelerated filer, en accelerated filer, a non-accelerated filer, a smaller reporting 
company or an emerging growth company. See definitions of "large accelerated tiler", "accelerated tiler", "smaller reporting company", 
end "emerging.growth company" in Rule l2b-2 of the Exchange Act. (Check one): 

Large accelerated filer [ ] Accelerated tiler []
Non-accelerated filer [ ] (Do·not check if a smaller reporting company) Smaller reporting company [X]

Emerging growth company [ ] 

If an emmging growth company, indicate by check mark if the registrant has elected not to use the extended transition Yes [ ] No [ ] 
period for complying with any new or revised financial accounting standards provided pursuant to Section 13{a} of the 
Bxchange Act. 

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a shell company (as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act). Yes [ ]No[X] 
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CAN .. CAL RESOURCES LTD. 
(AN EXPLORATION STAGE COMPANY) 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
December 31, 2017 and 2016 

Deferred income taxes reflect the net tax effects of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for 
financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for income tax purposes. Significant components of the Company's deferred tax 
assets are as follows: 

December 31, 

Deferred tax asset (tax rate 21%) 
Net operating loss cany fo!Wards 

Total deferred tax assets: 
Less: Valuation allowance 

Net deferred tax assets 

$ 

2017 2016 

2,028,105 $ 1,954,765
---------

2,028, 1 OS 1,954, 76S 
(2,028,105) (1,954,765) 

$ - $
-======== mi-======== 

Based on the available objective evidence, Including the Company's history of its loss, management believes it is more likely than not 
that the net.deferred tax assets will not be fully realizable. Accordingly, the Company provided for a full valuation allowance against its 
net deferred tax assets at December 31, 2017 and 2016. 

In accordance with FASB ASC 740, the Company has evaluated its tax positions and determined there are no uncertain tax positions. 

F-15e
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CAN-CAL RESOURCES LTD. 
(AN EXPLORATION STAGE COMPANY)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL S TATEMENTS 
December 31, 2017 and2016 

NOTE 9-STOCK-BASED COMPENSATION 

Qptjon Plan 

Options granted for employee and consulting services - The 2003 Non-Qualified Option Plan was established by the Board of Directors 
in June 2003 and approved by shareholders in October 2003. A total of l,S00,000 shares of common stock are reserved for iisuance 
under this plan. There were no options issued during the year ended December 31, 2016. 

Forward Look at Stock-Based, lncentiye 
, 

Outside of the plan, by Board resolutions, the following Stock Options were issued hi Q4 2017 with an exercise price of $0.06 per 
share, each to the following for director and/or consultant services rendered to Can-Cal Resources: 

Sandra Rogoza 
Red To BJack Inc. 

Recipient Name 
Stock Options 

Granted 
100,000 
250.000 

Thompson-MacDonald
Ronald Schinnour 

104S899 Alberta Ltd., a company owned by Gary Oosterhoff 100,000
Revrok Fann, a company owned by Comelus Korver 100,000
For Life Financial Ltd., a company owned by Casey Douglass 

650,000 
100,000

Total 

The following shares were issued in Q4 20 t 7·for director and/or consultant services rendered as follows: 
. 

Recipient Name Shares Issued 
250t000
2So.ooo 

I 04S899 Alberta Ltd, a company owned by Oary Oosterhoff 100,000 
Revrok Fann Ltd., a corporation owned by Comelus Korver 100,000
For Life Financial Ltd., a corporation owned by Casey Douglass 

800,000 
100,000 

Total 

NOTE 10- INCOME TAXES 

The Company aooounts for income taxes under FASB ASC 740-10, which requires use of the liability method. FASB ASC 740-10-2S 
provides that deferred tax assets and liabilities are recorded· based on the dltrerences between-the tax bases of assets and liabWties and 
their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes, referred to as temporary differences. 

As of December 31, 2017, the Company incurred a net operating loss and, accordingly, no provision for income taxes has been 
recorded. In addition, no benefit for Income taxes has been recorded due to the -uncertainty of the realimtion of any tax -assets. The 
Company had approximately $9,657,641 and $9,308,403 of federal ne� operati�g losses at December 31, 2017 and 2016, respectively. 
The net operating loss carry forwards, if not ub1ized, will begin to expire in 2029. 

F-140
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CAN-CAL RESOURCES LTD. 
(AN EXPLORATION STAGE COMPANY) 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATBMBNTS 
December 31, 2017 and 2016 

There are many other allegations made by the Plaintiffs, all of which are considered by the Defendants to be frivolous with no basis in 
fact. In fact, due to the actions �f the prior management oftbe Company, the Company would not have been able to continue operations 
and would have failed without the Intervention of new management, Including certain of the Defendants, and without entering into the 
transaction with Candeo. Accordingly, no provision has been recorded in the financial statements of the Company for any payment to 
the Plaintiffs pursuant to the claim or otherwise. Legal counsel for the Co�pany is Justin C. Jones, Esq., currently of Jones Lovelock of 
Las Vegas, Nevada. 

In the ordinary course of business, we are from time to thne involved in various pending or threatened legal actions. The litigation 
proce_ss is inherendy uncertain and It fs possible that the resolution of such matters might have a material adverse effect upon our 
financial condition and/or results of operations. However, in the opinion of our Board· of' Directors, matters currently pending or 
threatened against us are not expected to have a material advene effect on our financial position or results of operations. 

Can-Cal Resources Ltd., as one of several Defendants in Derivative Lawsuit reached "Settlement Agreement in Principle" mid­
November 2017. AB of Janµaiy 8, 2018, all Parties are progressing toward a more detailed Definitive Agreement. 

. 
. 

Tenns of the Agreement include: 

A new Board of 5 comprised of 2 Directors nominated. by Plaintiffs and 2 from Defendants. These 4 will- select _the sth 

Director. 
Sale of minimum tonnage of lava material to Candeo Lava Products within certain time frames. 
Proceeds from lava material sales are budgeted towards Plaintiff's legal costs, acute Accounts Payables and Management Fees. 
An annual minimum was established to cover base costs of keeping Can-Cal from insolvency. 
As Candeo develops its marketing, It expects to substantially increase volumes of lava material sales and thus future purchases 
from ean .. caJ. After the first 60 ..7s,ooo tons are purchased, then Can-Cal·wil l begin to receive 20% of gross revenues, or ORI 
(Ovemding Royalty Interest) from Candeo's sales of lava material. 
Can-Cal Resources will be able to focus on developing any other resource potential. 

In or about June 2017, the Securities and Exchange Commission initiated an administrative proceeding before an administrative law 
judge seeking to revoke Can-Cal's reglstratlon as a publicly traded security. In November 2017, the SEC's Division of Enfo�ement 
soughtsumm81'Y adjudication on the issue of pennanent revocation of Cal .. Cal•s securities registn,.tion. Can-Cal opposed the motion and 
the matter has been fully briefed; however, as of April 4; 2018., the administrative law judge bas not issued a ruling. 

NOTE8-SHAREHOLDERS'EQUITY 

In 2015, in exchange for total accrued salaries of $676,333, an agreement was signed to �sue 600,000 common shares {worth 
approximately $18,000 based on August 19, 2015 share prices). This transaction had been accepted and recorded although the shares 
had not yet been issued due to the lawsuit. The common shares were Issued December 31, 2017. 

In 2015, in exchange for accounts payable owing of $-180,000, an agreement was signed to issue 240,000 common shares (worth 
approximately $7,200 based on August 19, 2015 share prices). This transaction had been accepted and recorded although the shares had 
not yet been issued due to the lawsuit. The common shares were issued December 31, 2017. 

Wlu1e the above shares were not officially issued until December 31. 2017, as the debt was written off in 201S, we have included the 
issuance of the shares In the financial statements starting in 2015. No shares of common stock were issued by the Company during 
2016. 

An additional 800,000 shares were issued on December 31, 2017 to the Directors and fonner Directors of the Company. (Note 9) 
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December 31, 
2017 .. 2016 

12,451 $ 13,243 

12,451 $ 13,243
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CAN-CAL RESOURCES LTD. 
(AN EXPLORATION STAGE COMPANY) 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
December 31, 2017 and 2016 

The following presents components of interest expense by instrwnent �e for the years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016, 
respectively: 

Interest on notes payable, related parties 
Accounts payable-related vendor finance charges 
Finance Costs {Equity based) 

·eTotal interest expensee

NOTE 6-UNEARNED REVENUES 

On April 9, 2013, the Company entered: into the Original MSA with Candeo and the Amended MSA on March 3, 2014. Pursuant to the 
Amended MSA, Candeo is entitled to purchase Material from the Pisgah Property at a price equal to the greater o( $1S per ton and the 
net sales margin per ton removed ftom the Pisgah Property realized as follows: (i) 35% of the net sales margins during the first year of 
mining; and {ii) SO% of the net sales margins for the subsequent years during the tenn of the Amended MSA. As ofDecember 31, 2017 
and 2016, we had unearned revenue from this agreement totalfn� $402,438 and $2S3, 765, respectively, 

NOTE 7 -COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES 

The Company has a lease and purchase option agreement covering six patented clafms in the Cerbat Mountains, Hualapai Mining 
District and Mohave Coun� Arizona. The Company pays $1,500 per quarter as minimum advance royalties. The Company has th� 
option to purchase the property for $250,000 p\us interest at-a rate of 8% compounded annually from and after the date of its exercise of 
the option to purchase the property. If the Lessee exercises its option to purchase, .all funds paid to Lessors shall be credited toward the•.' purchase price u of the date the payments were made. 

B) Mining reclamation costs 

Mining and reclamation pt,nnits, and an air quality permit have been issued by the California regulatoty agencies in the names of both 
1\vin Mountain, our joint venture partner, and the Company. The Company posted a cash bond in the amount ofSl,379 (1 % of the to1al 
bond amount) and 1\vin Mountain has posted the remainder of the $137.886 bond. If 'l\vin Mountain defaults, we would be responsible 
for reclamation of the property, but reclamation costs incurred in that event would be paid tn whole or part by the bond posted by us 
and Twin Mountain. Reclamation costs are not presently determinable. 

On June 3, 2014, a group of Company shareholders under the direction of Ronald· D. Sloan (a former Chief Executive Officer and 
director of the Company) (collectively .the "Plaintiffs") filed a shareholder derivative complaint In Nevada State Court against the 
Company, as well as its then cummt directors (Thompson MacDonald, 0. Michael Hogan, and Ron Schinnour), William Hogan, 
FutureWorth Capital Corp. and Candeo (collectively the "Defendants"). The Plaintiffs are allegin& among other things, that the 
Defendants caused the Company to enter into a transaction with Candeo involving the Pisgah Property that was not in the best interests 
of the Company. However, the transaction with Candeo Is in the best interests of the Company (see above in 11Note 3 - Related .Party -
Material Supply Agreement''). 

F-12 

httos:l/www.sec.aov/Archlves/edaar/data/J083848/000168316818000967/cancal_lOk•l23117.btm 59162 



58/62 

5/16/2018 https://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgaddala/1083848/000168316818000967/cancaUOk-123117.htm 

F-11 

llttnq•/huwwvn crnv/Am'hlVPJUedPar/cbta/108:1R48/llnn, 6&116818000967/cancal l0k-123117.htm 

https://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgaddala/1083848/000168316818000967/cancaUOk-123117.htm


5/16/2018 bttps://www.sec.gov/Archlves/eclgar/data/10�848/000168316818000967/cancalJOk-123117.htm 

CAN-CAL RESOURCES LTD. 
(AN EXPLORATION STAGE COMPANY) 

NOTES 'IO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
December 31, 2017 and 2016 

Qnnpensation 

On June 30, 2010, the Company entered into a consulting agreement, with a Board of Director's consulting firm, FntureWorth.Capital 
Corp. The tenns of the agreement include annual compensation of $60,000, payable monthly. The Company may elect to satisfy
payment in shares of common stock in Heu of cash at a market value equal to $0.10 above the average closing trading price of the 
common stock for the preceding five (5) days from the date of such election. No payments have been made in cash or stock to date. As 
of December 31, 2017, the Company owed FutureWorth Capital Corp. $S06 (2016 - $506) as included in accounts payable, related 
parties, for service prior to, and during the service period under the consulting agreement The consulting agreement was terminated on 
Febmary 27, 2013 with Mr. William Hogan's resignation from the Board of Directors. 

On June 10, 2016, the Company entered into a consulting agreem� with a Board of Director's consulting firm, For Life Financial. 
The tenns of the agreement include monthly compensation of $2,100 CAD for managing the Company. On September 10, 2016, the 
Company amended the agreement to Include additional annual compensation $50�000 USD, payable monthly as the scope of work 
increased. 

Stock-Based Compensation

All warrants previously issued by the Company have expired as of the fiscal year ending_ December 31, 2014. No new warrants have 
been issuedas ofDecember31,2017. 

On December 31, 2017, 650,000 Stock Options and 800,000 shares were Issued as compensation for work done by consultants and 
directors of the Company. (Note 9) 

NOTE 4-PREPAID EXPENSES 

Prepaid expenses consisted of the following as ofDecember 31, 2017 and 2016, respectively: 

December 31, 
2017 2016 

Count¥ taxes $ 1,290 $ 1,290
Audltfees 4,500 ,_ 

Total prepaid expenses $ S,790 $ 1 ,29011:11:1ea:::zcc:==;;:c: ae

NOTE 5-NOTES PAYABLE, RELATED PARTms 

Notes payable, related parties consisted of the following as of December 31, 2017 and 2016, respectively: 

Note payable CI) 
Promissory note payable (2) 

Total related party notes payable 

{I) Note payable to the former CEO, unsecured, bearing interest at 10% and due on demand. 
(2)e Promissory n9te payable originated on November 30, 2012 with FutureWorth Capital Corp., a consulting finn owned qy oure

fotmer Chairman of the Board of Directors, wisecured, bearing interest at lOo/o, matures on November 29, 2013. In connectione
with the promissory note, the Company granted wamnts to purchase 20,000 shares of the Company's common stock at ane
exercise price of $0.10. The warrants expired on November 29, 2014.e
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CAN-CAL RESOURCES LTD. 
(AN EXPLORATION STAGE COMPANY) 

NOTBS TO FINANCIAL STATBMEN'FS 
December 31,2017 and 2016 

NOTE 2-GOING CONCERN 

The accompanying financial statements have been prepared assuming the Company will continue as a going concern. As shown in the 
accompanying :financial statements, the Company had a net loss of $349,237 for the year ended December 31, 2017, has used net cash 
in operating activities of$8,068.818 from inception and had a working capital deficit of$973.665 at December 31, 2017. The future of 
the Company is dependent upon its abili1;y to obtain financing and upon future profitable operations from the development of its new 
business opportunities. Management has plans to seek additional capital through private placements and public offerings of its common 
stock. The financial statements do not include any acljustments relating to the recoverability and classification of recorded assets, •Or the 
amounts of and classification of liabilities that might be necessary in the event the Company cannot continue in existence. 

The ability of the Company to continue as a goJng concern is dependent on securing additional sources of capital and the success of the 
Company's plan. The fmancial statements do not Include any adjustments that might be necessary if the Company is unable to continue 
as a going concern. 

NOTE 3-RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 

�greement 

On April 9, 2013, the Company entered into a material supply agreement (the ''the Original MSA") with Candeo Lava Products Inc. 
("Candeo"), which was amended on March 3, 2014 (the c'Amended MSA"). Pursuant to the Amended MSA, Candeo is entitled to 
purchase material ("Material") from the Pisgah Property at a price equal to the greater of $15 per ton and the net sales margin per ton 
removed from the Pisgah Property reallz.ed as follows: (i) 35% of the net sales mugins during the first year of mining; and (ii) 50% of 
the net sales margins for the subsequent years during the tenn of the Amended MSA. Under the Amended MSA, Candeo has the right 
to remove an Initial Amo1Dlt of up to 1,000,000 tons of Material from the Pisgah Property and Additional Amounts of 1,000,000 tons 
each, upon the successt\11 removal of the Inftfal Amount from the Pisgah Property. Candeo's right to remove the Additional Amounts 
from the Pisgah Property is on the basis that once Candeo has removed the first Additional Amount of the Material from the Pisgah · 
Property, it shall •have the right to remove subsequent Additional Amounts of Material from the Property, so long as it removes its then 
cUITmlt Additional Amo1Dlt. As such, Candeo's right to extend the term of the Amended MSA is entirely based on Candeo's successful 
perfonnance of its Material removal commitments under the terms of the Amended MSA. 

Under the Amended MSA, Candeo is required to purchase a minimum of ten thousand (10,000) tons of Material during each of the first 
three years of the term of the agreement, all at a purchase price of $1S.00 per ton, for a total payment of $150,000 per year in each of 
the first three years of the Torm, with· credit being given by the Company to Candeo for all pre-paid tons of Material that have already 
been purchased and paid for under the Original MSA. The Pre-Purchased Material will remain on the Pisgah Property until Candeo 
commences its production operations or engages the Company to mine and remove Material on Candeo's behalf. In the event that 
·Candeo engages the Company to mine and remove any of the ·Materia� Candeo shall pay all of the Company's reasonable costs ando
expenses in conducting such mining and removal operations plus a fee of 15%. All mining and removal operations on the Pisgaho
Property will be subject to all necessary regulatory and other third-party approvals being obtained. The Pre-Purchased Payments willo
not be refundable to Candeo but shall ·be credited against the first Production Payments.o

The tenn of the Amended MSA has been extended from an initial tenn often (IO) years to twen� (20) years (the "Primary Term") ando
Candeo has th� option to extend the term. for an additional thfrty (30) years exercisable at any time with no less than three (3) monthso
written notice prior to the expiration of the .Primary Tenn, provided that Candeo is not in default under any of the provisions of theo
Amended MSA and that the whole of the Initial Amount has been removed from the Property.o

Uneamedrevenues as reflected on the Balance Sheet are a reflection of amounts received from Candeo based on the Amended MSA.o
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CAN-CAL RESOURCES LTD. 
(AN EXPLORATION STAGE COMPANY) 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
December 31. 2017 andc2016 

'°'pltallu<J Mineral Costs 

Mineral rights are recorded at cost of acquisition. When there is little likelihood of a mineral right being exploited; the value of mineral 
rights has diminished below cost, or the economic feasibility of extraction is limited, a write-down is affected against income in the 
period that such detennination is made. Non-mining assets are recorded at cost of acquisition. These assets include the assets of the 
mining operation not included in the previous categories and all the assets of the non-mining operations. Mining assets, including mine 
development and lnftastructure costs and mine pJ�t mcilities, are recorded at cost of acquisition. Expenditures incmred to evaluate and 
develop now ore bodies, to define mineralimtion in existing ore bodies, to establish or expand productive capacity, is capitalized until 
commercial levels of production are achieved, at which time the costs will be amortf7.ed. 

Recent Accounting Pronouncements 

Intangibles - Goodwill and Other (Topic 350). In Januaty 2017, the Financial Accounting Standards Board ("FASB") issued 
Accounting Standards Update ("ASU") 2017-04. The update simplifies the subsequent measurement of goodwill by eliminating Step 2 
from the goodwill impairment test. Under the amendment an entity should recognize an impairment charge for the amount by which the 
carrying amount exceeds the reporting unit's fair value; however, the loss recognized should not exceed the total amount of goodwill 
allocated to that reporting unit. Effective for public business entities that are SBC tilers for annual or any interim goodwill impairment 
tests in fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2019. We are currently evaluating whether the adoption of this new guidance will 
have a significant impact on our consolldated financial statements and related disclosures. 

Cash Plows: Statement of Cash Plows (Topic 230)-Restricted Cash •. ln November 2016, ASU 2016-18 was issued. The update requires 
that a statement of cash flows explains the change during the period in the total of cash, cash equivalents, and amounts generally 
described as restricted cash or restricted cash equivalents. Btrectlve for public business entities {or fiscal years beginning after 
December 15, 2017, and interlin periods within those fiscal years. Early adoption is pmnitted. We are cu.mmtly evaluating whether the 
adoption of this new guidance will have a significant impact on our consolidated financial statements and related disclosures. 

Leases (Topic 842). In Febmary 2016, ASU 2016-02, Leases, was issued. This standard will require all lessees to recognize a right of 
use asset and a lease liabfilty on the balance sheet, except for leases with durations that are less than twelve months. Effective for Public 
business entitles for fiscal yeam beginning after December 15, 2018, including interim periods within those fiscal years (i.e., January 1, 
2019, for a calendar year entity). Nonpublic business entities should apply the amendments for fiscal years beginning after December 
15, 2019 (i.e., Jamwy 1, 2020, for a calendar year entity), and interim periods within fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2020. 
We are currently evaluating whether the adoption of this new guidance will have a significant impact on our consolidated financial 
statements and re1ated disclosures. 

Financial Instruments - Overall (Subtopic 825 .. 10): Recognition and Measurement of Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities. In 
January 2016, ASU 2016-01 was Issued to address certain aspects of recognition, measurement, presentation, and disclosure of 
financial Instruments. The ASU supersedes the guidance to classify equity securities with readily detenninable fair values into different 
categories � requires equi� securities (except those that are accounted for under the equity method or those that result in 
consolidation of the investee) to be measured at &ir value with changes in the fair value recognized through net income. It a1so 
simplifies the fmpabment assessment of equity investments without readily determinable fair values by requiring assessment for 
Impairment qualitatively at each reporting period. Effective for public companies for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2017, 
including interim periods within those fiscal years. We are currently evaluating whether the adoption of this new guidance. will have a 
significant impact on our consolidated financial statements and disclosures. 

Revenue.Recognition (Topic 606): Revenue from Contracts with Customers. In May 2014, ASU 2014-09 was issued. Under this ASU 
and subsequently issued amendments, an entity Is required to recognlm the amount of revenue it expects to be entitled to for the 
transfer of promised goods or services to customers. The updated standard will replace most existing revenue recognition guidance in 
U.S. OAAP. This ASU provides alternative methods of transition, a full retrospective and a modified restrospective approach. The 
modified retrospective approach would result in recognition of the cumulative' impact of a retrospective application as of the beginning 
of the period of initial application. Public business entities, certain not-for-profit entities, and certain employee benefit plans should 
apply the guidance in A�m 2014-09 io annual reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2017, including Interim reporting periods 
within that reporting period. 
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CAN-CAL RESOURCES LTD. 

(AN EXPLORATION STAGE COMPANY) 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

December 31, 2017 and 2016 

Stock-Based Compensatjon 

The Company has adopted FASB guidance on stock-based compensation. Under FASB ASC 718-10-30-2, all stock-based payments to 
employees, including grants of employee stock options., to be recognmd fn the income statement based on their fiur values. 

Modification of Warrants 

There bas been no recognition of any stock-based finance charges for the years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016. 

Income Taxes 

The Company recognizes defe1Ted tax assets and liabilities based on differences between the financial reporting and tax basis of assets 
and liabilities using the enacted tax rates and laws that are expected to be in effect when the differences are expected to be recovered. 
The Company provides a valuation allowance for deferred tax assets for which it does not consider realimtion of such assets to be more 
likely than not. 

Uncertain Tax Positions 

In accordance with ASC 740, "Income 'laxes" (HASC 740"), the Company recognizes the tax benefit from an uncertain tax position 
only if it is more likely than not that the tax position will be capable of withstanding examination by the taxing authorities based on .the 
technical merits of the position. These standards prescribe a recognition threshold and measurement attribute for the financial statement 
recognition and measurement of a tax position taken or expected to be taken in a tax return. These standards also provide guidance on 
de-recognition, classification, interest and penalties, acco1D1tfng in interim periods, disclosure, and transition. 

Various taxing authorities periodically audit the Company's income tax returns. These audits include questions regarding tho 
Company's tax filing positions, including the timing and amount of deductions and the allocation of income to various tax jurisdictions. 
In evaluating the exposures connected with these various tax filing positions, including state and local taxes, the Company records 
allowances for probable exposures. A number of years may elapse befbre a particular matter, for which an allowance has been 
established, is audited and fully resolved. The Company has not y�t undergone an examblatlon by any taxing authorities. 

The assessment of the Company's tax position relies on the judgment of management to estimate the exposures associated with the 
Company's various tiling positions. 

Mineral ClaimPayments and Exploration Expenditures 

The Company is primarily engaged in the acquisition and exploration of mining properties. Mineral property exploration costs are 
expensed as incurred. Mineral property .acquisition costs are initially capitalized when incurred. We assess the carrying cost for 
impainnent under ·the FASB ASC topic 360 at each fiscal quarter end. When it has been determined that a mineral property can be 
economically developed as a result of establishing proven and probable reserves, the costs subsequently incurred to develop ,such 
property are capitalized. Such costs will be amortized using the units-of-production method over the established life of the proven and 
probable reserves. If mineral properties are subsequently abandoned or Impaired. any capitalized costs will be charged to operations. 
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CAN-CAL RESOURCES LTD. 
(AN EXPLORATION STAGE COMPANY) 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
December 31, 2017 and 2016 

Use ofF,stimates 

The preparation of financial statements in confonnity ·with generally accepted accounting principles requires management to make 
estimates and assmnptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at 
the date of the financial statements and the reported amount of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could 
differ itom those estimates. 

Cash and Cash Bqpivalents 

Cash equivalents include money market accounts which have maturities of three months or less. For the purpose of the statements of 
cash flows. all highly liquid investments with an original maturity of three months or less are considered to be cash equivalents. Cash 
equivalents are stated at cost plus accrued Interest, which approximates market value. 

umg-Llyed mets 

Fixed assets are recorded at the lower of cost or estimated net recoverable amount, and is depreciated using the straight-line method 
over the estimated useful life of the related asset as follows: 

Macbineiy and equipment 10 years 
li'ansportation equipment S years 
Furniture and fixtures 7 years 

Maintenance and repairs will be charged to expense as incmred. Significant renewals and betterments wm be capitalize� At the time of 
retirement or other disposltl9n of equipment, the cost and accumulated depreciation will be removed ftom the accounts and the 
resulting gain or loss, if any, will be reflected in operations. 

The Company wlll assess the recoverabflicy of equipment by determining whether the depreciation and amortimion of these assets 
over their remaining life can be recovered through projected undlscounted tuture cash flows. The amount of equipment impairment, if 
any, will be measured based on &fr value and is charged to operations in the period in which such impairment is determined by 
management 

Fair YaJue of Financial Instruments 

Under FASB ASC 820-10-0S, the Financial Accounting Standards Board establishes a framework for measuring fair value in generally 
accepted actounting principles and expands disclosures about fair value measurements. This Statement reatlinns that fair value is the 
relevant measurement attnoute. The adoption of this ·standard did not have a material effect on the Company's financial statements as 
reflected herein. The canying amounts of cash, accounts payable and accrued expenses reported on the balance sheets are estimated by 
management to approximate fair value primarily due to the short-tenn nature of the instruments. The Company had no items that 
required fair value measurement on a recurring basis. 

Basic and Diluted Loss per Share 

The basic net loss per common share is computed by dividing the net toss by the weighted average number of common shares 
outstanding. Diluted net loss per common share is computed by dividing the net loss adjusted on an "as if converted., basis, by the 
weighted average number of common shares outstanding plus potential dilutive securities. For 2017 and 2016 potential dilutive 
securities had an anti-dilutive effect and were not included in the calculation of diluted net loss per common share. 
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CAN-CAL RESOURCES LTD. 
(AN EXPLORATION STAGE COMPANY) 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
December31,2017 and2016 

NOTE 1-NATURE OF BUSINESS AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

Nature or Business

Can-Cal Resources Ltd. ("Can-Cal" or the "Company") is a Nevada corporation incorporated on March 22, 1995. 

The Company is an exploration company engaged in the exploration for precious metals, specifically focused on mineral exploration 
projects. We have examined various prospective mineral properties for precious metals and acquired those deemed promising. We 
currently own, lease or have mining interest in two mineral properties in the southwestem United States (California and Ariz.one, as 
follows: Cerbat, Arizona and PJsgah, California). The Company previously had mineral rights in Owl Canyon, California and Wtkieup, 
Arizona, which have now been abandoned. 

As an exploration stage enterprise, the Company discloses the deficit accumulated during the exploration stage. An entity remains In 
the exploration stage unb1 such time as proven or probable reserves have been established for its deposits. Upon the location of 
commercially mineable reserves, the Company plans to prepare for mineral extraction and enter the development stage. To date, the 
exploration stage of the Company,s operations consists of contracting with geologists who sample and assess the mining viability of thee
Company's claims. 

Snmmacy, 

Basis ofPresentation 

of Significant As;counting Policies 

These financial statements and related notes are presented in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United 
States. Tho Company's fiscal year-end is December 31. 

The Company,s functional and reporting currency is the United States dollar (USD). Monetary assets and liabilities denominated Ine
foreign currencies are translated in accordance with ASC 820, using the exchange rate prevailing at the balance sheet date. Gains and 
losses arising on settlement of foreign currency denominated transactions or balances are included In the determination of Income. 
Foreign cwrency transactions are primarlJy undertaken In the Canadian dollar (CON). The Company has not, to the date of these 
financial statements, entered into derivative instruments to offset the impact of foreign currency fluctuations. 

Certain amounts in the prior periods presented have been reclassified to confonn to the current period financial statement presentation. 

Bxploratjon Stag�mmx 

The Company is currently an exploration stage company. As an exploration stage enterprise, the Company discloses tho deficit 
accumulated during the exploration stage and the cumulative statements of operations and cash flows from inception to the current 
balance sheet date. The Company has incurred an accumulated deficit ofSll,613,029 for the period from Inception (March 22, 1995) 
through December 31, 2017. An entity remains in the exploration stage until such time as proven or probable reserves have been 
established for its deposits. Upon the location of commercially mineable reserves, the Company plans to prepare for mineral extraction 
and enter the development stage. To date, the exploration stage of the Company's operations consists of contracting with geologists 
who sample and assess the mining vfabfllty of the Company's claims. 

Revenue 

· Revenue is generated fonn the lease of mineral properties under our controL Revenue is recognized monthly over tho term of the lease.e
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CAN-CAL RESOURCES LTD. 
(AN EXPLORATION STAGE COMPANY) 

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOW 

Year ended December 31, 
2017 2016 

CASH FLOWS PROM OPERATING ACTMTIES 
Net loss 

Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash used in operating activities: 
$ $ (168,105) 

Stock-based compensation 30,500 
Decrease (increase) in assets: 

Prepaid expenses (4,500) 
Increase (decirease) in liabilities: 

AccolDlts payable 153,451 89,716 
Accrued expenses 1,799 3,480 
Accrued expenses, related parties 12,451 12,502 
Unearned revenues 
Unearned revenues, related party 

Net cash used in operating activities 

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTMTIES 
Proceeds :from not� payable, related parties 

Net cash provided by (used fn) financing activities 

Net increase (decrease) in cash 769 (1,905) 
Cash, beginning of period 1,905 

$ 769 s 

(9,167) 
148,673 54,106 

(6,863) (17,468) 

7,632 15,563 

7,632 15,563 

Cash, end of period 

CASH PAID JlOR 
Interest expense 
Income taxes 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of theseftnancial statements. 
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CAN-CAL RESOURCES LTD. 
(AN EXPLORATION STAGE COMPANY) 

STATBMBNTS OF CHANGES IN STOCKHOLDERS' DEFICIT 
December 31, 2017 and 2016 

(Deficit)
Accumulated 

C�mmon stock Addltlonal during Total 

Balance, December 31, 2015 

Number of 
Shares 

42,867,060 
Amount 

s 42,867 

Paid-In 

Ca2ltal 
$ 10,S6S,997 

Exploration 
Sta(! 

$ (11,095,687) 

Stockholden' 

Defielt 
$ (486,823) 

Net loss 
Balance, December 31, 2016 42,861,060 42,867 I0,S65,997 

(168,105) 
(11,263,792) 

(168,105) 
(654,928) 

Stock-based compensation 
Net loss 
Balance, December 31, 2017 

800,000 

43,667,060 

800 

$ 43,667 

29,700 

$ 10,595,697 
(349,237) 

$ (11,613,029) s 

30,500 
(349,237)
(973,665) 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 
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CAN .. CAL RESOURCES LTD. 
(AN EXPLORATION STAGE COMPANY) 

STATBMBNTS OF OPERATIONS 
For the years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016 

201'7 2016 
Rental Income $ - $ 9,167 

Ope�tlng expenses: 
Exploration costs 8,738 17,096 
General and administrative 228,747 147,346 
Depreciation 
Officer salary end director fees 
Stock-based compensation 

Total operating expenses 

Net operating loss 

Other income (expense): 
Interest expense (12,451)
Gain on sale of assets 9,000 
Foreign exchange gain (loss) (3,503) 

Loss before provision for Income taxes (349,237) (168,105)
Provision for income taxes 

Net loss $ (349,237) $ (168,105) 

Weighted average number of common shares outstanding-basic and fblly diluted 42,869,252 42,867,060 

Net loss per share -basic and fully diluted $ (0.0l) (0.00) (l) 

(1)0 V�lue ls a negative amount less than 0.01.0

The accompanying notes are an Integral part of these financial statements. 
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75,000 
30.500 

342,983 

(34i,9B3) 

164,442 

(155,275) 

Non-recurring income 

Total other income (expense) 

700 

(6,254) 

145
268 

(12,830) 
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CAN-CAL RESOURCES LTD. 
(AN EXPLORATION STAGE COMPANY) 

BALANCE SHBBTS 

Deeember 31, December 31, 
2017 2016 

ASSETS 
Current assets: 

Cash $ 769 $ 

Other cumnt assets 5,790 1,290 

Tota1 current assets 6,5S9 1,290 

Total assets $ 6,5S9 $ 1,290 

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' (DEFICIT) 
Current liabilities: 

Accounts payable $ 310.817 $ 157,366 
Accounts payable, related parties 506 506 
Accrued expenses 8,679 6,880 

Accrued expenses, related parties 117,913 105,462 
Unearned rental revenues 
Unearned revenues, related party 402,438 2S3,16S 

Notes payable, related parties 139,871 132,239 

Total cummt liabilities 

Total liabilities 

Commitments and contingencies (See Note 8) 

Stockholders' (deficit): 
. Preferred stock(l) 
Common stock(2) 43,667 42,867 
Additional paid-in capital 10,S95,697 10,565,997 
(Deficit) accumulated during exploration stage (11,613,029) (11 ;263, 792) 

Total stockholders' (deficit) 

Total liabilities and stockholders' (deficit) 

(1)0 Preferred stock, $0.001 par value, 10,000,000 shares authorized, no shares issued and outstanding0
(2)0 Common stock, $0.001 par value, 100,000,000 shares authorized, 43,667,060 issued and outstanding as of December 31, 2017 and

42,867,060 Issued and outstanding as of December 31, 20 I 6.0

The accompQ11J1ing notes are an Integral part of theaeftnancial statements. 

F-2 
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980�224 656,218 
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM 

To the Board of Directors of 
ean .. CaJ Resources Ltd. 

Opinion on the Financial Statements 

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Can-Cal Resources Ltd. (11the Company") as of December 31, 2017 
and 2016 and the related consolidated statements of operations, stockholders' equity and cash flows for the years then ended. In our 
opinion, the financial s1atements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the Company as of December 31, 2017 
and 2016, and the results of Its operadons and Its cash flows for each of the two years in the period ended December 31, 2017� in 
conformity with generally accepted accounting principles. 

Basis for Opinion 

These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company's management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the 
Company's financial statements based on our audits. We are a public accounting rmn registered with the Public Company Accounting 
Oversight Board (United States) ("PCA:OB") and are required·to be independent with respect to the Company in accordance with the 
U.S. federal secmities laws and the applicable rules and regulations of the Securities and Exchange Commission and the PCAOB. 

We conducted our audits In accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Those 
standards require that we plan and perfonn an audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the financial statements are tree of material 
misstatement, whether due to error or fraud. Our audits included performing procedures to assess the risks of material misstatement of 
the·financlal statements, whether due to error or fraud, and perfonnlng procedures that respond to those risks. Such procedures included 
examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the fmancial statements. Our audits also included 
evaluating the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation 
of the financial statements. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion. 

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of 
Can-Cal Resources Ltd. as of December 31, 2017 and 2016 and the results of their operations and their cash flows for each of the years 
in the period ended December 31, 2017 in confonnity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.. 

Matter of Emphasis 

The accompanying consolfdated financial statements have been prepared assuming that the Company will continue as a going concern. 
As described in Note 2 to the consolidated financial statements, the Company has suffered recurring losses from operations and 
negative cash flows from operating activities that raise substantial doubt about its abiley to continue as a going concern. Management's 
plans m regard to these matters are also described in Note 2. The consolidated financial statements do not include any acljustments that 
might result from the outcome of this uncertainty. 

/sfThayer o•Neat Company, LLC 

Thayer O'Neal Company, LLC 

We have served as the Company's auditor since 2013 

Houston, Texas 
Marchll.2018 

F-1n
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POWER OF ATTORNEY 

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, and Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, this Annual Report on 
Form 10-K has been signed by the following persons in the capacities indicated on the dates indicated. 

l.slSJJry. Oosterhoff. Director 
April 10, 2018 
Gary Oosterhoff 

IslComelus Korver,..lllllD�fcecto��r-__ 
April 10, 2018 
Comelus Korver 
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SIGNATURES 

Pmsuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, the Registrant has 
duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized 

CAN.CAL RESOURCES LTD. 

By: Isl Casey Dmml,::;:;as:,=s ________ _ 

Casey Douglass, Chairman of the Board of Directors 

Date: April 10, 2018 
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PARTIV 

ITEM 15. EXHIBITS, FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES. 

The following information required under this item is tiled as part of this report: 

(a)01. Financial Statements0

Page 
Mowtgement's &,port on Jntemat control overfinancial Repmiing 25 

F-10
F-20Balance s1teets 

F-50

Statements ofQperations 
Statements of Stockholders· 
Statements of Cash F)ows
Notes to financial Stat;ments F-60

(b) 2. Financial Statement Schedules 

None. 

(c)03. Exhibit Index0

Bxhlblt 
3.1 

3.2 

3.3 

10.1 
10.2 

10.3 

10.4 

31.1 

Exhibit Descril!!!on 
Articles af rncm:poratjon 
Ammulmmtm du2 6J:liglm gfincm;pamtim 

BY.::ldnn 

Fonn of Mineral Leue Asmement 
Egan gf Promf11m:x Ngm willl Eum�Wgnb 
QiR.hnl 
Ponn of Subsgrj�greement for Pr01njssory. 
J!lgta wilb EummiVQlib C1mml 
Ponn Df Wm:mot Certlllat; lii1h Purure:Wgrth 
C,igltll
CmfiGlltism gf Edogigl\l EB�llm2 
Qffi9arlEl:ln,11211 Ein11ngigl QfficecRYllilUIDt m 

Filed 

herewith 

X 

Form 
Form 10-

SB 

Form 10-
SB 

Form 10-
SB 

10-K 
10-K 

10-K 

10-K 

lnco!Eorated by reference 

Period ending Exhibit 
N/A 3.0 

N/A 3.1 

N/A 3.2 

12/31/2014 10.1 
12/3112014 10.2 

12/31/2014 10.3 

12/31/2014 10.4 

Filing date 
7/9/1999 

7/9/1999 

7/9/1999 

1n12016 
1n12016 

1n12016 

1n12016 

Semigu 3gz 52flhe SaibDD§!J•Qxl�y..Am
Cmitlcatioo X 

Qffim/Edos:i111I Einancinl om,�c Pnrm11ul ta 
29fi of tb1 fh.u:bmua.::Cllm1..Am 

Summaay..&tmwllng�ph. Wikieup, Cerbat and 
the Owl Canyon Prapm:d§ 

IOI.INS XBRL Instance Document X 
101.SCH0 XBRL Schema Document X 
JOI.CAL0 XBRL Calculation Linkbase Document X 
101.DBF0 XBRL Definition Lfnkbase Docwnent X 
IOI.LAB XBRL Labels Linkbase Document X 

10-KSB/A0 12/31/07 99.1 03/11/09 

IOI.PRE XBRL Presentation Lfnkbase Document X 

99.1 
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Since August 20 I� O. Michael Hogan, the former CEO and former Chainnan of the Board, has been providing funds to t1ie 
Company to pay for ongoing operations. The amount received is a note payable, is unsecured, bears interest at 10%, and is due on 
demand. At December 31, 2017, the amount outstanding, including interest, Is $179,409. 

ITEM 14. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTANT FEES AND SERVICES. 

The Board of Directors has not established an audit committee. However, the Board of Directors, as a group, carries out the 
responsibilities, which an audit committee would have. In this respect the Board of Directors has the responsibility of reviewing our 
financial statements. exercising general oversight of the Integrity and rellabillty of our accounting and financial reporting practices, and · 
monitoring the effectiveness of our internal control systems. The Board of Directors also recommends selection of the auditing finn and 
exercises general oversight of the activities of our independent auditors, principal financial and accounting officers and employees and 
related matters. 

Until his resignation, the Board of Directors delegated management of the Company to Mr. G. Michael Hogan and the Board 
of Directors. The responsibility was then passed on to the Chairman of the Board to manage the tenns of engagement, before we 
engage independent auditor for audit and non-audit services, except as to engagements for services outside the scope of the original 
terms, in which instances the services have been provided plD'Suant to preapproval policies and procedures, established by management 
These pre-approval policies and procedmes aro detailed as to the category of service and the Board of Directors ls kept infµrmed of 
each service provided. 

(7)oThayer O'Neal Company, LLC, was retained as our auditing firm by the Board of Directors for the fiscal years endedo
December 31, 2016 and 2017. Thayer O'Neal Company, LLC billed us as follows for the years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016, 
respectively: 

For the Fiscal Years 
($ dollars) Ended December 31, 

2017 2016 
Audit Fees<a) 28,S82 2S,443 
Audit-Related FeesCb> 
TaxFees(c) 
All Other Fees<d) 
Total fees paid or accrued 28,S82 2S,443 

a)o Includes fees for audit of the annual financial statements and review of quarterly fmaneial information filed with theo
Securities and Exchange Commission.o

b)o For assurance and related services that were reuonabty related to the perfonnance oftbe audit or review of the financialo
statements, which are not included In the Audit Fees category. The Company had no Audit-Related Fees for the periods'' ended December 31, 2017 and 2016.o
For tax complianceJ tax advice, and tax planning services, relating to any and all·federal and state tax returns as necessaryo
for the periods ended December 31, 2017 and 2016, respectively.o

d)o For services in respect of any and all other reports as required by the SBC and other govemlng agencies.o
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2017 

Percentage or 
Outstanding 

Common 
Name and Address orBeneficial Owner, Officer or Director Notes (l) & Cl) Shares Stock Note (2)

Number or 

Beneficial Owners, Officers and Directors: 
0 Michael Hogan, Former CEO, President and Director 3,760,419 8.6% 

Gary Oosterhoff, Director 300,000 (4) 0.'70/4 
Comelus (Case) Korver, Director 300,000 (4) 0. 7% 
All Current Directors and Executives as a Group 1,063,000 · (4) 2.5% 

(I)0 As used in this table, "beneficial ownership" means the sole or shared power to vote, or to direct the voting ot a security, or the0
solo or shared investment power with respect to a security (i.e., the power to dispose of, or to direct the disposition ot; a security).0

(2) Figures are rounded to the nearest tenth of a percent. 
(3)0 The address of each person is care of Can-Cal: 42 Springfield Avenue, Red Deer, Alberta, Canada T4N 0C7.0
(4)0 These amounts mclude the 100,000 of stock options that each of the directors have that are vested and exercisable within 60 days0

after December 31, 2017.0

2016 
Percentage of 
Outstanding 

CommonNumber0of 
Stock Note (2)0

Beneficial Owners, Officers and Directors: 
Name and Address of Beneficial Owner, Officer or Director Notes (l) & (3)0 Shares 

G Michael Hogan, Fonner CEO, President and Director 2,960,419 6.9% 

Casey Douglass, Director 263,000 0.6% 
Gary Oosterhotr. Director 100,000 0.2% 
Comelus (Case) Korver, Director 100,000 0.2% 
All Current Directon and Exeeutlves as a Group 463,000 1.0% 

(1)0 As used In this table, "beneficial ownership" means tho sole or shared power to vote, or to direct the voting of, a security, or the0
sole or shared investment power with respect to a security (i.e., tho power to dispose of, or to direct tho disposition of, a secwity).0

(2) Figures are rounded to the nearest tenth of a percent. 
(3) · The address of each person Is care of Can-Cal: 42 Springfield Avenue, Red Deer, Alberta, Canada T4N 0C7.0

ITEM 13. CERTAIN RELATJONSWPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS, AND DIRECTOR INDEPENDENCE. 

Starting June 10, 2016, For Life Financial, a company owned by Casey Douglass, one of the directors, was hired to manage 
the day-to-day operations of the Company. The agreement was signed for a monthly rate of $2,100 CAD per month. On September 20, 
2016, a second agreement to wholly manage the Company was added at a rate of$50,000 USD per annum. 

Casey DouglassJ a director of the Company has a 2% ownership in Candeo Lava Products Inc. The Company has a material 
supply agreement with Candeo Lava Products Inc. for the Pisgah Property, pursuant to which Candeo will pay for and acquire 30,000 
tons, and then it will pre-purchase a minimum of ten thousand (10,000) tons per year at a purchase price of fifteen dollars ($15.00 
USD) per ton for a total payment of$150,000 USD per year fn each of the first three years of the term. 

30 
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2S. PARTIAL INVALIDITY. If any 1erm or provision of this Second Amended MSA 
shall to any extent be held invalid or unenforceable, then the remaining terms and provisions of 
this Second Amended MS:A shall not be affected thereby. but each term and provision of this 
Second Amended MSA shall be valid and be enforced to the fullest Plttent permitted by law. In 
the event that any provision of this Second Amended MSA relating to the time periods shall be 
deciared by a court of competent jurisdiction to exceed the maximum time period that such court 
deems reasonable and enforoeable. the time period deemed reasonable and enforceable· by the 
court shall beco�e and thereafter be the maximum time period. 

26.cGOVBRNrnO LAW. This Second Amended MSA shall be govemed by tho laws of
the State of Nevada. 

27.cCAPTIONS. The captions of this Second Amended MSA are for convenience only
and are not to be construed as part of this Second Amended MSA and shall not be construed as 
defining or limiting in any way the scope or Intent of the provisions of 1hfs Second Amended 
MSA. 

28.cNO WAIVER.. No waiwr of any covenant or condition contained In this Secondc
Amended MSA or of any breach of any such covenant or condition shall constitute a waiver of 
any subsequent breach of such covenant or condition by either party or justify or authorize the 
non-observance on any other occasion of tho same or any other covenant or condition. 

29.cBNTIRB AGRBBMBNT; MODIFICATION. This Second Amended MSA represents
the en� understanding and agreement between the parties with. respect hereto and supersedes 
all prior written instruments or memoranda with respect to the subject matter of this Second 
Am�nded MSA. No modification of this S��d Amended MSA shall be bmding unless it ls in 
writing and executed by an authorized representative �f Can-Cal and Candeo. 

30.cCOUNTERPARTS. Thls Second Amended MSA may be executed in one or morec
counterparts which, together, shall constitute an original and binding agreement on the parties 
hereto. 

31.cRELATIONSHIP OF 'll:IB PARTJBS. Nothing contained in this Second Amended
MSA shall be deemed or construed by the parties hereto. nor by any third party, as creating the 
relationship of principal and agent, partnership, or joint venture between the parties hereto. it 
being understood arid agreed that no provision contained In this Second Amended MSA,nor any 
acts of the parties hereto shall be deemed to oreate any relationship other than the relationship of 
supplier and customer. 

32.cINCORPORATION OF EXFDBITS. This Second Amended MSA shall be deemed toc
have incorporated by reference-all of the Exhibits referred to herein to the same extent as if such 
Bxhibits were fatly set forth herein. 

[signature page follows] 

OAN:26243769.S 
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IN WITNBSS WHBREOF, the parties have hereunto set their hands and seals as of the day and year flrsi above written. 
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Bxecuted effective as of the date first above written. 

CAN-CALIESOURCES,LTD. 

Per: _________ _

· 

Name: 
Title: 
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have·bereunto set their hands and seals as of the 
day and y�ar first above written. · 

Jixecuttd efTe�tlve as of the dale fJrst above written. 

CAl.�EO LA VA P�ODUCTS INC. 

Per: ____________
Name; 
Title: 

CAN-CAL RESOURCESt LTD. 

CAN: 262431159.fJ 
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The Pisgah Mine Project Is located in San Bemardino County. 72 kilometers (4S miles) east of 
the city of Barstow, C�rnla. and 307 kilometers (192 miles) south-southeast of Las Vegas1 
Nevada, Uplted States. Barstow lies near the southwest border of Califomi«, east of the junction 
of Interstate 151 Interstate 40 and U.S. Route 66. The Project ls centered at Latitude 34° 44' 47" 
North, Longitude 116° 22' 29" West, or UTM (metric) co-ordinates S5700 PJ384S00 N. in Zone 
11, datum point NAD 27. It lies within Section 32, Township 8 North. Range 6 Bast from San 
Bemardfno Meridian. It has an area of 48.4 hectares (120.2 acres). In 1997 Can-Cal Resources 
Ltd., a Las Vegas, NV based exploration company, gained l 00% ownership of the claim which 
covers the Pisgah property. 

Access to' the Pisgah Project is by the paved 2-lane paved road from the junction of Interstate 15 
. and Interstate 40 just east of Barstow, Callfomia travel east along Interstate 40 for 52 kilometers 

(32.S miles). Take 1ho Hector Rd. Exit and turn right onto Hector Rd. From here turn left onto 
Historic Route 66 for 7.4 kilometers (4.6 miles), and then tum right (south) onto the Pisgah 
Crater road. Pollow this road for 3.2 kilometers (2.0 miles) to the Pisgah Crater wotldngs. 

The.Pisgah Mining Property lim near the south end of the Mojave.Desert. The region forms the 
southwestem extent of Precambrian continental North America and rests at the present plate 
edge formed by the San Andreas transform fault. An oceanic plate has botdered the region since 
late Precambrian time. Starting in late Miocene time the Mojave Desert area was dissected by 
NW-trending right-lateral strike-slip faults with local areas of B-trendlng left-lateral strike-slip 
faults. 

10740258_1 
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ExhibitB 

[Approved Form orucc Financing Statement Attached] 

CAN: 28243789.5 



UCC FINANCING STATEMENT 
FOLLOW INBmUOTIONS 

A. NAME & PHONE OF CONTACT AT FILER (opUonal) 

B. E•MAIL CONTACT AT FILER (optional) 

C. SEND ACKNOWLEDGMENT TO: (Name and Address) 

]Lori Argall
Holland & HartLLP 
5441 Kietzko Lane 
Second Floor 

LReno,NV 89511 .J 
THE ABOVE SPACE IS FOR FILING OFFICE USE ONLY 

1. DEBTOR'S NAME: Prowl• orJy lll1ll Deblornamo (ta er 1b) (one exact. Ml rwn•; do nolomll. modllr, or8bb�oto llllY parlof Uu> Doblat• 11&111e); If Gl)Y parl of the lrdMdual Oobtcr's 
namewif notntln Una 1b, IBllY8 ell of llem 1 blank. chOClC ttere O end ptO\ida lho lndMduol DabtcrlnfonnaVon lnllom 10011110 Analldng siatament Addenlf,Jm (Form UCC1Ad) 

1a ORGANIZATION'S NAME 
Can-Ca\_Resources Ltd. 

OR 1b. lNOJVIOUAl.'S SURNAME FlRST PERSOIW.NAME ADO!TIONAI. IWdE(S)nNITIAL(S) BUFFlX 

1c. MAIUNO AOORESS CtTY STATE OSTALCODE COUNTRY 

rE

2. DEBTOR'S NAME: � rriy llll!IOoblor namo (2a or 21>) (u .. oxm:� M noma: do not olllll. modify, or abbraVlale any part cl Iha Deb'.or's name); If any port cllhe lndMduaJ Debtor's 
namo wl1I not nt In line 2b, fem, el of 111m 2 blsnlr, checll horo O and plO'l!de lho ln�dual Dablorlnfannalloa In Item 10 cl lho Anoncfng Sla!unontAddondum (form UCC1Ad) 

2a. OROANJZATJON'S NAME 

OR 211, lNOIVIDUACS SURNAME FlRST PERSONAL NAME ADDmOAAL NAME{S)IIMT1Al.{S) SUl'FtX 

2a. MAIUNOAOORESS CITY STATE 'POSTAi. CODE COUNTRY 

3. SECURED PARTY'S NAME CorNMIE a! ASSIOHEE of ASSIONO!I SECURED PAR!Yl: Prov.do onlv au Saeta'ed """"name 13a or3bl 
3a. OROANIZATION'S NIWE 
Candeo Lava Products Inc. 

OR 3b. lNOJIIIDUAl:S SURNAME FIRST PERSOJW. NAME AODITIONAI. NAME(S)IINmA4S) SUFFIX 

:io. MAJUNCl ADORESS CITY STATE OSTAL COOE COUNTRY 
1712 N 25 St. s.w. Calgary, Alberta rT3C 1J6 CAN 

The collateral consists or (J) all Material thot Secured Party has previously purchased until such Materlnl fs removed from 
the Property, (il)-all Materlnl that Secured Party in the future purchases under the Second Amen!fcd MSA until such. 
MaterJol Is removed from the Property, ond (ill) all rights or Secured Party under the Second Amended MSA to purchase 
M1tterlal, As used herein, (I) "Second Amended MSA" means that Second Amended and.Restated Material Supply 
Agreement, dated as of March 15, 2018, between Debtor and Secured Party, (ll) "Material" means the volcanic lnvn, cinders, 
gravel, rockt sediments, and other material on or under the Property that Debtor may lawfully sell under the Second 
Amended MSA, and (fli) ''Property" meons the approximately 120 acres of property situated 45 miles east of Darstow, 
California and more partJcularly described In attached Exhibit "A". · 

6. ClledtmU apJ)llcab!a 1111d chock.lllltt on• box: CoDal"'81 Is held In a TIIISI (ue UCC1Ad, llom 17 ond lnwucUoru,) 
sa. Chookm 1t app11ca1>11 unc1 c:hecl( m0118 b ax: 6b. Che<lt.lllllJ:hpp:tcal>!o l!lld checl<milXona baX: 

0 PublJo.FJnanco Tnwndlon MsnLtactufOCl.l-!Omo Trnnsaetlon A Oeblor ts a Trana milting UUDty 0 Agricutural Uon 
7.ALTERNATtVE.cestGNATION(l(sppllcllble): 0 Lamll/1.aew Sollor/lhJyol UtDnsoo/Ucorucr 

8. OPTIONAL FILER REFERENCE DATA: 
85517,0001 
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RUNG OFFICE COPY-UCC FINANCING STATEMENT (Fonn UCC1) (Rev. 04/20/11) 



ExhlbitA 

The Pisgah Mine Project is located in San Bernardino County, 72 kilometers (45 miles) east of 
the city of Barstow, California, and 307 kilometers (192 miles) south-southeast of Las Vegas, 
Nevada, United States. Barstow lies near fhe southwest border of California., east of the junction 
of Interstate 15, Interstate 40 and U.S. Route 66. The Project ls centered at Latitude 34° 44' 47'' 
North, Longitude 116° 22' 29" West, or UTM (metric) co-ordinates 55700 B/384S00 N in Zone 
11, datum point NAD 27. It lies within Section 32, Township 8 North, Range 6 East from San 
Bernardino Meridian. It has an area of 48.4 hectares (120.2 acres). In 1997 Can-Cal Resources 
Ltd., a Las Vegas, NV based exploration company, gained 100% ownership of the claim whtoh 
covers the Pisgah property. 

Access to the Pisgah Project is by the paved 2-lane paved road from the junction of Interstate 1S 
· ·and Interstate 40 just east �f Barstow, California travel east along Interstate 40 for 52 kilometers 

(32.5 miles). Take the Hector Rd. Exit and tum right onto Hector Rd. From here tum left ontos. 
Historic Route 66 for 7.4 ldlometers (4.6 miles). and then turn right (south) onto the Pisgah 
Crater road. Follow this road for 3.2 kilometers (2.0 miles) to the Pisgah Crater workings. 

The Pisgah Mining Property lies near the south end of the Mojave Desert. Tho region forms the 
southwestem extent of Precambrian continental North America and rests at the presentplate 

_ edge formed by the San Andreas transform fault. An oceanic plate has bordered the region sinces
late Precambrian time. Starting in late Miocene time the Mojave Desert area was dissected by
NW-trending right-lateral strike-slip faults with local areas of B-trending left-lateral strike-slip
faults. 



UCC FINANCING STATEMENT 
FOUOW INSTRUCTIONS 

A. NAME & PHONE OF CONTACT AT FILER (optional) 

B. E-MAIL CONTACT AT FILER (opUonal) 

C, SEND ACKNOWLEDGMENT TO: (Name and Address) 

rLori .Argalle
Holland & }lsrt LLP 
5441 Ktetzke Lane 
Second Floor 

LReno,NV 89511 _j 
THE ABOVE SPACE IS FOR FILING Of FICE USE ONLY 

1. DEBTOR'S NAME: Pl'O\'lda orjy.GDJID4bwnama {la or1b) (usun<1, Ml namo; do notam!I. rnocm,, oc;el:tmlalo ony part of the Deblcf• m1mo� If •111 part of Iha tndMdual Debtcr'• 
namewlll not DI lnlno 1b, , ...... all o1 ftem 1 blank, dieclch!llll □ Clml p,vvfdo Iha lnd!o.<di!tl Ooblorlnfarmallon In llom 10ol lln, FlnalldnQ StalemenlAddondUm (Fa1111 UCC1Ad) 

1o. ORGANIZAT!Ol'tS NAME 
Can-Cal Resources Ltd. 

OR 1b. lNDlvtOUAL'S SURNAME FIRST PERSONAL l'W,IE ADOITIONAI. NA.\IE(SJJ!NITW.{S) surnx 

1o, MAILING ADDRESS CITY STATE POSTAL CODE COUNTRY 
I 

2. DEBTOR'S NAME: Pnn'dt anl)'lll!!I Dobtcrlllffl9 (24 or2b) (Use exact, IUD name: do nal omit, ma41)', orabbra'llata 1111Y port of Im Ooblor'1 nam,,); 11 any part cf !ho lndM®'ll Oeblafs 
name W':I not IN tnlno 2b, l•av• al ol'l\am 2 blent. clleekhanl O and pro'l'A• lh• lnc!v!dual Dsblc<ln/ormallon In ll8m 10of tho FlrulndnU Stalomen!Addendum (Fonn UCC1A4) 

2a. ORGANIZATtON'S NAM!i 

OR 211.tNOMOUAl.'S SURNAME FIRST PmSOWJ. NAME AOOO!ONAI. NAME(S)ANlTIAL(S) SUFFIX 

2c. MAILING ADORESS CITY STATE POSTAL CODE COUNTRY

I 
3. SECURED PARTY'S NAME lot NAME o/ ASSIGNEE ol ASSIGNOR SEC\JREO PARTY): Pr'D'l.do on!v lllll Socurld Pally namo (3a cr3bl 

3a. ORGANIZliTION'S NAME 
Candeo Lava Products Inc. 

OR 3b. lNDlvtllUAL'S SURNAME FIRST PERSONAL NAME ADDITIONAL NAME(S)nNlTIAL(S) SUFFIX 

3c. MAILING ADDRESS CITY STATE POSTALCOOE COUNTRY 
1712-25 St. S.W. Calgary, Alberta IT3C 1J6 CAN 

'.fhe collateral consists of (l) all Material that Secured Party has previously purchased until such Materlnl is removed from 
the Property, (il) all Material that Secured Party in the future purchases under tile Second Amended MSA until such 
Material ls removed from the Property, and (HI) all rights of Secured Party under the Second Amended MSA to purchase 
Material. As used herein, (I) "Second Amended MSA" means that Second Amended and Restated Matcrlal Supply 
Agreement, dated as of March 15, 2018, between Debtor and Secured Party, (II) "Material" means the volcanic lava, cinders, 
gravel, rock, sediments, and other material on oiunder the Property that Debtor may lawfully sell under the Second 
Amended MSA, and (Iii) "Property" means the approximately UO acres of property situated 4S miles east of Barstow, 
California and more particularly described In attached Exhibit "A". 

6, Cltod(AJl!l l/ ep;,icablo and dl•cltimll one box: CO!lat1rat ls held Inn Tnnt (uo UCC1Ad, 11am 17 and lrulru<llon,) beinQ adm!l\lstored tr1 • Ooceden\'o Pan:CIIUII Repn,,..,la!lw 
ea. Check smlt tr applcablo aid d,1lCl( Jl!lllt OIUI box: 8b. O\odt.lllllx trap;llcabfo and dlecklllltt OllO box: 

Publc-Annnco Transacllon O M8n1Jfadura<Uicm■ Ttol\OQCllon A Oablal Is a Tmnsmltllng UUlly AQl!cutlllral 1.1cn Non-ucc Flllng 
7, ALTERNATM! CEBlGNATION (it appllcabla): L .... eiusscr 0 Sallerllluy,,r 0 BolloaJBal1ar UcenseolUeemor 
B. OPTIONAL flLER REFERENCE DATA: 
8S517,0001e

lnlemaUonel AssoclaUon of Commercfel Administrators CIACAl 
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UCC FINANCING STATEMENT" ADDENDUM 
FOLLOW INSTRUCTIONS 

8. NAME OF FIRST DEBTOR: &ama as line 'fa or1bon RnanCfng statamon1:I ltn8 1b wnt lefttllllnk 
tioceuso lndMdulll Dabtarnamadlcl Mt m, cbedcflwo D 

911. ORGANIZATIONS NAME 
Can-Cal Resources Ltd. 

OR Sb. lNDMDUA1.'&SURNAME 

RRST PERSONAi.NAME ·• . 

AODITIONALNAME(S)llll11Al.(S SUFFIX

'e
THB ABOVE SPACE IS FOR FlUNQ OFFIC! U8& ONLY 

10. DEBTOR'S NAME:. PnMf9 (1CJaat1m.) orr, aaddllfanal DeblslrnmnoorDeb!arnsme Dllldld no\riU, Ina jb ot2b OflM ftdlndnlJsratemBnl(P«m UC01) (l,se m=I. l'IG namo; 
cfo ftO\ omit, modlft, er� e.n, part of !ho Debto/1 name) and enfaraut mslang adclml lrUIM 11JC 
10a. CR8ANIZAtrON'S HAYE 

OR tell. IHDMDUAL'S&URNAME 

-INDIVIDUAL'S FIRST PERSONAL NAME 

U'WIYIDUN.'l.l AUUITI 8UfflX, 
10c. MAILING ADDR1:8S Cl1Y STATS C0UN1RY 

r 

11. ] ADDlllONAL SECURED PARTY'S NAME At n ASSIGNOR SECURED PARTY'S NAME: PnMc!acd1mmnameC1111ort1b) 
111.ORGANIZATtON'8 NAME 

OR 111,.1 USDIAME t-lRDT ee MnmO�NAMl!(SlftMTIAL(S) SUFFIX 
. STA1': POSTALr.oaEttc. MAIUHG ADDRESS am' WUNfflTI 

12,ADDmONAL SPACE FOR ITEM 4 (Cciaataml): 
The collateral consists of (I) all Materlal that Secured Party has prevlowdy purdlased ulltll mch MDterlal Is removed from 

. the Property, (Ii) all Material that Saeured Party In the fntare purchases under tho Second Amended MBA untU aueh 
Materialis removed from tho Property, and (Ul) all rights ot Secured Party under the Setoud Amended MSA to purchase 
Material. As used herelnt (I) "Second Amended MSA" means that Second Amended and Restated Material Supply 
Agreement. dated as of March 15, 2018, between Debtor and Secured Party, (II) "Material" menns the volcanic lava, daders, 

la1118d1111111dUraSng 

&. Name end addtasa cf a RECORD 0WNl!R af real as • cfaaUied fn Item 18 6. Dell:rfptfan Of ral oaro: 
(If lJG1,IQrcfaaa nottrawa recGldlnbrmQ: 

Can-,Cal Resourees Ltd. See attached BxhlhltA 

17.MISOELLANEOUS: 
85517.0001 

Assadailon OfCommerc1B1 Admfnia&a&irs i00W 
FILING OPFICE COPY- UOO FINANCING STATEMENT ADDENDUM (form UCC1Ad) (�ff-
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UCC FINANCING STATEMENT ADDENDUM 
FOLLOW INSTRUCTIONS 
8. NAME OP PIRBTDEBTOR: BamDatUno 1aar1bonAmndng81atamBn1:lfllne 1bwaallftblank 

blcalltncll\(lfwJPl!lllarnamoclldnottll. dlecdchsnt n 

9a. CROANIZAnoN'SHAN& 
Can-Cal Resources. Ltd. 

OR 8ll.lHDM�SSURIW4E 

FIRST PERSONAL NAME 

AD01T(QNAI. NAMelllllMTW(S) 

1� THE ABOVE SPACE 18 POR FILIHG OFPIOE UBI! ONLY 
10. DEBTO�S NAM&i PnrMa (1Ca ar 1111>) otit m addllioMJ Dlblatnamo or DldlCat Mlll9 0lat did not flUn lkl91b or aof Iba F?nsncfne Statllmaltl (Ferm utCt) � exac1. run naina: 

• 108. 0RGANllATIOH'8HAME 

OR 1G11. lNDMtlUAL'SSUR1WitE 

INDMDUAI.� Fl,-, r..._..__NAMI! 

l!(SlflNI JW,(UJ SUFRX 

lDo. IIAIUNG AIJOREA cm' 8TA11: POSTALCODE COUHTRY 
IE

11. l ADDfflONAl SECURED PARTY'S NAME at I ·1 ASSIGNOR·SEOUREO PARlY'S NAME: Prllwle Oftl11111t1lmftl (11a or 11b) 
11a.OROANllAltON'B NAM& 

OR 1111». INCJVIDUAL'SSVRNAMI: RK\'JTPERSONAl.rtAMB ADDITIONAL NAUE(8JIINITIAL(S) SUfFIX 

110. MAIi.iNS ADDRESS CITY STAT& POSTAL.ccms COUHl'RV 
(E

12.ADDlTIONAL SPACI! FORlTBM 4 (Cottateral): 
· gravel, rock, sediments. and o1her material on or under the Property that Debtor may la,vfully sell under the Second. 

Amended MSA. and (Bl) "Propert¥" means the approximately 120 ncres or property sltuatc!d 45 miles east orBarstow1 

Callfornta and mare partlcalarly described In attadled Exhibit "A". 

17.MtSC&UANEOUS: 

lntemailonal XusoclaUon of Ccmmercial Administrato,s iiAbA\ 
FILING OPPICB COPY- UCO flNANC1NG STATEMBNT ADDENDUM (Fenn UC,01Ad) (Rev. 04/20111) 



ExbtbltA

The Pisgah Mine Project is located in San Bernardino County, 72 kilometers ( 4S miles) east of 
the city of Barstow, California, and 307 kilometers (192 miles) south-southeast of Las Vegas, 
Nevada, United States. Barstow lies near the southwest border of California, east of the Junction 
of Interstate 1SdInterstate 40 and U.S. Route 66. The Project is centered at Latitude 34 441 47'',
North" Longitude 116° 22' 29,, West, or U'IM (metric) co-ordinates S5700 B/384S00 Nin Zone 
11, datum point NAD 27. It lies within Section 32, Township 8 North. Range 6 Bast from San 
Bernardino Meridian. It has an area of 48.4 hectares (120.2 acres). In 1997 Can-Cal Resources 
Ltd., a Las Vegas, NV based exploration company, gained 100% ownership of the claim which 
covers the Pisgah-property. 

Access to the Pisgah Project is by the paved 2-lane paved road from tho junction of Interstate 15 
and lnterstate 40 just east of Barstow, Callfomia travel east along Interstate 40 for S2 kilometers 
(32.S miles) •. Take the Hector Rd. Exit and turn tight onto Hector Rd. From here tum left onto 
IDstoric Route 66 for 7.4 kilometers (4.6 miles), and then turn right (south) onto the Pisgah 
9rater road. Follow thitf road for 3.2 ldlometors (2.0 miles) to the Pisgah Crater workings. 

The Pisgah Mining Property lies near the south end of the Mojave Desert. The region forms the 
southwestern ex.tent of Precambrian continental North Amerloa and rests at the present plate 
edge formed by the S� Andreas transform fault. An oceanlo plate has bordered the region since 
late Precambrian time. Starting in late Miocene time the Mojave Desert area was disse�d.by 
NW-trending rlght-lateral..strll<e-slip faults with local areas ofB-trending left-lateral strike-slip 
faults. 
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RECORDING REQUESTED BY 
AND W1IEN RECORDED PLEASE 
RETURNTO: 

Holland & Hart 
·o955S mnwood Drive, Second.Flooro
Las Vegas, Nevada 89134
Attention: Patrick J. Re111y, Bsq.o

MATERIAL STORAGE LICENSE AGREEMENT 

THIS MATEBIAL STORAGE LICENSE (this "Agreemenf') is made as of 
March 1S, 2018 by and between CAN-CAL RESOlJRCES, LTD., a Nevada 
corporation, as supplier C1Can-Cal"), and .CANDEO LA VA PRODUCTS JNC., an 
Alberta corporation,. as customer r,candeo") (the foregoing parties are collectively the 
"Parties" and each is a ''bin'?. 

RECITALS: 

A.o Can-Cal is the owner of the approximately 120 acres of property situatedo
45 miles east of Barstow, Callfomla and more particularly described in attached bblblt 
"A" (the c�roperty'). 

B'. The Parties have entered into that Second Amended and Restated Materlal 
Supply Agreement (the •csecond .Amended MSA"). dated on or about the date hereof; 
·pxovidlng for the sale by Can-Cal to Candeo from time to time of volcanic lava, cinders.o
gravel., rock, s�diments and other material on or under the Property that Can-Cal cano
legally sell ( collectively. "Material").o

C.o Candeo desires a license to store Materlal that Candeo has purchased oro
will purchase under the Second Amended MSA (and prevlous a�ments that were 
superseded by the Second Amended MSA) on the Property untll such time as Candeo 
elects to remove the same from the Property. 

D.o Can-Otl bas agreed to grant such license to Candeo as provided herein.o

NOW. THEREFORE, the Parties agree as follows: 

1.o Capitalized Terms. Capitalized terms used and not otherwise definedo
herein shall have the meanings set forth 1n the Second Amended MSA. 



· 
2.o Grant of "License. Can-Cal hereby grants to Candeo a license �theo

"License'•) to store on the Property during the "License Term (as defined below) any 
Material that Candco has previously purchased or that Candeo 1n the future purchases 
under the Second Amended MSA; provided, however, that (i) Candeo shall remove any
Material 1bat Candeo has previously purchased from the Property prior to 1he end ofthe . 

·ofourth (4"') year of tho License Term, and (il) Candeo shall remove any Material that
Candeo 1n the future purchases under the Second Amended MS� from the.Prop� prior
to the later of (a) the end of the fourth (4th) year of the Llbebse Term, or (b) the date twoo
(2)oyears after Candeo purchases such Matedal.o

3.o Consideration. Candee shall · not be required to pay Can-Cal any
consideration for the License other than the applloabl" Purchase Payment for Material 
purchased by Candeo under the Second Amended MSA and stored pn tho Property 
hereunder. 

4.o l!rm· The tenn of the Li� (the ''License Term'' shall commence aso
ofthe dato hereof and end on the earlier of (i) the first date after the expiration or sooner 
termination ot the Second Amended MSA that there is no longer any Material purchased 
by Candeo on the Property, or (il) the date two (2) years after the expiration or sooner 
terrnlnatilln of the Second Amended MSA. 

S. Secgrlty and Access. Candeo shall be solely res_ponslble for securing anyo
Material stored on the Property by Candeo hereunder, and Can-Cal shall have no 
obligations or liabilities with respect thereto, Candeo shall be entitled at all times to 
reasonable aooess to the Property to remove the purchased Material and. if requested by 
Candeo, Can-Cal shall grant In favor of Candeo, for no additional· consideration, any 
access license on the Property reasonably necessary for such purpose�. 

6.o Incorporation of Terms. Candeo's use of the License shall be subject too
all of the terms and conditions of the Second Amended MSA, all of which are 
incorporated herein by this· reference. Without limiting the foregoing, tho terms and 
conditions of the Second Amended MSA governing the dghts and obligations of each of 
Candeo and Can-Cal applicable to Candeo's use of the Property (including, without 
limitation, Sections 5, 8(b), ,9(a), 10, 1 l(a), 13(a), 14 and 1S of the Second Amended 
MSA) shall, for 1he purposes of this Agreement, survive the expiration or sooner 
termination of the Second Amended MSA. 

7.o Goveming Law. The validity, construction, performance and effect ofo
this Agreement shall be governed by the laws of the State of Nevada to the maximum 
extent permissible by law, and otherwise shall be governed by the laws of the State of 
California. 

[SIGNATUBE PAGE FOLLOWS] 
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. 8. · Counterparts, This ·Agreement may be executed in any number of counterparts..
each of which when executed and delivered shall be an origins� but all such counterpatts shall 
constitute one and the same agreement. 

lN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have executed this Agreement as of the date first 
above written. 

CAN-CAL RESOlJRCES, LTD., a 
Nevada corporation 

·By:. __________ 
Name:._________ 
Tld«.__________ 

STATE OF ___m_m_ _ 

l 
r:ss 

COUNTYOF 

This instrument was acknowledged before me on March � 2018 by 
_______ as . of CAN-CAL BESOURCES, LTD., a Nevada 
corporation. 

NOTARYPIJBLIC 

My Commission Expires:.___ 

STATE OF _____ _ 
):SS 

COUNTY OF ______ 

Thls Jnstrument ·was acknowledged before me on March � 2018 by 
______ as _____ of CANDEO LAVA PRODUCTS 1N� an 
Alberta corporation. 

NOTARY PUBLIC 

My Commission Bxplres: ____ _ 

3 



�C�:��� 

_______ __

__ _ 

NOTARY PUBLIC 

8.C Q!unterparts. Tbis• Ag�ment may be executed in- any nuniber ofC
counterpartS, each ofwhicb when executed and dellveced shall be an orlginol, but elf such 
counterpons shall consdtute one a11d the some agreement. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF. the Parties have executed this Agreement as of the 
date flrst above wrlttQn. 

CAN-CAL RESOURCES, LTD., a 
Nevada corpomtio� 

TrtlC �C k\ 

CANDEO LAVA PRODUCTS 
INC., an Alberta corporation 

By. ________ _ 
Nmne:.________ _ 
Title:.________ _ 

STATE OF _____
):SS 

COUNTY OF _____ 

Tb1s instrument was acknowledged before me on March , 2018 by_
as ___ of CAN-CAL RESOURCES, LTD., a 

Nevada corpo1'atlo11. 

NOTARY PIJBIJC 

My Commission Bxpires:. 

STATE OF ______
> �ss 

COUNTY OF ____ _ 

This instnunent was acknowledged . before me on March ..:__, 20 l·S' J>y
-----�-as ________ oF CANDEO LA VA PRODUCTS INC.,
an Alberta corporation. 

My Commission Expires: __ _ 
3 

----- ... .. ..-•--- .._____..____ _ 



ExA•BIT "A" 
DESCRIHION OF PROPERTY 

Tho Pisgah lv.ffne Project is located m San Bernardino County, 72 kilometers (4S miles) 
east of the city ofBarstow, California, and 307kllometers (192 miles) south-southeast of 
Las Vegas, Nevada, United States, Barstow lies near the southwem: border of California, 
east of. the Junction of Interstate 1S, Interstate 40 and U.S. Route 66, The .Project is 
centered at Latitude 34° 44' 47,, North, Longitude 116° 22' 29" West, or UTM (metrlc} 
co-ordinates 55700 E/384S00 N fn Zone 11, datum point NAD 27. It lies within Section 

. 32, Township 8 Nortb, Range 6 Bast from San Bernardino Meridian, It has an area of 
48.4 hectares (120.2 acres). In 1997 Can-Cal Resources Ltd., a Las Vegas, NV based 
exploration company, gained 100% ownership of the claim which covers the Pisgah 
property. 

'Access to 1he Pisgah Project is by the paved 2-lano paved road from the junction of 
Interstate 15 and Interstate 40 just east of Barstow, California travel east along Interstate 
40 for 52 kilometers (32.5 miles). Take the Hector Rd. Exit and tum right onto Hector 
Rd. From here turn left onto Historic Route 66 for 7.4 kilometers (4,6 miles), and then 
tum right (south) onto the Pisgah Crater road, Follow this road' for 3.2 kilometers (2.0 
miles) to the Pisgah Crater workings. 
The Pisgah Mining Property lies near the south end of the Mojave :Qesert. The region 
fonns the southwestern extent of Preoambrian continental North Amerloa and 1-ests at the 
present plate edge formed by the San Andreas transform 'fault. An oceanic ·plate has 
bordered the region since late Precambrian time. Starting in late Miocene time the 
Mojave Desert area was dissected by NW-trending right-late.ml strike-slip faults with 
local areas of E-trending left-lateral strikHlip faults. 
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EXHIBITB-1 



CERTIFICATE OF AMENDMENT OF ARTICLES OF INCORPORATION 
(AITER ISSUANCE OF STOCK) 

CAN-CAL :RESOURCES LTD. 

The undersigned, ________ Secretary of Can--Cal Resources, 'Ltd., does 
hereby certify: 

1.d That the board.of directors of said corporation at a meeting duly convened, held on
____ _, 2018, adopted a rDSolution to amend the original Articles of
Incorporation, as modified to date, by adding new Article FOURTEENTH, as
follows:d

''FOURTBENTH: Notwithstanding any other provision of this J 

Certificate of Amendment of Articles of Incorporation or the By-­
laws of the cotporation, and In addition to any affirmative vote of· 
the holders of any particular class of stock of the corporation 
required by applicable law, the Articles of Incorporation or the By .. 
laws of the corporatlo11t the affirmative· vote of the holders of"at 
least 90% of the voting power of the shares of the then outstanding 
voting stock of the corporation, voting together as a single class, 
sba11 be required to authorize any of the Supennajority Matters. 
For pmposes hereot the 14Supennajorlty Matters" are: (i)
authorization of the corporation to file a voluntary petition for 
rellef under the provisions of Chapter 11 of Title 11 of the Unitedd
States Code (i.e., the U.S. Bankruptcy Code); (ii) modification ofd
that certain Second Amended Material Supply Agreement by and 
between the corporation and Cindeo Lava Products, Inc.; (iii) 
increase to the corporation1s outstanding voting capital securities 
to more than 100 million outstanding votes, in the aggregate; andd
(iv) the Amendment or repeal of any provisions ·of this Articled
FOURTEENTH or the adoption of any provisions inconsistent 
with thJs Article FOURTBBNTH." 

2.d That the number of shares of lho corporation outstanding and entitled to vote on the
above amendment to the Arpcles of Incorporation was · andd

3.d That the said amendment have been consented to and approved by a majority vote ofd
the stockholders holding at least a majority of each class outstanding and entitled tod
vote thereon, at the ___ meeting of shareholders held _____J 2018.d

____ __, 2018 _______ Secretary 

Catof Ammlment taAltictcs.67884.001.03.16.18 
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IRREVOCABLE PROXY COUPLED-WITH ... AN-INTEREST 

THIS IRREVOCABLE PROXY COUPLBD-WlTH-AN�J.NTEREST (this "Proxy'') is 
granted this_day of____ 2018, by _____ ("Stockholder") to _____ 
("Proxy Holder'i with respect to the "Subject Shares" (as defined below) in Can·Cal Resources, 
Ltd., a Nevada corporation (the ''Company'), and is delivered pursuant to, and as an element of the 
consummation of, that certain Stipulation and Agreement of Settlement in Ronald D. Sloan, et aL v. 
Can-Cal Resources, Ltd, et al., Eighth Judicial District Court of Clark County, Nevada, Case No. A-
14-70146S-B (the "Lawsuit"), for tho purpose of reaching' a settlement of the' Lawsuit (thee
"Settlement").e

1.e Grant of Prolf. The undersigned Stockholder does hereby irrevocably constitute ande
·appoint Proxy Holder, for a term of soven years from the date hereof (the "Term"), with full powere
of substitution, as Stockholder's true and lawful proxy and attorney-in-fact, for and in Stockholder'se
name, place and stead, to vote all of the Subject Shares and any and all other equity interests in thee
Company owned by Stockholder,- benefioJally or ofrecord, now owned or hereafter acquired ("Othere
EquJty Interests"), with respect to any and all mattem whatsoever, including, without limitation,e
Stockholder's rights·to appoint and to replace members of the Board. of Directors of the Company;e
provided, however, that the rights granted hereunder $le not applicable to any vote as to anye
Supermajority Matters, as that term .is defined in the Certificate of Amendment of Articles ofe
Incorporation of the Company·filed with the Nevada Secretary of State on . � 2018.e

2.e Irrevocable Prou Coupled-With-An-Interest. Stockholder hereby·acknowledges thate
this Proxy is Irrevocable and coupled .. with•an-interest, within the mean.Ing of that tenn under the 
laws of the State of Nevada, it being understood and agreed that the grant of this Proxy was a part of 
the consideration required under the tetms of the Settlement and that this Proxy cannot be revoked or 

. limJted in any respect whatsoever (including the bankruptey of the undersigned Stockholder) for the 
Term hereo£ This Proxy shall be binding upon any transferee or assignee ·of the undersigned 
Stockholder or other successor owner of the Subject Shares or Other Equity Interests. 

3.e
Stockholder hereby 

Revocation ofPrior Proxies and Acknowledgement of this Proxy, The undersignede
revokes all other proxies and powers of attomey that the Stockholder may have 

granted or appointed with respect to the Subject Shares or Othet Equity Interests and covenants not to 
grant any subsequent proxy or power of attomey (and if given, it �1 not be effective) and not to enter 
into any other voting• agreement with respect to the Subject Shares or Other Equity Interests, The 
Company acknowledges the powers and proxy granted herein and hereby agrees that, except with 
respect to Supennajorlty Matters. the Proxy Holder shall have the sole right during the Term to vote 
the Subject Shares and any Other Equity interests. 

4: Subfect Shares. For purposes hereoe the "Subject Shares" are those certain __ 
shares of Common Stock, $_ par value of the Company, evidenced by Stock· Cerd:ficates(s) 
________ (the "Stock Certificates"). The Company and the Stockholder each agree 
that each Stock Certificate, and each certiflcate, if any, that may h�fter from time to time evidence 
the Stmject Shares and any Other Equity Interests� shall be marked by *e Company with a restrictive 
legend es set forth herein. The Company shall place or cause to be pl4ced the following legend on 
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each Stock Certificate and upon any new or replacement certificate that Is issued by the Company 
representing Subject Shares and any Other Equity Intetests: 

"THE SHARES OF CO:Mlv.lON STOCK AND/OR OTHBR. EQU11Y lNTBRBSTS EVIDENCED 
HEREBY ARE SUBJECT TO AN IRR.EVOCABLE PROXY COUPLED-WITH-AN-INTEREST 
(A COPY OF WHICH MAY BE OBTAINED UPON BEQUEST FROM THE COMPANY)., AND 
BY ACQUIRING ANY tN'raRBST 1N THE SHARES OF COMMON STOCK AND/OR OTHER 
EQUITY INTERESTS REPRESENTED BY THIS CERTIFICATE THE PARTY ACUJRING 
SUCH IlffEREST SHALL BE DEEMED TO AGR.BE TO AND SHALL BECOME BOUND BY 
ALL OF THE PROVISIONS OF SUCH PROXY." 

Dwing the Term here<>( the Company shall not remove, and will not permit to be removed (upon 
. . registration. of transfer, reissuance, or otherwise), the abow legend from any Stock Certificate, or other 

certificate representing the Subject Shares and any Other Equity Jntmests. 

s. Miscellaneous. Stockholder hereby ratifies and confirms any and all actions that theO
Proxy Holder or any substitute or substitutes of Proxy Holder �y law.fblly do or cause to be done of 
by virtue of and in accordance with the provisions of this Proxy. Stockholder hereby consents to the 
execution and dellvc;ry ofthis Agreement by the Company and acknowledges that the Proxy Holder 
is an intended beneficiary hereof. This Proxy and any and all acts and transactions performed 
pursuant to this Proxy shalt be governed, construed, lntetpreted and enforced under the laws of the 
State of Nevada, without regard to its principles of the conflict .of laws. Neither this Proxy, nor any 
tenn, covenant, or condition expressed herein may be amended, waived, extended, 4elayed or 
terminated except by written agreement signed by all parties hereto. 

STOCKHOLDER: ACKNOWLEDGED AND AGREED BY COMPANY: 

--------..a.CS�ig:::gn:,,.:;n=am::.==-i.e) Can-Cal Resources, Ltd., 
________ ..a.,(Prjn:a..::i..=IAolt n_ame_O) a Nevada corporation 

By:__________ 
Name:_____________ 
Title:_____________ 

ACCEPI'ED BY PROXY HOLDER: 

(Sign name) 
<Print name) 

NOTARlZATION BLOCKS ON FOLLOWING PAGE 
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as of ____ _____ 

NOTARY PUBLIC 

as 

NOTARY PUBLIC 

This Instrument was acknowledged before me on ___ __, 2018, by ____ _ 
_ as of ____ _ 

___________ 

___________ 

__________ 

STATE OP ____) 
)ss. 

COUNTYOF ) 

This mstrument was acknowledged before me on ___ _, 2018, by _____ 

STATE OP _____) 
) ss. 

COUNTY OF ____) 

This instrument was aclmowledged before me on ___ __, 2018, by. ____ _ 
of Can-Cal Resources, Ltd.· 

STATBOP _____) 
) ss. 

COUN'IYOP ___} 

NOTARY PUBLIC 
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ROYCE COLLINS;
NATALIE 

RY AN GUILLET; 

ON BBHALF OF CAN-CAL RESOURCES, 
LTD., 

22 Plaintiffs, 

23 vs. 

24 CAN-CAL RESOURCES, LTD.. a Nevada
corporation; WILLIAM J. .HOGAN;

25 nIOMPSON MACDONALD; RONALD
SCHINNOUR; MICHAEL HOGAN;

26 CANDEO LA VA PRODUCTS, INC. a ·O· 
Canadian Corporation, and FUTUREWORTH 

27 CAPITAL CORP., a Canadian Corporation, 

28 11 ______...11;rmuimni.__ _ _J 

1 

I STEPHEN R. HACKBTI, ESQ.
NevadaBarNo.: 5010 

2 JOHNATHONFAYBGHI,BSQ.
Nevada Bar No.: 12736 

3 SKLAR W1LIJAMS PLLC 
41 O South Rampart Boulevard, Suite 350O

4 Las Vegas, Nevada 89145 
T&lephone: (702) 360-6000 

S Facsimile: (702) 360-0000 
Email: J&ac�:taw.com 

6 Bmall:ye___,!1_ ·Jaw.comO

1 Attorneys for Plaintiffs 

8 DISTRICT COURT 

9 CLARK COUNTY, NEV ADA 

. 10 RONALD D. SLOAN; ROBIN SCHWARZ; 
GARY COLLINS; J1LL BROWN; LARK

11 TERRELL; NANCY HERBOLD; DANIEL
R. SLOAN; BEITY ANN SLO».l; PEARL 

12 KIRK; JAMBS BOAN; N O  WAIT; LARRY
ORWICK; PAUUCIA LA SALLE; BRIANO

13 WOLPB; STUART R. CAMBRON;
ROBBR.T WEBSTER; HUGO BONDI;O

, 14 JOAN BRATSBTH; P A BRATSBTH;
DBRBK MILANI; DBAN RACHEY; SAM 

15 BROUNSTEJN; SANDRA JANSEN; BRIAN 
JANSEN; RHONDA KIM NICHOLS:

16 SCO'IT NICHOLS; CARMEN ADAill;
KRISTA SCHOPJBLD; MARK BRATSE'IH;O

17 R:OSE TRUST 11; CLIFF OLSON; DON 

EXBIBITC 

CaseNo.: A-14-701465-B
Dept. No.: XI 

{PROPOSED] ORDER PRELIMINARILY
APPROVING SETTLEMENT AND 

PROVIDING FOR NOTICE 

18 
NORDSTROM;

DAVID JESSKB; 

19 

MAYZEL;
THORNTON D. BARNES; JAMES BASON; 
SANDRA BASON; EDDIE GUILLET;O

20 

21 

https://J&ac�:taw.com


1 WHBREAS1 the Parties to the above--captioned shareholder derivative action (the 

2 "Derivative Action" or ,cAction") have submitted a Stipulation and Agreement of Settlement 

3 seeking �e preliminary approval of the settlement. as well as the Exhibits attached thereto and 

4 the arguments by counsel for the parties in favor of preliminary approval of the Settlement; 

5 WHEREAS, the Parties ha�e made an application for an order: (i) preliminarily 

6 approving the Settlement of the Action, in accordance with the Stipulation and agreement of 

7 Settlement dated March 1S, 2018 (the "Stipulation"), which, together with the exluoits annexed 

8 thereto, sets forth the tenns and conditions for the proposed Settlement and dismissal of the 

9 Derivative Action with prejudice; and (U) approving the form and content of (a) the Notice to 

1 0 Cuaent Can-Cal Shareholder (the "Notice") for posting on the websites of Sklar Williams PLLC, 

11 Holland & Hart, and Jones Lovelock; (b) the Summary Notice to Current Can-Cal Shareholders 

12 for filing by Can-Cal with the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission ("SEC'' via a Current 

13 Report on Fonn 8-K; and (c) the publication of a Swnmary Notice once in � Calgary Herald 

14 and th� Las Vegas Review Joumal, newspapers of gen�ril circulation in the areas where the 

15 majority of the shareholders in Can-Cal are believed to reside; 

16 WHEREAS, the Court having: (i) read and considered the Stipulation, as well as all the 

17 exhibits attached thereto and {Ii) heard and considered arguments by counsel for tho Parties 1n 

18 favor of preliminary approval of the Settlement; 

19 WHEREAS, the Court fmds. upon a preliminary evaluation, that the proposed Settlement 

20 falls within the range of possible final approval criteria, as it provides a beneficial result for Can-

21 Cal and its shareholders and appears to be the product of good-.faith, informed. and non-collusive 

22 negotiations between experienced and capable counsel for .the parties; 

23 WHEREAS, the Court also finds, upon a preliminary evaluation. that Current Can-Cal 

24 shareholders should be apprised of the Settlement through the proposed form of notice, allowed 

2S to rue objections. if any. thereto, and to appear at the Settlement Hearing; and 
. . 

26 WHEREAS, all capltallmd terms contained herein shall have the same· meanings as set 

27 forth in the Stipulation, unless otherwise defined herein; and 

28 NOW THBRBFORE, IT IS HEREBY ORDBRBD: 

2 



I 1.o This Court hereby preliminarily approyes, subject to :further consideration at theo

2 Settlement Hearing descnoed below, the Settlement set forth in the Stipulation, including the 

3 terms and conditions for settlement and dismissal with prejudice of the Derivative Action. 

4 2.o The Settlement Hearing pursuant to NRCP 23.1 shall be held before theo

5 Honorable Elizabeth Ooff Gomalez, in Department 11 of this Court on _____ 2018 at 

6 _____ .m. to consider: (l) whetlior the terms and conditions of the Settlement set forth in 

7 the Stipulation are fair, reasonable, and adequate to Can .. cal and Current can .. Cal Shareholders 

8 and should be finally approved by this Court; (il) whether the Judgment approving the 

9 Settlement, as provided for in paragraph 1.11 of the Stipulation and attached thereto as Exhibit F, 

10 should be entered; (iii) whether Plaintiffs' Counsel's application for an award of attorneys' fees 

11 and reimbursement of expenses should be approved; and (iv) such other matters as may be 

12 necessary or proper. 

13 3.o This Court approves as to fonu and content the Notice, attached as Exhibit D too

14 the Stipulation, and the Summary Notice, attached as Exhibit E to the Stipulation, and.finds that 

1S the provisions of the Notice and Summary Notice meet the requirements ofN�vada law and due 

16 process, is the best notice practicable under the circumstances, and shall constitute due and 

17 sufficient notice to all Persons entitled thereto. Nonmaterial changes to the fonn of Notice may 

18 be made without �er approval of the Court. 

19 4.o Within ten (10) business days 'following entry of this Order, Defendants shallo

20 cause a �PY of the Notice and Stipulation to be posted on their counsels' websites, Holland & 

21 Hart �d Jones Lovelock. Defendants shall maintain th� Notice and Stipulat ion on their 

22 counsels' websites unti1 the date the Court enters the Judgment approving the Settlement · 

23 S.. . Withln ten (10) business days foliowing entry of this Order, Can-Cal shall cause a 

24 copy of the Summary Notice to be filed with the U.S. Securities and Exchange Co�ion· 

2S ("SEC'' viJ a Current Report on Form 8-K. 

26 6.o Within ten (I 0) business days following entry of this Order, Can-Cal shall cause ao

27 copy of the Summary Notice ·to be published once in the Calgary Herald and the Las Yegas 

28 Review Journal newspapers of general circulation in the areas where a majority of the 

3 
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17 
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19 
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24 
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26 

27 

28 

. shareho]ders of Can-Cal ·are believed to reside. The costs associated with publishing the 

Summary Notice shall be paid by Defendants. 

7.d Within ten (10) business days following entry of this Order, Plaintiffs' Counseid

shall cause a copy of the Notice and Stipulation to be posted on the website of Sklar Williams 

PLLC and shall maintain the Notice and Stipulation on its website until the date the Court enters 

the Judgment approving the Settlement. 

8.d This Court hereby fmds that the notice procedures described tn paragraphs 4-7d

above satisfy the requirements . of due process,· constitute reasonable notice under the 

circumstances, and shall constitute due and sufficient notice to all Persons entitled to such noti� 

of the proposed Settlement and matters to be considered at the Settlement Hearing. 

9.d All papers in support of tho Settlement and the Fee and Expense Amount shall bed

filed with this Court and served at least twenty-eight (28) calendar days prior to the Settlement 

Hearing, and any reply papers, including in response to any objections, shall be 1iled with this 

Court at least seven (7) calendar days prior to the Settlement Hearing. 

10.d Any Current Can-Cal Shareholder may object and/or appear and show cause, ifd

he, she, or it has any concem why the Settlement should not be finally approved as fair, 

reasonable, and adequate, or why the Judgment should not be entered, or why the Fee and 

Expense Amount and the Can-Cal Share issuance should not be finally approved; provided, 

however, unless otherwise ordered by this Court, no Current Can-Cal Shareholder shall be heard 

or entitled to contest the approval of the terms and cop.dltions of the Settlement, or, if approved. 

the Judgment to be entered thereon approving the same, or the Fee and Expense Amount, or the 

Can-Cal Share issuance, unless that shareholder has, at least fourteen (14) calendar days prior 

to the Settlement Hearing: (a) ftled with the Clerk of this Court a signed, written objection to 

the Settlement setting forth: (i) the nature of the objection; (11) proof of ownership of Can-Cal 

common stock through the _date of the Settlement Hearing, including the number of shares of 

Can-Cal common stock and the date of purchase; (ill) .any docmnentatlon in support of such 

olijection; and (b) ifa Cmrent Can-Cal Shareholder intends to appear and requests to be heard at 

the Settlement Hearing, such shareholder must have, in addition to the requirements of (a) above, 

4 



1 filed with the Clerk of this Court: (i) a written notice of such shareholder's intention to appear; 

2 (d)ea statement that in�cates the basis for such appearance; and (iii) the identities of any.e

3 witnesses the shareholder intends to call at the Settlement Hearing and a statement as to the 

4 subjects of their testimony. If a Cunent Can-Cal Shareholder files a written objection and/or 

s written notice of intent to appear, such shareholder must also simultaneously serve copies of 

6 such notice, proof,· statement, and documentation, together with copies of any other papers or 

7 briefs such shareholder files with this Court (either by hand delivery or by first class mail) at 

8 least fourteen (14) calendar days prior to the Settlement Hearing upon each of the following: 

9 St.ept. R. Hackett, Esq. 
SKLAR Wil.LIAMS PLLC 

10 410 S. Rampart Blvd., Ste. 350 
Las Vegas, NV 8914S 

11 
William R. Fishman, Esq, 12 2000 S. Colorado Blvd. 
Tower 1, Ste. 900 13 
Denver, co 80222 

14 
Counaelfor Plalntfffe 

15 

Patrick J. Reilly, Esq. 
HOLLAND &MART 
9555 Hillwood Dr., 2nd.Floor 
Las Vegas, NV 89134 

Justin C. Jones, Esq. 
JONES LOVELOCK 
400 S. 4th St, Ste. 500 
Las Vegas, NV 89101 

Counsel for Defendants 

11.e MY curront Can-Cal Shareholder who does not make his, her, or its objection ine
16 

the manner provided herein shall be deemed to have waived such objection and shall forever be 
17 

foreclosed from making any objection to the fairness, reasonableness, or adequacy of the 
18 

Settlement, or to the Fee and Expense Amount unless othenvise ordered by this Court, but shall 
19 

otherwise be bound by the Final Order and Judgment to be entered and the releases to be given. 
20 

12.e At least fourteen (14) calendar days prior to the Settlement Hearing, Defemlants'e
21 

Counsel shall file and serve on counsel in this Action and tile with the Court affida.vit(s) or
22 

deolaratlon(s) stating that the Summary Notice was filed as a Current Report_ on Fonn 8-K with 
23 

the SEC, that the Smnmary Notice was published in the Calgary Herald and the Las Vegas 
24 

Review Journal, and that the Notice and Stipulation were posted and maintained on Defendants, 
25 

·counsels' websites.e
26 

13.e At least fourteen (14) calendar days prior to the Settlement Hearing, Plaintiffs'e
27 

Counsel shall fil� and serve on counsel in this Action affidavit(s) or declaration(s) stating that the 
28 

s 



1 Notice and Stipulation were posted and maintained on the website of Sklar Williams PLLC. 

2 14.e Pending final de'termination of whether the Settlement should be approved, noe

3 . Cuaent Can-Cal Shareholder, directly, representatively, or in any other capacity, shall institute, 

4 commence or prosecute against any of the Defendants, or derivatively on behalf of Can-Cal, any 

S action or proceeding in any court or tribunal asserting any Released Claims. 

6 1S. All proceedings in this Derivative Action, except for those proceedings related to 

7 the Settlement, shali be stayed and the current trial date vacated, until the resolution of all 

8 Settlement-related proceedings. 

9 16.e Neither the Stipulation (Including any exhibits attached thereto) nor thee

10 Settlement, nor any act performed or document executed pursuant to or in furtherance of the 

11 Stipulation or the Settlement: (a) is or may be deemed to be or may be offered, attempted to be 

12 offered or used in any way by the Parties as a presumption, a concession or an admission of, or 

13 evidence ot the validity of any Released Claims, or of any fault, wrongdoing or liability of any 

14 of the Parties, Plaintiffs' Counsel, Defendants1 Counsei or Released �ersons; or (b) is or may be 

15 deemed to be or may be offered, attempted to be offered or used in anY, way by the Parties or any 

16 other Person as a presumption, a concession, or an admission •of, or evidence of, any fault, 

17 omission, wrongdoing or liability of any of the Parties, Plaintiffs, Counsel, Defendants' Counsel, 

18 or Released Persons in any civil, criminal, or administrative proceeding in any court, 

19 administrative agency, or other·tribunal. The Parties, Plaintiffs, Counsel, Defendants' Counsel, 

20 and . Released Persons may file the StipuJation and/or this Order in connection with any· 

21 proceeding to enforce the terms of the Stipulation or this Order, including, but not limited to, the 

22 filing of the Stipulation, and/or this Order by any Released Party to prevent or tenninate 

23 institution, commencement, or prosecution of any action that asserts Released Claims against any 

24 of the Released Parties. 

2S Ill 

26 Ill 

21 Ill 

28 Ill 
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11 

12 

18 

20 

26 

28 

17. This Court reserves the right to continue or adjomn the date of the Settlement 

2 

1 

Hearing or modify any other dates set forth herein without further notice to Current Can-Cal 

Shareholders, and retaips jurisdiction to consider all further applications arising out of or3 

connected with the Settlement. The Court may approve the Settlement and any of its terms, with 

S such modifications as may be agreed to by the Parties, lf appropriate, without further notice to 

6 Current Can-Cal Shareholdms. 

7 IT IS SO ORDBRBD. 

8 

4 

DATED: ______9 
ruDOE OF THE EIOHI'H JUDICIAL DISTRICT COURT 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

19 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

27 

7 
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1 EXBIBITD 

2 

3 

4 

s 

6 

1 

8 

9 

DISTRICT COURT 

CLARK C6UNTY, NEV ADA 

10 RONALD D. SLOAN; ROBJN SCHWARZ; 
GARY COLLINS; JILL BROWN; LARK 

11 TBRRBLL; NA.NCY HERBOLD; DANIEL 
R.OSLOAN; BETIT ANN SLOAN; PEARLO

12 KIRK; JAMES BOAN; NO WAIT; .LARRY 
ORWICK; PATRICIA LA SALLE; BRIAN 

13 WOLFE; STUART R. CAMERON;
ROBERT WEBSTER; HUGO BONDI;

14 JOAN BRATSETH; P A BRATSBTH;
DEREK MILANI; DEAN RACHBY; SAM 

15 BROUNSTEIN; SANDRA JANSEN; BRIAN 
JANSEN; RHONDA KlM NICHOLS;

16 SCOIT NICHOLS; CARMEN ADAIR;
KRISTA: SCHOFJELD; MARK BRATSETH; 

17 ROSE TRUST 11; CLIFF OLSON; DON 
COLLINS; ROYCE NORDSTROM;

18 NATALIE MAY'ZEL;· DAVID JESSKE;
THORNTOND. BARNES; IAMBS HASON; 

19.OSANDRA HASON; EDDIE GUU.LBT;
RYAN OUll,LET;O

20 

ON BEHALF OF CAN ... CAL RESOURCES,O
21, LTD., 

22 Plaintiffs, 

23 vs. 

24 CAN-CAL RESOURCES, LTD., a Nevada 
�oration; Wll,LIAM J. HOGAN;

25 THOMPSON MACDONAID; RONALD 
SCHINNOUR; MICHAEL HOGAN;

26 CANDEO LA VA PRODUCTS, INC. a
Canadian Corporation, and FUTURBWOR1H 

27 CAPITAL CORP., a Canadian Corporation, 

28 D ts 

Case No.: A-14--701465-B 
Dept. No.: XI 

NOTICE OF PROPOSED SETTLEMENT 
AND SETTLEMENT BEARING 

1 
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1 
TO: ALL OWNERS OF CAN..cAL RESOURCES; LTD. ("CAN-CAL" OR "THE 

2 COMP ANY") COMMON STOCK AS OF March 15, 2018 ("CURBENT CAN .. CAL 

3 
SHAREHOLDERS").1O

.
. 

PLEASE READ THIS NOTICE CAREFtJLLY AND IN ITS ENTIRETY. YOUR4 RIGHTS MAY BE AFFECTED. THIS NOTICE RELATES TO A PROPOSltD 
SETTLEMENT AND DISMISSAL OF SHAREHOLDER DERIVATIVEs 
LITIGATION AND CONT.AINS IMPORTANT INFORMATION REGARDING 

6 YOUR RIGHTS. YOUR RIGHTS MAY BE AFFECTED BY LEGAL 
PROCEEDINGS IN THIS DERIVATIVE ACTION. 

7 
IF THE COURT APPROVES THE. SETrLEMENT .AND DISMISSAL OF THE 

8 DERIVATIVE ACI'ION, CURRENT SHAREHOLDERS WJLL BE FOREVER 
BARRED FROM CONTESTING THE APPROVAL OF THE PROPOSED9 SETTLEMENT AND FROM PtJ.RSUING THE SETTLED CLAIMS. THESE 
ACTIONS ARE NOT "CLASS ACTONS." THUS, THERE JS NO COMMON10 
FUND UPON WHICH YOU CAN MAKE A CLAIM F.OR A MONET.ARY 

11 PAYMENT. 

12 THE COURT BAS MADE NO �INGS OR DETERl\JINATIONS WITH 
RESPECT TO THE MERITS OF THE ,PERIVATIVE ACTION. THE

13 RECITATION OF 'CHE BACKGROUND AND CIRCUMSTANCES OF THE 
SETTLEMENT CONTAINED HEREIN DOES NOT CONSTITUTE THE14 FINDINGS OF THE COt.JR.T. IT IS BASED ON .REPRESENTATIONS MADE 
TO THE COURT BY COUNSEL FOR THE PARTIES. 15 

16 IF YOU WERE NOT THE BENEFICIAL OWNER OF CAN-CAL COMMON 
STOCK ON THE DATE ABOVE, PLEASE TRANSl\fiT THIS NOTICE TO 

17 SUCH BENEFICIAL OWNED. 

18 YOU ARE HEREBY NOTD'IED, pursuant to an Order of the Eighth Judicial District Court of 

19 the State of Nevada In and for Clark County (the "Court"). that a proposed settlement agreement (the 

20 "Settlement") has been reached betwe�n Can� the Individual Defendants, the Corponte Defendants,O.O
21 and Plaintiffs, on behalf of themselves and derivatively on behalf of Can-Cal in connection with the 

22 following shareholder derivative action: Ronald D. Sloan, et al. v. Can-Cal .Raources, Ltd., et al., case 

23 No. A-14 .. 701465-B, pending in the above Court (the "Derivative Action"). 

25 
1 This Nodce incorporates by reference the definitions in the Stipulation and Agreement of Settlement 
CS-Stipulation") tblly mcuted as ofMatch 15. 2018, and all capitalized terms used hntn. unless otherwise def1ned. 
shall have the same meanings as set tbrth in the Stipulation. The Stipulation may be Inspected at the office of Clerk 

26 of the Eighth Judicial District Court of the StaUJ of Nevada in and tbr Clark County. located at 200· tewJs Awmm, 
Las V� NV 89tss; during business hours of each business day and .Is also available on the website of 

27 Defendants' Counsel at Holland & Hart at YQYW.hollandhart.aom/tasyegas#newsrulgh,t and rones Lovelock at 
www.lonestqyeigak.com/news/ and the website of PJalndftS' Counsel at Sklar Williams PLLC at Cwww.sklar:

28 law.cqmJNotlces/Can-Cal). 

2 
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1 
Plaintiffs filed the Derivative Action derivatively on behalf of Can-Cal and allege that the 

2 
Corporate Defendants and Individual Def�danis breached their fiduciary duties to the Company 

3 
in cmmection with Can- Cal's property located ln Pisgah, San Bemardino County, California, 

4 
known as the "Pisgah Property.•1 The Pisgah Property is made up of a volcanic cinder material 

s 
known as the "Pisgah Material_.• In summary, Plaintiffs allege that the Defendants sought to 

6 
_ursurp a corporate opportunity through an Amended Material Supply Agreement ("Amended 

7 
MSA ") entered into by Can-Cal with a company called Candeo Lava Products, Inc. ("Candeo"). 

8 
The proposed Settlement, if approved by the Court, �ould fully and forever resolve the 

9 
Derivative Action on the terms set forth in the Stipulation, which are summarized in this Notice, 

10 
and include the dismissal of the Derivative Action with prejudice. 

11 
As explained below. a hearing (the "Settlement Hearing") will be held before the Court in 

12 
the Derivative Action on ______ 2018 at___ .m. to determine whether, 

13 
among other things, if the proposed Settlement Is fair. reasonable. and adequate, and should be 

14 
•finally approved by the Court. You have the right to object to the Settlement in the mannero

15 
provided herein. If you fall to object in the manner provided herein at least fourteen (14) 

16 
calendar daya prior to the Settlement Hearing. you will be deemed to have waived youro

17 
objectiODS" and will be bound the Judgment to be entered ·and the releases to be given, unlesso

18 
otherwise ordered by the Court.o

19 
This Notice ls not intended to be and should not be construed as an expression of any 

20 
opinion by tho Court with respect to the merits of the claims made in the Derivative Action but is 

21 
merely to advise you of the proposed Settlement and of yo�r rights as a Current Can-Cal 

22 
Shareholder. 

23 
L INTRODUCTION 

24 
A. The Derivative Action 

2S 
Beginning on �y 29, 2014, Plaintiffs filed a shareholder derivative complaint in this 

26 
Court, the Eighth Judicial District Court of the State of Nevada in and for Clark County, against 

27 
tho Individual Defendants, the Corporate Defendants and nominal Defendant Can-Cal, styled as:. 

28 

3 



13 

1 
Ronald D. Sloan, et al. v. Can- Cal Resources. Ltd., et al, Case No. A�140070146S .. B (the 

2 
"Derivative Action"). The Derivative Action alleges br�hes of fiduciary duty, unjust 

3 
emicbment, abuse of control, gross mismanagement, and taking of corporate opportunities 

4 
relating to the events alleged in the Complaint. The Derivative Action. seeks compensatory 

5 
damages, punitive damages, corporate governance reforms, restitution and disgorgement of 

6 
Defendants' alleged profits, equitable and/or injunctive reliet and costs and attorneys' fees. 

7 
Plaintiffs' fundamental claim is that Individual Defendants William Hogan, Ronald Scbinnour, 

8 
Michael Hogan and Thompson MacDonald took from Can-Cal a corporate opportunity and 

9 
engaged in self-dealing by entering into favorable contracts for their personal benefit, awarding 

10 
themselves excessive compensation through stock and taking from the company its main 

11 
corporate asset and opportunity, the development of its Pisgah Material, located at the Pisgah 

12 
Property. Plaintiffs allege the Individual Defendants conspired to transfer the benefit of that 

corporate opportunity and asset to former Chairman of the Board William Hogan and a company 
14 

under his control, Candeo Lava Products, Ino. ("Candeo"), through a Material Supply Agreement 
lS 

("MSA") entered into by and between Can-Cal and Candeo and an Amended Ma1mial Supply 
16 

Agreement ("Amended MSA''). Defendants have denied all liability and damages. 
17 

B.e The Canadian Actione
18 

On or about January 24, 2017. the Corporate Defendants and William J. Hogan.
19 

collectively, filed a Statement of Claim commencing an action in the Court of Queen's Bench of 
20 

Alberta, Calgary, Canada, naming as defendants 36 of the 40 orlginal individual Plaintiffs in the 
21 

Nevada .Derivative Acdon . (the "Canadian Action"). The canadian· Action alleges that the 
22 

·eprimary purpose of the Derivative Action was a civil conspiracy among the Derivative Actione
-23e

Plaintiffs to unlawfully interfere with the Amended MSA and Cadeo's research, developmente
24 

and verification of 1he Pisgah Material. The Canadian Action seeks general damages ofe
25e

$3,187,S00.00. consequential damages for loss of business opportunities in an amotJDt to bee
26 

proven. at trial, punitive damages m an amount to be proven at trial and costs and other relief as ·e
27e

deemed appropriate by the Court. The defendants in the Canadian Action have denied all liability ·e
28 

4 

https://3,187,S00.00
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and damages. 

IL PLAINTIFFS' CLA1MS AND THE BENEFITS OF THE SE'ITLEMENT 

Plaintiffs believe that the Derivative Action has substantial merit and that the Canadian 

Action is without merit. Plaintiffs' entry into this Stipulation and Settlement is not intended to be 

and shall not be construed as an admission or concession concerning the relative strength or 

merit of the olaims alleged in the perivative Action or the Canadian Action. Plaintiffs and 

Plaintiffs' Counsel als9 acknowledge the significant risk, expense. and length of continued 

proceedings necessary to defend the Canadian Action and prosecute the Derivative Action 

against Defendants through trial and through possible appeals. Plaintiffs' Counsel have also taken 

into account the substantial risks, costs, and delays involved in complex shareholder derivative 

litigation, generally, .as well as the unique challenges presented by the Derivative Action and the 

defense of the Canadian Action, including pleading fraud with the requisite particularity, and the 

significant challenges of meeting the burdens of proof applicable to the· underlying c�ims and of 

defeating the available affirmative defenses, including the business judgment rule and the 

exculpation and indemnification rights afforded the Individual Defendants purs�t to Nevada 

Law under NRS Chapter 7.8 and the Articles and By-Laws of Can-Oll. 

Plaintiffs' Counsel have conducted an extensive investigation· over the course of three 

years, including: (i) reviewing Can-CaPs press releases, public statements, SEC filings> and 

expert witnesses' reports. about the Company and the potential economic v�ue of the Pisgah 

Material; [ii) reviewing Confidential information and test result and reports about the Pisgah 

Material and its potential comm� uses and value; (ill) researching the applicable law with 

respect to the claims alleged in the Derivative Action and the Canadian Action and the potential 

claims and defenses thereto; (lv) preparing and filing the derivative complaint and numerous 

Motions in the Derivative Action and the Canadian Action, jncluding defending against the 

removal of the Derivative Action to Federal Court in Nevada and its subsequent remand to state 

court, multiple motions to dismiss the Derivative Action, a successful motion to compel an 

annual meeting of the stockholders of Can-Cal, a successful motion to compel discovery, and 

s 



• I 
1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

�Uinerous communications and letters regarding discovery ma� and disputes; (v) conducting 

damages analyses and expert witn-ess analyses; (vi) partici:pating in informal conferences with 

Defendants' Counsel regarding the specific facts of the cases, the perceived stren�� and 

weaknesses of the cases, and other issues in en effort to facilitate negotiations and fact gathering; 

(vii)s evaluating the merits ot and Defendants' potential liability in connection with thes

7. 

Derivative Action; (viii) reviewing and analyzing confidential documen� discovery produced bys

Defendants; {ix) reviewing and analyzing relevant documents in the Derivative Action ands

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

IS 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

evaluating the merits thereof; (x) submitting numerous co.rrespondence and other docllDlents tos

the SEC and filing formal motions to intervene and responses in the SEC Administratives

Proceeding involving Can-Cal to protect the stockholders' interests; (xi) submittings

comprehensive briefs prior to two separate Judicial Settlement Conferences, outlining theirs

position, and Plaintiffs' claims in the Derivative Action; (xll) participating in two (2) In-persons

Judicial Settlement Conferences and meetings In the Derivative Action; (xiii) assisting Canadians

comisel in tiling a defense and motion to adjoum in the Canadian A�on; and (xiv) negotiatings

this Settlement with Defendants at a day-long in .. person meeting on November 13, 2017.s

Based on Plaintiffs' Counsel's thorough review and analysis of �e relevant facts and 

difficult circumstances, allegations, defenses, and controlling legal principles, Plaintiffs' Counsel 

believe that the Settlement set forth in this Stipulation is fair, reasonable, and adequate, and 

confers substantial benefits upon Can-Cal and its shareholders. Based on their evaluatl�. 

Plaintiffs and Plaintiffs1 
• Counsel have determined that the Settlement is in the best interests of 

21 

22 

23 

Can-Cal and its shareholders and have agreed to settle the Derivative Action and the Canadian 

Action upon the terms and subject to the conditions set forth herein. 

24 m. DEFENDANTS' DENIALS OF WRONGDOING AND LIABll..ITYs

2S Defendants have denied and continue to deny each and all of the claims, contentions, and 

26 allegations made ¥!inst them or that could have been made against them in the Derivative 

27 Action and Defendants believe the Derivative Action has no merit and that the claims in the 

28 Canadian Action do have merit. Defendants have expressly denied and continue to deny all 

6 



27 

1 charges of wrongdoing or liability against them arising out �f any of the conduct, stat�ments, 

2 acts, or omissions alleged, or that could have been alleged in the Derivative Action. Defendants 

3 assert that they have satisfied their fiduciary duties and have acted in good faith and 'in the best 

4 interest of Can-Cal and its shareholders at all relevant times. Defendants have entered into this 

S Stipulation and 'Settlement solely to avoid the continuing additional expense, inconvenieQce> and 

6 distraction of the Derivative Action and the Canadian Act1011: and to mitigate the risks and 

7 uncertainty inherent in any legal proceedings. Defendants believe that it is desirable and 

8 beneficial that the Derivative Action and the Canadian Action ·be settled in the manner and upon 

9 the terms and conditions set forth In this Stipulation because, among other things, it will allow 

10 the Company to conclude these legal proceedings on terms that are j� and reasonable, including 

11 the amendment of the Alp.ended MSA to give Can-Cal substantial equity ftmds in a short period 

12 of time. the completion of required audits f9r 2015, 2016 and through third quarter 2017 (which 

13 were filed with the SBC on March 12, 2018) and which may enable can .. CaJ's stock to continue 

14 1rading and resolve tho SBC Administrative Proceeding, the _adoption and maintenance of 

15 corporate governance measures, including selection of a new Board of Directors., that the current 

16 Board of can .. Cal has determined, in its business judgment, serve Can-Cal's and its 

17 shareholders' best Interests. Further, Can-Cal through its Board, acknowledges that the 

18 Settlement ls fair, reQonable, and adequate, and· in the best interests of Can--Cal and its 

19 shareholders. 

20 Neither the Stipulation, nor any of its terms or provisions, nor entry of the Judgment, nor 

21 any doclJl!lent or exhibit referred or attached to the Sdpulation, nor any action taken to carry oute.e
22 the Stipulation, is, may be construed as, or may be used as evidence of the validity of any of the 

. 23 Released Clahns or an admission by or against Defendants of any fau� wrongdoing, or 

24 concession of liability whatsoever. 

25 IV. THE SETI'LEMENT BEARINGe

26 The Settlement Hearing will be held before Department 11 of this Court on 

______ • 2018 at _ .m., located at the Eighth Judiciai District Court of the S� 

28 dfNevada in and for Clark County, 200 Lewis Avenue, Las Vegas, NV 89155, to determine: (a) 

7 
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10 

15 

20 

25 

whether the proposed Settlement. upon the terms set forth In the Stipulation, should be finally 1 

2 approved in all respects as fair, reasonable, and adequate; (b) whether the Judgment approving 

3 ·othe Settlement should be entered; ( c) whether Plaintiffs' Counsel's agreed-to Fee and Expenseo

4 Amount and Can-Cal's Sh� iss�ce should be finally approved; and ( d) whether the corporateo

governance and other changes to Can-Cal's operations should be approved. The Settlemento

6 Hearing may be continued by the Court at the Settlement Hearing, or at any adjourned sessiono

7 thereof without t\trther notice.o

8 V. THE SE'ITLEMENT 

9 The tel1ru! and conditions of the proposed Settlement are set forth fully In the Stipulationo

and its Exhibits: The Stipulation has been flied with the Court and the following Is only a 

11 summary of the tenns of the settlement and the payments and corporate governance matters 

12 addressed in the Stipulation. 

13 As a result of the filing, prosecution, and settlement of the Derivative Action and the 

14 Canadian Action, Can-Cal has already adopted and implemeJrte(i and/or will adopt and 

implement the Second Amended MSA, attached as Bxlncit A to the Stipulation and the coiporate 

16 resolutions and amendments to the Articles of lncorporation and other corporate govemance 
.• 

17 measures described in Exhibit B to the Stipulation within thirty (30) calendar- days after the 

18 Effective Date of the Settlement. The Amended MSA and the corporate governance measures 

19 were jointly developed· and negotiated by tho Parties through Counsel. W"rthout admitting any 

wrongdoing, Can-Cal, through its •Bom:d, aclmowledges that -the securing of the Second 

21 Amended MSA and the corporate governance refonn measures confer substantial benefits upon 

22 the Company and its shareholders. can-Cal, through its Board, also aclmowledges that the 

23 prosecution and settlement of the Derivative Action and the resolution of the Canadian Action 

were substantjal and material factors in the Board's decision to enter Into the Second Amended 

MSA and adopt and implement the corporate governance measures identified in Bxhlbit B to the 

26 Stipulation. 

Further, Cati-Cal shall receive $50,000 working capital from the Initial Settlement 

28 Payment under'the Stipulation an4 another $150,000 pursuant to the Second Amended MSA 

27 

8 



�e

within six months of the Effective �ate (plus additional revenues under the Second Amended 

2 

1 

MSA) and Plaintiffs' Counsel will be paid in full for their services and reimbursed for. their costs 

3 and expenses as provided for in tho Stipulation and the Board of Directors of Can .. Cal will resign 

4 and be replaced by a Board of Directors selected by Plaintiffs and Defendants.e

S This Notice provides a summary of some, but not all, of the payments and benefits Can-
. .  

6 Cal will receive and the corporate governance refonns that Can-Cal has enacted or agreed to 

7 enact as consideration for the Settlement. For a list of all of the payments, corporate governance 

8 refonns and other benefits, please see the Stipulation and Exhibits A and B attached to the 

9 Stipulation. 

10 VI. DISMISSAL AND RELEASESe

11 If the Court approves tho Settlement at tho Settlement Hearing, the Parties will jointly 

12 request entry of the Judgment by the Court, the entry of which is a condition of the Stipulation: 

13 (a) approving finally the Settlement set forth in the Stipulation as fair, adequate, and reasonable, 

14 and directing its consummation pursuant to. its tenns; (b) dismissing with prejudice the 

.1S Dedvative Action and all Released Clabns against Released Persons2
; and (c) permanently 

. . 

16 baning and enjoining the Institution, commencement, or prosecution by Released Persons and all 

17 Cmrent Can-Cal Shareholders against Released Persons of any Released Claims or any claims 

18 .arising from, relating to, or in connection with the institution, prosecution, assertion, defense, 

19 settlement, or resolution of the Derivative Action. 

20 

21 

22 2 The tenns Released CJaims and Released "Persona me dotincd as follows:d

23 •e "Roleased Claims11 means any and all suits, claims. debts, demands. controversies. obligations, losses,d
rights, llabllitles. Bild aauses of action of every nature, including both known and Unknown Claims (asd
defined 1n paragraph 1.28 of the Stipulation), whether arlsJng under federa), state, common or foreign law,d24 at law orIn equity, Jbat were assa'lted or muld havo been asserted, directly or derivatively onbehalf'ofCan.e
Cal, by Plaintiffs as alweholdora or by any other Cur.rent Can-Cal Shareholder, or by Can-Cal, that arise25 out of or relate to: (I) the allegations asserted In the Derivatlvo Action; or (ii) the Settlement, except for anye
claims to entbrce the Settlement.d

26 
•d "Released Persons� means each and all of Can-Cal, the Corporate Defundams. the Individual Defendants,d

27 and their RelatedPersons,d

28 

9 



In consideration of the obligations and commitments undertaken by Defendants and the 1 

releases by the Released Persons, which constitute good and valuable consideration, and subject 2 

3 to the terms and conditions of the Stipulation, on the Effective Date, Plaintiffs and all Current 

4 Can-Cal Shareholders (solely in their capacity as Can .. CaJ shareholders) shall fullyt finally and 

5 forever release, relinquish and discharge as against the Released Persons any and all of the 

6 Released Claims (including Unknown Claims), and shall forever be barred and enjoined from 

7 instituting, commencing, or prosecuting any and all Released Claims against the Released 

8 Persons. 

9 VIL ATTORNEYS' FEES AND EXPENSES 

10 In recognition of the substantial benefits provided to Can-� and Current Can-Cal 

11 Shareholders as a result of the initiation, prosecution.penden�y, and settlement of tho Derivative 

12 Actions, including the entry of tho Second Amended MSA and the coiporate governance matters 

13 referred to herein, Plaintiffs' C9unsel will request, and Candeo has agreed to pay or cause to be 

14 paid, subject to the Court's approval, attorneys' fees and expenses 1n the total amount of 

IS $375,000 (the "F.ee and Expense Amount") to be paid by Candeo under the Second Amended 

16 MSA, of which Can-� shall retain �S0,000 as capital • To date, Plaintiffs' Counsel have neither 

17 received any payment for their services in conducting the Derivative Action, nor have they been 

18 n:imbursed for their out-of-pocket expenses inoUffed in excess of Sl00,000. 

19 Moreover, in light of the substantial benefits they have helped to create foi: can .. Cal and 

20 all Current Can-Cal Shareholders, the Plaintiffs' Counsel shall be issued Can-Cal common stock 

21 in the amount of $37S�OO0, calculated at U.S. $0.17 per share, subject to adjustment, as set forth 

22 more specifically in the Stipulation. 

23 

24 

vm. THE RIGHT TO OBJECT AND/OR BE BEARD AT THE SErrLEMENT 
BEARING 

25 Any Current Can-Cal Sh�hotdm: may object and/or appear and show cause, ff he, she, 

26 
or it has any concem why the Settlement should not be flnatly approved as fair, reasonable, and 

27 adequate, or why the Judgment should not be entered, or why the Fee and Expense �ount ore_e

28 Can-Cal Share issuance should not be approved; provided, however, unless otherwise ordered by 

10 



1 the Court, no Cummt Can-Cal Shareholder shall be heard or entitled to contest thCt approval of 

2 the terms and conditions of the Settlement, or, if approved, the Judgment to be entered thereon 

3 approving the same, or the Fee and Expense Amount or Can-Cal Share issuance, unless that 

4 shareholder has, at least fourteen ( 14) calendar days prior to the Settlement Hearing: (a) filed 

S with the Clerk of the Court a signed, written objection to the Settlement setting forth: (i) the 

6 nature of the objection; (ll) pro�f of ownership of Can-� common stock through the date of the 

1 Settlement Hearing, including the number of shares of Can-Cal common stock and the date of 

8 purchase; and (ihj any and aJl documentation ln support of such objection; and (b) if a Cwrent 

9 Can-Cal Shareholder intends to appear and requests to be heard at the Settlement Hearing, such 

10 shareholder must have, in addition to the tequirements of (a) above, filed with the Clerk of the 

11 Court, Eighth Judicial District Court of the State of Nevada in and for Clark County, located at 

12 the Regional Justice Center, 200 Lewis Avenue., Las Vegas, NV 89155: (i) a written ·notice of 

13 such shareholder's intention to appear; (ii) a statement that indicates the basis for such 

14 appearance; and (lii) the identities of any witnesses the shareholder intends to call at the 

lS Settlement Hearing and a statement as to the subjects of their testimony. If a Current Can-Cal 

16 Shareholder ffles a written objection and/or written notice of intent to appear, such shareholder 

17 must also simultaneously serve copies of such notice, proot statement, and documentation, 

18 together with copies of any other papers or briefs such shareholder tiles with the Court ( either by 

19 hand delivery or by :first class mail) at least fourteen (14) calendar days prior to the Settlement 

20 Hearing upon each of the following: 

21 Stephen R. Hackett, F.sq. 
SKLAR Wll.LIAMS PLLC 

22 410 S. RampartBlvd., Ste. 350 
Las Vegas, NV 8914S 

23 
William.R. Fishman, Esq. 24 2000 S. Colorado Blvd. 
Tower 1, Ste. 90025 
Denver, CO 80222 

26 
Counsel/or Plaintiffs 

27 

28 

Patrick J. Reilly, Esq. 
HOLLAND&. HART 
9555 Hlllwood Dr., 2nd Floor 
Las Vegas, NV 89134 

Justin C. Jones, &q. 
JONES LOVELOCK 
400 S. 4th St., Ste. S00 

. Las Vegas, NV 89101 

Counsel/or Defendants 

11 



Any Current Can -Cal Shareholder who does not mako his, her, or its objection In the 1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 DC.

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

2S 

26 

27 

28 

X. 

24 

.i 

manner provided herein shall be deemed to have waived such objection and shall forever be 

. foreclosed from making any objection to the falmess, reasonableness, or adequacy of the 

Settlement, or the Fee and Expense Amount and Can-Cal Share Issuance� unless otherwise 

ordered by the Court, but shall otherwise be bound by the Judgment to be entered and the 

releases to be given. 

CONDITIONSFORSETl'LEMENT 

The Settlement is conditioned upon the occurrence of certain events described in the 

Stipulation, which requires, among other things: (a) entry of the requested Judgment by this 

Court; (b) expiration of the time to appeal from or alter or amend the Judgment; (c) dismissal 

with prejudice of the Derivative Action; and ( d) discontinuance of the Canadian Action. If, for 

any reason, any one of .the conditions descnced in the Stipulation is not met, the Stipulation 

might be tenninated and, if terminated, will become, subject to certain exceptions identified in 

the Stipulation, null and void, and the Parties to the Stipulation will be resto� to their. 

respective positions as of March 14, 2018. 

EXAMINATION OF PAPERS AM> INQlJllUES 

This Notice contains only a summary of the terms of the Settlement. For a more detailedo

statement of the matters involved in tho Derivative Aotiot1t reference ls made to the Stipulation, 

which may be -inspected at the office of the Clerk of the Eighth Judicial District Court of the 

State of Nevada m and for Clark County, located at the 11.egional Justice Center, 200 Lewis 

Avenue, Las Vegas, NV 89155, during business hout'S of each business day. 

Any other inquiries regarding the Settlement or the Derivative Actions should be 

addressed in writing to the following: 

Stephen R. Hackett, Esq. 
SKLAR WILLIAMS PLLC 
410 S. Rampart Blvd., Ste. 350 
Las Vegas, NV 89145 

Counsel/or Plaintiffe 

William R. Fishman, Esq. 
2000 S. Colorado Blvd. 
Tower 1, Ste. 900 
Denver, CO 80222 

Counsel for Plalnttffe 

12 
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PLEASE DO NOT TELEPHONE THE COURT OR CAN-CAL 

REGARDING THIS NOTICE 
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EXHIBITE 
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s 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 WOLFE; 
ROBERT 

14 JOAN 

15 
JANSEN; 

16 SCOTI 

17 
COLLINS; 

18 NAT.ALIE 

19 SANDRA 
RYAN GUJLLET; 

20 

21 LTD

22 

23 

24 
corporation;

25 THOMPSON 
SCHINNOUR; 

26 CANDBO 

27 

28 

EXHIBITE 

IN THEEIGHTH JlJDICIAL 

IN .AND FOR CLARK COUNl'Y 

CaseNo.: 
Dept. No.: XI 

DISTRICT COURT OF THE STATE OF NEV ADA 

RONALD D. SLOAN; ROBIN SCHWABZ; A-14-701465-B 
GARY COLLJNS; JILL _BROWN; LARK 
TERRELL; NANCY HERBOLD; DANIEL 
R.OSLOAN; BE'ITY ANN SLOAN; "PEARLO
KIRK; J'J\MBS BOAN; NO WAIT; LARRY 
ORWICK; PATRICIA LA SALLE; BR.IAN 

STUART R. CAMBRON; 
WEBSTER; HUGO BONDI; 

BRATSETH; P A BRATSETH; 
DERBK MILANI; DEAN RACHEY; SAM 
BROUNSTEIN· SANDRA JANSEN• BRIAN SUMMARY NOTICE OF PROPOSED 

RHONDA KIM NICHOLS; SETl'LEMENT AND SETI'LEMENT 
NICHOLS; CARMBN ADAIR; HEARING 

KRISTA SCHOFIBLD; MARK BRATSE1H; 
ROS}! TltUST 11; CLIFF OLSON; DON 

ROYCE NORDSTROM; 
M:AYZBL; DAVID JBSSKB; 

THORNTON D. BARNES; JAMES HASON; 
HASON; EDDIE OUILLBT; 

ON BEHALF OF CAN-CAL RESOURCES, 
., 

Plaintiffs, 

vs. 

CAN-CAL RESOURCES, L'ID., a Nevada 
WILLIAM J. HOGAN; 
MACDONALD; RONALD 

MICHAEL· HOGAN; 
LA VA PRODUCTS, INC. a 

Canadian Corporation, and FUTUREWORTH 
CAPITAL CORP., a Canadian Corporation, 

11--------:e��i==---.....i 
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1 TO: ALL RECORD HOLDERS AND BENEFICIAL OWNERS orSHARES OF THE 
COMMON STOCK OF CAN-CAL RESOURCESt LTD. AS OF March 15, 2018 

2 WHO CONTJNUE 1'0 HOLD SUCH SHARES 

3 THIS SUMMARY NOTICE RELATES TO A PROPOSED SETI'LEMENT AND 
DISMISS.AL or THE ABOVE-CAPTIONED DERiv ATIVE LITIGATION 4 PENDING INTBE EIGHTH JUDICIAL DISTRICT COURT OF THE STA.TE OF 

s NEVADA IN AND FOR CLARK COUNTY (THE "DERIVATIVE ACTION") 

6 YOU ARE HEREBY NOTIFIED that the Parties have entered into a proposed 

7 settlement to resolve tlie issues mised In the Derivative Action (the "Settlement''). 

8 If you are a Can-Cal sharehol4er, your rights to pursue certain derivative claims on behalf 

9 of Can-Cal may be affected by this Settlement This Summary Notice ta not intended to be an 

10 expression of any opinion by the Court with respect to the merits of the claims made in the 

11 Derivative Action, but is merely to advise you of the pendency and proposed settlement of the 

12 Derivative Action. In consideration for the settlement, Can-Cal has agreed to adopt significant 

13 C01p0rate governance reforms and enter into a Second Amended Material Supply Agreement 

14 ("Second Amended MSA") with Candeo Lava Products, Inc, ("Candeo"). 

IS PLEASE BE FtJRTBER ADVISED that, pursuant to an Order of the Eighth Judicial 

16 District Court of the State ofNevada in and for Clark County, a hearing wiU be held before the 

17 Honorable Elizabeth Goff Gonzalez on _____• 2018 at ___.m. in Department 

18 I lof the Eighth Judicial District Court of the State ofNevada in and for Clark County, located at 

19 the Regional Justice Center, 200 Lewis Avenue, Las Vegas, NV 89155. At the Settlement 

20 Hearing, the Court will consider whether to grant final approval of the settlement and plaintiffs' 

21 attomeys' fees and expenses and certain stock awards to Plaintiffs' Counsel ("Stock Awards''). 

22 The Court may adjourn the Settlement Hearing without further notice to ean .. ca1 shareholders. 

23 This is a swnmary notice only. The Stipulation and Agreement of Settlement and tho 

24 detailed Notice of Proposed Settlement and Settlement Hearing ("Notice"), describing the 

2S Derivative Action, the proposed Settlement, and the rights of Can-Cal shareholders with regard 

26 to the settlement, has been filed with the Court and is available for viewing on Defendants' 

27 Counsels' websitds (www.hollandandhart.com and www.ioneslovelock.com), or on Plaintiffs' 

28 Counsel's website lwww.sklarlaw.com/notice.,tCan-CaO. 

2 

www.ioneslovelock.com
www.hollandandhart.com
https://DISMISS.AL


If you wish to obtain additional information about the cla� asserted in the Derivative 

2 

1 

�Action and the terms of the proposed Settlement, or a copy of the Stipulation, please contact 

3 counsel for Plaintiffs in the Derivative Action: 

4 Stephen R. Hackett, Esq. William R. Fishman, Esq. 
SKLAR WILLIAMS PLLC 2000 S. Colorado Blvd. 

s 410 S. Rampart Blvd., Ste. 3S0 Tower 1, Ste. 900 
Las Vegas, NV 89145 Denver, CO 80222 

. 6 

Counsel for Plaintiffs Counsel for_ Plaintiffs 7 

8 Any obje�dns to the proposed Settlement or Plaintiffs' Counsels' appllcatlon for 
9 attomeys' fees and reimbursement of expenses, or the Plaintiffs' Counsels' request for the Stock 

10 Awards, must be filed with the Clerk of the Court, Eighth Judicjal District Court for the State of 
11 Nevada in and for Clark County, Regional Justice Center, 200 Lewis Avenue, Las Vegas, NV 
12 89155, by .. 2018 and simultaneously served ( either by hand delivery or by first 
13 class mail) on Plaintiffs' Counsel and counsel for Defendants, in accordance with theprocedures 
14 .set forth In the Notice and at the addresses set forth In the Notice. Unless the Court otherwise 
15 directs, you shall not be entitled to object to the approval of the settlement, to plaintiffs' 
16 attomc,s' fees and �xpenses and the Stock Awards, or to otherwise be heard, except by serving 
17 and filing a written objectlon and supporting papers and documents as prescribed in the Notice • 

. 18 If you/all to object In the mannel' anti within the time prescribed In tl,e Notice yo,, shall he 
19 deemed to have waived your rlgl,t to object (lndudlng th.e right t� appeal) and shall forever be 
20 baned, In this proceeding or In any other proceeding,from raising such ob}ection(s). 

21 PLEASE DO NOT CALL, WRITE, OR OTHERWISE DIRECT QUESTIONS TO 
22- EIT.BER TBE COURT OR THE CLERK'S OfflCE REGARDING� SUMMARYe
23 NOTICE. 
24 

25 Dated: 
-----------

BY ORDER OF THE EIGHTH JUDICIAL 
DmTRICTCOURTOFTHESTATBOF

26 NEV ADA IN AND FOR CLARK COUNTY 
27 

28 
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EXHIBITF 



1 

2 

3 

4 

s 

6 

7 

8 IN THE EIGHTH JUDICIAL DISTRICT COURT OF THE STATE OF NEV ADA 

9 IN AND FOR CLARK COUNTY 

19 SANDRA BASON; EDDJB OUJLLET; 

20 

RYANGUILLET; 

ON BEHALF OF CAN-CAL RESOURCES, 
21 LTD.,· 

22 Plaintiffs, 

23 vs. 

24 CAN-CAL RESOURCES, LTDO., a Nevada 
�rporatlon; WILLIAM J. HOGAN; 

2S THOMPSON MACDONALD; RONALD 
SCHINNOUR; MICHAEL HOGAN; 

26 CANDEO LA VA PRODUCTS. INC. a 
Canadian Corporation, and FUTUR.BWORTH 

27 CAPITAL CORP., a Canadian Corporation, 

28 n--------=De�=dan=ts=a-_ __, 

EXHIBITF 

10 RONALD D. SLOAN; ROBIN SCHWARZ; 
GARY COLLINS; JILL �BROWN; LARK 

11 TBRBELL; NANCY HERBOLD; DANIBL 
R.OSLOAN; BElTY ANN SLOAN; PEARLO

12 K.1RK; JAMES BOAN; NO WAIT; LARRY 
ORWICK; PATRICIA LA SALLE; BRIAN 

13 WOLFE; STUART R. CAMERON; 
ROBERT WEBSTER; HUGO BONDI; 

14 JOAN BRATSETH; P A BRATSBTH; 
DERBI.{ MILANI; DEAN RACHEY; SAM 

IS BROUNSTBIN; SANDRA JANSEN; "BRIAN 
JANSEN; RHONDA KIM NICHOLS; 

16 SCO'IT NICHOLS; CARMEN ADAIR; 
KRISTA SCHOFJBLD; MARK BRATSBTH; 

17 ROSE TRUST 11; CLIFF OLSON; DON 
COLLINS; ROYCE NORDSTROM; 

18 NATALm MAYZBL; DAVID JESSKE; 
THORNTON D. BARNES; JAMBS HASON; 

Case·No.: A-14-701465-B 
Dept No.: XI 

[PROPOSED] Fffi'AL JUDGMENT AND 
ORDER OFDISMISSAL WITH PR.JUDI 

1 



� 

This matter came before this Court for hearing pursuant to this Court's Preliminary 

2 

1 

Approval Order dated _______on the application of the Parties foe final approval 

3 of the Settlement set forth in the Stipulation and Agreement of Settlement dated March 15, 2018 

4 (the "Stipulation"). Due and adequate notice ba.ving been given to Current Can-Cal Shareholders .. 

as required in the Preliminary Approval Order, and this Court having considered all papers filed· 

6 and proceedings had herein and otherwise being fully Informed In the premises and good cause 

7 appearing therefore, IT IS HEREBY ORDERED, ADJUDGED, AND DECREED that: 

8 1.a For purposes of this Final Jud8?1ent and Order ofDlsmissal (the "Judgment") thea

9 Court incorporates by reference the definitions in the Stipulation and all capitalized terms 

10 contained herein shall have the same meanings as set forth in the Stipulation, unless otherwise 

11 defined herein. 

12 2.a This Judgment incorporates and makes a part hereof: (i) the Stipulation; and (ii)a

13 the Court-approved Notice which was filed with the Court as Exhibit D to the Stipulation. 

14 3.a This Court has Jurisdiction over the subject matter of the Derivative Action,a

15 including alt mattetS necessary to effectuate the Settlement, and over all Parties. 

16 4.a The Court finds that the Settlement, as set forth in the Stipulation. is fair,a

17 reasonable, and adequate to Can-Cal and Cummt Can-Cal Shareholders, and that it provides 

18 substantial benefits to and is in the best interests of Can-Cal, Current Can-Cal Shareholders, the 

19 Plaintiffs and the Parties. The Court hereby directs that the Settlement be consummated in 

20 accordance with the terms and conditions of tho Stipulation and hereby finally approves the 

21 Settlement set forth in the Stipulation in all respects. 

22 S. The Derivative Action and all claims therein are hereby dismissed as to alla

23 Defendants with prejudice. As among Plaintiffs, Can..cal, the Corporate Defendants, and the 

24 Individual Defendants, the Partles are to bear t!ieir own costs, except as provided in Paragraph 12 

25 below. 

26· 6.a Upon the Effective Date. the Releasing Persons shall be deemed to have, and bya

27 operation of this Judgment shall have, fully, finally, and forever released, relinquished, and 

28 di5c?harged the Released Claims (including Unknown Claims) against the Released Persons. 

2 



Nothing herein shall in any way impair or restrict the rights of any Party to enforce the terms of 1 

. .

the Stipulation or this Judgment. Releasing Persons shall be deemed to have, and by opemtion of 2 

this Judgment shall have,. covenanted nqt to sue any Released Person with respect to any 3 

Released Claims and. shall be permanently barred and enjoined from instituting, commencing or 

5 prosecuting the Released Claims against the Released Persons. 

4 

6 7.d Except as set forth in Paragraph 8 below, upon the Effective Date, each of thed

7 Released Persons shall be deemed to have fully, finally, and forever released, relinquished, and 

8 discharged Plaintiffs, Plaintiffs' Co'unsol, and Can-Cal from all claims (including Unknown 

9 Claims), arising out ot relating to., or in connection with the institution, prosecution, assertion, 

10 settlement, or resolution of the Derivative Action or the Released Claims. Nothing herein shall in 

11 any way impair or restrict the tights of any Party to enforce the tenns of the Stipulation, the 

12 Settlement, or this Judgment. 

13 8.d Nothing in the Stipulation or in Paragraph 7 above constitutes or reflects a waiverd

14 or release of anyrights or claims of Defendants against their insurers, or their insurers' 

1S subsidiaries, predecessors, successors, assigns, affiliates, or representatives, including, but not 

16 limited to, any rights or claims of Defendants tmder any directors' and officers' liability insurance 

17 or other applioable hlsurance coverage maintained by the Company, or to the Reimbursables, as 

18 defined in section 3.4 of the Stipulation. 

19 9.d This Court finds that-the Notice of Proposed Settlement and Settlement Hearingd

20 ("Notice") to Current Can-Cal Shareholders posted on Defendants• Counsels' websites, Holland 

21 & Hart and Jones Lovelock, and tho website of Plaintiffs' Counsel, Sklar Williams PLLC and the 

22 . Summary Notice to Current Can-Cal Shareholders {"Summary Notice") filed by Can-Cal with 

23 the United States Securities and Exchange Commission via a Current Report on Form 8-K and 

24 published once In the Calgary Herald and the Las Yegas Review Journal, satisfied the 

25 requirements of due process, constituted the best notice practicable under th� circumstances to 

26 Can-Cal's shareholders, fully satisfied the requirements of Nevada law, due process under the 

27 Nevada and UniteddStates Constitutions, and any other applicable law, and constituted due andd_ 
28 adequate notice t.o all persons entitled thereto. 

3 
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10.e This Court finds that, during the course of the Derivative Action, the Parties ande

their counsel at all times acted professionally and in good faith and in compliance with Nevada 

Rule of Civil Procedure 11, and all other similar rules of p�fessional conduct with respec� to any 

claims or defenses in the Action. 

11.e This Court approves the Fee and Expense Amount of $375,000 In accordancee

with the Stipula�on. Payment of the Fee andExpense Amount shall be made In accordance with 

the terms and subject to the conditions of the Stipulation. 

12.e The Court approves the Cfm:·Cal Stock Award and share Issuance ln the amoun�e

of $37S,000 in accordance with the tenns and subject to the conditions of the Stipulation. 

13.e Neither the Stipulation (including the exhibits attached thereto) nor thee

Settlement, nor any act performed or document executed pursuant to or In furtherance of the 

Stipulation or the Settlement: (a) is or may be deemed to be or may be offered, attempted to be 

offered, or used in any way by the Parties as a presumption, a concession, or an admission of, or 

evidence o� the validity of any Released Claims, or of any fault, wrongdoing or liability of any 

of the Parties, Plalntiffs1 Counsel, Defendants' Counsel, or Released Persons; or (b) is or may be 

deemed to be or may be ·offered, attempted to be offered, or used in any way by the Parties or 

any other Person as a pteSUDlptlon, a concession, or an admission o, or evidence 0£ any fault, 

omission, wrongdoing, or liability of any of the Parties, Plaintiffs' Counsel, Defendants' Counsel 

or Released Persons in any civil, criminal, or administrative proceeding in any co� 

administrative agency, or other tribunal. The Parties, Plaintiffs' Counsel, Defendants' Counsel, 

and Released Persons may file the Stipulation and/or this Judgment in any action that may be 

brought against them in order to support a defense or counterclaim based on principles of clahn 

or issue preclusion, res judicata, collateral estoppel, release, good-faith settlement,judgment bar 

or reduction, or any other theory of claim preclusion or issue preclusion or similar defense or 

counterclahn. 

14.e Without affecting the finality of this Judgment in anyway, this Court herebye

retains continuingjurisdiction over: (a) implementation of the Settlement; and (b) the Parties. for 

the purpose of construing, enforcing, and administering the Stipulation, including, if necessary, 

4 



1 setting aside and vacating this Judgment, on motion of a Party, to the extent consistent with and 

2 in accord,ince withthe Stipulation if the Effective Date falls to occur in accordance with the 

3 Stipulation. 

4 1S. In the event that a termination and cancellation of the Settlement occurs pursuant 

S tothe Stipulatioq: (a) the terms and provisions oflhe Stipulation shall have no further force and 

6 effect, except as otherwise provided in the Stipulation; and (b) the Parties shall be deemed to 

7 have reverted to their positions as of immediately prior to the execution of the Stipulation, or 

8 March 14, 2018. 

9 16.o Without further order of the Court, the Parties may agree to reasonable extensionso

10 of time to carry out any of the provisions of the Stipulation. 

11 17, This Judgment Is a fmal, appealable judgment and should be entered forthwith. 

12 18.o The Court directs immediate entry of this final Judgment by the Clerk of theo

13 Court. 

14 IT IS SO ORDERED. 

lS 

16 

17 DATED: ______ 
JUDGE OF THE EIGHTH JUDICIAL DISTRICT 
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18 COLLINS; 

Electrcnlcally Flied 
41212018 2:48 PM 
Steven D. Grierson 

1 NOE 
STBPHBN R. HACKETI, BSQ. ���.-IIUPllll'I,.._..... _, 

2 Nevada Bar No.: 5010 
JOHNATHON FA YBOHI, ESQ.S

3. NovadaBarNo.: 12736 
SKLAR WILLIAMS PLLC 

4 410 South Rampart Boulevard, Suite 350
Las Veg� Nevada 89145 
Telephone: (702) 360-6000 
Facsimile: (702) 360-0000 

6 Email: -law.comfha�Email: _f@y� __ -law.com 
7 

Attorneys for Plaintl/li 
8S

DISTRICT COURT 
9 

CLARK COUNTY, NEV ADA 

RONALD D. SLOAN; ROBIN SCHWARZ; CaseNo.: A .. 14-70146S-BS
11 GARY COLLJNS; JILL BRWNS... � Dept.No.: XI 1TBRRELL; NANCY HERBOLD; DANmL R. 
12 SLOAN; BBTIY ANN SLOAN: PEARL 

KIRK; JAMBS BOAN; N O WAIT; LARRYS
13 ORWICK; PATRICIA LA SALLE; BRIANS

WOLFE; STUART R. CAMERON; ROBERTS
14 WEBSTER; HUGO BONDI; JOANS

BRATSBTH; P A BRATSBTH; DEREKS
MILANI; . DEAN RACHBY; SAMS
BROUNSTEIN; SANDRA JANSEN; BRIANS

16 JANSEN; RHONDA KIM' NICHOLS;
SCOTI NICHOLS; CARMEN ADAIR;S ·SNOTICE OF.ENTRYS

17 KRISTA SCHOFIELD· MARKBRATBETH;
ROSH TRUST 11; CLIPP OLSON; DON 

ROYCE 
NATALIB 

NORDSTROM;
MAYZBL; DAVID JBSSKB;·S 19 THORNTON D. BARNES; JAMBS BASON; 

SANDRA BASON; BDDIB GUILLET;
RYANGUILLBT; 

21 ON BEHALF OF CAN-CAL RESOURCES,
LTD.,

22 
Plaintiffs,

23 
vs. 

24 CAN-CAL RBSOURC�S1 LTD., a NevadaS
<l�93oration; WILLIAM J. BOGAN;
THOMPSON MACDONALD; RONALDS
SCHINNOUR; MICHABL HOGAN;26 CANDBO LAVA PRODUCTS, INC. aS
Canadian Coiporation, and FUTURBWORTiiS27 CAPITAL CORP., a Canadian Corporation, 

28 Defendants. 
Defendants. 
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1 
PLEASE 

DATED thisday of 

TAKE NOTICB. that on the 2°� day of April, '2018, an ORDBR 
2 

PRBLIMINAlW.,Y. APPRO:\TJNO S:BTILBMBlfr AND PROVIDING FOR NOTICB was 

entetedin the above-entitled-matter, a copy of which is attached hereto, 
4 

2nd April, 2018. 
s 
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CERTQ'ICATE OF SERVICE 

The undersigned hereby certifies that on the L day of April, 2018 a true and correct 

copy of the above and forgoing Notice of Entry was submitted electronically for filing and service 

with the Bighth Judicial District Court. Electronic Service of the foregoing document shall be 

made to all parties listed on the E-sERVICE MASTER LIST. in accordance with the Electronic 

Service and Filing Order. 

E•Sarvlce Master List 
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1 STEPHEN R. HACKETT, ESQ. 
Nevada Bar No.: S010 

2 JOHNAfflON FA YBGHI, BSQ. 
NevadaBarNo.: 12736 

3 SKLAR WILLIAMS PILC 
410 South Rampart Boulevard, Suite 3S0 

4 Las Vegas, Nevada 89145 
Telephone: (702) 360-6000 
Facsimile: (702) 360-0000 
Email: shackett@sklar-taw.com

6 Email: Hgeghi@sklar-law.com 

7 if.ttorneyafor Plaintiffs 

8 ·DISTIUCT COlJR.TO

9 CLARK COUNTY, NEV ADA 

RONALD D. SLOAN; ROBIN SCHWARZ; 
GARY COLLINS; JllL BROWN; LARK 

11 �; �:f:����=
12 KIRK; JAMES BOAN; N O WAIT; LARRY 

ORWICK; PATRICIA LA SALLB; BRIAN 
13 WOLFB; STUART R. CAMBRON;

ROBERT WEBSTER; IRJOO BONDI;
14 JOAN BRATSE1H; P A BRATSETH;

DEREK. MILANI; DEAN RACHBY; SAM 
BROUNSTEIN; SANDRA JANSEN; BRIAN 
JANSEN; RHONDA KIM NICHOLS;

16 SCOTI NICHOLS; CARMBN ADAlR;
KRISTA SCHOFIELD; MARK BRATSBTH; 

17 ROSE TRUST 11; CLIFF OLSON; DON 
COLLlNS; ROYCE NORDSTROM;

18 NATALIE MAYZBL; DAVID JBSSKB;
'lllORNTON D. BARNES; JAMBS HA.SON; 

19 SANDRA BASON; EDDIE GUILLET;
RYAN GUILLET; 

ON BBHALF OF CAN-CAL RESOUR.�O
21 LTD., 

22 Plaintiffs, 

23 vs. 

24· ·CAN-CAL RESOURCES, LID., a Nevada 
�c,r_eoration; Wll,LJAM J. HOGAN;
'IHOMPSON MACDONALD; RONALD 
SCIDNNOUR; MICHAEL HOGAN;

26 CANDEO LA VA PRODUCTS, INC. a 
Canadian Corporation, and Ft11URBWORTii 

Z1 CAPITAL CORP., a Canadian Corporation, 

28 11-------____J;�gmsb,_ _ __J 

CaseNo.: A-14-70146S-B 
Dept No.: XI 

ORDERPRELIMINARILY .APPROVJNGO
SE'n'LEMENT AND PROVIDING l'OR 

NOTICE 

1 

Casa Number: A-14-701465-8 
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"Derivative Action" or "Aotiou") have submitted a Stipulation and Agreement of Settlement 

S WHEREAS, the Parties have made an application for an order: (i) preliminarily 

6 approving the Settlement of the Action, in accordance with the Stipulation and agreement of 

7 Settlement dated March 15, 2018 (the "�pulation"). which, together with the exhibits annexed 

8 thereto, sets forth the tenns and conditions for the proposed Settlement and dismissal of the 

9 Derivative Action with prejudice� and (uj approving the form and content of (a) the Notice to 

1 O Current can .. Cal Shareholder (the "Notice") for posnng on the websites of Sklar Williams PLLC, 

11 Holland & Hart, and Jones Lovelock; (b) the Summary Notice to Current Can-Cal Shareholders 

12 for filing by Can-Cal with thoU.S. Securities and Exchange Commission ("SBC', via a Current 

13 Report on Form 8-K; and (o) the publication of a Smmnary Notice once in the Calgary Herald 

14 and the Las Yegas Review Journal, newspapers of general circulation in the areas where the 

1S JWdorlty of tho slweholders in Can-Cal are believed to reside; 

16 WHEREAS, the Court having: (i) read and considered the Stipulatio11t as well as ell the 

exbibits attached thmeto and (ii) heard and considered arguments by coumel for the Parties in 

favor of preliminary approval of the Settlement; 

WHEREAS, the Court finds, upon a preliminary evaluation, that the proposed Settlement 

falls within the range of possible final &pproval criteria, as it provides a beneficial result for Can-

Cal and its shareholders and appears to be the product of good•mith, informed, and non--collusive 

negotiations between experienced and capable counsel for the parties; 

WHEREAS, 1he Court also finds, upon a preliminary evaluation, that Cuuent Can-Cal 

shareholders should be apprised of the Settlement through the proposed form of notice. allowed 

to file objections, if any, thereto, and to appear at the Settlement Hearing; and 

WHEREAS, all capitali7.ed terms contained herein shall have the same meanings as set· 

forth in the Stipulation, UDless otherwise defined herein; and 

NPW THBRBFORB, IT IS HEREBY ORDERED: · 

2 

WBBREAS, the Parties to the above-captioned shareholder derivative action (the1 

2 

seeking the preUrni:oary approval of the settlement, as well as the Exhibits attached thereto and 3 

the arguments by counsel for the parties in favor of preliminary approval of the Settlement; 4 

https://capitali7.ed


terms and conditions for settlement and dismissalwithprejudice ofthe Derivative Action. 

S Honorable Bli1.abeth Goff Gonzalez, in Department 11 of this Court on JULY 9, 2018 at 8:30 

6 � to consider: (i) whether the tenns and conditions of the Settlemmrt set forth in the 

7 Stipulation are fair, reasonable, and adequate to Can-Cal and Current Can-Cal Shareholdms and 

8 should be finally approved by this Court; (ii) whetlier the Judgment approving the Settlement, as 

9 provided for in paragraph 1.11 of the Stipulation and attached thereto as Exhibit F, should be 

10 entered; (iii) whether PlaintiffiJ' Counsel's application for an award of attomeys' fees and 

11 reimbursement of expenses should be approved; and (iv) such other matters as may be necessary 

12 or proper: 

13 3.s This Court approves as to form and content the Notice, attaobed as Bxhibit D tos

14 1he Stipulation, and the Summary Notice, attached as Exhibit B to the Stipulation, and finds that 

IS the provisions of the Notice and Summary Notice meet tho requirements of Nevada Jaw and due 

16 process, is the best notico practicable under the oircumstances, and shall constitute due and 

17 sufficient notice to all Persons entitled thereto. Nonmaterial obanges to the form of Noti� may · 

18 be made withoutfurther approval of the Court. 

19 4.s Within ten (10) business days following entry of this Order, Defendants shalls

20 cause a copy of the Notice and Stipulatioo to be posted on their counsels' websites, Holland & 

21 Hart and Jones Lovelock. Defendants shall maintain the Notice and Stipulation on 1heir 

22 counsels' websites until the date the Court enters the Judgment approving the Settlement. 

23 5. Within ten (10) business days following entry of this Order, Can-Cal shall cause as

24 copy of the Summary Notice to be filed with the U.S. Securities and Bxchange Commission 

25 ("SEC') via a Current Report on Form 8-K.. 

26 6.s Within ten (10) business days followJng entry of this Order, Can-Cal shall cause as

27 copy of 1hc Summary Notice to be published once in the Calgary Herald and tho Las Yegas. 

28 Review Journal newspapers of geneml circulation m the areas where a ml\forlty of the 

3 

1 1.s This Court hereby prelirnfuerily approves, subject to fmther consideration at thes

2 Settlement Hearing described below, the Settlement set forth in the Stipulation, including the 

3 

4 2.s The Settlement Hearing pursuant to NR.CP 23.1 shall be held before thes



shareholders of Can-Cal are believed to reside. The costs associated with publishing the 

2 

1 

Summary Notice shall be paid by Defendants. 

3 7.e Within ten (10) business days following entty of this Order, Plaintiffs' Counsele

4 shall cause a copy of the Notice and Stipulation to be posted on the website of Sklar Williams 

S PUC and shall maintain the Notice and Stipulation on its website until the date the Court enters 

6 the Judgment apptoving the Settlement 

7 8.e This Court hereby finds that the notice procedures descrlbed in paragraphs 4-7e

8 above satisfy the requirements of due process, constitute teasonable notice tmder the 

9 circumstances, and shall constitute due and sufficient notice to all Persons entitled to such notice 

l O of the proposed Settlement and matters to be considered at the Settlement Hearing.e

11 9. All papers in support of the Settlement and the Fee and Expense Amount shall bee

12 filed with this Court. and served at least twenty-eight (28) calendar days prior to the Settlement 

13 Hearing, and any reply papers, inolwfing in response to any objections, shall be filed with this 

14 Court at least seven (7) calendar-days prior to the Settlement Hearlng. 

15 10.e Any Cwtent .Can-Cal Shareholder 11lBY object and/or appear and show cause, ife

16 he, she, or it bas any concern why the Settlement should not be finally approved as fair, 

17 reasonable, and adequate, or why the Judgment should not be entered, or why the Fee and 

18 Expense .Amount and the Can-Cal Share issuance should not be finally approved; provided, 

19 however, unless otherwise ordered by this Court, no C�t Can-cal Shareholder shall be heard 

20 or entitled to contest the' approval of the tmns �d conditions of 1he Settlement, or, if approved, 

21 the Judgment to be entered thereon approving the same, or the Fee and Expense Amount, or the 

22 Can-Cal Share issuance, unless that shareholder has, at least fourteen (14) calendar days prior 

23 to the Settlement Hearing: (a) filed with the Clerk of this Court a signed, written objection to 

·24 ·the Settlement setting fotth: (i) the nature of the objection; (li) proof of owneabip of Can-Cale

2S common stock through the date of the Settlement Hearing, including the number of shares of 

26 Can-Cal common stock and the date of purchase; (iii) any documentation in support of such 

'27 objecti� and (b) if a Current Can-Cal Shareholder intends to appear and requests-to be heard at 

28 the Settlement Hearing, such shareholder must have, in addition to the requirements of (a) above, 

4 



1 filed with the Clerk of this Court: (i) a wrltten notice of such shareholder's intention to appear; 

2 (h1 a statement that Indicates the basis for such appearance; and (ill) the identities of any 

3 witnesses the shareholder intends to call at 1he Settlement Bearing and a statement as 1o the 

4 subjects of their testimony. If a Current Can-Cal Shareholder files a written objection and/or 

s written notice of intent to appear, such shareholdem must also slmultan«;ously serve copies of 

6 such notice, proof, statement, and documentatim1t together with copies of any other papers or 

7 briefs such shareholder files with this Court (either by hand delivery or by first class mail) at 

8 least fourteen (14) calendar days prior to the Settlement Hearing upon each of the following: 

9 Stephen R. Hackett, Bsq. 
SKLAR WILLIAMS PLLC 

10 410 S. Rampart Blvd.. Ste. 350 
Las Vegas. NV 8914S · 

11 

William R. Fishman, Fsq. 12 2000 S. Colorado Blvd. 
Tower 1, Ste. 900 13 
Denver, CO 80222 

14 
Counsel for Plaintiffs 

15 

Patrick J. Reilly, Bsq. 
HOLLAND & BART 
9555 Hillwood Dr., 2nd Floor 
Las Vegas, NV 89134 

Justin C. Jones, Bsq. 
JONES LOVBLOCK. 
400 S. 4th St., Ste. 500 
Las Vegas, NV 89101 

Coun,e/for Defendants 

11.o Any cmrent Can-Cal Shareholder who does not make his, her, or its objection in·o
16 

the manner provided herein shall be deemed to have waived such objection and shall forever be 
17 

foreclosed from making any objection to the talrnesst reasonableness, or adequaqr of the 
18 

Settlement, or to the Fee and Expense Amount unless otherwise otdered by this Court, but shall 
19 

otherwise be bound by the Final Order and Judgment to be entered and the releases to be given. 
20 

12• · At ·least fourteen (14) calendar days prior to the Settlement Hearing, Defendants'o.21 
Counsel shall :file and serve on counsel in this Action and :file with the Court atlldavit(s) or

22 
declaration(s) stating that the Summary Notice was filed as a CUII8nt Report on Form 8-K with 

23 
the SBC, that the SUmmary Notice was published in the Calgary Herald and the lAS Yegas 

24 
Review Joun,al, and that the Notice and Stipulation were posted � maintained on Defendants' 

25 
cowisels' websites. 

26 

13.o At least fourteen (14) calendar days prior to the Settlement Hearing, Plaintiffs'o
27 

Counsel shall file and serve on•counsel in this Action affidavit(s} or declaration(s) stating that the 
28 

5 



1 Notice and Stipulation were posted and maintained on the website of Sklar WilliamsPLLC. 

2 14.o Pending final detennlnation · of whether the Settlement should be approved, noo

3 Cummt Can-Cal Shareholder, directly, represenmtively, or in any other capacity, shall institute, 

4 commence or prosecute against any of the Defendants, or derivatively on behalf of Can� any 

S action or proceeding in any court or tribwial assetting any Released Claims. 

6 IS. All pror.eecUngs bi this Derivative Action, except for those proceedings related to 

7 the Settlement, shall be stayed and the cuaent trial date vacated, until the resolution of all 

8 Settlement-related proceedings. 

9 16.o Neither the Stipulation (including any exhibits attached thereto) nor theo

10 Settlement, not any act perfoDned or document executed pursuant to or in furtherance of the 

11 Stipulation or the Settlement: (a) is or may be deemed to be or may be offered, attempted to be 

12 offered or used in any way by the Parties as a preswnption, a concession or an admission of: or 

13 evidence of, the validity of any Released Claims, or of any fault, wrongdoing or liability of any 

14 of the Parties, Plahrtiffs' Counsel, Defendants' Counsel, or Released Persons; or (b) is or may be 

15 deemed 1o be or may be offered, attempted to be offered or used in any way by the Parties or any 

16 other Person as a presumption, a concession, or an admission o( or evidence ot any fault, 

17 otuission, wrongdoing or liability of any of the Parties, Plaintiffs' Counsel, Defendants' Counsel, 

18 or Released Persons in any civil, criminal� or administrative proceeding .in any court, 

19 admlnistratfve .agency, or other tribunal. The Parties, Plaintiffs' Counsel, Defendants' Counsel, 

20 and Released Persons may me the Stipulation and/or this Order in connection with any 

21 proceeding 10 enforce tlie terms of the Stipulation or this Order, including, but not limited to, the 

22 filing of the Stipulation, and/or this Order by any Released Party to prevent or terminate 

23 institution. commen� or ·prosecution of any ad.ion that asserts Released Claims against any 

24 of the Released Parties. 

2S Ill 

· 26 II I 
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28 /// 
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7 
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10 

12 
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16 

18 

20 

21 

23 

25 

26 

28 

7 

1 17. This Court reserves the right to. continue or adjourn the date of the Settlement 

2 '" Hearing or modify my -other dates set forth herein without further notice to Current Can-Cal 

Shareholders, and retains jurisdiction to consider all further applications arising out of or 

connected with the Settlement. The Court may approve the Settlement and any of its tenns. with 

s such modifications as may be agreed to by the P�es, if appropriate, without further notice to 

6 Current Can-Cal Shareholders. 

IT IS SO ORDERED. 

8 
DATED: 214-,n ,� 

11 

13 

14 

17 

19 

22 

24 

27 




